
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

 

MAYOR WILL STOCKWIN  MAYOR PRO TEM MARNIE MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBERS  STEVE HARVEY  KIM DOUGLASS  

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

November 14, 2018 

Closed  Session 6:00 PM    Regular Session 7:00 PM 
 

 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

November 14, 2018 

 
Page 1 of 2  

 

 

1. CLOSED  SESSION   

1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

1B. Roll Call 

1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items  

1D. Closed Session 

1) Conference With Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation Pursuant To Government Code Section 

54956.9(d)(1): People of The State Of California vs Church of Modern Medicine, Placer 

County Superior Court Case # SCV41724. 

2) Public Employment and Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Government 

Code Section 54957.  Position Title:  City Manager 
 

2. CALL TO  ORD ER  

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Report from Closed Session  

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 

2D. Roll Call 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented  or amended. 
 

3. PRESEN TATION  

3A. PG&E – Community Wildfire Safety Program  

 Brandon Sanders, Sierra Division Public Affairs 

3B.  Concert Venue at Closed Landfill – Canyons Theatre Project 

 Greg Flessing and Lorin Starla, Fresh Air Media 
 

4. CON SEN T CALEN DAR 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No discussion of 

these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item pulled from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 

4A. Minutes – Regular meeting October 10, 2018 

 Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 10, 2018. 

4B. Cash Summary Report – September 2018 

 Recommendation:  Accept and file. 

4C. Quarterly Investment Report:  Ending September 30, 2018. 

Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

4D. Agreements for Federal Transportation Funds for the Rising Sun Paving Project 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 62-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 

Program Supplement Agreement and Finance letters for the Rising Sun Paving Project und er the 

Master Agreement Administering Agency State Agreements for Federal-Aid  Projects. 

 



 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

November 14, 2018 

 
Page 2 of 3  

 

4E. Local Transportation Funds and State Transit Assistance Funds 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 63-2018 authorizing the City Manager to file claims or 

execute agreements for: Local Transportation Funds in the amount of $118,552 for streets and 

roads purposes (Article 8 – Section 99400 of the California Public Utilities Code), Local 

Transportation Funds of $101, for transit services (Article 8c, Section 99400Cof the California 

Public Utilities Code), and  State Transit Assistance Funds of $14,274 for transit services (Article 

6.5, Chapter 4, Section 99313 of the California Public Utilities Code). 

4F. 2018 ADA Improvements Project – Notice of Completion 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 64-2018 accepting the 2018 ADA Improvements Project as 

complete and authorizing the recording of the Notice of Completion. 

4G. Pond I Project – Notice of Completion 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 65-2018 accepting the Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1 

Levee Project as complete and authorizing the recording of the Notice of Completion. 

4H. Shade Structure for Lions Ball Park Bleachers. 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 66-2018 approving the purchase and installation by Ross 

Recreation Equipment for shade structures over the Lions Ball Park Bleachers in an amount not to 

exceed $56,000. 

4I. Fire Equipment Grant Acceptance 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 66-2018 approving the Department of Forestry and Fire 

Protection Agreement required  by CalFire as a condition to receiving grant funds in the amount 

of $3,970 for the Grant application for the 2018/ 19 Fiscal Year. 

4J. Acceptance of Real Property for S. Auburn St and I-80 Roundabout Project (Federal Aid 

Project CML-5187(010)) 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 67-2018 authorizing the City Manager to accept real 

property and execute right-of-way certifications associated  with the South Auburn Street and  

Interstate 80 Roundabout Project. 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARIN GS 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: City Council will take the following actions when considering a matter scheduled  for hearing: 

1. Open the public hearing 2. Presentation by staff 

3. Statement from applicant (if applicable) 4. Council comments and questions 

5. Accept public testimony 6. Council comments and questions 

7. Close public hearing. (No public comment is taken after the hearing is closed) 8. City Council action 

Public hearings that are continued will be announced . The continued public hearing will be listed  on a subsequent Council Mee ting Agenda 

and  posting of that agenda will serve as notice. 

5A. Public Hearing for Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, Planned 

Development Permit, Development Agreement and Design Review for an ARCO Service Station 

for the Maidu Village Development Project 

Staff Presentation:  Amy Feagans Planning Director 

Recommendation:  Conduct a public hearing, discuss and consider:  

1. Adopting Resolution 68-2018 approving the Mitigated  Negative Declaration and the Vesting 

Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, Planned Development, Design Review ; and , 

2. Introduction and  first reading of Ordinance No. 538 an ordinance of the City of Colfax 

adopting findings of fact approving a Development Agreement with Colfax Auburn LLC 

regarding the development of the Maidu Village property generally located  on South 

Auburn Street near the intersection of the Interstate Highway 80 on -ramp and off-ramp, and 

schedule for a second reading and possible adoption at the December 12, 2018 regular 

meeting; and  

3. Adopting Resolution 69-2018 approving the design review for the Arco Service Station at 

the Maidu Village Development Project. 

 
 



 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

November 14, 2018 

 
Page 3 of 3  

 

5B. Mitigation Impact Fees 

Staff Presentation:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

Recommendation:  Conduct a public hearing, review the annual report, consider public and staff 

comments, accept report and  consider adopting Resolution 70-2018 accepting and approving the 

Annual AB 1600 Mitigation Fee Report and making findings pursuant to Colfax Municipal Code 

Chapter 3.56 and the Mitigation Fee Act (Gov C §66000 Et Seq) 

5C. Public Hearing for Site Plan Review and Design Review to develop the Whitcomb Avenue Site 

Staff Presentation:  Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

Recommendation:  Conduct a public hearing, discuss, and  consider adopting Resolution 71-2018 

approving the Mitigated  Negative Declaration and Application (DSRP-2017-002) Site Plan Review 

and Design Review for the Whitcomb Avenue property (APN 100-230-013) with an office/ shop and 

outdoor RV and boat self-storage operation. 

6. PUBLIC COMMEN T 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter ju risdiction of 

the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to exceed three (3) minutes in 

length.  The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 

7. COUN CIL, STAFF AND  OTHER REPORTS 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal 

action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

7A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 

7B. City Operations Update – City staff 

7C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 

8. COUN CIL BUSIN ESS 

8A. Construction Management and Inspection Services for S. Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout 

Project (Federal Aid Project CML-5187(010)) 

 Staff Presentation:  Dane Schilling, City Engineer  

 Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 72-2018 authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into a consultant services agreement with Psomas for construction management 

inspection services on the South Auburn Street and  I-80 Roundabout Project in an amount not to 

exceed $299,085, contingent upon Caltrans approval of the procurement process. 

8B. City Engineering Consulting Services 

 Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

 Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 73-2018 authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into a contract agreement with Bureau Veritas North America, Inc. for City 

Engineering Services for a term of 3–years with an option for a 2-year extension. 
 

9. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under this agenda item 

or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 
 

10. AD JOURN MEN T 
 

 

 

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted  at Colfax City Hall and  the Colfax  Post Office. The 

agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 

 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted  prior to action being initiated  in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council a ction 

in court, you may be limited  to raising only those issues you or someone else raised  at a public hearing described  in this 

notice/ agenda, or in written correspondence delivered  to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said  public hear ing. 
 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes October 10, 2018 
 

6A.      City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, October 10, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CLOSED SESSION 
1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 6:32PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Mendoza, Stockwin 
Council member absent:  Harvey 

1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items 
There was no public comment. 

1D. Closed Session 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation. Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1): People of the State of California vs Church of Modern Medicine, Placer 
County Superior Court Case #SCV41724.  
 

Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation. Significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): One potential case. 
 

Closed session ended at 6:56PM. 
 

2 OPEN SESSION 
2A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 7:02PM. 
2B. Report from Closed Session 

City Attorney Cabral noted there were two items discussed but no reportable actions taken 
during Closed Session.   

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Fred Abbott, Colfax volunteer Events Liaison, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2D. Roll Call 
Council members present:  Douglass, Mendoza, Stockwin 
Council member absent:  Harvey 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, the City Council 
approved the agenda order. 
AYES:  Douglass, Mendoza, Stockwin 
ABSENT: Harvey 
 

3 PRESENTATION 
3A. Sierra Oaks Estates – Project Update 

Eric Stauss, Project Developer 
Mr. Stauss gave a PowerPoint presentation explaining the progress made on Phase I of the Sierra 
Oaks project which upon completion will add 34 new homes to Colfax.  Street paving was 
recently completed along with preparation of the building pads for the homes.  The subdivision 
has been designed to preserve trees and topography.  It is a beautiful site with great views. 

ITEM  4A
1 of 5



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes October 10, 2018 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked if there has been feedback from neighbors. 
Mr. Stauss stated he has responded to neighbors to resolve issues as soon as possible.  Recent 
complaints of sewer smells have been addressed but the City may need to revisit the design of 
the City sewer main. 
Several members of the public asked questions regarding the size of the homes and amenities in 
the subdivision. 
Mr. Stauss replied the homes will be 2000-3000 square feet; most will have 3 bedrooms/2 
bathrooms and a 12x50 foot back deck; the homes will all have solar power and adequate set-
back from the forest. 
City Manager Heathcock explained the new homes will add 34 utility hook-ups and spread out 
the sewer obligation per home citywide.  Roads in the subdivision will be included in the 
disbursement matrix and likely will increase Placer County Transportation Planning Agency 
(PCTPA) dispersements to the City. 
 

4 CONSENT CALENDAR 
4A. Minutes - Regular Meeting September 26, 2018 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 26, 2018. 
4B. Sierra Oaks Estates Sewer Easements 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 60-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute 
quitclaim deeds for existing sewer easements and accept new deeds for sewer easements 
for the City’s sewer main through the Sierra Oaks Estates Subdivision. 

 

On a motion by Councilmember Douglas, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the consent calendar. 
 

5 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Sharon Conners, area resident 

 Ms. Conners asked how the PCTPA funding is distributed. 
City Manager Heathcock responded some of the funding goes to public transit and the rest is 
deposited in the Public Works fund which can be earmarked by Council for road improvement 
projects.  He mentioned that this year, City staff has been able to secure $4,000,000 in funding for 
the road projects slated for this fiscal year the majority of which is grant funding. 

Jim Dion, Owner of Golden State Patient Care  
 Mr. Dion asked if the Council will reinstate his license. 

Mayor Stockwin stated the City will issue a temporary 120 day license to Golden State Patient 
Care.  Mr. Dion or a representative can pick up the license during business hours tomorrow. 

 

6 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Douglass 
 Councilmember Douglass attended the “Meet the Candidates” night and the 

Harvest Fair at the Sierra Vista Community Center. 
 He represented the City on a Public Relations Subcommittee for SACOG, the Placer 

County Economic Development Board, the Pioneer Energy Board, and the SACOG 
Board. 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
 Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza attended the “Meet the Candidates” night, a fire 

prevention meeting at Canyon View Senior Apartments and the Friends of the 
Library restart meeting. 

ITEM  4A
2 of 5



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes October 10, 2018 
 

 She announced a candidate forum to be held at the Canyon View Senior 
Apartments on October 17, 2018 at 3:30PM. 

 Because the pharmacy at Sierra Market has closed, Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
researched to find a pharmacy that will deliver to Colfax.  She has contact 
information if anyone would like it. 

Mayor Stockwin 
 Mayor Stockwin reiterated City staff will reinstate the temporary business license 

for Golden State Patient Care for 120 days. 
 He also stated commercial cannabis business licenses will not be placed back on 

the agenda this fall because the October 24, 2018 meeting will not have the full 
Council in attendance. The November 14, 2018 and December 12, 2018 meetings 
will take place after the election.  As mayor, he feels it is best to allow the new, full 
Council to deliberate on the merits of commercial cannabis licenses.  

 He gave the first rainfall report for the season:  The recent storm was 1.2 inches for 
the new season. 
 

6B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 

 City Manager Heathcock stated staff is processing the sewer grant application 
approved by Council at the last meeting and will be asking for $500,000 for plans 
and design of projects for solar power at the Wastewater Treatment Plant, algae 
extraction from the sedimentation ponds, and infrastructure improvements to 
reduce Inflow and Infiltration.  The next phase of grant funding will provide up to 
$6,000,000 in funds for construction of those projects. 

 Staff has finally been given the official waiver to apply CDBG grant funds to the 
Culver Street rehab project.  PCWA will need to replace the water line in the 
section of the road.  The bidding for construction should be in spring, 2019. 

 Coastland Engineering has given notice they will be ending their contract with the 
City.  Staff has advertised for proposals for a new firm.  Coastland Engineering, led 
by City Engineer, Dane Schilling, has graciously extended their time with the City 
until a new firm can be secured. 

  

6C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Fred Abbott, Event Liaison  

 Mr. Abbott shared he is coordinating with the Sierra Vista Community Center 
board to set the date for Railroad Days in September 2019.   

 Next week, he will attend the planning meeting for the Winterfest Fundraiser. 
Councilmember Douglass asked if the community calendar is hosted on the City website.   
The calendar is hosted on the Chamber website with a link to the City’s.  The City website is in 
the process of being updated and the goal is to host the calendar on the new website. 

Tim Ryan, Board Member, Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce 
 Mr. Ryan stated the Chamber works hard to keep the calendar up to date – please 

notify them of any upcoming events. 
 On Saturday the Chamber will host a flea market as a fundraiser for Winterfest. 
 The VFW, American Legion, and Air Med will co-host the next Chamber Mixer at 

the Veteran’s Memorial Hall on October 18, 2018 from 5:30-7:30PM. 

ITEM  4A
3 of 5



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes October 10, 2018 
 

 The Chamber is excited to see the genuine enthusiasm of the new Friends of the 
Library Board. 

Mayor Stockwin asked if the Chamber plans to have a fireworks display during Winterfest. 
Mr. Ryan affirmed the Chamber is working on fundraising and plans to have fireworks. 

Sharon Conners and Foxey McCleary, Sierra Vista Community Center  
 Ms. Conners reported on the success of recent events at the Sierra Vista 

Community Center and mentioned some of the upcoming events. 
 Ms. McCleary invited everyone to the first Sunday breakfasts at VFW and the Open 

Studio events on Tuesday and Wednesday afternoons. 
 

7 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
7A. Rising Sun Pavement Project (Federal Project No. STPL-5187(011) – Award of 

Contract 
Staff Presentation:  Dane Schilling, City Engineer  
Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 61-2018 authorizing the 
City Manager to: 
1. Amend the Rising Sun Road Pavement Resurfacing Project (Federal Project № STPL-

5187(011)) of the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget to allocate to the Project $3,500 in 
revenue from PCWA for utility relocation expenses and to reflect a $7,100 decrease in 
Federal funding. 

2. Award a construction contract to Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt, Inc. in the 
amount of $157,700 and authorize the City Manager to execute change orders up to 
the amended budget. 

3. Authorize the City Manager to engage Coastland Engineering to perform construction 
management and inspection services not to exceed. $12,000. 

 

City Engineer Schilling reminded Council this project will include base repairs to Rising Sun from 
Grass Valley Street to Ben Taylor Road.  He is pleased to announce the lowest responsible and 
responsive bidder gave a bid which is under budget.  Staff is asking the Council to approve 
awarding the contract to Central Valley Engineering. 
Councilmember Douglass asked how this project compares to the Grass Valley Street overlay 
which was done a few years ago. 
City Engineer Schilling explained this is a totally different process which removes old paving and 
replaces with new paving, not just an overlay. 
Mayor Stockwin asked if this will improve the bike lane. He also asked how the traffic control will 
be addressed. 
Engineer Schilling replied the contract doesn’t include the bike lanes, but the contingency 
funding could be applied to pave outside the travel lane in some areas.  A traffic control plan is 
required as part of Central Valley’s bid.  Nevertheless, traffic will be difficult for a few days. 
 

Members of the public, Foxey McCleary, Sharon Conners, Sherri Peterson, Chad Ingersoll and Joe 
Fatula asked several questions regarding funding and logistics of traffic control. 
Engineer Schilling explained Rising Sun was selected for this project because the pavement is at a 
point where it will deteriorate quickly if not fixed now. Grant funding from State and Federal 
sources along with Placer County shares of funding were available for this project.  Only about 
$36,000 will be expensed through the City general fund.  The roadway will have restricted access 
during business hours while the construction crews are working, but at least one lane of traffic 
will be open. 

ITEM  4A
4 of 5



City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes October 10, 2018 
 

City Manager Heathcock mentioned Placer County contributed $100,000 to the overall project 
costs. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked if night work is feasible and learned it isn’t practicable. 
Councilmember Douglass remarked there are trees leaning over the roadway that he believes 
could fall onto the roadway. 

 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, and a second by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved Resolution 61-2018. 
Ayes:  Douglass, Mendoza, Stockwin 
Absent:  Harvey 
 

8 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Councilmember Douglass mentioned several people have requested livestreaming of the City 
Council meetings and he has learned that staff is already looking into the feasibility and costs. 
Mayor Stockwin noted members of the historical society have begun the process of restoring and 
protecting the bull and the bear.  The monuments temporarily are shrouded in plastic for 
protection from the weather. 
 

9 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 8:11PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 14th day of November, 2018 
 

ITEM  4A
5 of 5



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: October 3, 2018 
SUBJECT: Cash Summary Report: September 2018 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file.  
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis 
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements.  
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget 
process each year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in  
September 2018.  Monthly highlights include: 
 

 Negative cash fund balances are due to timing of funding allocations and reimbursements.   
o Fund 250 – To be funded by Streets & Roads monies through Placer County Transportation 

Agency and budgeted fund transfers (100/253).  Funding expected in latter part of fiscal year. 
o Capital Projects – All expenditures are anticipated to be reimbursed by grant funds, developer 

fees, and Special Revenue funds as budgeted. 

 Revenues and Expenses for September were generally for normal ongoing monthly operations and 
did not include any material one time or quarterly revenues and expenditures. 
o Anticipated expenditures for October include quarterly (FY2019 – Q1) payment for Sheriff 

services ($169,000) and annual loan payment to State Water Resources Control Board 
($438,000) due by October 31.   

o Quarterly payments to Placer County for Animal Control and Fire Marshall services are behind 
due to timing of billing by County.  We expect to receive invoices for FY2019-Q1 in November. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  - Accounts Payable 
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 

ITEM  4B
1 of 10



ITEM  4B
2 of 10



ITEM  4B
3 of 10



ITEM  4B
4 of 10



ITEM  4B
5 of 10



ITEM  4B
6 of 10



ITEM  4B
7 of 10



ITEM  4B
8 of 10



ITEM  4B
9 of 10



ITEM  4B
10 of 10



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: November 2, 2018 
SUBJECT: Quarterly Investment Report – Ending September 30, 2018 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive and file. 

 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

California Government Code Section 53646 and the City of Colfax Investment Policy require a quarterly 
investment report be submitted to the City Council.  Such report shall include at least the following 
information: 

 Types of Investments; 

 Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited; 

 Date of Maturity, if applicable; 

 Par and dollar amount investment for all securities; 

 Percent distribution of each type of investment or deposit; current market value as of the date of 
the report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF; 

 Rate of interest 

 Average weighted yield of all investments 

 A statement relating the report to the City’s Investment Policy; and 

 A statement that there are sufficient funds to meet the City’s next six months’ financial obligations. 
 

The current practice for cash management is to maintain an operating balance between $75,000 and 
$150,000 in the City’s US Bank Corporate checking account.  This account accumulates Earnings Credits 
based on the account balance which offset/reduce monthly service charges.  City funds in excess of 
targeted operating balance are transferred to the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
on a weekly basis.  The checking account balance may be reported at an amount higher than the target 
balance by the Bank due to the timing of City checks being processed by vendors/service providers. 
 

Our investment policy dictates that the City should have liquid short term securities to meet six month’s 
financial obligations.  The budget for fiscal year 2018-2019 reflects nearly $4.2M in annual expenditures, 
therefore our target for liquid short term securities would be $2.1M.   
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  4C
1 of 5



2 

 

CONCLUSION:   
 

The attached schedule Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool satisfies the State’s reporting requirements.  
Additionally, we have determined: 

 The investments held at September 30, 2018 conform to the City Investment Policy adopted by 
Resolution 29-2014. 

 The composite yield of the City’s investment pool to be the rate of 1.65% for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2018. 

 There are sufficient funds on deposit to meet all anticipated City expenditures for the period 
October 01, 2018 through March 31, 2019. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Historically, due to fluctuations in fund balances, investment opportunities outside the corporate checking 
and LAIF accounts have been somewhat limited.  With several years of solid funding levels, the City staff  
has reviewed additional investment opportunities and is in the process of opening an account with Multi-
Bank Securities, Inc. for some short term Certificates of Deposit (CD) investments.  Below is a recent 
comparison chart which reflects current rates for DTC (Depository Trust Companies) Bullet CD’s. 
 
Comparison Chart   9/11/2018 

   

      

 
US Treasuries Agency Bullets DTC Bullet CDs Spread to TSY Spread to AGY 

1 year 2.52 2.54 2.45 -7.0 -9.0 

2 year 2.734 2.752 2.85 11.6 9.8 

3 year 2.810 2.862 3.00 19.0 13.8 

4 year 2.835 2.903 3.15 31.6 24.7 

5 year 2.859 2.944 3.35 49.1 40.6 

10 year 2.969 3.217 3.45 48.1 23.3 
 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool 
2. State of California – PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 06/30/2018) 
3. State of California – PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 

ITEM  4C
2 of 5



ITEM  4C
3 of 5



ITEM  4C
4 of 5



ITEM  4C
5 of 5



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

PREPARED BY: Chris J. Clardy, Community Services Director  
DATE: November 6, 2018 

SUBJECT: Agreements for Federal Transportation Funds for the Rising Sun Paving 
Project. 

 

 N/A   X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED 
AMOUNT: $100,000 as 
previously approved 

FROM FUND:  351 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 62-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute: a 
Program Supplement Agreement and Finance Letters for the Rising Sun Paving Project under the 
Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreements for Federal-Aid Projects. 

 

BACKROUND AND DISCUSSION:  

The City of Colfax periodically receives State and Federal grants for transportation related projects 

which are administered through the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans).  Current 

master agreements between the City and Caltrans are required in order for the City to receive 

reimbursement of grant funded transportation project expenses.   

Caltrans uses an agreement called a Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreement 

for Federal-Aid Projects (Master Agreement) with local agencies such as the City of Colfax. The 

City entered into the Master Agreement in February 2018 under Resolution 11-2018 however, the 

Program Supplement Agreement and Finance Letters are unique to each project.  

Under the umbrella of a Master Agreement, Caltrans uses Program Supplement Agreements that 

are specific to individual projects. The City recently received approval for $100,000 in Caltrans 

administered grants for the Rising Sun Paving Project. In order to begin invoicing for 

reimbursement for the Project, a routine Program Supplement Agreement between the City and 

Caltrans must be executed. In addition, Caltrans provided a Finance Letter to the City. It should be 

noted that administration of federally funded transportation projects requires substantial additional 

staff effort to process, manage and monitor the grants in compliance with the various State and 

Federal regulations.  Each project is also subject to a process audit which is typically conducted at 

the conclusion of each project by Caltrans and sometimes the Federal Highway Administration.

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 62-2018 
2. Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreement No. 03-518F15 
3. Program Supplement Agreement No. 004-F  

ITEM  4D
1 of 39



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 
Resolution № 62-2018 

 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT 
AGREEMENT AND FINANCE LETTERS FOR THE RISING SUN PAVING PROJECT 

UNDER THE MASTER AGREEMENT ADMINISTERING AGENCY-STATE 
AGREEMENTS FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax is eligible to receive State and/or Federal funding for 

certain transportation projects through the State of California, Department of 
Transportation; and  

 
WHEREAS, agreements and finance letters must be executed with the State of 

California, Department of Transportation to receive State or Federal transportation funds; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax desires to enter into an agreement with the State of 

California, Department of Transportation to allow the City to make use of State administered 
funds for transportation projects. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Colfax 

authorizes the City Manager to execute: Program Supplement Agreement No. 004-F and, 
associated Finance Letters for the Rising Sun Paving Project under Federal Master Agreement 
No. 03-5187F15 for Federal-Aid projects; 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of November 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

______________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  4D
2 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
3 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
4 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
5 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
6 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
7 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
8 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
9 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
10 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
11 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
12 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
13 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
14 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
15 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
16 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
17 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
18 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
19 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
20 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
21 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
22 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
23 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
24 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
25 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
26 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
27 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
28 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
29 of 39



Calt
ran

s M
as

ter
 Agre

em
en

t 

Effe
cti

ve
 3-

12
-18

ITEM  4D
30 of 39



ITEM  4D
31 of 39



ITEM  4D
32 of 39



PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT NO. F004
to 

.ADMINISTERING AGENCY-STATE AGREEMENT
FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS NO 03-5187F15

Adv Project ID 
0318000221 

Date: August 15, 2018
Location: 03-PLA-0-CFX 

Project Number: STPL-5187(011)
E.A. Number: 

Locode: 5187

This Program Supplement hereby adopts and incorporates the Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal Aid 
which was entered into between the Administering Agency and the State on 03/12/18 and is subject to all the terms and 
conditions thereof. This Program Supplement is executed in accordance with Article I of the aforementioned Master 
Agreement under authority of Resolution No. approved by the Administering Agency on 
(See copy attached). 

The Administering Agency further stipulates that as a condition to the payment by the State of any funds derived from 
sources noted below obligated to this PROJECT, the Administering Agency accepts and will comply with the special 
covenants or remarks set forth on the following pages. 

PROJECT LOCATION:
Rising Sun Road from Ben Taylor to W. Grass Valley Street 

TYPE OF WORK: Road Rehabilitation LENGTH: 0.0(MILES)

Estimated Cost · Federal Funds Matching Funds 
M230 $100,000.00 LOCAL OTHER 

$201,971.00 $101,971.0C $0.0 0

CITY OF COLFAX 

By

Title

Date

' 

Attest -----------

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Department of Transportation

By-----------
Chief, Office of Project Implementation
Division of Local Assistance

Date------------

I hereby certify upon my personal kno
� 

funds are available for this encu�ance:

Accounting Officer �� Date 4 ( � ( I&-' $100,000.00 

Chapter Statutes Item Year Program BC Category Fund Source AMOUNT

Program Supplement 03-5187F15-F004- ISTEA Page 1 of6

! 

' 

City Manager, City of Colfax

ITEM  4D
33 of 39



ITEM  4D
34 of 39



ITEM  4D
35 of 39



ITEM  4D
36 of 39



ITEM  4D
37 of 39



ITEM  4D
38 of 39



ITEM  4D
39 of 39



FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

PREPARED: November 2, 2018 
SUBJECT: Local Transportation Funds and State Transit Assistance Funds 

N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: N/A FROM FUND: 250 Revenue 

RECOMMENDED  ACTION: Adopt Resolution 63-2018 authorizing the City Manager to file claims or 
execute agreements for:  Local Transportation Funds in the amount of $118,552 for streets and roads 
purposes (Article 8 – Section 99400 Of The California Public Utilities Code), Local Transporation Funds of 
$101 for transit services (Article 8c, Section 99400C Of The California Public Utilites Code), and State 
Transit Assistance Funds of $14,274 for transit services (Article 6.5, Chapter 4, Section 99313 of the 
California Public Utilities Code). 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 

Staff has completed the required Claim Documentation for Local and State Transportation Funds for the 
City allocation for FY 2018-2019.  The total amount allocated and being requested is $132,927 which is only 
slightly higher than the budgeted allocation of $132,000.  The excess amount may reduce the amount of 
Gas Taxes and/or General Funds to be applied to the Streets and Roads Fund for FY 2018-2019. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of the Resolution and immediate submittal of claim forms for available funding. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 63-2018
2. PCTPA – Final Findings of Apportionment for FY2018-2019 (4 pages)
3. TDA Compliance Checklist
4. TDA Claim Worksheet
5. Claim for Local Transportation Funds – Transit Purposes
6. Claim for Local Transportation Funds – Streets and Road Purposes
7. TDA Annual Project and Financial Plan
8. Copy of Agreement with Placer County for Transit services

ITEM  4E
1 of 27



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 63-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO FILE CLAIMS OR EXECUTE AGREEMENTS 
FOR: 
• LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $118,552 FOR STREETS 

AND ROADS PURPOSES (ARTICLE 8 – SECTION 99400 OF THE CALIFORNIA 
PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE), 

• LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUNDS OF $101 FOR TRANSIT SERVICES (ARTICLE 
8C, SECTION 99400C OF THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE), AND  

• STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,274 FOR 
CONTRACTED TRANSIT SERVICES (SECTION 99313 OF THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC 
UTILITIES CODE, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE6.5) 

 

Whereas, Title 21, Chapter 3 of the California Administrative Code establishes 
procedures for applying for Local Transportation Funds; and 

 

Whereas, the Placer County Transportation Planning Agency is authorized to 
receive and approve all claims for Local Transportation Funds and State Transit Assistance 
Funds. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 
follows: 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are 
incorporated by reference into this resolution. 

 

2. The City Manager is authorized to submit claims to the Placer County 
Transportation Planning Agency for the City of Colfax’s Article 8 Local Transportation 
Funds and State Transit Assistance Funds.  

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED, this 14th 
Day of November 2018, by the City Council of the City of Colfax, by the following vote of the 
Council: 
 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:  
       _____________________________ 
       Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  4E
2 of 27



ITEM  4E
3 of 27



ITEM  4E
4 of 27



ITEM  4E
5 of 27



ITEM  4E
6 of 27



5/23/2018

ITEM  4E
7 of 27



ITEM  4E
8 of 27



ITEM  4E
9 of 27



ITEM  4E
10 of 27



ITEM  4E
11 of 27



ITEM  4E
12 of 27



ITEM  4E
13 of 27



ITEM  4E
14 of 27



ITEM  4E
15 of 27



ITEM  4E
16 of 27



ITEM  4E
17 of 27



ITEM  4E
18 of 27



ITEM  4E
19 of 27



ITEM  4E
20 of 27



ITEM  4E
21 of 27



ITEM  4E
22 of 27



ITEM  4E
23 of 27



ITEM  4E
24 of 27



ITEM  4E
25 of 27



ITEM  4E
26 of 27



ITEM  4E
27 of 27



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Chris J. Clardy, Community Services Director 

DATE: October 31, 2018 
SUBJECT: 2018 ADA Improvements Project – Notice of Completion 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 64-2018 accepting the 2018 ADA Improvements Project as 
complete and authorizing the recording of the Notice of Completion.  

 

SUMMARY: 
  
On June 27, 2018 the City Council approved Resolution No. 47-2018, amending the FY 2017/18 budget by 
$4,000 for the 2018 ADA Improvements Project and authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Construction Contract Agreement with B&M Builders, Inc. in the amount of $26,000 for construction of the 
South Main ADA Improvement Project.  
 
Final inspection of the improvements was performed on October 18th, 2018. Staff has determined that the 
work performed by B&M Builders is complete and in conformance with the contract terms. B&M Builders 
has provided a Warranty Bond (Attachment 2) to guarantee all work for a period of FIVE years from the 
filing of the attached notice of completion.  
 
The project included two change orders as described below: 
 

 CCO #1 – $306.37 
o Lower and reroute the irrigation wire in planter adjacent to the ADA space. 

  

 CCO #2 - $4700.32 
o Asphalt overlay of space required to meet 2% or less grade slope.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  4F
1 of 4



2 

 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
   
Projected Budget as per Resolution 47-2018

Construction $22,980.50

10% Contingency $2,298.00

Construction Management and Design $5,500.00

*Requested Budget Augmentation $4,000.00

Total $34,778.50

*SCORE Safety Funds

Actual Project Costs

Construction $20,980.50

Construction Change Orders $5,006.69

Project Management and Design $7,754.78

Total $33,741.97

 
CONCLUSION:   

 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution accepting the 2018 ADA Improvements Project as 

complete and authorize the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion with the Placer County Recorder. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution 64-2018  
2. Notice of Completion 

ITEM  4F
2 of 4



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 64-2018 
 

ACCEPTING THE 2018 ADA IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AS 
COMPLETE AND AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF THE NOTICE 

OF COMPLETION 

 

WHEREAS, on June 27TH, 2018 the City of Colfax entered into a contract with B & M 
Builders Inc. for the 2018 ADA Improvements Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, all work with the above contract was completed on September 21st, 

2018, in accordance with the plans and specifications; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff recommended to the City Council that said completed project 

be accepted and a Notice of Completion be filed by the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that construction on the above mentioned 

contract is hereby accepted as being complete in accordance with the plans and 
specifications.  The City Clerk is directed to execute and record the Notice of Completion on 
said contract and project on behalf of the City of Colfax. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of November, 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                                 
___________________________________ 

       Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  4F
3 of 4



 

         
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
No Fee Per Gov. Code 27383 

 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to California Civil Code §9204 that B&M Builders, Inc.11330 Sunrise Park 

Dr, Suite C Rancho Cordova performed and completed for the City of Colfax the following contract, 2018 ADA 

Improvements Project which consisted of a handicap parking stall @33 S. Main Street and other ADA sidewalk 

improvements, all within the Corporate City Limits of the City of Colfax (the “Project”). The owner of the Project and 

property is the City of Colfax at the above address.  The Project was completed in accordance with the Project Plans 

and Specifications on October 18, 2018. 

 

 

Verification:  I, Wes Heathcock, depose and say:  I am the City Manager of the City of Colfax, the Owner identified in 

this Notice of Completion.  I have read this notice of completion and know the contents thereof.  The same is true of 

my own knowledge.  I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 

true and correct.  Executed on November __, 2018 at Colfax, California.  

          City of Colfax 

          

         ________________________________ 

         Wes Heathcock, City Manager   

      

 

 

 

 

State of California 

County of Placer 

 

On November __, 2018  before me, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk, personally appeared Wes Heathcock who proved to 

me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 

and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 

his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s) or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 

executed the instrument.  I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  

 

Recording Request by: 

City of Colfax 

When recorded return to: 

 

CITY OF COLFAX 

PO BOX 702 

COLFAX, CA 95713 

 

Attention:  City Clerk 

            

 

 

 

 

 

 

Above space for Recorder’s Use 

ITEM  4F
4 of 4



1 

 

 
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Chris Clardy, Community Services Director 
DATE: October 30, 2018 

SUBJECT: Pond 1 Levee Project – Notice of Completion 
 

 N/A   FUNDED  X UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 65-2018 accepting the Pond 1 Levee Project as complete 
and authorizing the recording of the Notice of Completion.   

 

SUMMARY: 
On April 25, 2018 the City Council approved Resolution No. 29-2018, authorizing the City Manager to 
execute a Construction Contract Agreement with Diamond D General Engineering, Inc.  in the amount of 
$168,988 with a contingency of up to $16,899 for construction of the Wastewater Plant Pond 1 Levee. With 
that same resolution the City Manager was authorized to approve a work order with Coastland Civil 
Engineering for Construction Management and Inspection in the amount of $21,000. 
 
Diamond D General Engineering, Inc. completed the construction on September 21, 2018.  Final inspection 
of the improvements was performed on October 18th, 2018. Staff has determined that the work performed 
by Diamond D General Engineering Inc. is complete and in conformance with the contract terms.  Diamond 
D General Engineering Inc. has provided a Warranty Bond to guarantee all work for a period of one year 
from the filing of the attached notice of completion.  
 
The project included two change orders as described below: 

 CCO#1 – $11,498.00 
o Add 3/8” rebar to bottom of levee slope on both sides of levee. Rebar is to be installed 

transverse to the levee at 2’ centers and then longitudinally for length of levee at top of 
3/8” transverse rebar. $4,060.00 

o Fill in vault adjacent to levee per details. Vault has failing concrete with cracks and holes 
allowing ground water intrusion into the influent during the wet season in amounts of up to 
.20mgd. $7,438.00 Total came in at $9,144.00 

 CCO#2 - $1,706.00 
o This CCO covers the materials, delivery of materials and crew down-time associated with 

the confusion over the size of the influent pipe (as-built showed an 8-inch and it’s actually a 
10-inch). 

 
 
 

ITEM  4G
1 of 4



2 

 

 
 

Projected Budget as per Resolution 29-2018

Construction Design $25,000.00

Construction Management $21,000.00

Construction $168,988.00

10% Contingency $16,899.00

Total $231,887.00

Actual Project Costs

Construction Design $24,387.63

Construction Management $17,755.64

Construction $115,417.74

Change Orders $13,204.00

Total $170,765.01

 
 
 
CONCLUSION:   
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution accepting the Pond 1 Levee Project as 

complete and authorize the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion with the Placer County Recorder. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution 65-2018 
2. Notice of Completion 

ITEM  4G
2 of 4



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 65-2018 
 

ACCEPTING THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT POND 1 
LEVEE PROJECT AS COMPLETE AND AUTHORIZING THE 

RECORDING OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 

WHEREAS, on April 25TH, 2018 the City of Colfax entered into a contract with 
Diamond D General Engineering Inc. for the Pond 1 Levee Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, all work with the above contract was completed on September 21st, 

2018, in accordance with the plans and specifications; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff recommended to the City Council that said completed project 

be accepted and a Notice of Completion be filed by the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that construction on the above mentioned 

contract is hereby accepted as being complete in accordance with the plans and 
specifications.  The City Clerk is directed to execute and record the Notice of Completion on 
said contract and project on behalf of the City of Colfax. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of November, 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                                 
___________________________________ 

       Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  4G
3 of 4



 

         
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
No Fee Per Gov. Code 27383 

 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to California Civil Code §9204 that Diamond D General Engineering, Inc., 

PO Box 8608 Woodland, CA performed and completed for the City of Colfax the following contract, Pond 1Levee 

Project which consisted of construction of a levee in Pond 1 of the Wastewater Treatment Plant, all within the 

Corporate City Limits of the City of Colfax (the “Project”). The owner of the Project and property is the City of 

Colfax at the above address.  The Project was completed in accordance with the Project Plans and Specifications on 

October 18, 2018. 

 

 

Verification:  I, Wes Heathcock, depose and say:  I am the City Manager of the City of Colfax, the Owner identified in 

this Notice of Completion.  I have read this notice of completion and know the contents thereof.  The same is true of 

my own knowledge.  I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 

true and correct.  Executed on November __, 2018 at Colfax, California.  

          City of Colfax 

          

         ________________________________ 

         Wes Heathcock, City Manager   

      

 

 

 

 

State of California 

County of Placer 

 

On November __, 2018  before me, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk, personally appeared Wes Heathcock who proved to 

me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 

and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 

his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s) or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 

executed the instrument.  I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  

 

Recording Request by: 

City of Colfax 

When recorded return to: 

 

CITY OF COLFAX 

PO BOX 702 

COLFAX, CA 95713 

 

Attention:  City Clerk 

            

 

 

 

 

 

 

Above space for Recorder’s Use 

ITEM  4G
4 of 4



FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Chris J. Clardy, Community Services Director 

DATE: November 5, 2018 

SUBJECT: Shade Structures for Lions Ball Park Bleachers 

N/A X FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $56,000 
FROM FUND: 213 (Parks Mitigation 
Fees)  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 66-2018 approving the purchase and installation by Ross 
Recreation Equipment for shade structures over the Lions Ball Park Bleachers in an amount not to 
exceed $56,000. 

DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY: 

The City of Colfax was approached by the Colfax Little League with interest in erecting replacement bleachers and 
bleacher shade structures at the Lions Ball Park. During the 2016/17 budget adoption process, City Council approved 
both projects. The bleachers where funded with the Beverage Recycling Fund (270) and installed during FY 2017/18.  

City Council approved the shade cover project from the (213) Parks Mitigation Fee Fund.  Staff solicited quotes for 
the purchase and installation of a hip style metal frame with a removable fabric cover from three shade cover 
companies.  The cost breakdown based on the requested style and size is as follows: 

Contractor Cost Comments 

Ross Recreation Equip $48,650 Hip Style with Fabric Roof 

GT Shade $52,447 Hip Style with Fabric Roof 

USA Shade $85,716 Hip Style with Fabric Roof 

Staff recommends the City Council authorize the City Manager to purchase the shade covers from Ross Recreation 
Equipment in the amount not to exceed $56,000, which includes a 15% contingency above the cost estimate. The 
contingency is higher than the typical 10% because the footings for the supporting poles must be 6’ or greater, which 
risks encountering impermeable rock material.    

FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
The cost of the Project is $48,650 with a $15% contingency of $7,300 for a total of $55,950. Parks Mitigation 213 
Fund will contribute $45,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 65-2018
2. Shade Cover Example
3. Bid Proposals

ITEM  4H
1 of 12



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 65-2018 
 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION BY ROSS 
RECREATION EQUIPMENT FOR SHADE STRUCTURES OVER THE 
LIONS BALL PARK BLEACHERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$56,000 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a capital improvement for shade structures 
during the 2016/17 Fiscal Year Budget process; and  

 
WHEREAS, City staff solicited quotes from three shade structure vendors; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ross Recreation Equipment was the lowest responsive bidder; and. 
 
WHEREAS, City staff is recommending approval of purchasing the two shade 

structures for the ball park bleachers from Ross Recreation Equipment in an amount not to 
exceed $56,000. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax 

authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Ross Recreation Equipment 
for the purchase of two bleacher shade structures in an amount not to exceed $56,000. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGURLARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of November, 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                                 
___________________________________ 

       Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  4H
2 of 12



 

Shade Structure Example 
The proposed structure will look similar to this. 

ITEM  4H
3 of 12



ITEM  4H
4 of 12



ITEM  4H
5 of 12



ITEM  4H
6 of 12



ITEM  4H
7 of 12



ITEM  4H
8 of 12



ITEM  4H
9 of 12



ITEM  4H
10 of 12



ITEM  4H
11 of 12



ITEM  4H
12 of 12



FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Brian Eagan Battalion Chief 

DATE November 8, 2018 
SUBJECT: Fire Equipment Grant Acceptance 

N/A X FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: up to $3,970 FUND: 292 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 66-2018 approving the Department of Forestry and 
Fire Protection Agreement required by CalFire as a condition to receiving grant funds in the 
amount of $ 3,970for the grant application for the 2018/19 Fiscal Year. 

DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY: 

The Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA) Grant Program provides funding to organize, train, and equip fire 
departments in rural areas and rural communities to prevent and suppress fires.  CAL FIRE is 
responsible for administering these grant funds and has been authorized to make awards on a 
matching basis to public entities such as cities, counties, special districts and volunteer fire 
departments.   

The City received notification on July 23, 2018 from the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
that the Colfax City Fire Department has been selected for funding in the amount of $3,970.  In order to 
receive the funding, Council must approve a resolution which is in the State format to accept the funds 
and memorialize the obligation to match funds.  Council approval and acceptance of the Grant 
Agreement package is due back to CAL FIRE before December 2018. 

The City will purchase the items for the fire department beginning February 2019 and submit all 
invoices by June 30, 2019.  Reimbursement for grant funds (50% of expenditures) will be received up 
to eight weeks after invoices are submitted.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 66-2018 
2. Award Letter
3. Contract

ITEM  4I
1 of 9



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 66-2018 
BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLFAX 

COUNTY OF PLACER, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

 IN THE MATTER OF Resolution Number: 66-2018 Approving the Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection Agreement #7FG18019 for service from the date of last 
signatory on page 6 of the Agreement to November 14, 2018 under the Volunteer Fire 
Assistance Program of the Cooperative Forestry Assistance Act of 1978. 
 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that said City does hereby 
approve the Agreement with the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
dated as of the last signatory date on page 6 of the Agreement, and any amendments 
thereto.  This Agreement provides for an award, during the term of this Agreement, under 
the Volunteer Fire Assistance Program of the Cooperative Fire Assistance Act of 1978 
during the State Fiscal Year 2018-19 up to and no more than the amount of $3,970.00. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Colfax be and 
hereby is authorized to sign and execute said Agreement and any amendments on behalf of 
the City of Colfax. 
 

 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City 
Council of the City of Colfax, at a regular meeting thereof, held on the 14th day of November 
2018 by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
        ____________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 

------CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION------ 
ATTEST: 
I Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk of the City of Colfax, County of Placer, California, do hereby 
certify that this is a true and correct copy of the original Resolution Number 66-2018. 
 

WITNESS MY HAND OR THE SEAL OF THE City of Colfax, on this 15th day of November, 
2018. 

 
      
Lorraine Cassidy 
      
City Clerk, City of Colfax 

ITEM  4I
2 of 9



STATE OF CALIFORNIA     NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY                                                                                                                                 Edmund G. Brown Jr., Governor 

   
DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION                             
P.O. Box 944246 

SACRAMENTO, CA 94244-2460 

Website: www.fire.ca.gov 
(916) 653-7772 

 
 
 

 
July 23, 2018 
 
City of Colfax Fire Department 
P.O. Box 702 
Colfax CA, 95713 
ATTN: Brian Eagan 
 
Dear Battalion Chief Brian Eagan, 
 
Congratulations!  City of Colfax Fire Department’s 2018 Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA) 
application has been selected for funding in the amount of $3,970.00.  Please be aware that due 
to the number of applications CAL FIRE received this year, we may have reduced your funding 
so that we could use the federal funds to the fullest. 
 
Enclosed is your VFA Agreement 7FG18019 package to be completed and returned to me no 
later than December 1, 2018 or the award will be forfeited.  The package includes 
Instructions/Checklist, your department’s VFA Agreement to be completed, your approved VFA 
award application, a copy of the CAL FIRE Board of Resolution template (if needed), the STD. 
204 form with sample, and the AD 1048 form with sample.  It is important that you read and follow 
the instructions carefully. 
 
DO NOT purchase any items and or do any work until you receive a fully executed agreement 
signed by CAL FIRE with a letter advising you that you may purchase the items and /or begin 
work.  Any items purchased and/or work done prior to the last CAL FIRE signature date will not 
be reimbursable. 
 
If your governing body chooses not to accept the award, or your department cannot use any 
portion of the award, please notify me as soon as possible.  This will enable us to reallocate the 
funds to another fire department. 
 
Utilize the 2018 VFA Procedural Guide for important dates and instructions. 
 
If you have any questions you may call me at (916) 653-3649 or email at 
Megan.Esfandiary@fire.ca.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Megan Esfandiary 
Grant Analyst 
Grants Management Unit

 

 

ITEM  4I
3 of 9

http://www.fire.ca.gov/
mailto:Megan


7FG18019 

VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT 

PAGE 1 OF 6 

VFA Contract (07/2018) 

DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Natural Resources Agency 

Agreement for the Volunteer Fire Assistance Program of the 

Cooperative Forestry Assistance Act of 1978 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into ON THE LAST SIGNATORY DATE ON PAGE 6, by 

and between the STATE of California, acting through the Director of the Department of Forestry and 

Fire Protection hereinafter called “STATE”, and ___________________________________________ 

 hereinafter called “LOCAL AGENCY”, covenants as follows: 

RECITALS: 

1. STATE has been approved as an agent of the United States Department of Agriculture, (USDA),

Forest Service for the purpose of administering the Cooperative Forestry Assistance Act (CFAA)

of 1978 (PL 95-313, United States Code, Title 16, Chapter 41, Section 2010 et seq., Volunteer

Fire Assistance Program), hereinafter referred to as “VFA”, and

2. The VFA has made funds available to STATE for redistribution, under certain terms and

conditions, to LOCAL AGENCY to assist LOCAL AGENCY to upgrade its fire protection

capability, and

3. LOCAL AGENCY desires to participate in said VFA.

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed between the parties as follows: 

4. APPROVAL: This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and

approved by the Department of General Services, if required.  LOCAL AGENCY may not

commence performance until such approval has been obtained.

5. TIMELINESS: Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

6. FORFEITURE OF AWARD: LOCAL AGENCY must return this Agreement and required

resolution properly signed and executed to STATE at the address specified in paragraph

11, with a postmark no later than December 1, 2018 or LOCAL AGENCY will forfeit the

funds.

7. GRANT AND BUDGET CONTIGENCY CLAUSE: It is mutually understood between the

parties that this Agreement may have been written for the mutual benefit of both parties before

ascertaining the availability of congressional appropriation of funds, to avoid program and fiscal

delays that would occur if the Agreement were executed after that determination was made.

The City of Colfax

ITEM  4I
4 of 9



7FG18019 

VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT 

PAGE 2 OF 6 

VFA Contract (07/2018) 

This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available to the 

STATE by the United States Government for the State Fiscal Year 2018 for the purpose of this 

program.  In addition, this Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or 

conditions enacted by the Congress or to any statute enacted by the Congress that may affect the 

provisions, terms, or funding of this Agreement in any manner. 

The parties mutually agree that if the Congress does not appropriate sufficient funds for the 

program, this Agreement shall be amended to reflect any reduction in funds. 

The STATE has the option to invalidate the Agreement under the 30-day cancellation clause or 

to amend the Agreement to reflect any reduction in funds. 

8. REIMBURSEMENT: STATE will reimburse LOCAL AGENCY, from funds made available to

STATE by the Federal Government, an amount not to exceed $3,970.00 on a 50/50 matching

funds basis, for the performance of specific projects and/or purchase of specific items identified

in Proposed Project, Application for Funding, attached hereto.  Reimbursement will be only for

those projects accomplished and/or items purchased between THE LAST SIGNATORY

DATE ON PAGE 6 and JUNE 30, 2019.  This sum is the sole and maximum payment that

STATE will make pursuant to this Agreement.  LOCAL AGENCY must bill STATE at the

address specified in paragraph 11, with a postmark no later than September 1, 2019 in

order to receive the funds.  The bill submitted by LOCAL AGENCY must clearly delineate the

projects performed and/or items purchased.  A vendor’s invoice or proof of payment to vendor(s)

must be included for items purchased.

9. LIMITATIONS: Expenditure of the funds distributed by STATE herein is subject to the same

limitations as placed by the VFA, upon expenditure of United States Government Funds.

Pursuant to Title 7 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Section 3016.32 subject to the obligations

and conditions set forth in that section; title to any equipment and supplies acquired under this

Agreement vests with the LOCAL AGENCY.  For any equipment items over $5,000, the federal

government may retain a vested interested in accordance with paragraph 16 below.

10. MATCHING FUNDS: Any and all funds paid to LOCAL AGENCY under the terms of this

Agreement, hereinafter referred to as “VFA Funds”, shall be matched by LOCAL AGENCY on

a dollar-for-dollar basis, for each project listed on attachment(s) hereto identified as “Proposed

Project”.  No amount of unpaid “contributed” or “volunteer” labor or services shall be used or

consigned in calculating the matching amount “actually spent” by LOCAL AGENCY.

LOCAL AGENCY shall not use VFA Funds as matching funds for other federal grants,

including Department of Interior (USDI) Rural Fire Assistance grants, nor use funds from other

federal grants, including USDI Rural Fire Assistance grants, as matching funds for VFA Funds.

11. ADDRESSES: The mailing addresses of the parties hereto, for all notices, billings, payments,

repayments, or any other activity under the terms of the Agreement, are:

ITEM  4I
5 of 9



7FG18019 

VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT 

PAGE 3 OF 6 

VFA Contract (07/2018) 

LOCAL AGENCY: 

Attention: 

Telephone Number(s): 

FAX Number: 

E-mail 

STATE: Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 

Grants Management Unit, Attn: Megan Esfandiary 

P. O. Box 944246 

Sacramento, California 94244-2460 

PHONE: (916) 653-3649 

12. PURPOSE: Any project to be funded hereunder must be intended to specifically assist LOCAL

AGENCY to organize, train, and/or equip local firefighting forces in the aforementioned rural

area and community to prevent or suppress fires which threaten life, resources, and/or

improvements within the area of operation of LOCAL AGENCY.

13. COMBINING: In the event funds are paid for two or more separate, but closely related projects,

the 50/50 cost-sharing formula will be applied to the total cost of such combined projects.

14. OVERRUNS: In the event that the total cost of a funded project exceeds the estimate of costs

upon which this Agreement is made, LOCAL AGENCY may request additional funds to cover

the Agreement share of the amount exceeded.  However, there is no assurance that any such

funds are, or may be, available for reimbursement.  Any increase in funding will require an

amendment.

15. UNDERRUNS: In the event that the total cost of a funded project is less than the estimate of

costs upon which this Agreement is made, LOCAL AGENCY may request that additional

eligible projects/items be approved by STATE for Agreement funding.  However, there is no

assurance that any such approval will be funded.  Approval of additional projects/items, not

listed on the Proposed Project application, made by STATE, will be in writing and will require

an amendment.

16. FEDERAL INTEREST IN EQUIPMENT: The Federal Government has a vested interest in any

item purchased with VFA funding in excess of $5,000 regardless of the length of this

Agreement, until such time as the fair market value is less than $5,000.  The VFA percentage

used to purchase the equipment will be applied to the sale price and recovered for the

Government during the sale.  This percentage will remain the same even following depreciation.

The Federal Government may not have to be reimbursed if the disposal sale amounts to a fair

market value of less than $5,000.  LOCAL AGENCY will notify STATE of the disposal of such

items.

Wes Heathcock

City of Colfax
PO Box 702
Colfax, CA  95650

530-346-2313
530-346-6214

wes.heathcock@colfax-ca.gov

ITEM  4I
6 of 9



7FG18019 

VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT 

PAGE 4 OF 6 

VFA Contract (07/2018) 

17. EQUIPMENT INVENTORY: Any single item purchased in excess of $5,000 will be assigned a

VFA Property Number by the STATE.  LOCAL AGENCY shall forward a copy of the purchase

documents listing the item, brand, model, serial number, any LOCAL AGENCY property

number assigned, and a LOCAL AGENCY contact and return address to STATE at the address

specified in paragraph 11.  The STATE will advise the LOCAL AGENCY contact of the VFA

Property Number assigned.

18. AUDIT: LOCAL AGENCY agrees that the STATE, the Department of General Services, the

Bureau of State Audits, or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to

copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the performance of this

Agreement.  LOCAL AGENCY agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a

minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is

stipulated.  LOCAL AGENCY agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during

normal business hours and to allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have

information related to such records.  Further, LOCAL AGENCY agrees to include a similar right

of the State of California to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to

performance of this Agreement. (GC 8546.7, PCC 10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896).

19. DISPUTES: In the event of any dispute over qualifying matching expenditures of LOCAL

AGENCY, the dispute will be decided by STATE and its decision shall be final and binding.

20. INDEMNIFICATION: LOCAL AGENCY agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless, the

STATE, its officers, agents, and employees, from any and all claims and losses, accruing or

resulting to any and all contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person,

firm or corporation furnishing or supplying work services, materials, or supplies in connection

with the performance of this Agreement, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or

resulting to any person, firm or corporation who may be injured or damaged by LOCAL

AGENCY in the performance of this Agreement.

21. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: LOCAL AGENCY will comply with

the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free

workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and

specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free

workplace;

ITEM  4I
7 of 9



7FG18019 

VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT 

PAGE 5 OF 6 

VFA Contract (07/2018) 

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance

programs; and,

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse

violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy

statement; and,

2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a

condition of employment on the Agreement.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 

the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and LOCAL AGENCY may be 

ineligible for funding of any future State Agreement if the department determines that any 

of the following has occurred: (1) the LOCAL AGENCY has made false certification, or 

violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (GC 

8350 et seq.) 

22. TERM: The term of the Agreement SHALL COMMENCE ON THE LAST SIGNATORY

DATE ON PAGE 6 and continue through June 30, 2019.

23. TERMINATION: This Agreement may be terminated by either party giving 30 days written

notice to the other party or provisions herein amended upon mutual consent of the parties hereto.

24. AMENDMENTS: No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid

unless made in writing, signed by the parties and approved as required.  No oral understanding or

Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of the parties.

25. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: LOCAL AGENCY, and the agents and employees of

LOCAL AGENCY, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity

and not as officers or employees or agents of the STATE or the Federal Government.

ITEM  4I
8 of 9



7FG18019 

VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT 

PAGE 6 OF 6 

VFA Contract (07/2018) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the last signatory date 

below. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA LOCAL AGENCY 

DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY 

  AND FIRE PROTECTION 

By: By: 

Signature *Signature

Dan Sendek         

Printed Name Printed Name 

Staff Chief 

Title **Title 

Cooperative Fire Programs 

Last Signatory Date ***Date 

*Ensure that the officer signing here for LOCAL AGENCY IS THE SAME Officer authorized in the

Resolution to execute this Agreement.

**Ensure that the title entered here IS THE SAME title used in the Resolution for the Officer who is

executing this Agreement.

***Ensure that the date LOCAL AGENCY signs IS THE SAME DATE as the Resolution date OR

LATER.

FOR STATE USE ONLY 

CONTRACTOR STATE AGENCY DEPT. OF GEN. SER. CONTROLLER 

AMOUNT ENCUMBERED BY THIS 

DOCUMENT 

$3,970.00 

PROGRAM/CATEGORY (CODE AND TITLE) 

Support 
FUND TITLE 

Federal 
Department of General Services 

Use Only 

(OPTIONAL USE) 

 Vendor # 

PRIOR AMOUNT ENCUMBERED FOR 

THIS AGREEMENT 

$0 

ITEM 

3540-001-0001 

CHAPTER 

29 

STATUTE 

2018 

FISCAL YEAR 

18/19 

DGS APPROVAL NOT 
REQUIRED PER SAM 1215 

TOTAL AMOUNT ENCUMBERED TO 

DATE 

$3,970.00

OBJECT OF EXPENDITURE (CODE AND TITLE) 

18-9214-418.99-

I hereby certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are 
available for the period and purpose of the expenditure stated above. 

T.B.A. NO. B.R. NO. 

SIGNATURE OF CDF ACCOUNTING OFFICER 

X 
DATE 

Wes Heathcock

City Manager, City of Colfax

ITEM  4I
9 of 9



1 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, Interim City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Dane Schilling, City Engineer 

DATE: November 8, 2018 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of Real Property for S. Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout Project (Federal 

Aid Project CML-5187(010)) 

N/A   FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 67-2018 authorizing the City Manager to accept real property 
and execute right-of-way certifications associated with the South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 
Roundabout Project. 

BACKROUND AND DISCUSSION:  
City of Colfax’s adopted budget for Fiscal Years 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 includes $2,453,000 for the design 
and construction of the S. Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project (“Project”). 

On November 8, 2017, the City of Colfax adopted Resolution 51-2017 authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
a Consultant Services Agreement with Omni-Means for preliminary design, final design, right-of-way services, 
utility coordination services, Caltrans coordination services, and bid support services for the Project. These 
efforts are nearly complete and in the next few weeks the City will begin the process of submitting a request for 
authorization to construct (RFA CON) to Caltrans for review and approval. Once that approval is granted 
(estimated January 2019) the City will be able to solicit bids for construction of the Project. 

The project has an extremely aggressive schedule for this type of project. If all approvals are obtained in a timely 
manner, the project is scheduled to go out to bid as early as January 2019 with construction beginning in April 
2019 and ending as early as September 2019.  

Construction of the Roundabout Project will require a portion of the Maidu Village Travel Center development 
site (Assessor’s Parcel Number 100-240-016) for construction of roadways, sidewalks, landscape areas, street 
lighting and utilities. The required right-of-way is shown on Attachment 2. 
Colfax Auburn, LLC, is the owner and developer of the Assessor’s Parcel Number 100-240-016 and is willing to 
dedicate the required land for the Project with the understanding that the value of the dedicated land would be 
credited against the costs due from the Developer for the Developer’s fair share cost of the Roundabout Project. 
The Developer has submitted a development project for City review and eventual entitlement and entered into 
a Road Improvement Deposit Agreement (Attachment 5). 

Also, the use of federal-aid funding requires that the City certify that all rights-of-way required for the federal-
aid projects are secured prior to issuance of authorization to bid federal-aid funded projects such as the 
Roundabout Project. 

ITEM  4J
1 of 18

X



2 

 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The value of the right of way dedication is $21,097 and will be used to offset the developer’s fair- share 
contribution costs of the design and construction of the roundabout project. This value is calculated based on 
dedication of 9,190 square feet of land needed for Roundabout Project and the Developer’s purchase price of 
$100,000/acre. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 67-2018 
2. Right of Way Dedication Exhibit 
3. Right of Way Dedication Exhibit A-Legal Description 
4. Right of Way Dedication Exhibit B-Plat 
5. Road Improvement Deposit Agreement 

ITEM  4J
2 of 18



Resolution 67-2018 Roundabout Easement and ROW Page 1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 
Resolution № 67-2018 

 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT REAL PROPERTY AND 
EXECUTE RIGHT-OF-WAY CERTIFICATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE SOUTH 

AUBURN STREET AND INTERSTATE 80 ROUNDABOUT PROJECT 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget includes the S. Auburn 

Street/I-80 Roundabout project (“Roundabout Project”); and  
 
WHEREAS, Colfax Auburn, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, is the owner 

and developer (“Developer”) of the vacant parcel adjacent to the Roundabout Project site 
(Assessor’s Parcel Number 100-240-016, “Developer’s Site”); and 

 
WHEREAS, constructing the Roundabout Project will require a portion of the 

Developer’s Site for construction of roadways, sidewalks, landscape areas, street lighting and 
utilities; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Developer is willing to dedicate the portion of the Developer’s Site 

necessary to construct the Roundabout Project, subject to a credit equal to the value of the 
land against the Developer’s fair share costs of the Roundabout Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Developer has submitted a development project for City review and 

eventual entitlement; and entered into a Road Improvement Deposit Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of the federal-aid funding on the Roundabout Project, 

Caltrans Office of Local Assistance requires that the City certify that all right-of-way required 
for the Roundabout Project has been secured prior to issuance of authorization to bid the 
Roundabout Project. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Colfax herby: 
 

1. Authorizes the City Manager to sign a certificate of acceptance for the portion of the real 
property known as Placer County Assessor’s Parcel Number 100-240-016, as described on 
the attached Exhibits A and B, for construction of the South Auburn Street and Interstate 
80 Roundabout Project. 

 

 

ITEM  4J
3 of 18



Resolution 67-2018 Roundabout Easement and ROW Page 2 
 

2. Authorizes the City Manager to execute right-of-way certifications that may be required as 
a condition of the federal-aid funding for the S. Auburn Street/I-80 Roundabout project. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of November 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

 

______________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  4J
4 of 18



_, 

Attachment 2 Right of Way Dedication Exhibit 

S Auburn St and Interstate 80 Roundabout Pro·ect 

Colfax, California 

"] 
...... 

t...�j
Seu 198!,0 

.w Ml..,_�,lo.-1110 
�---..u.tw.tt� 
� ,i, ... ,., ... _ .. _ 

-... 
Odol>ef 24 201a 
20JEX021cl"',I 

ITEM  4J
5 of 18



ITEM  4J
6 of 18



ITEM  4J
7 of 18



ROAD IMPROVEMENT DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

This Road Improvement Deposit Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered by and 
among the City of Colfax, a General Law City and Municipal Corporation of the State of 
California ("City"), and Colfax Auburn, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company 
("Developer"). The City and Developer may be referred to herein individually as a "Party" and 
col1ectively as the "Parties". 

RECITALS 

This Agreement is entered on the basis of the fol1owing facts, understandings and 
intentions of the Parties: 

A. Developer owns approximately 8.3152 acres of unimproved real property on
South Auburn Street near its intersection with the westbound Interstate-SO on-ramp and off-ramp 
in Colfax, California, commonly known and described as Placer County Assessor's Parcel #l00-
240-016-000 (the "Property"). The Property is general1y depicted on Placer County, California
Assessor's Map Book 100, Page 24 attached as Exhibit A hereto and by this reference
incorporated herein.

B. Developer is a limited liability company, organized and existing under the laws of
the State of California, in good standing thereunder, and qualified to conduct business in 
California. Developer intends to develop the Property to include a motel, sit-down restaurant, gas 
station, fast food restaurant and commercial building, and to provide necessary public vehicular, 
pedestrian and other access, ingress and egress (the .. Developer's Project"). The Developer's 
Conceptual Site Plan for the Developer's Project is attached hereto, marked Exhibit B and by this 
reference incorporated herein. The City and Developer understand and agree that the 
Developer's Project may change and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to require the 
Developer to construct the development depicted in Exhibit B hereto, to preclude Developer 
from doing so or from changing the Developer's Project, or to vest Developer with any 
development rights regarding the Property or the Developer's Project. The City and Developer 
intend to enter a separate development agreement in which Developer will be vested with the 
right to develop the Property on mutually-agreed conditions (the "Development Agreement"). 

C. The Property is located near the intersection of South Auburn Street, and the on-
ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-SO (the "Intersection"). The City and Developer 
envision that the Intersection will provide primary access to the Property and the Developer's 
Project. 

D. The Developer initially anticipated that modifying the Intersection, and installing
a traffic signal, would adequately mitigate the traffic impacts of the Developer's Project and 
allow the Developer's Project to be constructed as the Developer anticipated. Although the 
Parties disagree regarding the facts and circumstances that have transpired, it has been 
determined that construction of a roundabout is the preferred solution at the intersection of South 
Auburn Street and the on-ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-SO (the "Roundabout"). 

140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
8 of 18



E. Constructing the Roundabout will require the City to acquire a portion of the
Property. The Developer and the City intend to address the tenns under which Developer may be 
willing to dedicate a portion of the Property necessary to construct the Roundabout (the 
"Roundabout Dedication"), in the anticipated Development Agreement. 

F. The City has initiated the design, planning and engineering of the Roundabout at
the intersection of South Auburn Street and the on-ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-
80. Once the Roundabout is constructed, the traffic impacts of the Developer's Project are
anticipated to be sufficiently mitigated to allow the Developer's Project to be developed so long
as other road improvements as described below are simultaneously developed and the
Developer's Project does not change in a manner that would affect traffic flows.

G. Development of the Developer's Project will require the Developer to construct
certain street widening and frontage improvements on South Auburn Street, a fourth leg to the 
intersection to enter the site, and associated right-of-way dedications to the City (the "Road 
Improvements"). The Road Improvements represent that portion of the roundabout intersection 
improvements that are wholly for the benefit of Developer's project and which for practical 
purposes must be constructed as an integral part of the Roundabout construction that will be 
perfonned by the City. Absent these extraordinary circumstances the Developer would nonnally 
separately and independently cause the construction of the Road Improvements. The Road 
Improvements are generally depicted in Exhibit C attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein. The Parties agree that constructing the Road Improvements independent of 
building the Roundabout is impractical and infeasible, and both Parties will benefit from 
constructing the Road Improvements in a single project. 

H. Construction of the Road Improvements is estimated to cost $240,000.00,
excluding the extension of utilities to the Property, as reflected in the most current cost estimate 
attached as Exhibit D hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 

I. The City has limited resources available to fund the construction of the
Roundabout. It has secured partial funding commitments but a funding shortfall of 
approximately $450,000.00 remains. The City does not have the financial ability to address that 
funding shortfall, and will not proceed with the design, planning, engineering or construction of 
the Roundabout unless that funding shortfall is adequately addressed. 

J. The Colfax Municipal Code establishes and requires payment of fees to mitigate
the road impacts created by development projects ("Road Mitigation Fees"). The Developer's 
Project is one such project for which it is anticipated that the Developer will incur and be 
required to pay Road Mitigation Fees to cover a portion of the Roundabout funding shortfall. 
Developer's willingness to advance Road Mitigation Fees and otherwise consider a fair share 
contribution to the Roundabout will be addressed in the anticipated Development Agreement. 

K. By this Agreement, the City and Developer desire to establish a cooperative
process whereby the Developer will advance the estimated $240,000.00 cost of the Road 
Improvements as a good faith affinnation of its willingness and interest to participate in the cost 
of the roundabout construction while Developer's entitlement applications are pending and 

140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 2 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
9 of 18



before approval of the parties anticipated pending Development Agreement. The City will 
proceed diligently and in good faith with the design, engineering, financing, permitting, 
supervision and construction of the Roundabout and the Road Improvements, with the 
understanding that the Development Agreement and other Developer's entitlement permits may 
be required before full Developer funding commitments are made. 

L. The cooperative process the City and Developer are developing may involve
Developer advancing the entire $450,000.00 funding shortfall the City is experiencing. As of the 
Effective Date of this Agreement, the Parties anticipate that additional Developer advances may 
include prepayment of the Road Mitigation Fees applicable to Developer's Project. The terms of 
any additional Developer advances will be negotiated in conjunction with the pending 
Development Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, 
the City and Developer agree as follows: 

Section 1: Incorporation of Recitals. 

1.1 The foregoing Recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are incorporated into 
this Agreement by this reference. 

Section 2: Effective Date and Term. 

2. l Effective Date. This Agreement shall be dated and the obligations of the City and the 
Developer shall be effective as of the date upon which this Agreement is executed by the City 
(the •'Effective Date"). 

2.2 Term. The Term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall 
expire two (2) years thereafter unless extended as hereinafter provided. 

Section 3: Road Improvements. 

3.1 City Obligation: If the Developer advances the estimated cost of the Road Improvements 
as hereinafter provided, the City shall, at its cost, diligently and in good faith proceed with the 
design, engineering, financing, permitting, supervision and construction of the Roundabout and 
the Road Improvements subject to further agreement between the parties regarding the balance 
of the Developer funding needed by the City that will be addressed in the pending Development 
Agreement and entitlement terms and conditions. The funds deposited by Developer shall be 
applied by the City to pay the actual costs of the Road Improvements as part of the full 
construction of the Roundabout and shall be paid and applied as hereinafter provided. 

3.2 Developer Deposit: Upon written request by the City, the Developer shall deposit the 
estimated $240,000.00 cost of the Road Improvements ("Developer's Deposit") into an interest
bearing custodial escrow account (the "Escrow Account") in the name of the City with a 

140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 3 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
10 of 18



depository that the City shall select, subject to Developer's reasonable approval. Developer's 
Deposit shall earn interest at a rate customarily set by the depository in the normal course of its 
business. Upon making Developer's Deposit, Developer shall sign escrow instructions and such 
other documents as are necessary to allow the City to expend Developer's Deposit upon the 
City's application to the escrow holder without additional approval by Developer, provided that 
such expenditures are otherwise in conformance with the terms of this Agreement. Once 
deposited and unless the deposited funds are refunded or credited as hereinafter provided, the 
Developer shall have no further obligation for Road Improvement Construction Costs except for 
cost increases provided for in Section 4.3 and any additional utility relocation costs not included 
in the Road Improvement Cost Exhibit D. 

Section 4. Expenditure and Credit or Return of Developer's Deposit. 

4.1 Expenditure. The City has secured funding commitments for a majority of the cost of the 
design, engineering, financing, permitting, supervision and construction of the Roundabout but 
does not have sufficient resources to proceed without the Developer's Deposit or another source 
of funds. The Developer is willing to deposit the Developer's Deposit in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement in order to provide availability of Developer funding 
sureties while the City is proceeding with the Roundabout planning and development. To that 
end, the City may expend the Developer's Deposit on the following terms and conditions: 

4.1.1 The City may expend the Developer's Deposit only for the design, engineering, 
financing, permitting, supervision and construction of the Road Improvements, except that 
during the interim between the deposit and the commencement of Roundabout construction the 
City may use ONE HUNDRED AND FIFfY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000) of the 
deposit funds to pay for general Roundabout related design, engineering, and other consulting 
services, with the understanding that the funds so used shall be applied to Road Improvement 
related costs, or as provided in Section 4.2. l, the funds shall be refunded to Developer. 

4.1.2 The City shall expend funds in its possession that have been allocated to the 
Roundabout Project before it expends the Developer's Deposit for Road Improvements 

4.1.3 The City shall reasonably and in good faith negotiate the terms and conditions of 
a Development Agreement within the time constraints contained in Section 4.2.2 below. 

4.1.4 The City shall notify the Developer of the City's intent to expend any part of the 
Developer's Deposit at least five (5) days prior to the expenditure. Such notice shall identify the 
purpose and estimated cost of each expenditure. If the Developer fails to object in writing to the 
proposed expenditure within that five-day period, the Developer shall be deemed to have 
approved the expenditure. If the Developer objects in writing to the expenditure within that five
day period, the Parties shall promptly meet and discuss the basis for the Developer's objection. A 
failure to object by Developer shall not constitute a waiver of the City's obligation to comply 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

4.1.5 The expenditure of any funds is subject to the conditions set forth in Section 4.2 
below. 

140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 4 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
11 of 18



4.2 Deposit Expenditure Conditions, Credit or Return of Developer's Deposit. Expenditure 
of the Developer's Deposit shall be conditioned, returned or credited as follows: 

4.2.1 The Developer's Deposit assumes, in part, the successful negotiation of the 
Development Agreement. To that end, if the Parties have not successfully negotiated the 
Development Agreement within 120 days of the date of this Agreement, then the Developer's 
Deposit shall, be refunded to Developer in full together with all interest accrued thereupon in the 
Escrow Account, as follows: 

4.2.1.1 If the City has or can reasonably acquire sufficient cash resources to 
refund the entire Developer's Deposit and accrued interest, then the City shall repay the 
Developer's Deposit and all interest accrued thereupon in cash or equivalent. 

4.2.1.2 If the City reasonably and in good faith determines that refunding the 
Developer's Deposit and all accrued interest in full is not feasible, the City shall repay the 
Developer's Deposit pursuant to the terms of a promissory note (the "Refund Note"). If this 
repayment option is selected by the City, the Refund Note shall (a) have a principal balance 
equal to the full unpaid balance of the Developer's Deposit not refunded, (b) be due and payable 
in two equal annual installments of interest and principal , (c) be fully amortized over its 
duration, and (d) carry interest at the rate of three percent (3%) per .annum. 

4.2.1.3 The Developer may, in its discretion, elect to apply the sums to be 
refunded or owed by the City on the Refund note to mitigation impact fees or other City 
exactions applicable to Developer's Project. 

4.2.2 The Developer's Deposit is also conditioned, in part, upon the Roundabout being 
constructed in a timely fashion. To that end, if construction of the Roundabout has not 
commenced by July 1, 2019, then the Developer's Deposit together with all interest that has 
accrued thereupon in the Escrow Account shall be refunded to Developer in accordance with 
Sections 4.2.1.1., through 4.2.1.3, inclusive. 

4.2.3 The Developer has made application for the following described entitlements for 
Developer's Project. Such entitlement approvals will be addressed in the pending Development 
Agreement. If these entitlement approvals are not received in accordance with a mutually 
acceptable Development Agreement, then the Developer's Deposit with accrued interest shall be 
refunded to Developer in full together with all interest accrued thereupon in the Escrow Account 
in accordance with Sections 4.2.1.1., through 4.2.1.3, inclusive. 

4.2.4 The City shall not, without the Developer's written consent, expend more than 
$150,000.00 of the Developer's Deposit before the anticipated Development Agreement is 
approved, at which time the funds shall be expended to pay for Road Improvement costs or 
otherwise allocated as set forth in a mutually acceptable Development Agreement. 

4.3 Reconciling Road Improvement Costs. The Parties understand and agree that the 
Developer's Deposit is an estimate of the Road Improvement Costs and that the actual cost of 

140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 5 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
12 of 18



constructing the Road Improvements may be more than, or less than, $240,000.00. If the actual 
cost of constructing the Road Improvements exceeds the Developer's Deposit, then the 
difference between the actual cost of constructing the Road Improvements and Developer's 
Deposit shall be paid by the Developer to the City. If the actual cost of constructing the Road 
Improvements is less than the Developer's Deposit, then the difference between $240,000.00 and 
the actual cost of constructing the Road Improvements shall be refunded or credited to the 
Developer. The City shall secure a separate reasonable and good faith line item bid for the Road 
Improvements as part of its overall Roundabout construction contract and shall provide 
Developer with a copy of this bid prior to City contract acceptance. City and Developer shall 
meet and confer in good faith to ensure a reasonable Road Improvement cost. Provided that the 
additional costs do not exceed I 0% of the above cost estimate, the City may proceed over any 
objections of the Developer, who shall deposit the additional required funds promptly. If the 
Road Improvement construction costs exceed the I 0% increase, then the parties shall in good 
faith attempt to secure alternative lower cost bids. If no lower costs bids can be reasonably 
secured, then Developer sha11 contribute such additional funds as are required. 

4.4 Covenants Run With The Land. All of the conditions, covenants and agreements herein, 
including without limitation all dedications, fees, exactions, and payments required by this 
Agreement shall run with the land and encumber the Property. 

Section 5. Transfers and Assignments. 

5.1 No Transfer Without City's Consent. Developer shall not assign, transfer, pledge, 
encumber or otherwise dispose of any interest under this Agreement without the City's prior 
written consent, which the City may approve or deny in its sole discretion. An assignment 
approved or permitted by this Section shall not release the assignor from any liabilities arising 
prior to the date of such assignment. Any disposition by the Developer without the prior written 
consent of the City as herein provided, whether it be voluntary or involuntary, by operation of 
law or otherwise, shall be deemed void and shall, at the option of City, be an Event of Default 
hereunder. A consent by the City to one assignment shall not be deemed to be a consent to any 
subsequent disposition. 

Section 6. Notices. 

6. l Procedure. Any notice or communication required pursuant to this Agreement by any 
Party ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be given either personally, by facsimile 
transmission, by Federal Express or other similar courier promising overnight delivery, or by 
regular U.S. mail. 

(a) If given by Federal Express or similar courier, the Notice shall be deemed to have
been given and received on the date delivered as shown on a receipt issued by the courier. 

(b) If personally delivered, a Notice shall be deemed to have been given when
actually delivered to the Party to whom it is addressed. 

(c) If delivered by facsimile transmission, a Notice shall be deemed to have been
given upon receipt of the entire document by the receiving Party's facsimile machine as shown 

140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 6 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
13 of 18



by the transmission report issued by the transmitting facsimile machine. Notice transmitted after 
5 p.m. or on Saturday or Sunday shall be deemed to have been given on the next business day. 

(d) If delivered by regular U.S. mail, a Notice sha11 be deemed to have been given
five (5) calendar days after deposit with the U.S. Postal Service. 

Notices sha11 be given to the Parties at their addresses set forth below: 

City: 

With a 
copy to: 

Developer: 

City Clerk 
City of Colfax 
P.O. Box 702 
Colfax, CA 95713 
Telephone: (530) 346-231 3  
Facsimile: (530) 346-6214 

City Attorney, City of Colfax 
Alfred A. Cabral 
Pe11etreau, Alderson & Cabral 
P.O. Box 1000 
Grass Va11ey, CA 95945 
Telephone: (510) 262-2100 
Facsimile: (530) 478-0368 

Jay Gill 
1328 Souza Dr. 
El Dorado Hills, CA 95672 

Any Party may change its mailing address or contact person(s) at any time by giving written 
notice of such change to the other Party in the manner provided herein at least ten ( 10) days prior 
to the date such change is effected. 

6.2 Form and Effect of Notice. Every Notice (other than the giving or withholding of 
consent, approval or satisfaction under this Agreement but including requests therefor) given to a 
Party shall comply with the fo11owing requirements. Each such Notice shall state: (i) the Section 
of this Agreement pursuant to which the Notice is given; (ii) the period of time within which the 
recipient of the notice must respond or if no response is required, a statement to that effect; and 
(iii) if applicable, that the failure to respond to the notice within the stated time period shall be
deemed to be the equivalent of the recipient's approval of or consent to the subject matter of the
Notice. Each request for consent or approval shall contain reasonably sufficient data or
documentation to enable the recipient to make an informed decision. In no event shall notice be
deemed given nor shall a Party's approval of, consent to, or satisfaction with, the subject matter
of a notice be deemed given by such Party's failure to object or respond thereto if such notice did
not fully comply with the requirements of this Section. No waiver of this Section shall be

, 140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 7 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
14 of 18



inferred or implied from any act (including conditional approvals, if any) of a Party, unless such 
waiver is in writing, specifying the nature and extent of the waiver. 

Section 7. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

7. I Default: Termination. Failure or unreasonable delay by any Party to perform any
obligation under this Agreement for a period of fifteen ( 15) days after written notice thereof shall
constitute an Event of Default under this Agreement, subject to extensions of time by mutual
consent in writing or discretionary approval of extensions by the City Council. Said notice shall
specify the nature of the alleged default and the manner in which said default may be
satisfactorily cured. If the nature of the alleged default is such that it cannot reasonably be cured
within such fifteen ( 15) day period, the commencement of the cure within such time period and
the subsequent diligent prosecution to completion of the cure shall be deemed a cure within such
period. Subject to the foregoing, after notice and expiration of the fifteen ( 15) day period without
cure, if applicable, the Party that issued the notice of default, at its option, may institute
alternative dispute resolution proceedings pursuant to this Agreement and/or give notice of intent
to terminate the Agreement. The waiver by any Party of any Event of Default under this
Agreement shall not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other
provision of this Agreement.

7.2 Cooperation in the Event of Third-Party Legal Challenge. In the event of any legal or 
equitable action or proceeding instituted by a third party challenging the validity of any provision 
of this Agreement or the procedures leading to its initial adoption, the Parties hereby agree to 
cooperate in defending said action or proceeding, and Developer agrees to diligently defend any 
such action or proceeding and to bear the litigation expenses of defense, including attorney's 
fees. Developer further agrees to hold the City/ Agency harmless from all claims for recovery of 
the third party's litigation expenses, including attorney's fees. 

7.3 Actions; Remedies; Attorney's Fees. In addition to any other rights and remedies, each 
Party may institute legal action to cure, correct or remedy any default, enforce any covenant or 
agreement herein, enjoin any threatened or attempted violation or enforce by specific 
performance the obligations and rights of the Parties hereto. In no event shall any Party or its 
officers, agents or employees be liable in monetary damages for any breach or violation of this 
Agreement, it being expressly understood and agreed that the sole legal or equitable remedy 
available for a breach or violation of this Agreement by any Party shall be an action in 
mandamus, specific performance, injunctive or declaratory relief to enforce the provisions of this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be foreclosed from initiating an 
action to enforce Developer's obligations to make monetary payments under this Agreement as a 
condition for completing the Development Project. In any such legal action, the prevailing Party 
shall be entitled to recover all litigation expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and court 
costs. 

7.4 Amendment. This Agreement may be canceled, modified or amended only by mutual 
written consent of the Parties or by legal process. 

7.5 Negation of Partnership, Agency and Joint Venture. The Parties specifically 
acknowledge that no Party is acting as the agent of the other in any respect hereunder, and that 
each Party is an independent contracting entity with respect to the terms, covenants and 

140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 8 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
15 of 18



conditions contained in this Agreement. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to create a partnership between or among the Parties in the businesses of Developer or 
the affairs of the City, or otherwise, nor shall it cause them to be considered joint venturers or 
members of any joint enterprise. This Agreement is not intended nor shall it be construed to 
create any third party beneficiary rights in any person who is not expressly made a Party and 
signatory to this Agreement. 

7 .6 Severability. Invalidation of any provision of this Agreement, or of the application 
thereof to any person, by judgment or court order shall in no way affect any of the other 
provisions hereof or the application thereof to any other person or circumstances and the same 
shall remain in full force and effect, unless enforcement of this Agreement as so invalidated 
would be unreasonable or grossly inequitable under all the circumstances or would frustrate the 
purposes of this Agreement. 

7.7 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Exhibits hereto contain all the 
representations and the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter 
hereof. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all prior correspondence, memoranda, 
agreements, warranties or representations are superseded in total by this Agreement and the 
Exhibits hereto. 

7 .8 Further Documents. Each Party shall execute and deliver such further documents as may 
be reasonably necessary to achieve the objectives of this Agreement. 

7.9 Governing Law; Interpretation of Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the United States, the State of California and the City 
of Colfax. 

7 .10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original Agreement. 

7. I I Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and of each and every term
and condition hereof.

7 .12 Notice of Termination. Upon the expiration of this Agreement, the Parties hereto shall, if 
requested by another Party. execute for recordation in the Official Records of Placer County, a 
notice stating that this Agreement has expired, that the Parties have performed all their duties and 
obligations hereunder and that this Agreement is no longer an encumbrance or servitude on the 
Property. 

7.13 Nondiscrimination. Developer shall include a nondiscrimination clause with any deed, 
lease, contract for the sale, lease, sublease or other transfer of any portion of the Property. 

7.14 Exhibits. The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein 
for all purposes: 

7.15 Alternative Dispute Resolution. 

140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 9 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
16 of 18



7 .15 .1 Before resorting to arbitration or other legal process, the Parties shall meet and 
confer and attempt to amicably resolve any dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement, 
subject to the following provisions. Any Party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the 
other Party pursuant to a written notice. Within I 5 days after provision of that written notice by 
the Party desiring to meet and confer, the primary contacts for each Party shall meet in person 
and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute. Each primary contact, or the duly authorized 
person acting in their absence, shall attend the meeting, shall have full authority to resolve the 
dispute and shall be prepared to devote an entire day thereto. If any dispute remains unresolved 
at the end of the meeting, any Party to this Agreement shall have the right to invoke the binding 
arbitration process provided for in Section 7 .15.2 below. 

7.15.2 If this meet and confer process is unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, the 
Parties shall each select a preferred arbitrator, and the two selected arbitrators shall collectively 
select a third arbitrator from the list of retired judges or justices at the Sacramento Office of the 
Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service (JAMS). The arbitration shall be conducted by the 
selected third neutral arbitrator pursuant to the provisions of the California Arbitration Act, 
sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. In such case, the provisions of 
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 and 1283. I shall apply and are hereby incorporated 
into this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first 
above written. 

CITY: 

CITY OF COLFAX, a California municipal corporation 

By: 
Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

DEVELOPER: 

COLFAX AUBURN, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company 

By: 
Jaskaran Gill, Member 

By: 
Sukhwinder Bhangu, Member 

140411 Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout 10 

Attachment 5

ITEM  4J
17 of 18



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 
(Government Code 27281) 

This is to certify that the City Council of the City of Colfax, State of California, on the 

14th day of November, 2018, by Resolution N o . __________  regularly passed and entered in 

the minutes of said Council, did hereby accept, the interest in real property conveyed by the grant 

deed dated _____________________, granted by_____________________, to the City of 

Colfax, a municipal corporation in the County of Placer, State of California and the grantee 

consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

Dated: ______________ 

By: _______________________________________ 
 Wes Heathcock 

Its:  City Manager 

Reference APN: 100-240-016 (portion) 

Project:  S. Auburn Street I-80 Ramps Roundabout 

Attachment 6

ITEM  4J
18 of 18



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, City Planner 

DATE:  October 29, 2018 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, Planned 
Development Permit, Development Agreement and Design Review for an ARCO 
Service Station for the Maidu Village Development Project 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Conduct a public hearing, discuss, and consider: 

1. Adopting Resolution No. 68-2018 approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the Vesting 
Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site Plan Review, Planned Development, Design Review; and, 

2. Introduction and first reading of Ordinance No. 538 an ordinance of the City of Colfax adopting findings 
of fact approving a Development Agreement with Colfax Auburn LLC regarding the development of the 
Maidu Village property generally located on South Auburn Street near the intersection of the Interstate 
Highway 80 on-ramp and off-ramp, and schedule for a second reading and possible adoption at the 
December 12, 2018 regular meeting; and 

3. Adopting Resolution 69-2018 approving the design review for the Arco Service Station at the Maidu 
Village Development Project. 

 

PROJECT NOTICE  
This hearing has been noticed in accordance with the requirements of California Planning and Zoning Law, Title 17, 
Chapter 65000, Government Code, as amended.  
 
PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Project Title:  Maidu Village Development Project, ARCO Service Station  
Applicant/Owner: Jaskaran “Jay” Gill  
Location  South Auburn Street between Mountain Village and McDonald’s 
Land Use (existing) Vacant 
Surrounding Uses: 

North:  Mountain Village Center 
South:  McDonald’s Restaurant 
East:   Starbucks Coffee; I-80 westbound on-ramp 
West:  UP Railroad property 

Assessor Parcel No: 100-240-016 
Zoning District:  CH – Highway Commercial  
General Plan:  Commercial 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  5A
1 of 118



2 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The 8.3 acres that makes up the Maidu Village project area is a significant property within the City of Colfax that has 
been the subject of numerous development applications; few of which actually make it to the public hearing/City 
Council review stage. This proposal is a multi-phased project that when completed will add approximately 46,903 
square feet (including the hotel) of highway commercial development to the City.  The project is also a significant 
part of the traffic roundabout proposed for the South Auburn Street/westbound I-80 interchange.  
The commercial uses proposed to be built in multiple phases include: 
 
Phase 1 
Build out Lot 2 - ARCO service station with convenience mart and drive-thru car wash 
Rough grade Lot 1 - fast food restaurant and coffee kiosk 
Rough grade Lot 3 - sit down restaurant 
 
Phase 2 
Receive approvals for development of Lots 1 and 3 (staff level if in substantial compliance with the master site plan, 
and this staff report. 
 
Phase 3 
Lot 4 commercial building and Lot 5 hotel approvals 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

 

 Vesting Tentative Parcel Map 
The proposed vesting tentative parcel map creates five lots: Lot 1 – the fast food restaurant and the coffee kiosk; Lot 
2 - the ARCO service station, mini mart and carwash; Lot 3 – the sit-down restaurant; Lot 4 – the 3,500 sq. ft. 
commercial building, and Lot 5 – the three-story 70-room hotel. The map also includes easements for the Bunch 
Creek trail across lot 5, the propane tanks that serve the adjacent commercial businesses and the access easements 
to the adjacent McDonald’s Restaurant, also on lot 5. There is an existing non-exclusive easement across Lots 2 and 3 
providing egress from the neighboring Mountain Village center, as well as one across Lots 1 and 2 for the adjacent 
McDonald’s Restaurant. These easements will need to be relocated to accommodate the new businesses.  
 
The conditions of approval also require that easements be prepared for reciprocal parking between all parcels (see 
parking discussion below), for shared ingress and egress between the parcels and for public utilities (PG&E, PCWA, 
cable, etc.). This is standard practice with most multi-lot commercial developments and will benefit all parcels within 
the project area. 
 

 Master Site Plan Design Review  
The Master Site Plan establishes the building footprints on each parcel, parking, vehicle and pedestrian circulation, 
site layout, access, and even trash enclosure locations for the entire project site. The benefit of receiving Master Site 
Plan approval is primarily for development of the remaining parcels (lots 1, 3, 4 and 5). If the development proposal 
for these individual parcels, when submitted, can be reviewed at the staff level and found to be in “substantial 
compliance” with the master site plan submitted for approval as part of this application, that proposal will not have 
to go through additional environmental review and will require a simple design review permit at the staff level. This is 
significant from a timing perspective in that no additional hearings will be necessary, and no additional 
environmental review will be required and thus reduce future City staffing costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  5A
2 of 118



3 

 

 Planned Development Permit 
The planned development (PD) permit allows a master site plan project greater flexibility in the design of integrated 
developments than otherwise possible through strict application of land use regulations. With this project, it is 
challenging for each lot to meet the parking requirements for the proposed use. But overall, the project meets the 
parking requirement as outlined in the zoning ordinance. Given the mix of proposed uses, it is appropriate and good 
practice to encourage some shared use of parking and circulation, the PD permit allows this type of flexibility. 
 

 Development Agreement 
A Development Agreement (DA) is proposed as part of the project actions. The DA establishes commitments for both 
City and developer with regard to the project’s development process, funding of public improvements, and 
infrastructure, connection to City utilities, and other development obligations agreed to between the parties. This DA 
specifically identifies the developer’s contribution for funding a portion of the roundabout through early payment of 
road impact fees, constructing frontage improvements and dedicating a portion of the property needed for the 
roundabout. In exchange, the City will lock in the road impact fees, regardless of when the project is constructed and 
what the fees are at the time of issuing a building permit. Also, beneficial to both the City and the Developer, with 
the construction of the roundabout, a significant traffic issue at S. Auburn Street and I-80 is addressed and as a result, 
the developer gets fully improved access to his property. 
 
DESIGN REVIEW OF ARCO SERVICE STATION 
The applicant has indicated that the first project built will be the ARCO service station, car wash and convenience 
mart on Lot 2. Lot 2 is a 41,513 square feet parcel and is the center lot of the three front lots on S. Auburn Street. 
Access will be primarily from the roundabout, west side. 
 
Architecture:  
The design and style of the building appears to be typical of many ARCO stations built along the Interstate.   The 
convenience mart building is of a contemporary design with a 36” stone veneer wainscot on all elevations. The walls 
will be stucco painted a cream color with a gray parapet cap across the top. The front elevation has a “rustic walnut” 
finish at the entrance with the standard “AM/PM” logo sign above the main entrance to the store. The station will 
have six fueling stations under a 75’ x 80’ canopy. The canopy has a total height of 18’- 6’’ and an under-canopy 
height of 16’- 0”. The support columns will be clad in the same stone veneer of the convenience mart and the canopy 
will be painted the traditional ARCO blue with the letters ARCO in white. The carwash structure will have the same 
stone veneer wainscot to a height of 30 inches and the wall color will be the same cream white of the convenience 
mart but with a the blue band of color and grey cap at the top of the building on all elevations. This will nicely tie the 
structures together and give the project a cohesive finished look.   
 
Access and Circulation:  
Access to the property will be primarily from S. Auburn Street via the roundabout. The design includes 11 parking 
spaces, including two located at the vacuum station for the carwash, which meets the code requirement of one space 
per 300 square feet of commercial area (3180 sq. ft/300 = 10.6 spaces). Staff supports including the two spaces in the 
count as there will be reciprocal parking agreement across all parcels within the Maidu Village project.  
 
The ARCO site plan indicates one trash enclosure behind the convenience store. Review by City and Recology staff 
indicate this will be serviceable as shown.  
 
Signage: 
The ARCO project includes sign plans for review and approval.  The proposal includes: 
 
Wall Signs 
 One 36 sq. ft. “AM PM” front elevation sign (Illuminated) 
 Six 8.3 sq. ft. “pop” signs (advertising snacks, drinks, etc.) on the front elevation (non-illuminated) 
 

ITEM  5A
3 of 118



4 

 

Canopy Signs 
 Two 27 sq. ft. ARCO signs (east and south canopies) (Illuminated) 
 
Monument/Identification sign (illuminated) 
 35’ (height) x 6’ (width)   Main identification/price sign with room for other tenant names. 
 
Although staff supports the sign program for the ARCO project as submitted, it should be noted that the freestanding 
Monument/Identification sign exceeds the sign area allowed by approximately 40 square feet. Given that part of the 
sign area is for future tenants, it is preferred to have one multi-tenant sign than multiple free standing signs. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 
An Initial Study was prepared to determine if the project may have a significant adverse effect on the environment.  
Special studies, assessments and/or documents were prepared or utilized for cultural resources, traffic, air quality 
and greenhouse gas, noise, and other potential impacts.  On the basis of this Initial Study, staff concluded that the 
proposed project, as conditioned and with mitigation measures, will not have a significant adverse effect on the 
environment, and will not require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report.  Therefore, in accordance with 
CEQA requirements, a Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared (Attachment 3). The required mitigation 
measures have been incorporated into the conditions of approval for the project (conditions 67-85). 
 
The proposed Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration was circulated for public review for a period of at least 20 
days (October 25, 2018 to November 14, 2018).  No comments were received during the initial 20-day review period.  
The Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration is attached to the report (Attachment 3) but due to the large size 
and number of pages, the complete document with appendices and special studies is available at City Hall and on the 
City’s website at www.colfax-ca.gov. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends City Council adopt the attached Resolution to:  1- Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration; 2– 
Approve the Master Site Plan, Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, and Planned Development for the Maidu Village Project 
and the ARCO Service Station; and 3- Introduce the attached Ordinance Adopting the Development Agreement (first 
reading) 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No 68-2018 Maidu Village  
2. Conditions of Approval 
3. Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
4. Ordinance No. 538- Approving Development Agreement 
5. Development Agreement – To be  delivered under separate cover 
6. Project Exhibits 

a. Master Site Plan 
b. Vesting Tentative Parcel Map 
c. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan 
d. Typical Sections and Design Details 
e. Landscape Plan 
f.  ARCO Design Submittal 

7. Resolution No. 69-2018 ARCO Service Station 
 

 
 
 

ITEM  5A
4 of 118



Resolution 68-2018 Maidu Village VTPM/Design Review Page 1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 68-2018 
 

APPROVING THE VESTING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, MASTER SITE 
PLAN REVIEW AND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FOR THE 

MAIDU VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax received an application for a vesting tentative parcel 
master site plan, planned development permit  and design review to subdivide and develop 
an 8.3 acre parcel; and 

 
WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing has been given at the time and in the manner 

required by State Law and City Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered the staff report, any and 

all written comments received during the public review process and any and all oral and 

written comments submitted at the public hearing; and  

 

WHEREAS, the design of the vesting tentative parcel map is consistent with the 
zoning regulations of the site, and 

 
WHEREAS, the site is physically suitable for the type and intensity of 

development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project as approved allows beneficial use to be made of the site for 

development, preserves and accentuates the natural features of the property, such as 
open space, topography, trees, wetlands and water courses, and provides adequate 
drainage for the project; and 

  
WHEREAS, the project site design as approved provides access, vehicle parking, 

loading areas, landscaping and irrigation and lighting which results in a safe, efficient, 
and harmonious development and which is consistent with the applicable goals, policies 
and objectives set forth in the general plan and the design guidelines established for that 
zone district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the design of the public services, as approved, including, but not 

limited to trash enclosures and service equipment are located so as not to detract from 
the appearance of the site, and are screened appropriately and effectively using 
construction materials, colors and landscaping that are harmonious with the site and the 
building designs; and 

ITEM  5A
5 of 118



Resolution 68-2018 Maidu Village VTPM/Design Review Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the use and design of the proposed development conforms with the 
requirements of the relevant planned development zone district and the requirements of 
the zoning ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use or 

development is to be compatible with and will not adversely affect or be materially 
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in the area, 
and will not be detrimental or injurious to public or private property or improvements; 
and  

WHEREAS, the City prepared an Initial Study consistent with California 

Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") Guidelines and determined that a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration ("MND") was required in order to analyze the potential for significant impacts 

of the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the MND and other environmental documents for the Project that 

constitute the record of proceedings for the Project are in the custodial location and 

available for review during normal business hours in the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 

33 S. Main Street,  Colfax, CA 95713. 

 

WHEREAS, and the CEQA Mitigations have been included in conjunction with the 

conditions of approval regarding any Project approval; and 

 

WHEREAS, the conditions of approval have been prepared for the project as 

outlined in Exhibit “A” attached to this resolution. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council finds that the Project 

qualifies for a Mitigated Negative Declaration and that the City Council adopt the Project 

Mitigated Negative Declaration, and approve the Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Master Site 

Plan Review, and Planned Development Permit the Maidu Village Development Project. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED on this 

14th day of November, 2018, by the following roll-call vote: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

_______________________  

         Will Stockwin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  5A
6 of 118



1 

Attachment 2 
Maidu Village Development Project 

SP/VTPM2018-001 
Conditions of Approval 

Planning Conditions 

1. The tentative parcel map, master site plan review, planned development and design

review approvals, shall expire on _____, 2028, as specified in the adopted Development

Agreement for The Maidu Village Development project, unless a Final Map is recorded

by that date, or an application for a time extension is filed prior to the expiration date.

2. Plans submitted for building permits or construction improvements shall be in substantial

compliance with the Master Site Plan and other entitlements approved by this action and

dated approved on ______, 2018, except as modified by these conditions of approval.

Any modifications to the approved Tentative Map, development plan, project description,

design standards, or landscape plans, except as modified by these conditions of

approval, may be subject to review and approval from the City Council.

3. The existing Propane Tank easement at the south property line of Lot 5 shall be
reevaluated for conflicts with the path of drainage for the riparian wetland area and the
existing trail easement. Relocation of the propane tank easement may be required.

4. An easement indicating the existing trail location across Lot 5 shall be indicated on the
map. Such easement shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide to allow for the future
construction of the Bunch Creek Trail.

5. Final Landscape Plans shall be submitted for review and approval as part of the
submittal package for each phase of development.

6. Retaining walls and decorative walls shall be constructed of the materials shown on the
Typical Sections and Design Details (Attachment 6d), dated August 2018. Rockery walls
shall be constructed at locations shown on the plan. Other walls shall be constructed of
decorative split faced cement masonry units (CMU) or equivalent decorative materials as
approved by the City. Any walls included on the final improvement plans but not shown
on the preliminary site plan shall be constructed of materials as directed by the City.

7. All non-rockery walls shall be spilt-faced CMU or other high-quality material subject to
review and approval by Planning and Engineering staff.

8. The Applicant shall show additional information on the proposed propane service in the
improvement plans, including truck access, tank layout (locations, sizes, concrete pad
etc.) and underground service piping to buildings.

Engineering Conditions: 

9. All grading and improvements shall be designed in conformance with the City of Colfax
Design and Improvement Standards and all subsequent revisions, the City of Colfax
Hillside Development Guidelines (Resolution No. 29-93), the Placer County Land
Development Manual, latest edition, the Placer County Stormwater Management
Manual, latest edition, the Placer County Water Agency Standard Specifications, latest
edition, and the conditions of approval for this project. Where conflicts exist, the more
stringent requirements, in the opinion of the City Engineer, shall prevail.

ITEM  5A
7 of 118



2 
 

10. No private utilities or structures are allowed within public right-of-way or existing public 
utility easements. All construction within public rights-of-way shall meet City Standards 
and be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. An encroachment permit is 
required for all construction within public rights-of-way. 

11. The applicant shall obtain any off-site easements that may be required, or if 
unsuccessful, shall reimburse City for costs of condemnation acquisition. 

12. The developer shall prepare and submit improvement plans for the construction of all 
public improvements including water, sanitary sewer, storm drain facilities, roadway 
improvements, curbs, gutters, detached sidewalks, parkway strips, signing, striping and 
streetlights.  All design and construction shall conform to the latest edition of the 
standards referenced herein. 

13. Improvement plans must be approved and signed by the City Engineer prior to the 
issuing of an Encroachment Permit, Grading Permit or Building Permit. 

14. Plan check and inspection fees shall be paid prior to the signature of the improvement 
plans. 

15. All broken or sunken curb, gutter and sidewalk along the project frontage shall be 
repaired or replaced as part of the improvements for this project.  As well, all 
nonconforming pedestrian ramps and driveway approaches shall be brought up to 
current accessibility standards. 

16. Deviations from City Standards and applicable Code requirements shall be approved by 
the City Engineer.  The applicant’s engineer shall request all design exceptions in 
writing. 

17. Project benchmark shall be based on a City approved USGS benchmark. 

18. Improvement plans shall be approved by California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection (“CAL FIRE”) Fire Chief assigned to the City of Colfax. 

19. In the event that the City is forced to condemn or acquire off-site property interest in 
connection with required off-site improvements, the developer shall fund the cost of 
condemnation or acquisition, including but not to be limited to the amounts necessary to 
purchase the easement or fee simple interest, document preparation, and severance or 
other damages payable to the owners of the land upon which the improvements are to 
be located, the actual cost and acquisition and all fees, including attorney’s fee and/or 
other expenses necessary to prosecute the condemnation action, including expert 
witness and appraisal fees. 

20. In the event that the City elects to proceed with acquisition or condemnation pursuant to 
Government Code Section 66462.5, the developer shall, within 60 days of written notice 
by the City, deposit with the City, as an advance, the full estimated cost of such 
acquisition or condemnation.  The developer shall prepare any easements or deeds 
necessary for off-site improvements. 

21. Parcel maps, improvement plans and other items submitted to the City shall be delivered 
in hardcopy formats as well as electronically including drawings in AutoCAD and in PDF 
formats. 

22. Required Improvement Plan Notes:  

a. "Any excess materials shall be considered the property of the contractor 
and shall be disposed of away from the job side in accordance with 
applicable local, state and federal regulations." 

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

8 of 118



3 
 

b. "During construction, the Contractor shall be responsible for controlling 
noise, odors, dust and debris to minimize impacts on surrounding 
properties and roadways.  Contractor shall be responsible that all 
construction equipment is equipped with manufacturers approved 
muffler’s baffles.  Failure to do so may result in the issuance of an order 
to stop work." 

c. "In the event that archeological site indicators (chipped chert, obsidian 
tools, waste flakes, grinding implements, darkened soil containing bone 
fragments and shellfish remains, or ceramics, glass or metal fragments) 
are uncovered, the City shall be contacted for an evaluation of the site.  
All ground disturbing work shall cease in the vicinity of any discovery until 
an archeologist completes an evaluation of significance." 

d. “Construction work shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on 
Saturdays.  No work is permitted on Sundays.” 

e. "If hazardous materials are encountered during construction, the 
contractor will halt construction immediately, notify the City, and 
implement remediation (as directed by the City or its agent) in accordance 
with any requirements of the Central Regional Water Quality Control 
Board." 

f. "The contractor(s) shall be required to maintain traffic flow on affected 
roadways during non-working hours, and to minimize traffic restriction 
during construction.  The contractor shall be required to follow traffic 
safety measures in accordance with the California Department of 
Transportation (“Caltrans”) California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices (“CA-MUTCD”). The City’s emergency service providers shall be 
notified of proposed construction scheduled by the contractor(s).  The 
project specifications will require that the contractor(s) notify emergency 
service providers in writing at least 24 hours in advance of its proposed 
schedule of work." 

Water Quality: 

23. This project will comply with current National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) requirements, as covered in the State of California General Permit for Storm 
Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activity and subsequent modifications, 
which includes requirements for sampling and analysis during construction.  

24. A Notice of Intent will be filed with the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 
prior to the onset of construction. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), 
Monitoring Program and Inspection Plan shall be prepared and submitted to the City 
Engineer for approval. The developer will solely be responsible for implementation of the 
SWPPP, Monitoring Program and Inspection Plan during construction. 

Grading: 

25. A final design geotechnical report shall be prepared with recommendations pertinent to 
the facilities being proposed, including site and building pad preparation, engineered fill, 
slope construction, foundations, subgrade preparation for pavements and slabs-on-
grade, asphalt concrete pavements, and retaining walls. 

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

9 of 118



4 
 

26. Onsite grading shall be limited to the locations shown on the approved plans or on 
subsequent City approvals. No clearing, grubbing, demolition or grading activities will be 
allowed prior to final approval of the site improvement plans by the City Engineer and 
issuance of a Grading Permit. 

27. A maximum of 6,000 square ft and 200 ft of depth, measured normal to the sidewalk, is 
allowed to sheet flow to the street. If the surface area and depth exceeds these criteria, 
an on-site drainage collection system is required. 

28. No grading will be performed during the rainy season, between October 15th and April 
15th. If improvements will not be completed by October 15, or are scheduled to start prior 
to April 15, a winterization plan must also be prepared in accordance with City 
requirements. One hundred percent (100%) bonding or other security shall be provided 
to assure implementation of the winterization plan. 

29. A California registered Structural or Civil Engineer shall design all retaining walls 
exceeding 36” in height, including the proposed rockery wall. Calculations shall be 
submitted with the improvement plans for approval. 

30. The Geotechnical Engineer shall provide certification to the City that all grading work has 
been placed and compacted in compliance with the improvement plans. Certification of 
each building pad will be submitted to the building official prior to issuance of a building 
permit. 

Storm Drainage: 

31. A detailed hydrology study will be prepared in accordance with the current edition of the 
Placer County Stormwater Management Manual.  The proposed project shall not 
increase the rate of storm water runoff leaving the site beyond pre-development rates.   

32. Plans and certifications shall demonstrate compliance of all improvements, including 
building pads and finished floor elevations, with the City’s Flood Plain Ordinance, to the 
satisfaction of the Building Official and City Engineer.  Pad elevations shall be 
constructed at a minimum of 1 foot above the 100-year Floodplain as determined by the 
City and certified by the project engineer. 

33. All runoff that leaves the site must meet current Regional Water Quality Control Board 
clean water standards. These may be accomplished with permanent Best Management 
Practices (BMPs), such as bio-retention, infiltration systems, bio-swales, or other 
methods as approved by the City Engineer. Bio-retention and other natural elements 
incorporated into the landscape design for the project will be submitted with the 
improvement plans for approval, with supporting calculations as required. The property 
owner will be responsible for the ongoing maintenance of the systems. 

34. Minimum size for storm drain piping will be 12” unless otherwise approved by the City 
Engineer. 

35. Improvement plans shall include full design and sizing of all stormwater improvements 
shown on Preliminary Grading and Utility plan.  Scope shall include a design for the road 
crossing for perennial stream (e.g. culvert or bridge), sizing of re-routed open channel 
ditches etc.   

Water Supply: 

36. Provide written evidence of adequate water supply from Placer County Water Agency 
(“PCWA”).  

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

10 of 118



5 
 

37. The water system and supply shall be capable of providing the required fire flow as 
determined by a fire protection system engineer or California registered civil engineer 
and subject to the review and approval of the Fire Chief and the City Engineer.   
Applicant shall provide a report, including calculations, demonstrating sufficient water 
pressure and flow for operation of fire hydrants and individual fire sprinklers systems to 
each building can be provided. 

38. Fire hydrants serving the project shall be located within an approved distance of the 
building, and shall be spaced no more than 300-ft apart along any fire access route. 

39. Construction of water facilities is subject to the approval of PCWA, the Colfax Fire Chief 
and the City Engineer. 

Wastewater: 

40. Design of the sanitary sewer connection to the City’s wastewater system is subject to the 
approval of the City Engineer. Each building shall have a separate connection to the 
public system unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. 

41. A sanitary sewer study to include a capacity analysis of the downstream system will be 
required at each project phase.  The Applicant will be required to perform any needed 
sewer capacity improvements on existing City owned sewer mains and manholes as 
required to accommodate the proposed project sewer demand.   

42. Provide any required easements for public sewer improvements and for the 
abandonment of any old easements as determined by the City Engineer. 

43. Sewer grades must be designed such that ultimate finished floors are a minimum of 12” 
above upstream manhole or clean-out rim elevations.  Inadequate elevation differentials 
or grade on private SS mains and laterals, as determined by the City, must be mitigated 
by either raising finished floor elevation(s) or installing privately owned and operated 
sanitary sewer lift station(s) with grinder/ejector pump(s) on site. 

Street Improvements: 

44. These project conditions are based on the understanding that the Roundabout project 
will be completed ahead of the proposed project.  If this understanding proves to be 
incorrect, the City will need to reevaluate the offsite improvements/site access and 
update the project requirements accordingly.  Refer to separate Development 
Agreement. 

45. Frontage improvements on the northern portion of South Auburn Street are not planned 
to be completed with the Roundabout project (refer to separate Development 
Agreement).  These improvements shall be completed concurrent with the Parcel 3 
building permit.   

46. The structural section of all on- and off-site road improvements shall be designed based 
upon a geotechnical investigation which provides the basement soils R-value and 
expansion index (if expansive soils are encountered).  A copy of soils report and 
pavement structural section calculations shall also be submitted with the first 
improvement plan check. 

47. Onsite driveways and parking areas shall be concrete or asphalt concrete pavement. 
The structural design of the pavement shall be determined based on R-value testing and 
shall be designed in accordance with 16.56.050 - Structural design of pavement of the 
Colfax Municipal Code, but will not be less than 2”AC on 6”AB. 

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

11 of 118



6 
 

48. Ramps for disabled persons shall be provided at all intersections and crosswalks where 
sidewalks are proposed. 

49. ADA accessible paths of travel shall be indicated on the improvement plans showing a 
path of travel from public sidewalks to each proposed building. 

50. Sidewalk warps shall be provided to allow a clear five-foot walkway at all locations, 
including areas where mailboxes, streetlights, street signs and fire hydrants are present. 

51. All driveways shall have an approach grade of no greater than four percent within twenty 
feet of the public right-of-way. 

52. Accessible parking spaces, access to buildings, and driveways at sidewalks shall be 
designed to meet Title 24 ADA requirements (State and Federal). 

53. All paved surfaces designated for fire access by the Colfax Fire Chief and/or the City 
Engineer shall be designed to accommodate a Type 1 vehicle with a turning radius of 54 
ft. 

54. Submittal Requirements: 

 The following will be submitted to the City Engineer and be approved, prior to 
issuance of a grading permit. 

o All plans, reports and calculations will be stamped and signed by an 
engineer registered in California to practice civil, structural or 
geotechnical engineering, as appropriate. 

o Five (5) copies of the site improvement plans. 

o Five (5) copies of temporary erosion and sediment control plan. If grading 
will not be completed by October 15, or is scheduled to start prior to April 
15, a winterization plan shall be included in accordance with City 
guidelines. 

o Two (2) copies of the SWPPP, Monitoring Program and Inspection Plan. 

o Two (2) copies of a detailed hydrology study prepared in accordance with 
the current edition of the Placer County Stormwater Management Manual. 

o Two (2) copies of a final design geotechnical investigation report. 

o Engineer’s estimate of probable construction cost. 

o Plan check fees. 

o Any bonds required. 

55. Prior to Acceptance of Public Improvements and Bond Exoneration, the Following 
Conditions Shall Be Satisfied: 

a. All improvements shown on the Improvement Plans shall be completed and 
accepted by the City. 

b. Prior to acceptance of improvements or occupancy of building, existing curb, 
gutter and sidewalk to remain shall be inspected by the City.  Any curb, gutter 
and sidewalk which is not in accord with City standards or is damaged before or 
during construction, shall be replaced. 

c. The developer shall provide a written statement signed by his or her engineer 
verifying that the grading and/or drainage improvements are completed in 

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

12 of 118



7 
 

accordance with the plans approved by the City Engineer, and the Building 
Official. 

d. A complete set of As-Built or Record, improvement plans showing all 
construction changes from the original plans, shall be provided to the Public 
Works Department prior to final acceptance of the public improvements. 

Cal Fire Conditions 

56. All construction shall comply with the 2016 California Fire Code and California Building 
code. 

57. All access roads and traffic circles where fire hydrants are present shall be a minimum of 
26ft wide and not steeper than 10% grade. 

58. All buildings over two stories shall have a 26ft wide road on three sides. 

59. Fire hydrants are required for this project. Fire flow shall be determined using the 
California Fire code appendix B. The minimum flow shall be 1500 gallons per minute. 
The serving water agency shall provide evidence that they can provide the required fire 
flow.  

60. Hydrant spacing shall be a maximum of 300 feet. Hydrant placement shall be approved 
by this office. Fire hydrants shall be clearly identified to prevent obstruction by parking or 
other obstructions. 

61. Fire department connections (FDC) shall be installed within 20 feet of a fire hydrant and 
be approved by this department. All valves controlling the water supply to automatic 
sprinkler systems shall be electrically supervised. (Water flow). A fire lane shall be 
provided for engine placement to the FDC. 

62. All buildings with an occupancy A, B must have an approved alarm per NFPA72. 

63. All buildings with an occupancy of A, B must have an approved fire sprinkler system per 
NFPA.  

64. Motor fueling dispensing will be pursuant to CFC 2306.2.3 

65. Tank protection required CFC 2306.2.3 

66. Aggregate tank capacity limit required CFC 2306.2.3/NFPA 30,30A, 70. 

Mitigation Monitoring Conditions  

67. Mitigation Measure BIO-1: Prior to Phase 1 ground disturbance, the Applicant shall have 
a focused botanical survey conducted within the Phase 1 construction boundary for the 
following species: brownish beaked-rush (Rhynchospora capitellata), finger rush (Juncus 
digitatus), Parry’s horkelia (Horkelia parryi), Scadden Flat checkerbloom (Sidalcea 
stipularis), Sierra blue grass (Poa sierrae), Stebbins’ morning-glory (Calystegia 
stebbinsii) and Brandegee’s clarkia (Clarkia biloba ssp. brandegeae). If any of the above 
species are found within the Phase 1 construction boundary, the CDFW shall be 
contacted to determine appropriate avoidance measures. If none are found, Phase 1 
ground disturbance could then proceed.  

68. Mitigation Measure BIO-2: Prior to Phase 2 and 3 ground disturbance, the Applicant 
shall have a focused botanical survey conducted within the Phase 2 and 3 construction 
boundaries for the following species: brownish beaked-rush (Rhynchospora capitellata), 
finger rush (Juncus digitatus), dubious pea (Lathyrus sulphureus var. argillaceus), 
Parry’s horkelia (Horkelia parryi), Scadden Flat checkerbloom (Sidalcea stipularis), 

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

13 of 118



8 
 

Sierra blue grass (Poa sierrae), Stebbins’ morning-glory (Calystegia stebbinsii) and 
Brandegee’s clarkia (Clarkia biloba ssp. brandegeae). If any of the above species are 
found within the Phase 2 and/or 3 construction boundaries, the CDFW shall be 
contacted to determine appropriate avoidance measures. If none are found, Phase 2 
and/or 3 ground disturbance could then proceed. 

69. Mitigation Measure BIO-3: Prior to Phase 2 and 3 ground disturbance, the Applicant 
shall have a focused pre-construction survey conducted by a qualified biologist for 
potentially occurring special-status reptiles and amphibians. If any species are found, the 
CDFW shall be contacted to determine appropriate avoidance measures. If no species 
are found, Phase 2 and/or 3 ground disturbance could then proceed. 

70. Mitigation Measure BIO-4: If any tree removal or adjacent construction activity takes 
place during the associated breeding/nesting season for raptors (typically February 
through August), a pre-construction survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist 
within 14 days of the start of construction activities. If active nests are found on or 
immediately adjacent to the site, the CDFW shall be contacted to determine appropriate 
avoidance measures. If no nesting is found to occur, necessary tree removal could then 
proceed. This survey shall not be necessary if tree removal and vegetation clearing 
occur outside of the nesting period. 

71. Mitigation Measure BIO-5: Prior to construction of Phase 2 and 3, the Applicant shall 
prepare a wetland delineation, in accordance with the U.S. ACOE “Minimum Standards 
for Acceptance of Preliminary Wetlands Delineations” and “Final Map and Drawing 
Standards for the South Pacific Division Regulatory Program,” and submit it to the U.S. 
ACOE Sacramento District Office for review. The Applicant shall follow through with 
permitting required by the regulatory agencies with jurisdiction over the verified 
wetlands/waters (i.e. Section 404 permit from the U.S. ACOE and Section 401 water 
quality certification from the RWQCB).  

72. Mitigation Measure BIO-6: Prior to construction of Phase 2 and 3, the Applicant shall 
obtain a Section 1602 Stream Alteration Agreement from CDFW for each stream 
crossing or any other activities affecting the bed, bank or associated riparian vegetation 
of the perennial streams. 

73. Mitigation Measure CUL-1: Prior to construction of the project, the City of Colfax, the 
Applicant and the culturally affiliated tribes (CTVCT and/or UAIC) shall agree upon a 
Tribal Monitoring Agreement. The Tribal Monitoring Agreement will provide a process for 
determining the project locations that will be subject to Tribal monitoring and the 
procedures/parameters for monitoring, including communication and coordination 
protocols, procedures for assessing potential or actual unanticipated discovers in the 
field, and dispute resolution procedures.  

74. Native American monitors from culturally affiliated Native American Tribes shall be 
invited to monitor the vegetation grubbing, stripping, grading or other ground-disturbing 
activities at the project site to determine the presence or absence of any cultural 
resources. Native American representatives from culturally affiliated Native American 
Tribes act as a representative of their Tribal government and shall be consulted before 
ground-disturbing activities begin. Native American representatives and Native American 
monitors have the authority to identify sites or objects of significance to Native 
Americans and to request that work be stopped, diverted or slowed if such sites or 
objects are identified within the direct impact area. Only a Native American 
representative can recommend appropriate treatment of such sites or objects.  

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

14 of 118



9 
 

75. Mitigation Measure CUL-2: If archaeological or cultural resources are discovered during 
ground disturbing activities for the project, work shall be halted in that area within 100 
feet of the find until a qualified archaeologist and Native American 
representatives/monitors can assess the significance of the find and make 
recommendations for further evaluation and treatment as necessary. Recommendations 
made by Native American Tribes shall be documented in the project record. For any 
recommendations made by interested Native American Tribes which are not 
implemented, a justification for why the recommendation was not followed will be 
provided in the project record. Construction activities could continue in other areas, but 
not resume in the vicinity of the find until the Applicant, the City of Colfax, or other 
relevant regulatory agency provides written permission. If the discovery proves to be 
significant, additional work, such as data recovery excavation, may be warranted and 
shall be discussed in consultation with the Applicant, the City of Colfax, or any other 
relevant regulatory agency, as appropriate. 

76. Mitigation Measure CUL-3: If tribal cultural resources (TCRs) are discovered, 
recommendations for avoidance and preservation of cultural resources shall be reviewed 
by the City of Colfax, interested Native American Tribes and the appropriate agencies, in 
light of factors such as costs, logistics, feasibility, design, technology and social, cultural 
and environmental considerations, and the extent to which avoidance is consistent with 
project objectives. Avoidance and design alternatives may include realignment within the 
project area to avoid cultural resources, modification of the design to eliminate or reduce 
impacts to cultural resources or modification or realignment to avoid highly significant 
features within a cultural resource. Native American representatives from interested 
Native American Tribes shall be allowed to review and comment on avoidance and 
preservation strategies and shall have the opportunity to meet with the City of Colfax and 
its representatives who have technical expertise to identify and recommend feasible 
avoidance and design alternatives, so that appropriate and feasible avoidance and 
design alternatives can be identified.  

If a discovered TCR can be avoided, the construction contractor(s), with Native 

American monitors from culturally affiliated Native American Tribes present, shall 

install protective fencing outside the site boundary, including a buffer area, before 

construction restarts. The construction contractor(s) shall maintain the protective 

fencing throughout construction to avoid the site during all remaining phases of 

construction. The area shall be demarcated as an “Environmentally Sensitive 

Area.” Native American rrepresentatives from interested Native American Tribes 

and the City of Colfax shall also consult to develop measures for long-term 

management of the resource and routine operation and maintenance within 

culturally sensitive areas that retain resource integrity, including tribal cultural 

integrity, and including archaeological material, Traditional Cultural Properties 

and cultural landscapes, in accordance with State and federal guidance.  

77. Mitigation Measure CUL-4: A minimum of seven days prior to beginning earthwork or 
other soil disturbance activities, the Applicant shall notify the City of Colfax of the 
proposed earthwork start-date, in order to provide the City of Colfax with time to contact 
the UAIC. A UAIC tribal representative shall be invited to inspect the project site, 
including any soil piles, trenches, or other disturbed areas, within the first five days of 
groundbreaking activity. During this inspection, a site meeting of construction personnel 
shall also be held in order to afford the tribal representative the opportunity to provide 
TCR awareness information. If any TCRs, such as structural features, unusual amounts 

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

15 of 118



10 
 

of bone or shell, artifacts, human remains, or architectural remains are encountered 
during this initial inspection or during any subsequent construction activities measures 
outlined in Mitigation Measure CUL-2 and CUL-3 shall be followed.  

78. Mitigation Measure CUL-5: A consultant and construction worker tribal cultural resources 
awareness brochure and training program for all personnel involved in project 
implementation shall be developed in coordination with interested Native American 
Tribes. The brochure shall be distributed and the training shall be conducted in 
coordination with qualified cultural resources specialists and Native American 
representatives and monitors from culturally affiliated Native American Tribes before 
construction activities begin on the project site. The program will include relevant 
information regarding sensitive TCRs, including applicable regulations, protocols for 
avoidance, and consequences of violating State laws and regulations. The worker 
cultural resources awareness program will also describe appropriate avoidance and 
minimization measures for resources that have the potential to be located on the project 
site and will outline what to do and whom to contact if any potential archaeological 
resources or artifacts are encountered. The program will also underscore the 
requirement for confidentiality and culturally appropriate treatment of any find of 
significance to Native Americans and behaviors, consistent with Native American Tribal 
values.  

79. Mitigation Measure CUL-6: Prior to construction of the project, the City of Colfax, the 
Applicant and the culturally affiliated tribes (CTVCT and/or UAIC) shall agree upon a 
Burial Treatment Agreement. The agreement shall apply and be enforceable if the Tribe 
is designated by the NAHC as the Most Likely Descendant (MLD) or coMLD for Native 
American human remains discovered within the project site. The purpose of this 
Agreement is to establish appropriate procedures and guidelines to be implemented 
upon discovery, removal, temporary storage, transportation, or reburial of Native 
American Burials encountered by project construction activities within the project site.  

80. Mitigation Measure CUL-7: Prior to ground disturbance, presence/absence testing shall 
be conducted for the known area that has the potential to hold surface and subsurface 
cultural resources. If testing proves to be significant, the procedures in Mitigation 
Measure CUL-2 and CUL-3 shall apply. 

81. Mitigation Measure CUL-8: If paleontological resources are discovered during ground 
disturbing activities for the project, work shall be halted in that area within 50 feet of the 
find and a qualified paleontologist shall be notified immediately to evaluate the find. 
Construction activities shall continue in other areas. If the discovery proves to be 
significant under Society of Vertebrate Paleontology criteria, additional work, such as 
fossil recovery excavation, may be warranted and shall be discussed in consultation with 
the Applicant, the City of Colfax, or any other relevant regulatory agency, as appropriate. 

82. Mitigation Measure CUL-9: If human remains are discovered during ground disturbing 
activities for the project, work shall be halted and the County Coroner shall be notified of 
the find immediately. No further work shall occur until the County Coroner has made a 
determination of origin and disposition pursuant to PRC Section 5097.98. If the human 
remains are determined to be of Native American origin, the County Coroner shall notify 
the NAHC, which will determine and notify the MLD. The MLD shall complete the 
inspection of the site within 48 hours of notification and may recommend scientific 
removal and nondestructive analysis of human remains and items associated with 
Native American burials. 

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

16 of 118



11 
 

83. Mitigation Measure GEO-1: Prior to issuance of the grading permit, the Applicant shall 
provide a geotechnical report from a licensed geotechnical engineer to the City of Colfax 
for approval. The geotechnical report shall be consistent with the content requirements 
for geotechnical reports as stated in Chapter 15.30.048 – Content of soil/geologic 
investigation report. 

84. Mitigation Measure GHG-1: Prior to building occupancy of Phase 3 (motel use), the 
Applicant shall prepare a GHG Emissions Re-Evaluation for the project at full buildout 
analyzing the first full year that the entire project could conceivably be occupied. The 
Applicant shall reduce the project’s annual operational GHG emissions to the PCAPCD’s 
De Minimis Level (1,100 metric tons of CO2e per year) or to the level that meets the 
PCAPCD’s Efficiency Matrix. If on-site measures cannot achieve the necessary 
reduction, the Applicant shall purchase carbon credits/offsets for the project’s annual 
GHG emissions above the PCAPCD’s De Minimis Level or above the level that meets 
the PCAPCDs Efficiency Matrix until the year in which the project’s annual GHG 
emissions will be equal to either level, or for a maximum of 20 years. 

85. Mitigation Measure HYD-1: Prior to grading and construction, the Applicant shall submit 
a Drainage Report with Drainage Plans prepared by a licensed civil engineer to the City 
for approval by the City Engineer. The Drainage Report shall meet the requirements for 
submittals contained in the Placer County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District’s Stormwater Management Manual. 

 

Conditions specific to ARCO Service Station Design Review 

86. The conditions of approval from the Maidu Village Development Project (file no, 
SP/CTPM2018-001) shall apply to this project. 

87. Plans submitted for building permits or construction improvements shall be in substantial 
compliance the plans approved by this action and dated approved on November 14, 
2018.. Any deviations from or modifications to the approved plans shall be reviewed by 
the City for substantial compliance and may require amendment by the appropriate 
hearing body. 

88. This action does not relieve the Applicant of the obligation to comply with all codes, 
statutes, regulations, and procedures of the City of Colfax. 

89. The trash enclosure locations shall be reviewed and approved by staff and Recology 
prior to issuance of any development permits. 

 

Attachment 2
ITEM  5A

17 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

18 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

19 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

20 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

21 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

22 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

23 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

24 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

25 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

26 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

27 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

28 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

29 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

30 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

31 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

32 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

33 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

34 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

35 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

36 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

37 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

38 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

39 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

40 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

41 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

42 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

43 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

44 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

45 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

46 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

47 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

48 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

49 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

50 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

51 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

52 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

53 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

54 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

55 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

56 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

57 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

58 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

59 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

60 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

61 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

62 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

63 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

64 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

65 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

66 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

67 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

68 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

69 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

70 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

71 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

72 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

73 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

74 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

75 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

76 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

77 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

78 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

79 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

80 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

81 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

82 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

83 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

84 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

85 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

86 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

87 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

88 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

89 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

90 of 118



Attachment 3
ITEM  5A

91 of 118



1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Ordinance № 538 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAX  ADOPTING FINDINGS OF 

FACT AND APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

COLFAX AUBURN, LLC REGARDING THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 

MAIDU VILLAGE PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON SOUTH 

AUBURN STREET NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF THE INTERSTATE 

HIGHWAY 80 ON-RAMP AND OFF RAMP, PLACER COUNTY 

ASSESSOR’S PARCEL #100-240-016-000 

 

The City Council of the City of Colfax does ordain as follows: 
  

Section 1:  

The Ordinance Adopting Findings of Fact and Approving a Development Agreement with 

Colfax Auburn, LLC attached hereto as Exhibit A is incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

Section 2. Superseding Provisions 

The provisions of this Ordinance and any resolution adopted pursuant hereto shall supersede and 

repeal any previous Ordinance or resolution to the extent the same is in conflict herewith.  
 

Section 3. Severability 

If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 

unconstitutional by the final judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision; and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof.  

 

Section 4.  Effective Date 
 

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days from and after its adoption. 

 

Section 5.  California Environmental Quality Act Findings 

 

On November 14, 2018, the City Council reviewed and considered a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration for the Project defined in the Development Agreement, all comments received 

during the public review period, and all relevant documents in the record pertaining to the 

Project and the Mitigated Negative Declaration. The Mitigated Negative Declaration adequately 

describes the potential environmental impacts of the Project. On the basis of the whole record 

before it, the Colfax City Council found, and hereby finds, (1) there is no substantial evidence 

that the Project, as mitigated, will have a significant effect on the environment beyond those 

identified in the Mitigated Negative Declaration, (2) the Mitigated Negative Declaration has 

been completed in compliance with the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act, 

Public Resources Code §21000 et seq (“CEQA”) and the Guidelines for Implementation of the 

California Environmental Quality Act published by the State of California Office of Planning 

and Research (“CEQA Guidelines”), (3) the Mitigated Negative Declaration is complete and 

ITEM  5A
92 of 118



2 
 

adequate and reflects the City Council’s independent judgment and analysis of the environmental 

effects of the Project, and (4) the Mitigated Negative Declaration as adopted is equally 

applicable to the Project and the Development Agreement.  

 

 This ordinance shall, within 15 days after its adoption, be published or posted in accordance 

with Section 36933 of the Government Code of the State of California with the names of those 

City Council members voting for and against it. 

 

The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Colfax held on the 14th day of November, 2018, and passed at a regular meeting of the City 

Council held on the 12
th

 day of December, 2018, by the following vote:   
 

 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:  
 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Will Stockwin, Mayor  

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     ATTEST:  

 

 

 

 

_______________________________   _____________________________ 

Alfred Cabral, City Attorney     Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  5A
93 of 118



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 538 
 

ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT AND APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH COLFAX AUBURN, LLC REGARDING THE 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE MAIDU VILLAGE PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED ON SOUTH AUBURN STREET NEAR THE INTERSECTION 

OF THE INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 80 ON-RAMP AND OFF-RAMP, 

PLACER COUNTY ASSESSOR’S PARCEL #100-240-016-000 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Colfax has duly considered an application 

for a Development Agreement with Colfax Auburn, LLC (the “Development Agreement”) in 

accordance with Title 17, Chapter 17.48 et seq., of the Colfax Municipal Code; and 

 

  WHEREAS, in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (California 

Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq., “CEQA”) and the regulations implementing 

CEQA (14 Code of California Regulations Section 15000 et seq., “CEQA Guidelines”), the City 

Council has reviewed an Initial Study (Environmental Checklist for the Maidu Village Project, 

dated __________________) and all attachments and has determined that impacts from the 

proposed project have been be adequately addressed; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Development Agreement has been reviewed by City staff and the 

Developer; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on November 14, 2018, the City Council, sitting as both the City  Planning 

Commission and City Council, determined that approving the Development Agreement and the 

Project described therein is in the best interests of Colfax and that the Development Agreement 

should be approved; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, after due deliberation and public hearings in accordance 

with Chapter 17.48 of the Colfax Municipal Code pertaining to Development Agreements under 

Government Code Sections 65864 through 65869.5, hereby adopts the following Findings of 

Fact: 

 

FINDING NO. 1:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 

OBJECTIVES, POLICIES, GENERAL LAND USES AND PROGRAMS SPECIFIED IN THE 

COLFAX GENERAL PLAN. 

 

The Agreement specifically implements the Colfax General Plan.  Based on the record generally 

and analysis provided in the November 14, 2018 Staff Report for the City Council and all 

attachments thereto and information provided therewith, the Development Agreement is in 

conformance with the Colfax General Plan objectives, goals, policies, general land uses and 

programs. 

 

 

ITEM  5A
94 of 118



2 

FINDING NO. 2:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 

PROVISIONS OF THE COLFAX MUNICIPAL CODE. 

 

The Development Agreement complies with the requirements of Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 

17.48 and the Development Agreement Law incorporated therein (California Government Code 

Sections 65864 to 65869.5, inclusive).  The Development Agreement also complies with all 

related provisions of the Colfax Municipal Code and the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and 

development and building standards incorporated therein. 

 

FINDING NO. 3:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT CONFORMS WITH AND WILL 

NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND GENERAL WELFARE. 

 

Based on the record generally and analysis provided in the November 14, 2018 Staff Report for 

the City Council, the attachments thereto, and the related information presented at the hearing, 

the proposed project set forth in the Development Agreement conforms with and will not be 

detrimental to the health, safety and general welfare, as it incorporates all health and safety 

provisions required in the City’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance and will comply with all 

such provisions in the Municipal Code.  Further, it is or will be adequately served by utility and 

public services, and will help mitigate traffic and circulation impacts at the affected intersections 

within the City. 

 

FINDING NO. 4:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WILL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT 

THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY OR THE PRESERVATION OF 

PROPERTY VALUES. 

 

The Development Agreement promotes the orderly development of property within the City of 

Colfax by entitling and creating a specific mechanism and process for developing a significant 

parcel immediately adjacent to major on-and-off ramps to Interstate Highway 80. In this regard, 

the Development Agreement serves as a model for orderly development of property. Moreover, 

the project approved by the Development Agreement will attract business into the City, 

contribute to the City’s tax base, and help to preserve or enhance property values within the City 

and the quality of life for City residents. 

 

FINDING NO. 5:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WILL PROVIDE SUFFICIENT 

BENEFIT TO THE CITY AND ITS RESIDENTS TO JUSTIFY ENTERING INTO THE 

AGREEMENT. 

 

The following are aspects of the Maidu Village Project which demonstrate that it will provide 

sufficient benefits to the City and its residents to justify entering into the Development 

Agreement. 

 

Planning.  The Project is a well thought out development that will result in consistent and 

comprehensive development of the Maidu Village property and avoid fractionalization or 

piecemeal development of the Project site.  The Project is convenient to public transportation, is 

pedestrian-friendly, provides for adequate utility service, conforms to health and safety 

requirements and will include uses consistent with surrounding developments. Development of 

ITEM  5A
95 of 118



3 

the site into an integrated commercial development in conformance with the City’s General Plan 

and Zoning Ordinance represents good land use practice.  The opportunity afforded by consistent 

and integrated land uses is a benefit to the City as it grows. 

 

Tax Revenue.  The Project will contribute to the tax base of the City through sales tax revenues 

generated by the commercial uses, and from additional businesses and employees. 

 

Social and Economic Benefits.  The creation of new jobs and increased generation of revenues 

will provide greater employment opportunities for the residents of Colfax, and allow existing 

residents to live and work within the same community. 

 

FINDING NO. 6:  THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT CONFORMS WITH THE 

PROVISIONS OF GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65867.5 

 

Government Code Section 65867.5 requires a finding that the provisions of any development 

agreement are consistent with the City’s General Plan. This is addressed in Finding No. 1 above, 

and the City Council specifically finds that the Development Agreement conforms to the 

provisions of Government Code Section 65867.5. The provisions of Government Code Section 

66473.7 are not applicable to this Development Agreement or the Project described therein. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the applicant, Colfax Auburn, LLC, agrees with 

the necessity of and accepts all elements, requirements and conditions of this Development 

Agreement as being a reasonable manner of preserving, protecting, providing for, and fostering 

the health, safety and welfare of the citizenry in general and persons who work in or visit this 

development in particular; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing and waived the first reading of 

this Ordinance on November 14, 2018 and waived the second reading of this Ordinance on 

December 12, 2018. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the City Council of the City of Colfax 

adopts these Findings of Fact and approves the Development Agreement with Colfax Auburn 

LLC for Maidu Village Project set forth therein and authorizes the City Manager to execute the 

Development Agreement in the name and on behalf of the City of Colfax. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Colfax on this 12th day of 

December 2018, by the following vote: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

       _____________________________ 

       Will Stockwin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

 

ITEM  5A
96 of 118



Attachment 6a

ITEM  5A
97 of 118



Attachment 6b

ITEM  5A
98 of 118



Attachment 6c

ITEM  5A
99 of 118



>
 

!i
 ! 

i 1
�

II
 

-!
/

 �
 

� 

i u
 

� 
! 

g �
!
 2

i
� 

. !
�

"
 

h
 

� 
f; 

�:
 

� 
e�

 

I 
�!

 
a

�
 

�g
 

!
.

� � "
 

"
 H

 
;:;

 
• 

!' 

i �
�

.
,
 

i ..
 �i

� 
·
&

. i i;
� ..

Q§
:_ 

a 
QJ

 
i§

i

�§
f�

 
: ;; �

e l 
f •
 i•

 
& 

t
 
h

i
 

,, 
•!
 l

a 
§

:
 

a
.;

 

f' ,. "I
 

•
 ; f e
.
 

·� �'
 

I ii
 
i�

 
� 

t5
 

Ii
 

i"
 

s
e

 = 
,� 

� I � "
 

i•
� 

. �
t

·1
- M , ..

�
 

!
•
 

· •
11

i 
� ;

i
-: 

FJ
� 

s 
�.
 

a 
?

 
I 

§
'

i!
�

 r t ,..

s
 I 

/
 

A
,:

 
·
Q

 ·� t:.: � 
Iii 

I
 

"
 

Ii 

.. 

-
,,
-

. 
'\

 
'I 

" 
i 

- I 

s
 

! 
�

 

•
ii

 
! , q

 

Attachment 6d

ITEM  5A
100 of 118



Attachment 6f

ITEM  5A
101 of 118



n
 

I 
I 
I 
' 

...
 o

 
, 
. !

 
�
 
I 

8�
 

�-
;
 

I--'
 

:.,
;,::

 
�-,

 
.,,

 C:
 

Ei
 �

 

-
!;
Q

p
i!
 

z
o

 
:z

 

,j
l

�
'"-'

" '
"""'

="-
+--

-
-

-
-

-
u

-1
·�

�
-

-
-

-
-

•➔
• 

s
 

,·.
,t

 

"
 

i�
 

J,
 

- �
 

•·◄
·

.,J.,.
 
,·-
•· 

;:
 -1---4

-
-

--,,,
....a--

-rn
 

:z
 

.· 
�

�
-

----=
!!119-,;

,.-
.:...i._

�
i-p

 

• ....
 

l;i 
..

 
•. 

,s·
.,t

 

.,.
 r

 

El
 

..
 

::
 

r
-1

•
 

�
�
 

..,
.,,
 

,..;
· 

..r,.
 

�
 

9
 

;}
 

" ' . 
er

 
"O

 

Attachment 6f

ITEM  5A
102 of 118



II
 I

'
' 
. 
!

-
tLO"I

 1
1,

· 
r.t

, 
lflll

fOCII'
-

{:I
 t�

 

�
--

-
--
-

-
-

-
-

,...
-

--
-

-
-

, 4' 
I J

i
lr 

-
1 , 

),... 
i=

 
1 

'/
 

�
 

�
 

....
 .,
 .. 

t
 

ffl
'Wf

•
 

l!
 _

_
_

_
_

 _:
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

N
O

T
F

O
R

 

Attachment 6f

ITEM  5A
103 of 118



'
 

I 
-

II
 '

 
I 

,v
 

� �
 cl \ 

I 
' 

-
� 

G
 

�·, 1
1 

I 
, .. 

I 
·,,

'
I 

'·j
 I� 

. 
' 

I 0 - �
� ,

i,..
:-

--
� 

0 
� 

.,
 _

_
_

_
 J

 

f,
I 
-

-
-

i;!
 

fiJ
 

11•
 

G
�

 �
 

I
I, ,l

 
I 

�'t
 

,, If
 

-

m
 

11
1
1 

� 
I 

►
 

I 
�

n
 

· 1 · 1. 
�-. 

N
 

>
o

.c■
,

 
S5

 
-

'1 
Ei

�
 

. 
i '

 g
 

......
 

z
"'

 

§ "
1 I'

"' 

i
 

J
 • .. • 

;l 7 =t
 

-10
 

p
 ,t 

$ 
"'

 
'I':

 ' � �00
�0 

� 1:::1
 

� s i i
 

I 
,1

 �� �
!
 � 

z
 

:l
 

.,,
 

=
0

 
"'

 
�
�
a
�
 

=-<
>

%
�

 
::I

 
!:i 

�
 

1r.
 

! 
'

I 

J,
 

t 
� � 

. 
.1
 

I 
ll>

"'
�

�
�

e
•!l-

D'
B
 

11
11

11
11

11
 

1111
1111
 l I 

. r
 5

5
i�

,,,,
a

')
I 

8
1

 

. , 
... 

��
 

. 
__

 ,i
 

,. 
Q

 
• 
I 

�5!
t 

f-
%

 
I 

1i
 ,

 
\

 
t
 

I 
1i 

I 
'••

, .. 
, tt

�r;,
 

·t 
1 d 

_ l t E
 

t 

I 

i�
.-'

�
 
O

cr 
!8

�
�

"'O
 

Attachment 6f

ITEM  5A
104 of 118



"'0------... 

r0 

.. �===J=----t===j�;;= 
@RIGlrT EU'VATION 

tl:.li.t.11,'u-if 

GY'RONT Fl.liVATION 
. �,, ....... 

®l.ffT Hl'VATION 
l
tua1•1•'·•·=i' 

�if� 

-of�;/> 

@llf-AR HFVATION 
- 1'.IILl.lJ•.01-i' 

r!> 

-'li� 

-'lU�,_.. 

.f'd;/> 

□ 
■ 
□ 
□ 

,_ 
Gl:NM!AI. NOTES 
I. lf'c..&D(.d)IS ...... 11'111 ........ .a4ii;..4 

laOll),�,-,:iei(lll,l.lul$: , 

O

bp 

KFYED NOTES . 

ll'll"C.II. • 
I ,.,_�""""-UIIIIIIQI 
J._,mt.11.-""DtDCII 

. ...  �'°' 
i_.._.QLIMO .. 
"alll,ld,IIIO�n.a,.tt 
'··-CllOffl:AJAGJ.-,11:rn.,WW.�J 

�Ill... 
�,.. '------·"""' 

-� ... "'Ml 

@wn.1a.1 .... ..-.m.at a:a.cu1:1wria,a1, 

0St��\L 

ARCO 

COi.OR I.F.GENI> 
CEEJ�CNJ�«:--

CED--IIDIL ,.,. -
........ -liUISS 

CEl:.��-IIDL 

[EE] :az� ._:.,.-l&D(. 

z 
C' 

�o�Au tlfj�� 
• 

-i.

'1, 

• 

•• 't ! 
;'••c•Gfl,'-4,•• 

r- 1a1, n.ia M-..: 1C1J1W 
,_ __ _,, 

r 
4�)nl+-4m 

'-"' :==� .. ------
► 

.. """ 

CV' I 

MATliRIAI. I.EGF.NI> 

( r'\ UJ4' 

Il2lt=��:=a'C9•n.•uru_;,,.,, ..J % 

cr!J..,._..m,tl'Ulllll;llt,II- z � �-..uttli ... 'lllCP�cnDIO e_ w•�••in.N0-40Uco.cia,......,.U ... I 

u 

r"" 
( 
� 

G
Atn::nNn 

JDDJar11'sn1 
t\JU C:A.'IU"l -' 6 Mf'Ch ? :••,rtAHWA.SU 

�AI.KIUl1i1n 
.,.i ... 

UUlt. ••1--
f-AUllh'•mu 

CARWASII 

:OLOR ELEVATIONS 

CWA2.1 

Attachment 6f

ITEM  5A
105 of 118



0
 

►
 

I
 

N
 

�
 

t�
 

i �
 � 

all
! � 

• •
 s �

 
u
:· bi
l bi
 

-
1

1
 

r
a

i
-

; 1 1 1

; ; 

•.�
 p

 
n

 

i
·1 
� 

= � 
! I

+
 

�
 
=
 

Attachment 6f

ITEM  5A
106 of 118



11 

(D!'.�?l��l'I? \JEST HEVATION 

J.______..L_J. 

®1'01' SIGN H.JJ SI'. 
20• IIJ.U�IINATiiD Clli\NNliL 1.ETTF.115 

<sX!!) WI 36' ILLUMINATiil> S!'ARK I.OGO (:)lfu<;T ;"t'191't El.EVATION 

-·-
--

-·
a%111ED." ""'ll 

I 

! 

TENANT 

:reNAtn 

---

-·-.., __
-·-
--...... 

; 

©�!�!N.i�lliN!IFICATION/PRICE SIGN 

@<;olJTI� CANOl'Y liLFVATION 

@:��il.,V,!�!'_'J'Sf.R GRAPHICS 

•••m..-.w.--a 1,aa,, .......... 111(11. � .. .., ... , 

.c:at.....-�.,.u, �-CNIIIT•� _,..11'-4"ftOIIMID�f# 
...... 
.,._ 
.,__,11111,M.ilOloli(SIQIC. 
----··-- �� 
=,M...-.�CIIICICf 

\....-.---ttw'•u --•lr'-T 

\ 

arrf so. 
EltE BICW.\CE TAB..E 

0IMll/""'Sl:::1.a: CMlf«l (!ti .. •l
0 I""' ""' (Ill .. , 

•O!T 

© jCNO'T "«:SJ· C>wrN:1. l£fflRS (10 111 N 11 2 
©I""°"' 5"" ,,,_l (11 .... , 
© IIW• 10 50,I/PflU � (1'90 fAClSI 
0,---

01--
01--=

10"'-

.. l'f',., 

(D��!"Ol'Y l>ECAI. ON ACM FASCI/\ 

- _J 

� SIGN sm, Pl.AN 
�--:;: !Uil: ., ... 

.,., 
l11 .. 
,00 .. 

,., ..
21 J ti 

11ltlll 
u .. 
.... 

.. 
. 

.. 
.. 

-

d 
"'� 
"'" 
ARCO 
-..-......---

(l,GH"lt,
.S-

��� 

- ,, -
' . t 
-. . .. � 
"'�,.Q : ....... "· 

l&llifflGlolllllA!QJlit ..,..._ .... -.u: l•nt;1,1-4n2 1,1un,-•,_,, ... 
c....---
---

il\1-1---
& 

.i. 
81 ,& I I 

TIIIS SIIEET IS 
l'OR 

INl'ORMATION 
ONI.Y 

Akt.:ONl1 
llJD-1••�m I tull CA. ....... � 11,l'lh 

141tK(.AH:WA."I 

I
�lltlUt\Sftiln 

-�::.:..
tArJUIY ,mu 
.. -

-

- -

-

SIGN l'l.AN 

SNA-1 

• 
I 

� 

! 
II i 

Attachment 6f

ITEM  5A
107 of 118



C/)
 

z
 

:p-- N
 

,..
 

��
 

... �
.,. 

.
>

 

!
�

 

"'
 � :'":":
 

5
 =i >
 z
 

:-,
 s ;,:;
 

>
 

s
 

:r
. 

cl
 

z
 

•
 

A
U

8
U

II
N

 
I

T
 

....
. 

\
 

\ 
l @ j

i U
l h

 
l •
t

E ,
,

E l
.... ��

 
:a
 

� 
n

 
-

n
m

· 
cu

 
. 
;,:;
 

iil
 

b
�
 

.. 
f
 

i r
q ·

"' 5
 

z
 

i i 
i.
 

I 
•

E u
 

n
 

..
 
n

 

:,
 

D)
 

D)
 

-
�

:
�

�
 

:,
 

D)
 

�
 !
 

0
 

t/)
 

I 
:::r

 
D)

 

I I 
ti)

 

:::r
 

Attachment 6f

ITEM  5A
108 of 118



C

B

B

D

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASH

Preliminary Not For Construction

PRELIMINARY
SITE PLAN

PT

DJ

SP-1

ITEM  5A
109 of 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2299.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2273.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2273.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL PREM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLEADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
AASHTO 2011 (US)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2016 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
AASHTO 2011 (US)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2016 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
AASHTO 2011 (US)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN AIR/ VAN POOL/EV

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arco65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
custom

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2018 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arco65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
custom

AutoCAD SHX Text
(c) 2018 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arco65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
custom

AutoCAD SHX Text
File:P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\18400 SP-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:20 AM  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\18400 SP-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:20 AM  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:20 AM  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----8/15/2018 11:20 AM  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Scale:1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----1" = 1'    DJEDEL  Xref: ----    DJEDEL  Xref: ----DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Xref: --------

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  THIS PLAN, AS SHOWN, HAS BEEN APPROVED BY BP TRANSPORTATION FOR APPROVAL OF FUEL DELIVERY BY: TERMINAL MANAGER:  NATHAN PULLEN	 NATHAN PULLEN	 DATE: JULY 10, 2018 JULY 10, 2018 ANY DEVIATION TO THIS PLAN NEEDS TO BE APPROVED THROUGH BP TRANSPORTATION  DEVIATION TO THIS PLAN NEEDS TO BE APPROVED THROUGH BP TRANSPORTATION TERMINAL MANAGER AND INCORPORATED INTO THE PERMIT DOCUMENTS.  CONTACT FRANCHISEE FOR MORE DETAILS.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS 25K & 22K SPLIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'x17' TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
First Part Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trailer Width

AutoCAD SHX Text
First Part Track

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trailer Track

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lock to Lock Time

AutoCAD SHX Text
Steering Angle

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arco65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
Articulating Angle

AutoCAD SHX Text
:

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uPROJECT DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR/WATER UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S AUBURN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION: 	S AUBURN STREET @ I-80 EXIT 135		 S AUBURN STREET @ I-80 EXIT 135		 COLFAX, CALIFORNIA LOT AREA: ±41,513 S.F. (0.95 AC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3000 ARCO AM/PM 3,180 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAR WASH 24'x48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
56'x66' CANOPY w/ 6 MPD'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 29.85'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 259.58'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 24.59'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 23.18'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 35.72'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 52.71'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 64.34'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 36.83'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 30.92'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 52.49'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 102.68'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 49.86'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 18.29'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
  = 103.69'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 GALLON PROPANE TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ID SIGN, SEE SHEET SNA-1



THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASHN
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

CONSTRUCTION
FLOOR PLAN

A1.1

GENERAL NOTES

KEYED NOTES

LEGEND

OCCUPANCY LOAD

ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE
INTERIOR

FLOOR

CASHIERFINISHES

BASE

WALLS

CEILING

FASCIA/SOFFIT

RESTROOMS OFFICE PREP/UTILITY WALK-INSALES

SALES AREA

OFFICE
PREP

CASHIER

WALK-IN
COOLER
17 DOOR

WALK-IN
FREEZER
2 DOOR

UTILITY

TO GO

FOUNTAIN

C
O

FF
E

E

HOT FOOD
CONDIMENT

COFFEE
CONDIMENT

MEN WOMEN

CONSTRUCTION FLOOR PLAN

ITEM  5A
110 of 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.	ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. B.	ALL DENOTED DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE USED. PLANS SHALL NOT BE SCALED. ALL DENOTED DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE USED. PLANS SHALL NOT BE SCALED. C.	EXTERIOR WALL ARE 2x6, INTERIOR WALLS 2x4 U.N.O., SEE STRUCTURAL PLANS FOR FRAMING EXTERIOR WALL ARE 2x6, INTERIOR WALLS 2x4 U.N.O., SEE STRUCTURAL PLANS FOR FRAMING REQUIREMENTS. D.	SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR DIMENSIONS TO PLUMBING FIXTURES SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR DIMENSIONS TO PLUMBING FIXTURES E.	REFER TO SHEET Q1.1 FOR FOR EQUIPMENT PLAN. REFER TO SHEET Q1.1 FOR FOR EQUIPMENT PLAN. F.	REFER TO SHEET Q2.1 FOR EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE. REFER TO SHEET Q2.1 FOR EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE. G.	ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL MEET ACCESSIBILITY REACH RANGE REQUIREMENTS. ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL MEET ACCESSIBILITY REACH RANGE REQUIREMENTS. H.	PROVIDE PLASTIC CORNER GUARDS AT EDGES BELOW 6'-0". PROVIDE PLASTIC CORNER GUARDS AT EDGES BELOW 6'-0". I.	ALL COUNTERTOPS SHALL BE MAX. 34" A.F.F. WITH A 3-FOOT WIDE TRANSACTION AREA AT ALL COUNTERTOPS SHALL BE MAX. 34" A.F.F. WITH A 3-FOOT WIDE TRANSACTION AREA AT CASHIER. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WORK WITH CABINET INSTALLER FOR CABINET INSTALLATION. CONTRACTOR TO ROUTE UTILITIES THROUGH CABINETS. CONTACT CABINET INSTALLER FOR SITE SPECIFIC CABINET SHOP DRAWINGS. J.	4" HIGH BACKSPLASH AT ALL COUNTERTOPS THAT TERMINATE AT WALL. BACKSPLASH TO MATCH 4" HIGH BACKSPLASH AT ALL COUNTERTOPS THAT TERMINATE AT WALL. BACKSPLASH TO MATCH COUNTERTOP MATERIAL. K.	THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST STORE PERSONNEL BY ASSEMBLING MERCHANDISE GONDOLAS THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST STORE PERSONNEL BY ASSEMBLING MERCHANDISE GONDOLAS AND SHELVING AS SHOWN ON Q1.1. L.	ALL EQUIPMENT AND CABINETS SHALL BE FREE OF SHARP EDGES. CONTACT MANUFACTURER OR ALL EQUIPMENT AND CABINETS SHALL BE FREE OF SHARP EDGES. CONTACT MANUFACTURER OR PREP EDGES FOR SAFETY. M.	CONTRACTOR SHALL ROUTE ALL CONDENSATE DRAIN LINES TO FLOOR SINKS. CONTRACTOR SHALL ROUTE ALL CONDENSATE DRAIN LINES TO FLOOR SINKS. N.	CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL NEW PARTITIONS/WALLS WITH GYPSUM WALL BOARD AND FINISHES CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL NEW PARTITIONS/WALLS WITH GYPSUM WALL BOARD AND FINISHES AS NOTED ON FINISH SCHEDULE AND INTERIOR ELEVATIONS ON SHEET A2.3 THRU A2.6. ALL PARTITIONS/WALLS SHALL BE BRACED FOR LATERAL FORCES, PER BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS. O.	FLAME SPREAD CLASSIFICATIONS FOR INTERIOR WALLS SHALL COMPLY WITH LOCAL CODES. FLAME SPREAD CLASSIFICATIONS FOR INTERIOR WALLS SHALL COMPLY WITH LOCAL CODES. P.	FIRE EXTINGUISHERS (2A:10B:C) SHALL BE INSTALLED AT SALES COUNTER, BACK ROOM, OFFICE, FIRE EXTINGUISHERS (2A:10B:C) SHALL BE INSTALLED AT SALES COUNTER, BACK ROOM, OFFICE, & FUEL CANOPY LOCATIONS IF NOT SHOWN ELSEWHERE ON THESE DRAWINGS. VERIFY WITH OWNER FOR DETAILS, CONFIRM FINAL DETAILS WITH LOCAL FIRE INSPECTOR.  Q.	CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST THE OWNER WITH STORE EQUIPMENT TO PREPARE A DELIVERY CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST THE OWNER WITH STORE EQUIPMENT TO PREPARE A DELIVERY STAGING AREA. COORDINATE WITH OWNER FOR THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE AND SHIPPING DAMAGES, AS APPLICABLE. R.	CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A CLEAN, SMOOTH SURFACE FOR GRAPHICS INSTALLATION. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A CLEAN, SMOOTH SURFACE FOR GRAPHICS INSTALLATION. S.	ALL DIMENSIONS SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY CONTRACTOR FROM CABINET AND EQUIPMENT ALL DIMENSIONS SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY CONTRACTOR FROM CABINET AND EQUIPMENT CLEARANCES PRIOR TO WALL ERECTION. DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE DIRECTED TO OWNER. T.	WATER HEATERS SHALL BE CAPABLE OF DELIVERING MIN. 120  WATER TO ALL SINKS. WATER HEATERS SHALL BE CAPABLE OF DELIVERING MIN. 120° WATER TO ALL SINKS.U.	ALL FLOOR/WALL TILE AND COVE BASE SHALL BE INSTALLED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR ALL FLOOR/WALL TILE AND COVE BASE SHALL BE INSTALLED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR ACCORDING TO THE MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS. V.	ALL DOORS MUST HAVE NO MORE THAN 5 LBS OPENING FORCE AND MUST HAVE A SWEEP ALL DOORS MUST HAVE NO MORE THAN 5 LBS OPENING FORCE AND MUST HAVE A SWEEP NO MORE THAN 5 LBS OPENING FORCE AND MUST HAVE A SWEEP  THAN 5 LBS OPENING FORCE AND MUST HAVE A SWEEP PERIOD OF 3 SECONDS TO CLOSE FROM 70°    OPEN TO 3" FROM THE LATCH. W.	CARBONATOR BACK-FLOW PREVENTOR DRAIN LINE OUTLET SHALL BE TO NEW FLOOR SINK CARBONATOR BACK-FLOW PREVENTOR DRAIN LINE OUTLET SHALL BE TO NEW FLOOR SINK PROVIDED FOR THIS AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FRAMED WALL PREFABRICATED COOLER/FREEZER WALL 2x6 STUDS @ 16"o.c. 2x6 STUDS @ 16"o.c. W/ THERMAL INSULATION 2x4 STUDS @ 16"o.c. 2x4 STUDS @ 16"o.c. W/ SOUND BATT INSULATION DOOR SYMBOL, REFER TO SHEET A5.1 FOR DETAILS WINDOW SYMBOL, REFER TO SHEET A5.1 FOR DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALES - 1,837 S.F. (1837/60)			= 31 = 31 OFFICE - 68 S.F. (68/100)				=  1 =  1 RESTROOMS - 112 S.F. (EXEMPT)			=  0  =  0  PREP/UTILITY - 403 S.F. (403/200)		=  3 =  3 COOLER/FREEZER - 533 S.F. (533/300)		=  2 =  2 TOTAL (NET): 2,953 S.F.					= 37 OCCUPANTS = 37 OCCUPANTS TOTAL (GROSS): 3,054 S.F. *COOLER IS A NON OCCUPIABLE SPACE PER SECTION 202 DEFINITION OF AN OCCUPIABLE SPACE.  EXITS REQUIRED: 2 EXITS PROVIDED: 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLAZED PORCELAIN TILE REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERAMIC SANITARY COVE BASE REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON SHEET A2.3 - A2.6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FASCIA PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 1/2" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A2.3 & A2.4. SOFFIT PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED PLYWOOD AND OPEN WEB TRUSSES. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL TILE OVER 5/8"  5/8" WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A2.6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON SHEET A2.6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTEGRAL METAL COVE BASE WITH 3/8" RADIUS, BY COOLER MFR. REFER TO SPECIFICATION ON Q1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR CONCRETE SEALER REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL TILE AND FRP OVER 5/8" WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A2.5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO-GALVALUM. BY COOLER MFR. REFER TO SPECIFICATION ON Q1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SMOOTH FINISH 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD. REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHABLE SUSPENDED WHITE CEILING TILE REFER TO CALLOUT ON A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO-GALVALUM. BY COOLER MFR. REFER TO CALLOUT ON Q1.2 AND A1.3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUARRY TILE  REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUARRY SANITARY COVE BASE. REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCELAIN COVE BASE REFER TO FINISH CALLOUT ON A1.2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM ENTRANCE AND STOREFRONT SYSTEM, REFER TO SHEET A5.1 & SPECIFICATION. INSTALL 6"  PVC CHASE FOR FOUNTAIN SYRUP LINES.FLOOR RECEPTACLES, REFER TO ELECTRICAL PLANS. ROOF LADDER PER DETAIL 7/A4.1 1" MINIMUM AIR GAP AT PREFABRICATED COOLER/FREEZER DEPRESSED SLAB, REFER TO SLAB PLAN. LINE OF CANOPY ABOVE DOUBLE SWING METAL GATE PROVIDED BY SHOPCO THRESHOLD, REFER TO DOOR SCHEDULE ON SHEET A5.1 LINE OF SOFFIT ABOVE LINE OF CLERESTORY CEILING OPENING, REFER TO WINDOW SCHEDULE ON SHEET A5.1 WALL SIGNS TRANSITION STRIP STEEL COLUMNS UNDER WINDOW SILL FOR STOREFRONT PROTECTION, REFER TO STRUCTURAL PLANS FOR SIZE AND LOCATION. ROOF DRAIN AND OVERFLOW, REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR CONTINUATION CANOPY DOWNSPOUT, REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR CONTINUATION FUTURE SOLAR EQUIPMENT CO2 SAFETY MONITORING EQUIPMENT, REFER TO SHEETS Q1.1 AND Q2.1 FOR LOCATION AND SPECIFICATION RECESSED STAINLESS STEEL FILL BOX WITH QUICK-DISCONNECT MALE FILL AND VENT HOSE CONNECTION FOR CO2 TANK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.O.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. OF 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. OF 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
53"

AutoCAD SHX Text
53"

AutoCAD SHX Text
97"

AutoCAD SHX Text
97"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN SWITCHGEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL/FUELING CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"



THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASHN
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

ROOF
PLAN

A1.4

GENERAL NOTES

KEYED NOTES

ROOFING

ROOF PLAN

ITEM  5A
111 of 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.	REFER TO SPECIFICATION SHEETS A7.3 & A7.4 FOR ROOF SYSTEM, REFER TO SPECIFICATION SHEETS A7.3 & A7.4 FOR ROOF SYSTEM, INCLUDING GUARANTEES, CURBS, FLASHING, AND ECT. B.	REFER TO ROOFING MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS AND REFER TO ROOFING MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS AND DETAILS FOR ROOFING SYSTEM INSTALLATION. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE COMPLETE ROOFING PACKAGE PER MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATIONS. C.	ROOF ASSEMBLY SHALL COMPLY WITH U.L. I-90 AND FM CLASS "B" ROOF ASSEMBLY SHALL COMPLY WITH U.L. I-90 AND FM CLASS "B" RATINGS INCLUDING COPING, FLASHING, PARAPET WALL, AND ROOF SYSTEM. D.	DO NOT STOCKPILE EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS ON THE ROOF DO NOT STOCKPILE EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS ON THE ROOF STRUCTURE, UNLESS APPROVED IN WRITING BY THE ARCHITECT, STRUCTURAL ENGINEER, AND THE TRUSS MANUFACTURER. E.	FOR EQUIPMENT COMPRESSOR & CONDENSER REFER TO EQUIPMENT FOR EQUIPMENT COMPRESSOR & CONDENSER REFER TO EQUIPMENT PLAN ON SHEET Q1.1 AND EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE ON SHEET Q2.1. F.	GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS TO PROVIDE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS TO PROVIDE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION PERIMETER GUARDRAIL TO COMPLY WITH CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS 29 CFT 1926, SUBPART M (OSCA), GUARDRAIL TO BE 42" HEIGHT AND BE ABLE TO WITHSTAND 200 POUNDS AT TOP EDGE. H.	REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS FOR VENT PIPE PENETRATION AND REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS FOR VENT PIPE PENETRATION AND CURB DETAILS. ALL ROOF PENETRATIONS SHALL BE THROUGH THE CURBS, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. I.	PARAPET ADJACENT TO MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT / ROOF ACCESS TO PARAPET ADJACENT TO MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT / ROOF ACCESS TO BE MINIMUM 42" HIGH WHEN WITHIN 10 FEET OF ROOF EDGE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF HATCH PER DETAIL 7/A4.1 ROOF DRAIN AND OVERFLOW, REFER TO PLUMBING PLANS CANT STRIP PER DETAIL 8/A4.1 TAPERED INSULATION CRICKET ROOFTOP UNIT, REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS. CONDENSER, REFER TO EQUIPMENT AND ELECTRICAL PLAN EXHAUST FAN, REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS STEEL CANOPY BELOW, REFER TO SHEET A1.3 FOR DOWNSPOUT LOCATION SATELLITE ON BALLASTED CURB SHOP FORMED PRE-FINISHED METAL COPING, REFER TO DETAIL 1/A4.1 FACE OF EXTERIOR WALL BELOW FACE OF PARAPET WALL METAL LID FLASHING STEEL CANOPY GUTTER, REFER TO SHEET A1.3 FOR DOWNSPOUT LOCATION ROOF JACK, REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS. GAS WATER HEATER FLUE, REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RF-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RF-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RF-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RF-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
RTU-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RTU-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
D11A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D10A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2E

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2C

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
G6C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
D10A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPO ROOFING MEMBRANE WITH PROTECTION BOARD AND RIGID INSULATION. REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS



LIGHTING

CONTROLS

ACCESS

ACCESS BY

QUALIFIED

PERSONNEL

ONLY!

PH.  (704) 364-9029 / 1-800-736-4455 / FAX (704) 367-1215
1132 Pro Am Dr.  Charlotte, NC  28211

Carolina Products, Inc.
CPI

CPI
CAROLINA PRODUCTS, INC.

LIGHTING

CONTROLS

ACCESS

ACCESS BY

QUALIFIED

PERSONNEL

ONLY!

PH.  (704) 364-9029 / 1-800-736-4455 / FAX (704) 367-1215
1132 Pro Am Dr.  Charlotte, NC  28211

Carolina Products, Inc.
CPI

CPI
CAROLINA PRODUCTS, INC.

THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASHN
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

COLOR
ELEVATIONS

A2.1

FRONT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATION RIGHT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

GENERAL NOTES

KEYED NOTES

COLOR LEGEND

COLOR LEGEND

MATERIAL LEGEND

MATERIAL LEGEND

ITEM  5A
112 of 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT MORE THAN SIX MAIN DISCONNECTING MEANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITABLE FOR USE AS SERVICE EQUIPMENT WHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERIAL #

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOLTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION FLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEUTRAL FLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIC RATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARE PROVIDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT MORE THAN SIX MAIN DISCONNECTING MEANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITABLE FOR USE AS SERVICE EQUIPMENT WHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERIAL #

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOLTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION FLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEUTRAL FLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIC RATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARE PROVIDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY/WINDOW HEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
+10'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
+24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW SILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
+3'-2" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
+10'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.	REVEAL LOCATIONS IN FINISH SYSTEM SHOWN ARE TO ALIGN AS 	REVEAL LOCATIONS IN FINISH SYSTEM SHOWN ARE TO ALIGN AS 	CLOSELY AS POSSIBLE TO ELEVATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. TOWER BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+19'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CLERESTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
+21'-10" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-69, "WHITE OPULENCE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, 2121-30, "PEWTER", HIGH GLOSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM ENTRANCE AND STOREFRONT SYSTEM, REFER TO SHEET A5.1 & SPECIFICATION. STEEL AWNING ROD AND CLEVIS OVERFLOW DRAIN WALL POSTER INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED SURFACE MOUNTED WALL SIGN WALL MOUNTED LED FIXTURE WALL MOUNTED SIGN LIGHTING ROOFTOP EQUIPMENT BEYOND MAIN SWITCHGEAR CO2 FILL/VENT BOX, VERIFY LOCATION PRIOR TO INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" CEMENT PLASTER, INSTALLED PER MFG. SPECIFICATIONS; TEXTURE: FINE SAND FINISH ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL, PANTONE PMS 166c, "ORANGE" ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL, ALUCOBOND, "RUSTIC WALNUT" CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM STEEL AWNING PANELIZED STONE VENEER MFR: CORONADO,  SERIES: PRO-LEDGE COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLERESTORY DESIGNER NOTE: SUN EXPOSURE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED FOR WINDOW USE AT CLERESTORY. IN TEMPERATE CLIMATE AVOID SOUTH AND WEST EXPOSURE OR ADD SHADING OR LOW E GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-69, "WHITE OPULENCE" BENJAMIN MOORE, 2121-30, "PEWTER", HIGH GLOSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL, PANTONE PMS 166c, "ORANGE" ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL,  ALUCOBOND, "RUSTIC WALNUT" PANELIZED STONE VENEER  MFR: CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE



carwash

e n t r a n c e

carwash

e n t r a n c e

carwash

e x i t

carwash

e x i t

carwashcarwash

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASHN
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

CAR WASH
COLOR ELEVATIONS

CWA2.1

RIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATION

GENERAL NOTES

KEYED NOTES

COLOR LEGEND

FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

OPTIONAL

MATERIAL LEGEND

ITEM  5A
113 of 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.	REVEAL LOCATIONS IN FINISH SYSTEM SHOWN ARE TO ALIGN AS 	REVEAL LOCATIONS IN FINISH SYSTEM SHOWN ARE TO ALIGN AS 	CLOSELY AS POSSIBLE TO ELEVATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" REVEAL VINYL LETTERS APPLIED TO ACM VINYL DECAL APPLIED TO ACM "NO ENTRY" SIGN OVERHEAD CLEARANCE BAR WALL MOUNTED LED FIXTURE 6" ROUND CONCRETE FILLED BOLLARD, REFER TO DETAIL 5/CWA4.2 METAL DOOR & FRAME INSTRUCTIONAL SIGN PANEL VINYL ROLL UP DOOR, COLOR: BEIGE, REFER TO SHEET CWQ1.1 WASH BAY WINDOWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
+15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CW4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CW4

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP YELLOW - BENJAMIN MOORE, 2022-10, "YELLOW"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP PEARL - BENJAMIN MOORE,  OC-8, "ELEPHANT TUSK"

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
P-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT RM. F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT RM. F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT RM. F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIPMENT RM. F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-69, "WHITE OPULENCE"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENJAMIN MOORE, 2121-30, "PEWTER", HIGH GLOSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
78" CEMENT PLASTER, INSTALLED PER MFG. SPECIFICATIONS; TEXTURE: FINE SAND FINISH ALUMINUM COMPOSITE MATERIAL PANELIZED STONE VENEER (PROTOTYPE OPTION) MFR:	CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE



C-01

C-11

C-01

C-14
C-01

C-14
C-01

C-15

C-11

C-01

C-14
C-01

C-15

C-01

BUILDING SIDE

C-15

C-01

C-11

C-01

C-14
C-01

C-15

STREET SIDE
S AUBURN ST

BUILDING SIDE STREET SIDE
S AUBURN ST

STONE

STONE

STONE

ELEVATIONS
CANOPY

CA-2

THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASH

FACING BUILDING

EXTERIOR PAINTS                             
C-01

C-11

C-14

C-15

FACING S AUBURN ST

STONE

ITEM  5A
114 of 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER NUMBERING SYSTEM BY G.C, APPROVED MANUFACTURER IS DURACOLOR. INSTALL 10'-6" FROM SLAB TO BOTTOM OF PLACARD. TYPICAL OF 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY ACM FASCIA PANEL W/15" PRINTED BULLNOSE DECAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY CLEARANCE SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: NUMBERS ONLY SHOWN FACING THE STORE. OTHER SIDE TO BE BLANK. DISPENSERS CONTINUE TO HAVE THE DISPENSER NUMBERS  ON FACE OF DISPENSER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER NUMBERING SYSTEM BY G.C, APPROVED MANUFACTURER IS DURACOLOR. INSTALL 10'-6" FROM SLAB TO BOTTOM OF PLACARD. TYPICAL OF 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"H ALUMINUM ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS (TYP. OF 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIA. ILLUMINATED LOGO W/ 44" DIA. DISC (TYP. OF 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY UNDERSIDE TO  BE PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY FASCIA TO BE FINISHED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIA. ILLUMINATED LOGO W/ 44" DIA. DISC (TYP. OF 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT BUMPER POST ON TOP 1/3 AND  ON BOTTOM 2/3 (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT BUMPER POST ON TOP 1/3 AND  ON BOTTOM 2/3 (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
+16'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+18'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLUMINATED DISPENSER VALANCE, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER NUMBERING SYSTEM BY G.C, APPROVED MANUFACTURER IS DURACOLOR. INSTALL 10'-6" FROM SLAB TO BOTTOM OF PLACARD. TYPICAL OF 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY UNDERSIDE TO  BE PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY FASCIA TO BE FINISHED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT BUMPER POST ON TOP 1/3 AND  ON BOTTOM 2/3 (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLUMINATED DISPENSER VALANCE, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLUMINATED DISPENSER VALANCE, TYP. OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY UNDERSIDE TO  BE PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY FASCIA TO BE FINISHED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT BUMPER POST ON TOP 1/3 AND  ON BOTTOM 2/3 (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY CLEARANCE SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY ACM FASCIA PANEL W/15" PRINTED BULLNOSE DECAL ON ALL SIDES UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"H ALUMINUM ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS (TYP. OF 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY ACM FASCIA  PANEL W/15" PRINTED BULLNOSE DECAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIA. ILLUMINATED LOGO W/ 44" DIA. DISC (TYP. OF 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
+16'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+18'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+16'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+18'-6" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
File:P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\18400 CA-2.dwg  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:54 AM  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\18400 CA-2.dwg  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:54 AM  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:54 AM  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----8/16/2018 11:54 AM  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Scale:1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----1'-0" = 1'-0"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----    DJEDEL  Xref: ----DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Xref: --------

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: BP PEARL - ICI PAINTS, ORDER #A0083, SPECIFY   	  #38YY 72/117, "INDIAN LEGEND"   #38YY 72/117, "INDIAN LEGEND" - SHERWIN WILLIAMS, SW6119, "ANTIQUE WHITE" - BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-8, "ELEPHANT TUSK" COLOR: HIGH HIDING WHITE - ICI PAINTS, ORDER #A0128, SPECIFY       #50GY 83/010, "WHITE WING" - SHERWIN WILLIAMS, SW7006, "EXTRA WHITE" - BENJAMIN MOORE, OC-67, "ICE MIST" COLOR: BP YELLOW - ICI PAINTS, ORDER #A0775 SPECIFY       #37YY 61/867, "OMEGA YELLOW" - SHERWIN WILLIAMS, SW6903, "CHEERFUL" - BENJAMIN MOORE, 2022-10, "YELLOW" COLOR: BP WARM GREY - ICI PAINTS, ORDER #A1860, SPECIFY   #40YY 25/074, "GREY MOUNTAIN" - SHERWIN WILLIAMS, SW7053, "ADAPTIVE SHADE" - BENJAMIN MOORE, 2137-40, "DESERT TWILIGHT" PANELIZED STONE VENEER  MFR:	CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE  CORONADO, SERIES: PRO-LEDGE  MFS:	COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"COLOR: "ALASKAN SUNSET"



B

D

SIGN PLAN

SNA-1

F CANOPY DECAL ON ACM FASCIA
20" ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS

D
W/ 36" ILLUMINATED SPARK LOGO

C

E MAIN IDENTIFICATION/PRICE SIGN

B POP SIGN - 8.33 S.F.

A AM/PM SIGNAGE

G FUEL DISPENSER GRAPHICS

THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASH

1 PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION

SIGN SITE PLAN

SOUTH CANOPY ELEVATION3

EAST CANOPY ELEVATION 2

ITEM  5A
115 of 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"x40" POP SIGN (TYP. OF 6), REFER TO DETAIL "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED AM/PM signage CABINET, REFER TO DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"H ALUMINUM CHANNEL LETTERS W/ LED INTERNAL ILLUMINATION, REFER TO DETAIL C,  TYP.	OF 2OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIA. LED INTERNAL ILLUMINATED LOGO W/ 44" DIA. DISC, REFER TO DETAIL D, TYP. OF 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER NUMBERING SYSTEM BY G.C, APPROVED MANUFACTURER IS DURACOLOR. INSTALL 10'-6" FROM SLAB TO BOTTOM OF PLACARD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: NUMBERS ONLY SHOWN FACING THE STORE. OTHER SIDE TO BE BLANK. DISPENSERS CONTINUE TO HAVE THE DISPENSER NUMBERS  ON FACE OF DISPENSER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S E L F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISPENSER, TYP.	OF 6OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLUMINATED DISPENSER VALANCE, TYP.	OF 6OF 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY ACM FASCIA PANEL W/15" PRINTED BULLNOSE DECAL W/ 28mm BLUE L.E.D., REFER TO DETAIL F

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SMOKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN ENGINE OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL PREM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLEADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN AIR/ VAN POOL/EV

AutoCAD SHX Text
File:P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\Signage\18400 SNA-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:47 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\Signage\18400 SNA-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:47 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Date/Time:8/16/2018 11:47 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----8/16/2018 11:47 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----    DJEDEL  Xref: ----DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Xref: --------

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.21" VINYL GRAPHIC SILK-SCREENED DIMENSIONAL BULLNOSE WITH SHADOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20" ILLUMINATED ALUMINUM CHANNELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" DIAMETER ILLUMINATED ARCO SPARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.1 S.F. TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED RED ARCO SPARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPAQUE WHITE PANEL, TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED WHITE "ARCO" LETTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED WHITE LETTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED GREEN "DIESEL" PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LED PRICE PANEL, TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED WHITE "ampm" PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE SIGNAGE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
QTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AM/PM SIGNAGE CABINET (32.1 sf ea.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POP SIGN (8.33 sf)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
 32.1 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.0 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.3 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY SIGN (SPARK) (7.1 sf ea.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY "ARCO" CHANNEL LETTERS (10 sf ea.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
 20.0 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN I.D. SIGN/PRICE SIGN (TWO FACES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
 11.3 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN CARWASH SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6.9 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6.9 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AM/PM C-STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S AUBURN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 MPD CANOPY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENANT



c a r w a s hc a r w a s h

carwash

e x i t

carwash

e x i t

carwash

e n t r a n c e

carwash

e n t r a n c e

Clearance X'X"

carwashcarwash

carwash

entrance

carwash

entrance

carwash

exi t

carwash

exi t

B

B

D

SIGN PLAN

SNA-2

THIS SHEET IS

INFORMATION
ONLY

FOR

BP WEST COAST PRODUCTS, LLC

ARCO

bp

S AUBURN STREET
@ I-80 EXIT 135

COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

FACILITY #TBD

18400
-
-

ARCO NTI

3000 am/pm
FUEL CANOPY w/ 6 MPD's

24'x48' CAR WASH

NORTH CARWASH ELEVATION 1

EAST CARWASH ELEVATION 3

WEST CARWASH ELEVATION 2

L CAR WASH OVERHEIGHT WARNING BAR AND SIGN

SOUTH CARWASH SIGN H

EAST CARWASH SIGN J WEST CARWASH SIGN K

SIGN SITE PLAN

ITEM  5A
116 of 118

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
K-1729

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESAPEAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C_LAVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITREOUS CHINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PARKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIESEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNL PREM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLEADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN AIR/ VAN POOL/EV

AutoCAD SHX Text
File:P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\Signage\18400 SNA-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:10 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----P:\18000s\18400\preliminary\Architecture\Signage\18400 SNA-1.dwg  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:10 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Date/Time:8/15/2018 11:10 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----8/15/2018 11:10 AM  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Scale:2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----2'-8"    DJEDEL  Xref: ----    DJEDEL  Xref: ----DJEDEL  Xref: ----  Xref: --------

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERSION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BP REPM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE PM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLIANCE Z&DM:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEERING, LAND PLANNING,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYING, ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
18215 72ND AVENUE SOUTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-6222  

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENT, WA 98032

AutoCAD SHX Text
(425)251-8782 FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RED DIE CUT SIGN SUPPLIED BY RYKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEARANCE HANGING SIGN SUPPLIED BY RYKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTABLE HEIGHT ALUMINUM POST SUPPLIED BY RYKO, COLOR: BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM BASE PLATE COVER SUPPLIED BY RYKO, COLOR: BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL CURVED ALUMINUM BEAM SUPPLIED BY RYKO, COLOR: BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  3/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/2"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AM/PM C-STORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S AUBURN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 MPD CANOPY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARWASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



Resolution 69-2018 Arco Station Design Review Page 1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 69-2018 
 

APPROVING THE DESGN REVIEW FOR THE ARCO SERVICE 
STATION AT THE MAIDU VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT  

 

WHEREAS, City of Colfax received an application for design review to develop an 
ARCO service station with convenience mart and car wash to be located on Lot 2 of the 
Maidu Village Development Project, and 

 
WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing has been given at the time and in the manner 

required by State Law and City Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project as approved allows beneficial use to be made of the site for 

development, preserves and accentuates the natural features of the property, and 
provides adequate drainage for the project; and 

  
WHEREAS, the project site design as approved provides access, vehicle parking, 

loading areas, landscaping and irrigation and lighting which results in a safe, efficient, 
and harmonious development and which is consistent with the applicable goals, policies 
and objectives set forth in the general plan and the design guidelines established for the 
CH zone district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the design of the public services, as approved, including, but not 

limited to trash enclosures and service equipment are located so as not to detract from 
the appearance of the site, and are screened appropriately and effectively using 
construction materials, colors and landscaping that are harmonious with the site and the 
building designs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the use and design of the proposed development conforms with the 

requirements of the relevant planned development zone district and the requirements of 
the zoning ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use or 
development is to be compatible with and will not adversely affect or be materially 
detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in the area, 
and will not be detrimental or injurious to public or private property or improvements; 
and  

WHEREAS, the proposed architecture, site design, and landscape are suitable for 
the purposes of the building and the site and will enhance the character of the 
neighborhood and community; and  

ITEM  5A
117 of 118



Resolution 69-2018 Arco Station Design Review Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the City prepared an Initial Study consistent with California 

Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") Guidelines and determined that a Mitigated Negative 

Declaration ("MND") was required in order to analyze the potential for significant impacts 

of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the MND and other environmental documents for the Project that 

constitute the record of proceedings for the Project are in the custodial location and 

available for review during normal business hours in the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 

33 S. Main Street,  Colfax, CA 95713. 

WHEREAS, and the CEQA Mitigations have been included in conjunction with the 

conditions of approval regarding any Project approval; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered the staff report, any and 

all written comments received during the public review process and any and all oral and 

written comments submitted at the public hearing; and  

WHEREAS, the conditions of approval have been prepared for the project as 

outlined in Exhibit “A” attached to this resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council finds that the Project 

qualifies for a Mitigated Negative Declaration and that the City Council adopt the Project 

Mitigated Negative Declaration, and approve the Design Review for the ARCO Service 

Station with Convenience Mart and Car Wash located on Lot 2 of the Maidu Village 

Development Project. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED on this 
14th day of November, 2018, by the following roll-call vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

______________________________  
         Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  5A
118 of 118



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED By: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: September 5, 2018 

SUBJECT: Mitigation Impact Fees 
 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $ FROM FUND: N/A 

 

This Public Hearing was originally posted for October 24, 2018. On October 18, 2018 the Public Hearing 
was continued to November 14, 2018. 
RECOMMENDED  ACTION: Conduct a public hearing, review the annual report, consider public and staff 
comments, accept report and adopt Resolution 70-2018 accepting and approving the Annual AB 1600 
Mitigation Fee Report and making findings pursuant to Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 and the 
Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code §66000 Et Seq) 

SUMMARY: 
The State of California, through the enactment of Government Code Section 66000 et seq. (the “Mitigation Fee 
Act”), conferred upon local government units authority to adopt fees imposed on a broad class of projects and 
fees imposed on specific projects for the purpose of defraying all or a portion of the cost of public facilities 
related to the development project.  The City of Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 established the local 
authority for imposing Mitigation Impact Fees as allowed by the Mitigation Fee Act.  
 

Colfax Municipal Code §3.56.120B requires the City to complete an annual AB1600 Mitigation report and 
Council to review the annual report at a noticed public hearing.  At the close of the hearing, the Council must 
determine whether the mitigation impact fee amounts continue to be reasonably related to the impact of 
development and whether the described public facilities are still needed.  The Council is authorized to revise the 
mitigation impact fees to include additional projects not previously foreseen as being needed. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS: 
The City maintains separate fund accounts for each mitigation fee type. The City has established the following 
Mitigation Impact Fees: 
 

1. Roads – Fund 210 
2. Drainage – Fund 211 
3. Trails – Fund 212 
4. Parks and Recreation – Fund 213 
5. City Buildings – Fund 214 
6. City Vehicles – Fund 215 
7. Downtown Parking – Fund 217 
8. Fire Construction Fees – Fund 342 
9. Recreation Construction Fees – Fund 343 

ITEM  5B
1 of 5



2 

 

 
These funds earn and accumulate interest and all expenditures from these funds have been for the purpose for 
which the fees were collected.  A detailed financial analysis by fund and a schedule of mitigation fees are 
attached as part of this report. 
 
Mitigation Fees are accounted for using the accounting method known as FIFO (first in, first out), which means 
the first revenue received is assumed to be the first spent.  State law and the Colfax Municipal Code require the 
City to prepare an annual report for each fund established to account for Mitigation Impact Fees.  The report 
must include (1) A brief description of the type of fee in the account or fund (Government Code 
§66006(b)(1)(A)) , (2)  the amount of the fee (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(B)),  (3) the beginning and ending 
balance of the account or fund (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(C)), (4) the amount of the fees collected and 
the interest earned (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(D)), (5)  an identification of each public improvement on 
which fees were expended and the amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total 
percentage of the cost of the public improvement that was funded with the fees (Government Code 
§66006(b)(1)(E)), (6) an identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public 
improvement will commence if the City determines that sufficient funds have been collected to complete 
financing on an incomplete public improvement (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(F)), (7) a description of each 
inter-fund transfer or loan made from the account or fund, including the public improvement on which the 
transferred or loaned fees will be expended, and, in the case of an inter-fund loan, the date on which the loan 
will be repaid, and the rate of interest that the account or fund will receive on the loan (Government Code 
§66006(b)(1)(G)) and (8) the amount of refunds made and allocations made if the cost of making a refund 
exceeds the amount to be refunded. 
 
Public Contact 
This report was available at City Hall counter by:  October 11, 2018 
Notice of Public Hearing was published: Auburn Journal – October 11, 2018 
 
CONCLUSION:  
 
Staff recommends that Council reviews and accepts the report. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Resolution 70-2018 
2. Annual AB1600 Report 
3. Mitigation Fee Schedule 
 
The 2006 Mitigation Fee Study and 2006 Mitigation Fee – Council minutes are available at City Hall. 

ITEM  5B
2 of 5



Resolution __-2018 Mitigation Impact Fees Page 1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 70-2018 
 

ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE ANNUAL MITIGATION FEE REPORT AND 
MAKING FINDINGS PURSUANT TO COLFAX MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 3.56 

AND THE MITIGATION FEE ACT (GOVERNMENT CODE §66000ET SEQ) 

 
 WHEREAS, in 1987 the California Legislature adopted the Mitigation Fee Act as 
Government Code §§66000 et seq (the “Mitigation Fee Act”) whereby it authorized cities to 
impose fees in connection with the approval of development projects for the purpose of 
defraying all or a portion of the cost of public facilities related to the development project 
(“Mitigation Impact Fees”); and  
 

 WHEREAS, in 2007 the City Council of the City of Colfax adopted Ordinance 488 
pursuant to the authority of the Mitigation Fee Act; and  
 

 WHEREAS, Colfax received Mitigation Impact Fees from various developers 
pursuant to Ordinance 488 and deposited those fees into separate funds as required by 
law; and  
 

 WHEREAS, the Mitigation Fee Act and Colfax Ordinance require the preparation of a 
report identifying the balance of Mitigation Impact Fees in the various funds established for 
their deposit, the facilities constructed and the facilities to be constructed (the “Mitigation 
Fee Report”); and  
 

 WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Director prepared the Mitigation Fee Report, a copy of 
which is attached to this Resolution; and  
 

 WHEREAS, on November 14, 2018, pursuant to notice duly published and posted, 
the Colfax City Council opened a public hearing for the purpose of (1) reviewing the 
Mitigation Fee Report and the Mitigation Impact Fees and determining whether the 
Mitigation Impact Fee amounts continue to be reasonably related to the impact of 
development, (2) determining whether the described facilities are still needed, (3) 
determining whether the Mitigation Impact Fees should be revised to include additional 
projects not previously foreseen as being needed and (4) making other findings required 
by law; and  
 

 WHEREAS, on November 14, 2018, the public hearing was closed after all public 
comments were received. 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  5B
3 of 5



Resolution __-2018 Mitigation Impact Fees Page 2 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 
follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are incorporated 
into this Resolution by this reference. 

 

2.  Based upon all of the evidence in the record before it and the comments received 
from the public, the Colfax City Council hereby finds and determines: 
a. The purpose to which each Mitigation Impact Fee identified in the Mitigation 

Fee Report is adequately identified in Colfax Municipal Code §3.56.050 and 
the Major Projects and Mitigation Fee Study dated August 14, 2006, as 
amended. 

b. It has been adequately demonstrated that there continues to be a reasonable 
relationship between each Mitigation Impact Fee and the purpose for which 
it is charged. 

c. To the extent any improvements to be funded by Mitigation Impact Fees 
remain incomplete, the sources and amount of funding are identified in the 
Major Projects and Mitigation Fee Study dated August 14, 2006 as amended 
and include without limitation future development projects in Colfax. 

d. The approximate dates on which funding for all projects to be funded by 
Mitigation Impact Fees will be deposited into the appropriate Mitigation 
Impact Fee account or fund is presently unknown because development 
within the City is unpredictable but is estimated to be at approximately the 
same time as future development occurs. 

e. The amounts of the Mitigation Impact Fees continue to be reasonably related 
to the impact of development. 

f. The public facilities described in the Major Projects and Mitigation Fee Study 
dated August 14, 2006, as amended, and as provided in Colfax Municipal 
Code §3.56.050 are still needed. 

 

3. The Mitigation Fee Report is hereby approved 
 

 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of  
November 2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 

Ayes:    
Noes:    
Absent:   
Abstain:   

 ___________________________________ 
      Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  5B
4 of 5



Roads Drainage Trails Parks & Rec City Building City Vehicle
Downtown 
Parking

Recreation 
Construction

Fire 
Construction Total

210 211 212 213 214 215 217 342 343
Beginning Balance 07/01/17 25,215$           3,064$             42,931$          98,313$          ‐$                 ‐$                  26,759$          2,441$             2,441$             201,164$       

REVENUE
Fees Collected ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                        
Interest Earnings 378                   47                      663                   1,277                ‐                         ‐                         396                   38                      38                      2,837               
Other Revenue  ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                        
Transfers in ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                        
  378                   47                      663                   1,277                ‐                         ‐                         396                   38                      38                      2,837               
EXPENDITURES
Project  Expenditures 25,593              ‐                         ‐                         31,165              ‐                         ‐                         5,114                ‐                         ‐                         61,872             
Refunds ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                        
Transfers Out ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                        

25,593              ‐                         ‐                         31,165              ‐                         ‐                         5,114                ‐                         ‐                         61,872             

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures (25,215)            47                      663                   (29,888)            ‐                         ‐                         (4,718)               38                      38                      (59,035)           

Ending Balance at 06/30/18 ‐$                  3,111$             43,594$          68,425$          ‐$                 ‐$                  22,041$          2,479$             2,479$             142,129$       

Roads Drainage Trails Parks & Rec City Building City Vehicle
Downtown 
Parking

Recreation 
Construction

Fire 
Construction Total

210 211 212 213 214 215 217 342 343
Project:   Economic Revitalization  1,365$              1,365$             100%
Project:  Roundabout 24,228$           ‐$                  24,228$          1%
Project:  ADA 2018 Improvements ‐$                 5,114$             5,114$             75%
Project:  Park Shade Structure 14,263$          14,263$          75%
Project:  Caboose Improvements 16,902$          16,902$          100%
Project   __________________________ ‐$                

‐$                
Total Expenditures by Project 25,593$           ‐$                 ‐$                 31,165$          ‐$                 ‐$                  5,114$             ‐$                 ‐$                 61,872$         

Percentage 
Funded with 

Mitigation Fees

Analysis of Change in Fund Balance

Expenditures by Project

City of Colfax
Annual Report on Mitigation Fees Per Government Code 66000

AB1600 Statement ‐ Fiscal Year 2017‐2018

ITEM  5B
5 of 5



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, City Planner 

DATE: October 29, 2018 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Site Plan Review and Design Review to develop Whitcomb Avenue Site 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Conduct a public hearing, discuss, and consider adopting Resolution No. 71-2018 
approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the Application (DRSP-2017-002) Site Plan Review and Design 
Review for the Whitcomb Avenue property (APN 100-230-013) with an office/shop building and outdoor RV and 
boat self-storage  operation. 

 

PROJECT NOTICE  
This hearing has been noticed in accordance with the requirements of California Planning and Zoning Law, Title 17, 
Chapter 65000, Government Code, as amended.  
 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Project Title:  Whitcomb Avenue Industrial Building and Outdoor Self Storage  
Applicant/Owner: Gerry LeBudde, Hydros Engineering 
Location  End of Whitcomb Avenue adjacent to 158 Whitcomb Avenue 
Land Use (existing) Vacant, areas of the parcel have been recently disked to remove wild fire fuel, there is an 

existing driveway easement across the uphill property to access the property to west    
Surrounding Uses: 

North:  Whitcomb Avenue, vacant parcels 
South:  Mink Creek Subdivision 
East:   158 Whitcomb Avenue, Office/Industrial Space 
West:  Maintenance yard for construction business (Cunningham Excavation) 

Assessor Parcel No: 100-230-013 
Zoning District:  I - Industrial  
General Plan:  I - Industrial 
 

SURROUNDING LAND USES AND SETTING:     
The three-acre site is located at the end of Whitcomb Street, off the cul-de-sac. The site is sloped and covered with 
pines and other trees and shrubs. A portion of the site has been lightly cleared and grubbed for weed abatement/fire 
protection. 
 
Surrounding uses include the Mink Creek subdivision to the south (approximately seven residential lots back up to 
the project site; a maintenance yard for heavy equipment to the west; the currently vacant industrial buildings at 158 
Whitcomb Avenue to the east, and across Whitcomb Avenue to the north is vacant industrial land that is also part of 
the Whitcomb Avenue Industrial Park. 
 

ITEM  5C
1 of 74



2 

 

 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 

The project is proposed to be built in two phases.  
 

 Phase 1 includes development of an office building, shop, and corporation yard for a general engineering firm 
(Hydros Engineering). With this phase, the project would include an approximately 2,100 square foot 
modular office building along with a 2,000 square foot shop.  This development will occur on the upper 
portion of the parcel. Phase 1 also includes the development of a 1.5-acre self-storage yard for outdoor 
storage of boats and RVs. 
 

 Phase 2 would occur three to five years after phase 1 and would expand the shop building to 6,000 square 
feet with 2,500 square feet of office space and would remove the modular office building. 

 

PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
 
PHASE 1 
Office and shop development 
The office building will be located on the upper portion of the site. It will be a 2100 sq. ft. modular structure located 
at the front of the parcel closest to the cul-de-sac. The shop building will be a 2,000 sq. ft. modular steel building 
similar to the prototype building illustrated in Attachment  5a (Elevation of modular building) only smaller. As noted 
in the applicant’s narrative, the proposed modular shop building is temporary and will be replaced in five to six years 
with the permanent 6,000 square foot (50’ x 120’) building.  The project includes 20 parking spaces as illustrated on 
the site plan. Per the zoning code, 10 to 12 spaces would be required; therefore, the project is in compliance with 
parking requirements, even at full buildout. 
 
The office/shop site is proposed to be gated and fenced with six-foot-high chain link and barbed wire for security. 
Staff recommends that vinyl clad with slats for that portion of fencing adjacent to the residential neighborhood be 
used. Also, because of the residential neighbors, a condition (no. 43) has been included prohibiting roll-up truck 
doors on the south elevation of the building facing the neighboring homes and also a condition (no. 44) requiring a 
landscaping plan with evergreen trees and other screening plantings be required. 
 
RV and Boat Self Storage 
The lower area of the site (closer to 158 Whitcomb Avenue) will be used as a boat and RV self-storage lot. This will be 
constructed with Phase 1. There will be some tree removal and grading to create the pads for development of 
storage parking area. There will be no structures and the 1.5-acre area will accommodate approximately 40 
boats/RVs on site. The area will be fenced similar to the office/shop space but will also include a solid concrete block 
wall adjacent to the property line shared with the neighboring residential neighborhood. 
 
The Boat/RV storage would be operated as a self-service facility with access granted through an automatic gate with 
card reader or code to identify the persons accessing the facility. The proposed hours of operation are consistent 
with City Code: 7:00am – 7:00pm Monday through Friday and 8:00 am – 8:00 pm weekends and holidays. Video 
cameras will be installed along the perimeter fencing and a minimum 20-foot landscape buffer will be provided 
between the storage area and the neighboring residential properties as required by Code.  
 
PHASE 2 
As discussed above, Phase 2 of the project involves removing the temporary modular building and replacing with an 
expanded shop office storage building not to exceed 6,000 square feet in size. With this approval, Phase 2, if in 
substantial compliance with this report and the attached conditions of approval would not require additional 
entitlements or review by the City Council and could be approved at the staff level. 
 

ITEM  5C
2 of 74



3 

 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 
 
An Initial Study was prepared to determine if the project may have a significant adverse effect on the environment.  
Special studies, assessments and/or documents were prepared or utilized for cultural resources, traffic, air quality 
and greenhouse gas, noise, and other potential impacts.  On the basis of this Initial Study, staff concluded that the 
proposed project, as conditioned and with mitigation measures, will not have a significant adverse effect on the 
environment, and will not require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report.  Therefore, in accordance with 
CEQA requirements, a Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared (Attachment 4). The required mitigation 
measures have been incorporated into the conditions of approval for the project (condition no.s 53 - 55).  
 

The proposed Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration was circulated for public review for a period of at least 20 
days (October 25, 2018 to November 14, 2018).  No comments were received during the initial 20-day review period.  
The Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration is attached to the report (Attachment 3) but due to the large size 
and number of pages, the complete document with appendices and special studies is available at City Hall and on the 
City’s website at www.colfax-ca.gov. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends City Council adopt the attached Resolution to:  1- Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration; 2– 
Approve the Site Plan and Design Review to develop the 3.0 acres site with an office/shop building and an outdoor 
self-storage (RV and Boat) operation phases as described above. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No 71-2018  
2. Location Map 
3. Conditions of Approval 
4. Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration  
5. Project Exhibits 

a. Site Plan 
b. Preliminary Grading Plan 
c. Elevation of Modular Building (prototype) 

 

 
 
 

ITEM  5C
3 of 74



Resolution 71-2018 Whitcomb Design Review Page 1 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 71-2018 
 

APPROVING THE MITGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION AND 
APPLICATION (DSRP-2017-002) SITE PLAN REVIEW AND DESIGN 

REVIEW FOR THE WHITCOMB AVENUE PROPERTY  
(APN 100-230-013) OFFICE/SHOP AND OUTDOOR RV AND BOAT 

SELF-STORAGE OPERATION 

WHEREAS, City of Colfax received an application for a site plan and design review to 
develop a 3.0 acre parcel with an up to 6,000 square foot modular office/shop building and 
an outdoor self-storage facility for boats and RVs, and 

 
WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing has been given at the time and in the manner 

required by State Law and City Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and considered the staff report, any and 

all written comments received during the public review process and any and all oral and 
written comments submitted at the public hearing and finds: 

 
Design Review Findings: 

 
WHEREAS, the project as approved allows beneficial use to be made of the site for 

development, preserves and accentuates the natural features of the property, such as 
open space, topography, trees, wetlands and water courses, and provides adequate 
drainage for the project; and 

  
WHEREAS, the project site design as approved provides access, vehicle parking, 

loading areas, landscaping and irrigation and lighting which results in a safe, efficient, 
and harmonious development and which is consistent with the applicable goals, policies 
and objectives set forth in the general plan and the design guidelines established for that 
zone district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the building design, including the materials, colors, height, bulk, size 

and relief, and the arrangement of the structures on the site, as approved is harmonious 
with other development and buildings in the vicinity and which is consistent with the 
applicable goals, policies and objectives set forth in the general plan and the design 
guidelines established for that zone district; and  

 
 

ITEM  5C
4 of 74



Resolution 71-2018 Whitcomb Design Review Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, the design of the public services, as approved, including, but not 
limited to trash enclosures and service equipment are located so as not to detract from 
the appearance of the site, and are screened appropriately and effectively using 
construction materials, colors and landscaping that are harmonious with the site and the 
building designs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City prepared an Initial Study consistent with California 

Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") Guidelines and determined that a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration ("MND") was required in order to analyze the potential for significant impacts 
of the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the MND and other environmental documents for the Project that 

constitute the record of proceedings for the Project are in the custodial location and 
available for review during normal business hours in the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 
33 S. Main Street,  Colfax, CA 95713;and 

 
WHEREAS, and the CEQA Mitigations have been included in conjunction with the 

conditions of approval regarding any Project approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the conditions of approval have been prepared for the project as 

outlined in Exhibit “A” attached to this resolution. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council finds that the Project 

qualifies for a Mitigated Negative Declaration and that the City Council adopt  the Project 
Mitigated Negative Declaration, and approve the Design Review and Site Plan Review DRSP 
2017-02 for the development of the Whitcomb Avenue Office Shop and Outdoor Boat/RV 
Self Storage project. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 14th day of November, 2018, by the following roll-

call vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

______________________________  
         Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  5C
5 of 74



Attachment 2 

Location Map 

 

 

 

ITEM  5C
6 of 74



1 

Attachment 3 
Whitcomb Avenue Office Shop and Outdoor Self-storage Project 

DRSP2017-002 
Conditions of Approval 

General Requirements: 

1. If gated, the facility shall provide gate access/entry at all times for Sheriff, Fire, City

inspection utility and other health and safety related vehicles. A gate operating

system to provide for emergency vehicle access shall be installed to the satisfaction

of the Sheriff and Fire Marshall.

2. Permanent signage shall be approved under a separate Sign Permit. Temporary

banners shall only be displayed subject to the provisions of the City’s Sign Ordinance

regulating promotional events and require approval of a sign Permit.

3. All grading and improvements shall be designed in conformance with the City of
Colfax Design and Improvement Standards and all subsequent revisions, the City of
Colfax Hillside Development Guidelines (Resolution No. 29-93), the Placer County
Land Development Manual, latest edition, the Placer County Stormwater
Management Manual, latest edition, the Placer County Water Agency Standard
Specifications, latest edition, and the conditions of approval for this project. Where
conflicts exist, the more stringent requirements, in the opinion of the City Engineer,
shall prevail.

4. No private utilities or structures are allowed within public right-of-way or existing
public utility easements. All construction within public rights-of-way shall meet City
Standards and be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. An encroachment
permit is required for all construction within public rights-of-way.

5. The applicant shall obtain any off-site easements that may be required, or if
unsuccessful, shall reimburse City for costs of condemnation acquisition.

6. The developer shall prepare and submit improvement plans for the construction of all
public improvements including water, sanitary sewer, storm drain facilities, roadway
improvements, curbs, gutters, detached sidewalks, parkway strips, signing, striping
and streetlights.  All design and construction shall conform to the latest edition of the
standards referenced herein.

7. Improvement plans must be approved and signed by the City Engineer prior to the
issuing of an Encroachment Permit, Grading Permit or Building Permit.

8. Plan check and inspection fees shall be paid prior to the signature of the
improvement plans.

9. All broken or sunken curb, gutter and sidewalk along the project frontage shall be
repaired or replaced as part of the improvements for this project.  As well, all
nonconforming pedestrian ramps and driveway approaches shall be brought up to
current accessibility standards.

ITEM  5C
7 of 74



2 

10. Deviations from City Standards and applicable Code requirements shall be approved
by the City Engineer.  The applicant’s engineer shall request all design exceptions in
writing.

11. Project benchmark shall be based on a City approved USGS benchmark.

12. Improvement plans shall be approved by California Department of Forestry and Fire
Protection (“CAL FIRE”) Fire Chief assigned to the City of Colfax.

13. In the event that the City is forced to condemn or acquire off-site property interest in
connection with required off-site improvements, the developer shall fund the cost of
condemnation or acquisition, including but not to be limited to the amounts
necessary to purchase the easement or fee simple interest, document preparation,
and severance or other damages payable to the owners of the land upon which the
improvements are to be located, the actual cost and acquisition and all fees,
including attorney’s fee and/or other expenses necessary to prosecute the
condemnation action, including expert witness and appraisal fees.

14. In the event that the City elects to proceed with acquisition or condemnation
pursuant to Government Code Section 66462.5, the developer shall, within 60 days
of written notice by the City, deposit with the City, as an advance, the full estimated
cost of such acquisition or condemnation.  The developer shall prepare any
easements or deeds necessary for off-site improvements.

15. Parcel maps, improvement plans and other items submitted to the City shall be
delivered in hardcopy formats as well as electronically including drawings in
AutoCAD and in PDF formats.

16. Prior to Improvement Plan approval, Applicant shall provide a letter of permission
from adjacent property owners for any proposed construction that will occur on
adjacent owners’ property such as grading, driveway paving etc.

17. Required Improvement Plan Notes:

a. "Any excess materials shall be considered the property of the contractor
and shall be disposed of away from the job side in accordance with
applicable local, state and federal regulations."

b. "During construction, the Contractor shall be responsible for controlling
noise, odors, dust and debris to minimize impacts on surrounding
properties and roadways.  Contractor shall be responsible that all
construction equipment is equipped with manufacturers approved
muffler’s baffles.  Failure to do so may result in the issuance of an order
to stop work."

c. "In the event that archeological site indicators (chipped chert, obsidian
tools, waste flakes, grinding implements, darkened soil containing bone
fragments and shellfish remains, or ceramics, glass or metal fragments)
are uncovered, the City shall be contacted for an evaluation of the site.
All ground disturbing work shall cease in the vicinity of any discovery until
an archeologist completes an evaluation of significance."

Attachment 3
ITEM  5C

8 of 74



3 
 

d. “Construction work shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on 
Saturdays.  No work is permitted on Sundays.” 

e. "If hazardous materials are encountered during construction, the 
contractor will halt construction immediately, notify the City, and 
implement remediation (as directed by the City or its agent) in accordance 
with any requirements of the Central Regional Water Quality Control 
Board." 

f. "The contractor(s) shall be required to maintain traffic flow on affected 
roadways during non-working hours, and to minimize traffic restriction 
during construction.  The contractor shall be required to follow traffic 
safety measures in accordance with the California Department of 
Transportation (“Caltrans”) California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices (“CA-MUTCD”). The City’s emergency service providers shall be 
notified of proposed construction scheduled by the contractor(s).  The 
project specifications will require that the contractor(s) notify emergency 
service providers in writing at least 24 hours in advance of its proposed 
schedule of work." 

Water Quality: 

18. This project will comply with current National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) requirements, as covered in the State of California General Permit for 
Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activity and subsequent 
modifications, which includes requirements for sampling and analysis during 
construction.  

19. A Notice of Intent will be filed with the State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) prior to the onset of construction. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP), Monitoring Program and Inspection Plan shall be prepared and submitted 
to the City Engineer for approval. The developer will solely be responsible for 
implementation of the SWPPP, Monitoring Program and Inspection Plan during 
construction. 

Grading: 

20. A final design geotechnical report shall be prepared with recommendations pertinent 
to the facilities being proposed, including site and building pad preparation, 
engineered fill, slope construction, foundations, subgrade preparation for pavements 
and slabs-on-grade, asphalt concrete pavements, and retaining walls. 

21. Onsite grading shall be limited to the locations shown on the approved plans or on 
subsequent City approvals. No clearing, grubbing, demolition or grading activities will 
be allowed prior to final approval of the site improvement plans by the City Engineer 
and issuance of a Grading Permit. 

22. A maximum of 6,000 square ft and 200 ft of depth, measured normal to the sidewalk, 
is allowed to sheet flow to the street. If the surface area and depth exceeds these 
criteria, an on-site drainage collection system is required. 

Attachment 3
ITEM  5C

9 of 74



4 
 

23. No grading will be performed during the rainy season, between October 15th and 
April 15th. If improvements will not be completed by October 15, or are scheduled to 
start prior to April 15, a winterization plan must also be prepared in accordance with 
City requirements. One hundred percent (100%) bonding or other security shall be 
provided to assure implementation of the winterization plan. 

24. A California registered Structural or Civil Engineer shall design retaining walls 
exceeding 36” in height. Calculations shall be submitted with the improvement plans 
for approval. 

25. The Geotechnical Engineer shall provide certification to the City that all grading work 
has been placed and compacted in compliance with the improvement plans. 
Certification of each building pad will be submitted to the building official prior to 
issuance of a building permit. 

Storm Drainage: 

26. A detailed hydrology study will be prepared in accordance with the current edition of 
the Placer County Stormwater Management Manual. The proposed project shall not 
increase the rate of storm water runoff leaving the site beyond pre-development 
rates. 

27. Plans and certifications shall demonstrate compliance of all improvements, including 
building pads and finished floor elevations, with the City’s Flood Plain Ordinance, to 
the satisfaction of the Building Official and City Engineer.  Pad elevations shall be 
constructed at a minimum of 1 foot above the 100-year Floodplain as determined by 
the City and certified by the project engineer. 

28. All runoff that leaves the site must meet current Regional Water Quality Control 
Board clean water standards. These may be accomplished with permanent Best 
Management Practices (BMPs), such as clarifiers, infiltration systems, bio-swales, or 
other methods as approved by the City Engineer. Bio-retention and other natural 
elements incorporated into the landscape design for the project will be submitted with 
the improvement plans for approval. The property owner will be responsible for the 
ongoing maintenance of the systems. 

29. Minimum size for storm drain piping will be 12” unless otherwise approved by the 
City Engineer. 

Water Supply: 

30. Provide written evidence of adequate water supply from Placer County Water 
Agency (“PCWA”).  

31. The water system and supply shall be capable of providing the required fire flow as 
determined by a fire protection system engineer or California registered civil engineer 
and subject to the review and approval of the Fire Chief and the City Engineer. 

32. Fire hydrants serving the project shall be located within an approved distance of the 
building, and shall be spaced no more than 300-ft apart along any fire access route. 

Attachment 3
ITEM  5C

10 of 74



5 
 

33. Construction of water facilities is subject to the approval of PCWA, the Colfax Fire 
Chief and the City Engineer. 

Wastewater: 

34. Design of the sanitary sewer connection to the City’s wastewater system is subject to 
the approval of the City Engineer. Each building shall have a separate connection to 
the public system unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. 

35. Provide any required easements for public sewer improvements and for the 
abandonment of any old easements as determined by the City Engineer. 

36. Sewer grades must be designed such that ultimate finished floors are a minimum of 
12” above upstream manhole or clean-out rim elevations.  Inadequate elevation 
differentials or grade on private SS mains and laterals, as determined by the City, 
must be mitigated by either raising finished floor elevation(s) or installing privately 
owned and operated sanitary sewer lift station(s) with grinder/ejector pump(s) on 
site. 

Street Improvements: 

37. The structural section of all on- and off-site road improvements shall be designed 
based upon a geotechnical investigation which provides the basement soils R-value 
and expansion index (if expansive soils are encountered).  A copy of soils report and 
pavement structural section calculations shall also be submitted with the first 
improvement plan check. 

38. Onsite driveways and parking areas shall be concrete or asphalt concrete pavement. 
The structural design of the pavement shall be determined based on R-value testing 
and shall be designed in accordance with 16.56.050 - Structural design of pavement 
of the Colfax Municipal Code, but will not be less than 2”AC on 6”AB. 

39. Ramps for disabled persons shall be provided at all intersections and crosswalks 
where sidewalks are proposed. 

40. ADA accessible paths of travel shall be indicated on the improvement plans showing 
a path of travel from public sidewalks to each proposed building. 

 
Office/Shop Building 

41. The project shall be developed and construction in substantial compliance with the 

plans as illustrated in Attachment 4 to the staff report. 

 

42. The office/shop building is approved to be built in two phases. Each phase shall be 

reviewed by the Planning division staff for compliance with this approval prior to 

issuance of any development or building permit. 

 

43. The office/shop building shall be oriented so that no roll-up garage style doors face 

the adjacent residential neighborhood. 

 

Attachment 3
ITEM  5C

11 of 74



6 
 

44. Landscaping shall be installed within the rear area setback between the neighboring 

residential property (Mink Creek) and the chain link fencing. Landscaping shall 

include significant screening such as evergreens and other plantings to sufficiently 

screen the development from the neighboring residential properties. The chain link 

fencing shall include slats to provide additional privacy between the project and the 

neighboring residential properties. 

Outdoor Boat/RV Storage 

45. Hours of operation shall be 7:00 am to 7:00 pm Monday through Friday, and 8:00 am 

to 8:00 pm Saturday, Sunday and holidays.  

 

46. The project shall comply with the requirements of the Colfax Municipal Code section 

17.176.040 Self Storage Facilities, as applicable.  

 

47. Outdoor storage areas shall maintain a twenty-foot setback from property lines 

adjacent to residential land uses (Mink Creek). 

 

48. The owner/operator of the outdoor self-storage facility shall maintain in good repair 

all fencing, walls, lighting, landscaping, driveways and parking areas. The premise 

shall be kept clean and in an orderly fashion. 

 

49. The owner shall be responsible for graffiti-free maintenance of the site, and shall 

remove any graffiti within 48 hours of occurrence or City notification, whichever 

occurs first. 

 

50. No truck or vehicle rental shall be conducted from the premises. 

 

51. Flammable or combustible liquids or gasses shall not be used or maintained on site. 

 

52. Wall-mounted lights shall be mounted below the top of the wall and directed 

downward. 

Mitigation Measures 

53. Mitigation Measure BIO-1: If any tree removal or adjacent construction activity takes 

place during the associated breeding/nesting season for raptors (typically February 

1st through August 31st), preconstruction surveys shall be conducted by a qualified 

biologist no more than 15 days prior to initiation of proposed development activities. 

If active nests are found on or immediately adjacent to the project site, a nest 

avoidance plan shall be implemented with approval from the City of Colfax Planning 

Department. The avoidance plan shall include appropriate buffers to the nest(s), and 

a qualified biologist should monitor the nest(s) and project activities to ensure no 

harm or agitation affects the nestlings. Once the birds have fledged, there is no 

longer a need for the buffer, and project activities could then proceed. If no nesting is 

found to occur, necessary tree removal could then proceed. This survey shall not be 

necessary if tree removal and vegetation clearing occur outside of the nesting period. 

 

Attachment 3
ITEM  5C

12 of 74



7 
 

54. Mitigation Measure CUL-1: If archaeological or paleontological resources are 

discovered during ground disturbing activities for the project, work shall be halted in 

that area within 50 feet of the find and a qualified archaeologist or paleontologist 

shall be notified immediately to evaluate the significance of the find. Construction 

activities can continue in other areas. If the discovery proves to be significant, 

additional work, such as data or fossil recovery excavation, may be warranted and 

would be discussed in consultation with the Applicant, the City of Colfax, or any other 

relevant regulatory agency, as appropriate. 

 

55. Mitigation Measure CUL-2: If human remains are discovered during ground 

disturbing activities for the project, work shall be halted and the County Coroner shall 

be notified of the find immediately. No further work shall occur until the County 

Coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to PRC Section 

5097.98. If the human remains are determined to be of Native American origin, the 

County Coroner shall notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), 

which will determine and notify the a Most Likely Descendent (MLD). The MLD shall 

complete the inspection of the site within 48 hours of notification and may 

recommend scientific removal and nondestructive analysis of human remains and 

items associated with Native American burials. 

 

End of Conditions 

Attachment 3
ITEM  5C

13 of 74



CORPORATION YARD & BOAT/RV STORAGE PROJECT 

Initial Study /Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Prepared for: 

City of Colfax 
Planning Department 
33 S Main Street 
Colfax, CA 95713 

Prepared by: 

RCH Group 
11060 White Rock Road, Suite 150-A 
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 
916.782.4427 

August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

14 of 74



.

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

15 of 74



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CORPORATION YARD & 

BOAT/RV STORAGE PROJECT 

Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Environmental Checklist 

Aesthetics 

Agricultural and Forest Resources 

Air Quality 

Biological Resources 

Cultural Resources 

Geology, Soils, and Seismicity 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

Hydrology and Water Quality 

Land Use and Land Use Planning 

Mineral Resources 

Noise 

Population and Housing 

Public Services 

Recreation 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

l 

10 

15 

16 

21 

24 

26 

29 

31 

33 

36 

37 

38 

43 

44 

45 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

16 of 74



Transportation and Traffic 

Tribal Cultural Resources 

Utilities and Service Systems 

Mandatory Findings of Significance 

List of Figures 

I Site and Vicinity Map 
2. Aerial Map
3. Site Plan
4. Preliminary Grading Plan

List of Tables 

I 
2 

3 
4 

Estimated Maximum Daily Construction Emissions (pounds) 
Estimated Maximum Daily Operational Emissions (pounds) 
Estimated Annual Greenhouse Gas Emissions (metric tons of C02e) 
Existing Noise Measurements 

Appendices 

A. Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Supporting Information
B. Noise Appendix
C. Biological Resources Assessment
D. Cultural and Paleontological Resources Inventory
E. Geotechnical Memorandum
F. Drainage Report

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Slorage Project 
Initial Study / Mlllgaled Negative Declaralion 

II 

46 

48 

49 

51 

2 

3 

4 

5 

18 

18 

30 

40 

RCH Group 
August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

17 of 74



ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

1. Project Title: Corporation Yard & 
Boat/RV Storage Project 

2. Lead Agency Name and Address: City of Colfax 
Planning Department 
33 S Main Street 
Colfax, CA 95713 

3. Contact Person and Phone Number: Amy Feagans 
Planning Director 
(530) 346-2313

4. Project Location: APN I 00-230-013-000 
Colfax Industrial Park 
155 Whitcomb Avenue 
Colfax, CA 95713 

5. Project Sponsor: Colfax Partners, LLC 
Gerry LaBudde 
Managing Partner 
PO Box 81 
Weimar, CA 95736 

6. General Plan Deslgnatlon(s): I - Industrial 

7. Zoning Designation: I - Industrial 

8. Description of Project and Existing Setting:

Introduction 

Colfax Partners, Inc. (the Applicant) proposes to develop on an undeveloped approximately 

three-acre parcel (Placer County APN I 00-230-013-000) at the end of Whitcomb A venue in the 

Colfax Industrial Park in Colfax, CA. The project includes the development of a corporation yard 

used as a headquarters for a general engineering construction company and engineering 

consulting firm on the upper portion of the project site, and development of a boat and 

recreational vehicle (RV) storage facility on the lower portion. The project requires compliance 

with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because the project requires a 

discretionary approval for the Site Plan Design Review. Figure 1 shows the site and vicinity map 

of the project, Figure 2 shows the aerial map, Figure 3 shows the site plan and Figure 4 shows 

the preliminary grading plan. 

Corporation Yard & Boat/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaralion 

1 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

18 of 74



0 1,000 

Feet 

2,000 

SITE AND VICINITY MAP 

Whitcomb Aveuue 

Ci of Colfax, Placer Coun , CA 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

19 of 74



0 100 

Fl.'1!1 

Study Area 
(±3 acres) 

Figure2 

AERIAL MAP 

Wliitcomb Avenue 

City of Colfax, Placer County, CA 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

20 of 74



.. 
en,u..-, 
.. ·•--

.·:_!.., 
.tt•.I 

•I 

I u 

i 

•1:ICl'CIO • ff':T� • � 
L'.l'liii <:tai .cc,;,1 •(>J lD,� on (Cti) 

tttK• YJ """"G"T 't •1rl'S , .. 11s: .. 'II 00. 

•••1 'U•ll W 1""11"1� §j 
"IN�O.:il"IY�· 'A1Nt'IO:> lil3:.V'W 

1:10-oci•OOl 'Nd'I' 
Sl:l3N.Ll:IV d xv ,no:> 

.L33HS �31\0:> 
NV1d AliVNIV11113lid 

•• i::?. 

�cj• 4
� u-� •r� 

i 
-"rW:!., �1 r� .. f' 

"' ;� .. A•t : 
•Hit�:; i

!; 
lt~tl:? 

::, J "'ii.:. .. :1 
� ; t,3eS� i
. , ·��:;,. .. (! 

_, � 
•lf�•-•; 

ls 1· i��!, � 
� �i--a- a:: .. 

I 1-if !1;; �
';j -i: if• �� 

• 

.., .. ; si���it i r::!t t�:.:: 1i 

! 
I 

t I f . I I : l I r I f 
, 

, 
I lI ! I . 

1l 
!! 

� 

� 

� l . 0 �� .. , .... �. J1 I �t .. L
I 11 1 ! I I I 

I 

I I 

1· 

I 
I 

I I 

I . i 
� � � ? ' 

I 
L I ., i ii 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

21 of 74



.. ....... 
.• !!.J

.�*.
;;:(•,I 

�-

11: 

•wcio • N('f'l&I'\ • � 
,�,, �,;e, <c,-.l ••, ta,; :n Ctr�• 

[09;1 Tl �,, � •r."S •-ns th cc,: 

'OU( '111)1 \' fHflhl!> §j 
VtNlfO�n•:, 'AJ.Nno:> H!l:l'fld 

£10·0£�·001 'NdY 

61!3Nl.l!Vd xv:110:i 

NV1d 

9NIC'o'l:l8 Al:IVNl�ll31:ld 

NV1d Al:IVNl�l131:ld 

,., 
' , 

0 

-�

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

22 of 74



Whitcomb Avenue would provide access for the project. The City of Colfax has constructed 

public facilities including sanitary sewer •ines, water lines, drainage, electrical and 

communications, and street extension Improvements consisting of pavement, curb and gutter, to 

promote commercial/industrial development within the Colfax Industrial Park. The project site, 

and others along Whitcomb Avenue, are subject to the Fair Share Payment for Infrastructure 

Improvements and Street Extension of Whitcomb Avenue Industrial Park recorded August 2, 

2000 as Instrument No. 2000-0056155. 

Corporation Yard 

The corporate headquarters building would be developed in two phases. Phase I would include a 

modular office building (approximately 2, WO square feet) and a shop (approximately 2,000 

square feet). Phase 2 would occur three to five yea,s after Phase 1 and would expand the shop 

building to 6,000 square feet with 2,500 square feet of office space, and would remove the 

modular office building. Twenty parking spaces would be provided on site and 15 employees are 

expected. Storage of aggregate material, pipes/culverts, etc. would be located on site. These 

materials would be used for project specific purposes and not for retail sale to the public. 

The corporation yard would be fenced with a six-to-eight foot chain-link fence with barbed wire 

for security and would include a gate for restricting access. Although not required by the 

Municipal Code, the Applicant would also include a block wall between the project site and the 

residential neighborhood to the south. Lighting would be included as a security measure and 

would comply with the City of Colfax ordinances. Video monitoring equipment could be 

installed as part of the site security. Normal operating hours would be Monday through Friday, 

7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Due to nature of utility related work of the Applicant, work would occur 

infrequently on weekends and holidays and off hours. Off-hours work at the corporation yard 

would be limited to mobilization for offsite work and would comply with noise standards in the 

Municipal Code. 

Boat/RV Storage 

The Boat/RV storage area would be located on the lower portion of the project site and wou!d be 

constructed during Phase 1. The Boat/RV storage area would be approximately 1.5 acres. 

Approximately 40 boats/RVs would be stored at the site under full conditions. Access to the 

storage area would be separate from the corporation yard via a dedicated driveway entering on 

the north side of the project site from Whitcomb Avenue as shown in Figures 3 and 4. 

The Boat/RV Storage would be operated as a self-serve type faciJity with access granted through 

an automatic gate with a card reader or code to identify the persons accessing the site. Normal 

operating hours would be Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and weekends and 

holidays, 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. (Per City Code). Video cameras would be installed along with a 

six to eight foot chain-link fence with barbed wire and a six•foot block wall between the project 

site and the residential neighborhood to the south. A to-foot landscape buffer would also be 

constructed along the southern and eastern perimeter. Depending upon market conditions, 

covered storage structures/awnings could be added in the future. 

Corporauon Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
Initial Sludy I Mitigated Negative Dedaration 

6 RCHGroup 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

23 of 74



Access and Utilities 

The entrance gate would be located on the private access driveway extending from Whitcomb 

A venue. Current access to the neighboring parcel to the west located at 155 Whitcomb Avenue 

(Placer County APN No. 100-230-033-000) is via a gravel road on the project site. The gravel 

road bisects the project site and is not located within a recorded easement. Use of the roadway is 

by permission only to the adjacent landowner. The access roadway would be relocated in a 25-

foot wide roadway/utility easement located on the northeast side of the project site. The new 

access road to the adjacent westerly parcel would be shared with the roadway access used to 

access the corporation yard. The access road design was shared with the property owner of the 

neighboring parcel to the west and was modified and redesigned to swing out to the south into 

the project site to reduce the slope and utilize the existing access gate to the western parcel. 

The project would include the extension of water, sewer, electrical and communication utilities 

to the project site. A I 2kv buried power line is located along the easterly and southern property 

lines of the project parcel, owned, and operated by Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E). Portions of 

the proposed fill area would cover areas of the buried electrical line. PG&E personnel have been 

made aware and may require that a portion of the easterly section of the electrical line be raised 

if they feel the depth becomes excessive. If required, fill would be placed, and a new trench 

would be dug with conduit installed per PG&E specifications (installed at a shallower depth 

acceptable to PG&E). The horizontal location of the electric utility would not change 

substantially. The portion of the buried power line on the southern property line would not be 

affected or modified. 

The existing overhead power and communication lines near the southern edge of the parcel may 

be relocated and placed underground as part of the project. The utilities would remain on the 

project parcel and would not affect adjacent parcels. The modifications would be designed per 

the utility requirements under a pennit and review process, and any new easements would be 

developed and recorded. Schedule and cost would determine if this modification is made along 

the southern portion of the project. 

Construction, Schedule and Phasing 

Phase I construction of the project is estimated to require approximately six months, with 

construction anticipated to begin in Winter/Spring 2019 and end in Summer 2019. Phase 2 

corporation yard construction (expand the shop building to 6,000 square feet with 2,500 square 

feet of office space, and remove the modular office building) would occur three to five years 

after Phase I. 

The project would continue to drain to the southwest through existing and mutual drainage 

easements. Grading would be balanced onsite (approximately 11,050 cubic yards of cut and 

11,050 cubic yards of fill). 

Corporation Yard & BoaVRV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

7 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

24 of 74



9. Surrounding Land Uses and Existing Setting:

The project site is at the west end of Whitcomb A venue on the south side of the cut-de-sac. The 

project site is bordered by the foHowing land uses (See Figure 2): 

• North Property Line - Whitcomb Avenue/undeveloped material storage yard
• East Property Line - Commercial Development
• South Property Line - Residential (Mink Creek Development)
• West Property Line - Corporation yard for contractor {Cunningham

Engineering)

10. Other Public Agencies

The foJlowing permits and regulations are applicable to the project and involve other public 

agencies whose approval may be required: 

• National Pollutant Discharge EHmination Permit (NPDES) General Construction

Stormwater Permit, Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board
• Dust Control Plan Approval, Placer County Air Pollu1ion Control District

11. Tribal Consultation:

No California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area 

requested consultation pursuant to Publi\: Resources Code section 21080.3.1.

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

8 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

25 of 74



Environmental Factors Potentially Affected 

The project could potentially affect the environmental factor(s) checked below. The following 

pages present a more detailed checklist and discussion of each environmental factor. 

181 Aesthetics □ Agriculture and Forestry Resources 181 Air Quality

181 Biological Resources 181 Cultural Resources fZI Geology. Soils and Seismicity

fZI Greenhouse Gas Emissions □ Hazards and Hazardous Materials 181 Hydrology and Water Quality

□ Land Use and Land Use Planning □ Mineral Resources 181 Noise

□ Population and Housing □ Public Services □ Recreation

□ Transportation and Traffic □ Utilities and Service Systems □ Mandatory Findings of Significance

DETERMINATION: (To be completed by Lead Agency) 
On the basis of this initial study: 

□ 

181 

□ 

□ 

□ 

I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment. and a NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION wilt be prepared. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be a 
significant effect In this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by lhe project 
proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared, 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT Is required. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially significant unless 
mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier 
document pursuant lo applicable legal standards. and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the 
earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT Is required, but ii must 
analyze only the effects that remain lo be addressed. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all potentially 
significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant 
to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are Imposed upon lhe proposed project, no 
further environmental documentation is required. 

Signat�T 
{o{llt{H 

Date 

6� af Cdlix 
Printed Na 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

9 

For 

RCH Group 
August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

26 of 74



Aesthetics 

Leu Than 
SlgnHl!:ant 

Potent/ally with Less Than 
Slgn1"cant Mitigation Significant 

Issues (and Supporrlng lnformallon Soun:es): Impact Incorporation Impact No Impact 

1. AESTHETICS - Would the project:

a) Have a subslanllal adverse effect on a scenic vista? □ □ □ 181 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, Including, □ □ □ 181 
but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and
historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or □ □ 181 □ 
quality of the site and ilS surroundings? 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare □ □ 181 □ 
which would adversely affect daytime or nighttime
views in the area?

Introduction 

The project sile is industrial and undeveloped, with an existing gravel road extending from the 

Whitcomb Avenue cul-de-sac to the western property boundary. Single-family homes border the 

project site to the south, a corporation yard for an engineering firm to the west, a commercial 

development to the east and Whitcomb Avenue to the north. Photos 1-6 provide views of the 

project site and the adjacent uses. 

Discussion 

a) No Impact. No scenic vistas would be affected by the project. Therefore, the project

would have no impact.

b) No Impact. The project site is not within or near a designated state scenic highway. No

scenic resources within a state scenic highway would be affected by the project.

Therefore, the project would have no impact.

c) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project would comply with all applicable building,

design, landscaping, and lighting requirements found in the Municipal Code of the City

of Colfax and the Community Design Element of the City of Colfax 2020 General Plan.

The project would be consistent with the uses in the project area and consistent with the

industrial land use designation and zoning for the project site.

TJ1e project would include an approximately 20-foot setback from the existing residential

development to the southeast. The project would also include a six-foot block wall screen

and a JO-foot landscape buffer between the Boat/RV storage use and the residential

neighborhood to the south. Although not required by the Municipal Code, the Applicant

would also include a block wall between the corporation yard use and the residential

neighborhood to the south. Signage for the Boat/RV Storage and Corporation yard would

be designed according to the Municipal Code.

Corporation Yard & Boat/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

11) RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

27 of 74



The project would not substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the 

site and its surroundings. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant 

impact. 

d) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project would change the landscape of the project

site from an undeveloped environment to one that is developed for commercial uses,

which would result in the introduction of new sources of light and potential glare. These

new sources of lighting would primarily consist of site lighting as a security measure for

the corporation yard and the Boat/RV storage. The project would comply with the

lighting design guidelines in the Community Design Element of the City of Colfax 2020

General Plan. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact.

References 

City of Colfax, 2020 General Plan Community Design Element, September 1998. 

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

11 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

28 of 74



Photo # 1) View of the Whitcomb A venue cul-de-sac and the undeveloped material 
storage yard to the north of the project site access road (photo taken February 20, 
20) 8).

Photo #2) View of the project site and the comme,cia] uses and associated parking 
lot to the east (photo taken near access road/Whitcomb A venue cul-de-sac on 
February 20, 2018). 

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Dedaratlon 

12 RCH Group 
August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

29 of 74



Photo #3) View of the project site (facing south) and the access road serving the 
project site and parcel to the west (photo taken on February 20, 2018). 

Photo #4) View of the project site and the fence line of the residential neighborhood 
to the south/southwest (photo taken in the area of the proposed corporation yard on 
February 20, 2018). 

Corporation Yard & BoaVRV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

13 RCH Group 
August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

30 of 74



Photo #5) View of the project site and the residential neighborhood to the 
south/southwest (photo taken just east of the project site boundary in between the 
associated commercial use parking and the residential neighborhood to the east on 
February 20, 2018). 

Photo #6) View of the project site (photo taken along the southern property line in 
the area of the proposed corporation yard facing northeast on February 20, 2018). 

Corporation Yard & Boat/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

14 RCH Group 
August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

31 of 74



Agricultural and Forest Resources 

lsauu (and Supporting lnformaUon Sourcu}: 

2. AGRICULTURAL AND FOREST RESOURCES -

Potentially 
S/gnlflr:ant 

lmpar:t 

LeD Than 
Slgnfflcant 

with 
Mitigation 

lnr:orporaUon 

Lus Th■n 
Slgnltlr:ant 

lmp■r:t Nolmpar:t 

In determining whether impacts lo agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer
to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and SIie Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Dept. of
Conservation as an optional model lo use In assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether 
Impacts to forest resources, Including timberland. are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to 
Information compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state's Inventory of 
forest land, Including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and
forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board.
Would the pro)ect 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland
of Statewide Importance (Farmland). as shown on
the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping
and Monitoring Program of the California Resources
Agency. to non-agricultural use? 

b) Connie\ with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a
Williamson Act contract?

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning
of, forest land (as defined In Public Resources Code
section 12220(9)), timberland (as defined by Public
Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned
Timberland Production (as defined by Government
Code section 51 104(9))?

d) Result In the loss of forest land or conversion of
forest land to non-forest use?

e) Involve other changes In the existing environment
which, due to their location or nature. could result In
conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use or
conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

Discussion 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

a-e) No Impact. There is no farmland located on or near the project site. The project site is 

not zoned for agricultural use and is not subject to a Williamson Act contract. The project 

site is not zoned for forest land or timberland. The project would not involve other 

changes in the existing environment that, due to their location or nature, could result in 

conversion of farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forestland to non-forest 

use. Therefore, the project would have no impact. 

References 

Department of Conservation, California Important Farmland Finder, 2014. 

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

15 RCHGroup 
August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

32 of 74



Air Quality 

Issues (and Suppottlng Information Sources}: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

t.■ss Than 
Significant 

with 
Mltlgarlon 

lncorporatJon 

t.us Than 
S/gnlllcanf 

Impact No Impact 

3. 

a) 

b) 

c) 

d) 

e) 

AIR QUALITY -
V\lhere available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management or air pollution control 
district may be relied upon to make the following determinations 
Would the project: 

Conflict with or obstruct Implementation of the □ □ � □ 
applicable air quality plan? 

Violate any air quality standard or contribute □ □ � □ 
substantially to an existing or projected air quality 
violation? 

Result In a cumulatively considerable net Increase of □ □ � □ 
any criteria pollutant for which the project region is 
non•altainment under an applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality standard (including releasing 
emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for 
ozone precursors)? 

Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant □ 
concentrations? 

□ � □ 

Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial □ □ � □ 
number of people? 

Introduction 

This air quality analysis is consistent with the methodology for project review and analysis as 
described in the Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD)'s CEQA Air Quality 

Handbook (PCAPCD, 2017). Additional information related to air quality such as existing setting 
and regulations, as well as detailed construction and operational emissions inventories for the 
project is in Appendix A. 

Discussion 

a) Less-than-Significant Impact. The PCAPCD along with other local air distrkts in the
Sacramento planning region are required to comply and implement the State
Implementation Plan (S[P) to demonstrate how and when the region can attain the federal
ozone standards. In 2013, air districts from the Sacramento planning region developed the
Sacramento Regional 8-Hour O=one Attainment and Reasonable Further Progress Plan

(20 I 3 SIP Revisions Plan) to address how the region would attain the 1997 federal 8-hour
ozone standard. U.S. EPA approved the 2013 SIP Revisions Plan effective March 2. 
2015. The 2013 SIP Revisions Plan is the applicable air quality plan for the project.

A conflict with, or obstruction of, implementation of the 2013 SIP Revisions Plan could 
occur if a project generates greater emissions than what has been projected for the project 
site in the emissions inventory of the 2013 SIP Revisions Plan. Emissions inventories are 
developed based on projected increases in population, employment, regional vehicle 
miles traveled, and associated area sources within the region, which are based on regional 
projections that are, in turn, based on the General Plan and zoning designations for the 

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

16 RCH Group 
August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

33 of 74



region. The project would not change the existing zoning or general plan land use 

designation for the project site. Therefore, the project would not generate greater 

emissions than what has been projected for the site in the emissions inventory of the 2013 

SIP Revisions Plan. 

The project would support the primary goals of the 2013 SIP Revisions Plan, would be 

consistent with all applicable 2013 SIP Revisions Plan control measures, and would not 

disrupt or hinder implementation of any 2013 SIP Revisions Plan control measures. 

Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

b) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project would generate temporary criteria pollutant

emissions during construction and long-tenn criteria pollutant emissions during operations.

Co11str11ctio11

The project would be constructed over approximately six months and construction is

expected to start in March 2019. Construction activities would consist of site preparation,

grading, onsite utilities, building construction and paving. Construction would require

equipment such as rubber tired dozers, graders, tractors/loaders/backhoes, paving

equipment, welders. Grading for the project is expected to be balanced onsite. The project

would also require worker vehicle trips for the duration of construction and truck trips for

importing construction materials. The emissions generated from these construction

activities include:

• Dust (including particulate matter less than IO micrometers (coarse or PM I 0) and

particulate matter less than 2.5 micrometers (fine or PM2.5)) primarily from

"fugitive" sources (i.e., emissions released through means other than through a

stack or tailpipe) such as material handling and travel on unpaved surfaces; and
• Combustion emissions of criteria air pollutants (carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen

oxides (NO.), sulfur dioxide (S02), volatile organic compounds (VOC) as 

reactive organic gases (ROG), PMI0, and PM2.S) primarily from operation of

heavy off-road construction equipment, haul trucks, (primarily diesel-operated),

and construction worker automobile trips (primarily gasoline-operated).

Construction-related fugitive dust emissions would vary from day to day, depending on 

the level and type of activity, silt content of the soil, and the weather. Poor construction 

practices could result in substantial emissions of fugitive dust that could become a 

nuisance. The PCAPCD requires construction projects to comply with District Rules & 

Regulations for Construction. Compliance with the PCAPCD District Rules & 

Regulations for construction, specifically Rule 228 - Fugitive Dust, which requires 

implementation of minimum dust control requirements, would prevent and control 

fugitive dust emissions. The minimum dust control requirements required by Rule 228 

are in Appendix A for reference. 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

17 RCH Group 
Augusl2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

34 of 74



Estimated maximum daily emissions of criteria pollutant emissions that would be 

generated by construction of the project are shown in Table 1. Construction emissions 

were estimated using the California Emission Estimator Model (CalEEMod) Version 

2016.3.2. There are no significance thresholds for CO or PM2.5. As shown in Table l, 

criteria pollutant emissions from construction would be below the PCAPCD's maximum 

daily significance thresholds for ROG, NO,, and PM I 0. Therefore, the project would 

have a less�than-significant impact. 

Table 1: Estimated Maximum Daily Construction Emissions (pounds) 
. . 

Year ROG NOx. PMIO 

Mnximiim Daily Construction Emissions (2019) 2.8 22.8 7.J

PCAPCD Significance Threshold 82 82 82 

Potentially Significant (Yes or No)? No No No 

Source: CalEEMod Version 2016.3.2. 

Operational Impacts 

The project would generate operational criteria pollutant emissions from transportation, 

area sources, electricity consumption, natural gas combustion, electricity usage associated 

with water usage and wastewater discharge, and solid waste landfilling and transport. 

Operational emissions were estimaled using the CalEEMod Version 2016.3.2. The 

operational emissions estimates assume an operational year of 2020 (the first full year the 

project would be occupied). 

Estimated daily (summer and winter) operational emissions that would be associated with 

the project are presented in Table 2 and are compared to PCAPCD's thresholds of 

significance. As indicated in Table 2, the estimated operational emissions would be 

below the PCAPCD's significance thresholds. Therefore, the project would have a less

than-significant impact. 

Table 2: Estimated Maximum Daily Operational Emissions (pounds) 

€onditfon 
,. --

Summer Maximum Daily Emissions 

Winter Maximum Daily Emissions 

Maximum Dnily Emissions 

PCAPCD Significance Threshold 

Potentially Significant (Yes or No)? 

Source: ColEEMod Version 2016.3.2. 

ROG Noi PMtO

0.4 0.9 0.4 

0.3 1.0 0.4 

0.4 1.0 0.4 

55 55 82 

No No No 

c) Less-than-Significant Impact. The PCAPCD cumulative significance thresholds are the

same as the project-level significance thresholds. Therefore, a project would have a

significant cumulative impact if the project exceeds the project-level significance

thresholds. As disclosed in this air quality analysis, the project would not exceed project

level significance thresholds. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant

impact.

Corporation Yard & Boat/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

18 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

35 of 74



d) Less-than-Significant Impact. Land uses such as schools, children's daycare centers,

hospitals, and convalescent homes are considered more sensitive to poor air quality than

other land uses because the population groups associated with these uses have increased

susceptibility to respiratory distress. Persons engaged in strenuous work or exercise also

have increased sensitivity to poor air quality. The CARB has identified the following

people as most likely to be affected by air pollution: children less than 14 years of age,

the elderly over 65 years of age, athletes, and those with cardiovascular and chronic

respiratory diseases. These groups are classified as sensitive population groups.

Residential areas are considered more sensitive to air quality conditions than commercial 

and industrial areas, because people generally spend longer periods of time outside their 

residences, resulting in greater exposure to ambient air quality conditions. Recreational 

uses are also considered sensitive, due to the greater exposure to ambient air quality 

conditions and because the presence of pollution detracts from the recreational 

experience. The project site is adjacent to the residential Mink Creek Development. 

A toxic air contaminant (TAC) is defined as an air pollutant that may cause or contribute 

to an increase in mortality or in serious illness, or that may pose a hazard to human 

health. TACs are usually present in minute quantities in the ambient air. However, TACs 

high toxicity or health risk may pose a threat to public health even at very low 

concentrations. In general, for those TA Cs that may cause cancer, there is no 

concentration that does not present some risk. This contrasts with the criteria pollutants 

for which acceptable levels of exposure can be determined and for which the state and 

federal governments have set ambient air quality standards. 

The project would temporarily constitute a new emission source of diesel particulate 

matter (DPM 1 ) due to construction activities. Studies have demonstrated that DPM from 

diesel-fueled engines is a human carcinogen and that chronic (long-term) inhalation 

exposure to DPM poses a chronic health risk. The project is a short-term construction 

project (six months) that would use diesel construction equipment intermittently and 

would not generate substantial TAC emissions. Any diesel emissions generated at the 

project site during operations would be negligible. Therefore, the project would have a 

less-than-significant impact. 

I In August of 1998, CARB identified particulate emissions from diesel-fueled engines ns a toxic air contaminant. CARB 
developed the Risk Red11c1io11 Pla11 lo Reduce Partic11/ate Matter Emi:r:rionsfrom Diesel-F11eled Engines 011d Vehicles. The 
document represents a proposal to reduce diesel particulnte emissions, \\ ith the goal to reduce emissions and the associated 
health risk by 75 percent in 2010 and by 85 percent in 2020. The program aims to require the use of state-of-the-art 
catnlyzcd diesel particulate filters nnd ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel on diesel-fueled engines. 

Diesel particulate matter (DPM) is the most complex of diesel emissions. Diesel particulates, ns defined by most 
emission standords, are sampled from diluted and cooled exhaust gases. This definition includes both solid and liquid 
material that condenses during the dilulion process. The basic fractions ofDPM ore elemental carbon; heovy 
hydrocarbons derived from the fuel nnd lubric111ing oil and hydrated sulfuric ncid derived from the fuel sulfur. DPM 
contains a large portion oflhe polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons found in diesel exhaust. Diesel particulates include 
small nuclei particles of diameters below 0.04 micrometers (µm) and their agglomerates of diameters up to I µm. 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

19 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

36 of 74



Naturally Occurring Asbestos (NOA) can be of concern in Placer County due lo the 
known presence of chrysotUe and amphibole asbestos. However, the project site is in the 
area least likely to contain NOA according to Placer County's NOA Hazard Map 
(November 2008). Although unUkely, if NOA is discovered during project construction 
the project would be required to adhere to CARB's Asbestos Airborne Toxic Control 
Measure (ATCM) for Construction, Grading, Quarrying and Surface Mining Operations. 
Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant Impact. 

e) Less-than-Significant Impact The project would not generate objectionable odors.
Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact.

References 

California Air Pollution Control Officers Association; CalEEMod User's Guide Version 
2016.3.2, November 2017, htt ://www.a md. 1ov/docsldefoult-so trcelc_aleemJ>d/0 I user-
39-s- ide-2016-3-2 l5novem er-0 . t.stvrsn= 

Federal Register/ Volzmu: 80, No. 19/ Thursday, Janua1J' 29, 2015/ Rules and Regulations. 

http://www ,ai rgual itv.org/PrograinCoordioation/Documents/2013 SI PFinalRule.pd f 

Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD), CEQA Air Quality Handbook, 

Novem her 2017. http :f/www .placerair.orgllanduseandcega/cegaairgual ityhandbook 

Placer County. Naturally Occurring Asbestos Hazard. November 4, 2008. 
bt1p://www.placer.ca.gov/~/media/apc/documents/NOA/NaturallyOccuringAsbestosMapl 
ndexMap0929Q:8.pd f 

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District, 20/ 3 Update to the 8-Hour Ozone 

Attainment and Reasonable Further Progress Plan, January 29, 2015, 
bttp://ww w ,_arb.ca.gov /planni ng/s ip/p lanarea/sacs ip/sacm etsi p.htm#2013 update 

US EPA. Near Roadway Air Pollution and Health: Frequently Asked Questions. August 2014. 
http:/ /www 3 .epa.gov /otag/docym,ents/nearroad way/420tl 4044 .pd f 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
lnlUal Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

20 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

37 of 74



Biological Resources 

Leu Than 
Significant 

Potent/ally with Less Than 
Slgnlflr:•nt Mitigation Significant 

Issues (and Supporting lnfonn■tlon Sourcu): Impact lnr:orponltJon lmp■ct No Impact 

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES - Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or □ 181 □ □ 
through habitat modificallons, on any species identified
as a candidate, sensitive, or special-status species In 
local or regional plans. policies, or regulations. or by 
the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife Service?

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian □ □ □ 
habitat or other sensitive natural community Identified 
In local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by
the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S.
Fish and Wildlife Service?

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected □ □ □ 
wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean
Water Act (Including. but not limited to, marsh,
vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal,
filling, hydrological Interruption, or other means? 

d) Interfere subslanllally with the movemen\ of any native □ □ □ 
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with 
established native resident or migratory v.mdlife corridors,
or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

e) Conftlct with any local policies or ordinances □ □ 181 □ 
protecting biological resources, such as a tree
preservation policy or ordinance? 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat □ □ □ 181 
Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation
Plan, or other approved local. regional, or state
habitat conservation plan?

Introduction 

This section is based on Biological Resources Assessment conducted by an independent 

biological consultant, Salix Consulting, Inc. (Salix Consulting, 2018), which can be found in 

Appendix C of this Initial Study. 

The Biological Report concluded the following: 
• The project site provides no suitable habitat for special-status plants or animal

species known to occur within the region, and no such species were observed

during field surveys in October 2017 and January 2018. Except for nesting raptor

and migratory bird preconstruction surveys, no further surveys for special-status

wildlife or plants are recommended.
• The project site does not contain features that qualify as wetlands or waters of the

United States.
• The project site does not contain streams, ponds or riparian habitat, thus no 

Streamed Alteration Agreement with the California Department of Fish and

Wildlife (CDFW) is required.

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Dectarallon 

21 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

38 of 74



Discussion 

a) Less-than-Significant Impact with Mitigation. The vacant project site is Sierran Mixed
Conifer habitat type, but it is not a "pure" version due to the high degree of ongoing
disturbance. This habitat type contains abundant conifers, primarily ponderosa pine, but
there are a few specimens of Douglas fir and sugar pine. Two oaks species, canyon live
oak and black oak are common on the site. The shrub layer is quite variable and in most
areas, the shrub layer has been regularly managed. Common shrub species include
Himalayan blackberry and scotch broom, and to a lesser degree coyote brush and white

leaf manzanita. Herbaceous species are primarily grasses and weedy forbs including
hedgehog dogtail, ripgut brome, blue wild rye. yellow starthistle and stinkwort.

There is no potential for the occurrence of any special-status plants or wildlife species 

· within the project site because it does not provide suitable habitat for any special-status

plant or wildlife specifies known to occur within the region (Salix, 2018). However, the
project site may provide a suitable habitat for nesting raptors and migratory birds.
Mitigation Measure 810-1 would reduce any potentially significant impacts to less than
significant.

Mitigation Measure BI0-1: If any tree removal or adjacent construction activity 

takes place during the associated breeding/nesling season for raptors (typically 
February I st through August 31st), preconstruction surveys shall be conducted 

by a qualified biologist no more than J 5 days prior to initiation of proposed 
development activities. If active nests are found on or immediately adjacent to 

the project site, a nest avoidance plan shall be implemented with approval from 
the City of Colfax Planning Department. The avoidance plan shaU include 

appropriate buffers to the nest(s), and a qualified biologist should monitor the 

nest(s) and project activities to ensure no harm or agitation affects the nestlings. 
Once the birds have fledged, there is no longer a need for the buff er, and project 
activities could then proceed. If no nesting is found to occur, necessary tree 

removal could then proceed. This survey shall not be necessary if tree removal 
and vegetation clearing occur outside of the nesting period. 

b, c) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project site was evaluated for areas that may be 
considered waters of the U.S. The project site contains one feature that required detailed 

analysis, but based on the analysis conducted during the field assessment,. was found to 

be an upland drainage swale and not a water of the U.S. (Salix. 2018). The project site 
does not contain streams, ponds or riparian habitat, thus no Streamed Alteration 
Agreement with the CDFW is required. No other riparian habitat or sensitive natural 

community is present on the project site. Therefore, the project would have a less-than
significant impact. 

d) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project would be consistent with the surrounding
area and would not substantially affect wildlife movement. There are no watercourses or
native wildlife nursery sites on the project site. Mitigation Measure B10-1 would

CorporaUon Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
fnltlal Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

39 of 74



reduce any potentially significant impacts to nesting raptors and migratory birds. 
Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

e) Less-than-Significant Impact. The City of Colfax understands as development of vacant
land occurs, loss of some tree cover may be unavoidable. There are approximately 121
trees on the project site. The trees along the western property line would be remain,
however all other trees would need to be cleared for grading and project development.
The City of Colfax Tree Preservation Ordinance regulates all trees over six inches in
diameter as measured four and one-half feet from the ground. The final number of
impacted trees regulated by the Tree Preservation Ordinance would be determined during
preparation of improvement plans and will be subject to tree preservation requirements
and tree replacement requirements when tree removal is unavoidable, resulting in I: 1
replacement of each tree removed. The project would comply with the City of Colfax
Tree Preservation Ordinance. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant
impact.

t) No Impact. The City of Colfax does not have an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan.
Therefore, the project would have no impact.

References 

Acorn Arboricultural Services, Inc. Arborist Report and Tree Inventory Summary. April 18, 2018. 

City of Colfax, 2020 General Plan, Appendix A Hillside Development Guidelines, September 
1998. 

Salix Consulting. Biological Resources Assessment/or the ±3-Acre Whitcomb Avenue Parcel, 

January 2018. 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

23 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

40 of 74



Cultural Resources 

Less Than 
Slgnltlr:ant 

Patentlally with Less Than 
Slgnlflr:ant Mitigation Significant 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sourr:esJ: Impact lnr:orporatlon Impact No Impact 

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES - Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change In the □ 
significance of a historical resource as defined in

□ 181 □ 

§15064.5?

b) Cause a substantial adverse change In the □ 181 □ □ 
significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to
§15064,5?

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a uniqlle paleonlological □ 181 □ □ 
resource or site or unique geologic feature?

d) Dlsturb any human remains. Including those interred □ 181 □ 
outside of formal cemeteries?

Introduction 

This section is based on a Cuhural and Pa\eontological Resources Inventory (Cultural Report) for 

the project conducted Natural Investigations Company, Inc. (NIC, 2018), which can be found in 

Appendix D of this Initial Study. 

The Cultural Report concluded that following: 

• The project does not have the potential to cause a significant impact on any

resource that currently qualifies as a historical resource, or that has been

recommended eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places

(NRHP) or California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR). No

archaeological or buUt-environment resources were newly identified during the

survey, and no cultural resources were previously recorded with the project area.

The potential for the discovery of buried archaeological materials within the

project area is low.
• There is no record of fossils and a low potential for unique or significant

paleontological resources to be present in the marine rocks underlying the project

area. Development of the project would have a low potential to uncover or

damage fossils and would not have a high potential to cause a significant impact

on any resource that currently qualifies as a significant paleontological resource.
• Construction monitoring of ground-disturbing activity for the presence of cultural

or paleontological resources is not recommended.
• Measures to implement if cultural or paleontological resources are discovered

during ground disturbing activities are recommended.

Discussion 

a) Less-than-Significant Impact. No archaeological or built environment resources were

identified or recorded during the survey in December 2017 and no cultural resources

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Sludy / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

41 of 74



were previously recorded within the project area (NIC, 2018). Thus, the project does not 

have the potential to cause a significant impact on any resource that currently qualifies as 

a historical resource, or that has been recommended eligible for listing in the NRHP or 

CRHR. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

b, c) Less-than-Significant Impact with Mitigation. The potential for discovery of buried 

archaeological or paleontological resources is considered low (NIC, 2018). No unique 

geologic features are known to exist with the project area (NIC, 2018). Should any 

archaeological or paleontological resources be discovered during ground disturbing 

activities for the project the implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-1 would 

reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level. 

Mitigation Measure CUL-1: If archaeological or paleontological resources are 

discovered during ground disturbing activities for the project, work shall be 

halted in that area within 50 feet of the find and a qualified archaeologist or 

paleontologist shall be notified immediately to evaluate the significance of the 

find. Construction activities can continue in other areas. If the discovery proves 

to be significant, additional work, such as data or fossil recovery excavation, may 

be warranted and would be discussed in consultation with the Applicant, the City 

of Colfax, or any other relevant regulatory agency, as appropriate. 

d) Less-than-Significant Impact with Mitigation. Although unlikely, grading and

excavation could potentially uncover human remains. Should human remains be

discovered during ground disturbing activities for the project the implementation of

Mitigation Measure CUL-2 would reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level.

References 

Mitigation Measure CUL-2: If human remains are discovered during ground 

disturbing activities for the project, work shall be halted and the County Coroner 

shall be notified of the find immediately. No further work shall occur until the 

County Coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to 

PRC Section 5097.98. Jfthe human remains are determined to be of Native 

American origin, the County Coroner shall notify the Native American Heritage 

Commission (NAHC), which will determine and notify the a Most Likely 

Descendent (MLD). The MLD shall complete the inspection of the site within 48 

hours of notification and may recommend scientific removal and nondestructive 

analysis of human remains and items associated with Native American burials. 

Natural Investigations Company. Cultural and Paleontological Resources Inventory for the 

Colfax Partners Corporation Yard and RV/Boat Storage Project, January 3, 2018. 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Deciarallan 

25 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

42 of 74



Geology, Soils, and Seismicity 

Less Than 
Slgnltrcant 

Potentially with Less Than 
Slgnfflcant Mitigation Significant 

Issue& (and Suppol1lng tnfonnatlon Sources}: Impact Incorporation Impact No Impact 

6. GEOLOGY, SOILS, AND SEISMICITY -
Would the project: 

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial
adverse effects, Including the risk of loss, Injury. or
death Involving:

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as □ □ □ 
delineated on the most recent Alqulst-Priolo
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map Issued by the
Stale Geologist for the area or based on olher
substantial evidence of a known fautt? (Refer to
Division of Mines and Geology Special
Pubticatlon 42.)

II) Strong seismic ground shaking? □ □ 181 □ 

Iii) Seismic-relaled ground failure, Including □ □ 181 □ 
liquefaction? 

M Landslides? □ □ 181 □ 

b) Result In substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? □ □ 181 □ 

c) Be located on. a geologic unlt or soil that is unstable. □ □ 181 □ 
or that would become unstable as a result of the
project, and potenllally result in on- or off-site
landslide. lateral spreading. subsidence. liquefaction.
or collapse?

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined In □ □ 181 □ 
Table 1s.1.s of the Uniform Building Code (1994),
creating substantial risks to life or property?

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use
of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal

□ □ □ 

systems where sewers are not available for the
disposal of wastewater?

Introduction 

This section is based on a Geotechnical Report for the project conducted by an independent 

geotechnical engineering firm, Crawford & Associates, Inc. (Crawford & Associates, 20'7), 

which can be found in Appendix E of this Initial Study. The Geotechnical Report concluded that 

the project site is suitable for the project. 

Discussion 

ai) Less-than-Significant Impact. The Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act requires 

the delineation of zones by the California Department of Conservation, Geological 

Survey along sufficiently active and well-defined faults. The purpose of the Act is to 

restrict construction of structures intended for human occupancy along traces of known 

active faults. Alquist-Priolo Zones are designated areas most likely to experience surface fault 

rupture, although fault rupture is not necessarily restricted to those specifically zoned areas. 

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
rnltlal Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

RCHGroup 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

43 of 74



The City of Colfax is not a city that would be affected by the Alquist-Priolo Act. Rupture 

of the surface has not resulted from faulting associated with earthquakes in Colfax or 

Placer County. The most recent listing of Earthquake Fault Zones under the Alquist

Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act does not include either the City of Colfax or Placer 

County (DOC 2018). The Geotechnical Report concluded that the potential for fault 

rupture at the project site is low (Crawford & Associates, 2017). The project site is not 

located in an Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone and is not located on or immediately 

adjacent to an active fault. 2 Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant

impact. 

aii, aiii) Less-than-Significant Impact. Several factors influence the amount of ground shaking 

at any locality. The principal ones are the distance from the epicenter of the fault 

movement and the local bedrock-soil conditions. Bedrock areas will have a different 

shaking impact compared with areas underlain with softer, less consolidated materials. 

Soils most susceptible to liquefaction are clean, loose, saturated, uniformly graded, and 

fine-grained sands. The project would be designed using sound engineering judgment and 

would meet the latest California Building Code (CBC) requirements, which contain 

seismic design provisions. The project site is not known to be in the proximity of any 

active faults. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

a.iv) Less-than-Significant Impact. Slope failure due to mass movement processes under the 

influence of gravity can occur without an earthquake. Some of the most common 

conditions leading to slope failure include the types of materials (unconsolidated, soft 

sediments or surficial deposits will move downslope more easily than consolidated, hard 

bedrock), structural properties of materials, steepness of slopes, water, vegetation type, 

and earthquake-generated ground shaking. The project site slopes downward from west to 

east with a total elevation change across the site in the east to west direction of 

approximately 71 feet (Crawford & Associates, 2017). The project site contains relatively 

shallow rock and stiff soil above the rock (Crawford & Associates, 2017). The project 

site would be excavated/graded to create two relatively flat terraces and a retaining wall 

and/or slope would separate the two terraces. The City of Colfax's Hillside Development 

guidelines are in place to mitigate for landslides and mudflows due to development. 

Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

b) Less-than-Significant Impact. Earthwork estimates for the project indicate 11,050 cubic

yards of cut and 11,050 cubic yards of fill, for a balanced site. The project would have to

obtain a grading pennit prior to project construction and the project would be subject to

erosion and sediment control measures in Chapter 15.30 - Grading, Erosion and

Sediment Control of the City of Colfax Municipal Code. The Applicant would be

2 An active fault is defined b} the Slntc ofCnlifornin is n fault thnt has had surface displncement within Holocene time
(approximntely the last 11,000 years). A potentially nctive fault is defined as a fault thnt has shO\m evidence of 
surface displacement during the Quaternary (last 1.6 million years), unless direct geologic evidence demonstrates 
innctivity for nil of the Holocene or longer. This definition docs not, of course, mean that faults lacking evidence of 
surface displacement arc necessaril} inactive. Sufficiently active is also used to describe n fault irthere is some 
evidence that Holocene displocemenl occurred on one or more of its segments or brnnches. 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

27 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

44 of 74



required to prepare an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan and prior to issuance of the 

grading pennit, the City Engineer would review the grading permit application/grading 

plans and Geotechnical Report, and would require recommendations included in the 

Geotechnical Report to be incorporated into final grading plans and specifications. 

Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

c) Less-than-Significant Impact. The Geotechnical Report concluded that the project sile

is suitable for the proposed development. The City Engineer would review the

Geotechnical Report prior to issuance of the grading permit. The City of Colfax's

Hillside Development guidelines are in place to mitigate for landslides and mudflows due

to development. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact.

d) Less-than-Significant Impact. The Natural Resources Conservation Service in their Soil

Survey of Placer County identifies one soil type present at the project site, Mariposa

Josephine complex (5 to 30 percent slopes), which has a low expansion potential. The

project site is not expected to contain expansive soils that would create substantial risks

to life or property; however, the City engineer would make this determination during the

grading permit application process after review of the Geotechnical Report. The project

would be designed using sound engineering judgment and would meet the latest CBC

requirements for expansive soils, if present. Therefore, the project would have a less

than-significant impact.

e) No Impact. The project does not require the use of septic tanks or any other alternative

wastewaler disposal system. Therefore, the project would have no impact.

References 

City of Colfax. 2020 General Plan. Appendix A Hillside Development Guidelines, September 
1998. 

City of Colfax. Municipal Code, Chapter 15.30- Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control. 

Crawford & Associates, Inc. Geoteclmical Memorandum. Whitcomb Avenue Development 
Project, Colfax. CA. June 21, 2017. 

Department of Conservation. The Alquist-Prio/o Earthquake Fault Zoning Act. 
http://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/rghm/ap. Accessed February 16, 2018. 

Natural Resources Conservation Service. Soil Survey Placer County, California. Western Part. 
1980. 

Corporation Yard & BoaVRV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

23 RCH Group 
August 201B 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

45 of 74



Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

/ssuea (and Suppol1/ng Information Soun:es): 

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS
Would the project:

a} Generate greenhouse gas emissions. either directly or
Indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the
environment?

b) Conftict with an applicable plan. policy or regulation
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of 
greenhouse gases?

Introduction 

Potant/a/ly 
Significant 

Impact 

□ 

□ 

less Than 
Significant 

with less Than 
Mlt/gaUon Significant 

lncorporaf/on Impact No lmp•ct 

□ 181 □ 

□ 181 □ 

This greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions analysis is consistent with the methodology for project 

review and analysis as described in the PCAPCD' s CEQA Air Quality Handbook (PCAPCD, 2017). 

Additional information related to GHG emissions such as existing setting and regulations, as well 

as detailed construction and operational emissions inventories for the project is in Appendix A. 

Discussion 

a) Less-than-Significant Impact. CalEEMod was used to quantify temporary GHG

emissions associated with project construction activities, as well as long-term operational

GHG emissions produced by motor vehicles, natural gas combustion for space and water

heating, electricity use, area sources and solid waste disposal/landfilling. CalEEMod

incorporates GHG emission factors for the electric utility serving the project area, Pacific

Gas & Electric.

CalEEMod is sensitive to the year selected, since vehicle emissions have and continue to 

be reduced due to fuel efficiency standards and low carbon fuels. The operational year of 

2020 was analyzed since it is the first full year that the project could conceivably be 

occupied. Default rates for energy consumption were assumed in the model. Emissions 

rates associated with electricity consumption were adjusted to account for Pacific Gas & 

Electric utility's projected 2020 CO2 intensity rate. This 2020 CO2 intensity rate is based, 

in part, on the requirement of a renewable energy portfolio standard of33 percent by the 

year 2020. CalEEMod uses a default rate of 641 pounds of CO2 per megawatt of 

electricity produced. The 2020 CO2 intensity rate of 290 pounds of CO2 per megawatt of 

electricity produced was used (PG&E, 2015). 

The project's estimated construction GHG emissions are presented in Table 3. The 

estimated construction GHG emissions are I 06 metric tons of CO2e in 2019, which is less 

than the PCAPCD Bright-line significance threshold of 10,000 metric tons of CO2e per 

year. Construction GHG emissions are a one-time release and are, therefore, not typically 

expected to generate a significant contribution to global climate change in the long-term. 

Corporation Yard & BoaVRV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

29 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

46 of 74



Thus, the construction emissions from the project would have a less-than-significant 

impact. 

Table 3: Estimated Annual Greenhouse Gas Emissions (metric tons of C02e) 

Source Ann..t CChe Metric Tons 

2019 Construction Emissions I06 

PCAPCD Annual BriAht-line Threshold 10,000 

Potentially Sienificant (Yes or No)? No 

Operations 

Area Sources <0.00 

Enerl!v 16.7 

Mobile 69.7 

Solid Waste 2.8 

Waler 2.5 

Total Ooerationnl Emissions 91.7 

PCAPCD De Minimis Level Threshold 1.100 

Potentially Sitmificant (Yes or No)? No 

Source: CalEEMo<.I Version 2016.3.2. 

As shown in Table 3, the project's estimated operational GHG emissions are 

approximately 92 metric tons ofCO2e per year, which is below the PCAPCD De Minim is 

significance threshold of I, I 00 metric tons of CO2e per year. The PCAPCD considers 

projects with operational emissions less than I, 100 metric Ions of CO2e per year to be 

less than cumulatively considerable and excludes them from further GHG impact 

analysis. Thus, the operational emissions from the project woutd have a less-than

significant impact. 

b) Less-than-Significant Impact. The City of Colfax has not developed a Climate Action

Plan regarding the reduction of GHG emissions. The applicable plan, policy or regulation

adopted for the purpose of reducing the GHG emissions is Assembly Bill (AB) 32 and

other State regulations with post-2020 goals such as Executive Order S-3-05 and B-30-15

(GHG regulatory setting information is in Appendix A). The project would result in a

significant impact if it would conflict with AB 32 or post-2020 goals in other State

regulations. The assumption is that AB 32 and associated regulations and Executive

Orders will be successful in reducing GHG emissions and reducing the cumulative GHG

emissions statewide to meet 2020 goals and post-2020 goals. The State has taken these

measures, because no project individually could have a major impact (either positively or

negatively) on the global concentration of GHGs. The project has been reviewed relative

to the goals of AB 32 and associated regulations and Executive Orders and it has been

detennined that the project would not conflict with the State GHG reduction goals.

Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact.

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
lnillal Sludy I Milfgated Negative Dedaralion 

30 RCH Group 
August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

47 of 74



References 

user-

e _roi_ssfo 

Placer County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD), CEQA Air Quality Handbook, 
November 2017. http://www.placerair.org/landuseandceqa/cegaairgualitvhandbook 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

/ssuu (and Supporting lnfam,atlon SourcuJ: 

B. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS -
Would the project:

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through the routine transport, use, or
disposal of hazardous materials?

b) Create a significant hazard lo the public or the
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset
and accident conditions involving the release of
hazardous materials into the environment?

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or
acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste
within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed
school?

d) Be located on a site which is lnduded on a list of 
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result,
would it create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment?

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan
or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within
two miles of a public airport or public use airport,
would the project result in a safety hazard for people
residing or working in the project area?

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip,
would the project result in a safety hazard for people
residing or working in the project area?

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with
an adopted emergency response plan or emergency
evacuation plan?

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss,
injury or death Involving wildland fires, lnduding where
wildlands are adjacent lo urbanized areas or where
residences are intermixed with 'Midlands?

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

31 

Potent/ally 
Significant 

Impact 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

LusThan 
Significant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

Len Than 
Significant 

Impact 

� 

� 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

No/mpar:t 

□ 

□ 

□ 

� 

� 

� 

RCH Group 
August2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

48 of 74



Discussion 

a, b) Less-than-Significant Impact. During construction of the project. the use of hazardous 
substances would be limited in nature and subject to standard handling and storage 
requirements. The corporation yard would store trucks, construction equipment, 
pipes/culverts and a limited amount of aggregate material. The Boat/RV storage would 
consist of parked boat trailers and RVs. The project does not propose to use or store 
hazardous materials. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

c) Less-than-Significant Impact. The CORE Placer Charter School is approximately 800
feet southeast of the project site. No other schools are within one-quarter mile of the
project site. The project does not propose to use or store hazardous materials. Therefore,
the project would have no impact.

d) No Impact. The Department of Toxic Substances Control and State Water Resources
Control Board compile and update lists of hazardous material sites pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962.5. The project site is not included on the databases
maintained by the Department of Toxic Substances Control (Envirostor) and the State
Water Resources Control Board (Geotracker) (DTSC, 2018 and SWRCB, 2018).
Therefore, the project would have no impact.

e) No Impact. The project site is not located within an airport land use plan and is not
within two miles of a public airport. The nearest airport, Auburn.Municipal Airport, is
approximately 11 miles southwest of the project site. Therefore, the project would have
no impact.

f) No Impact. There are no known private airstrips within two miles of the project site. The
nearest private airport is the Alta Sierra Airport approximately six miles to the west of the
project site. Therefore, the project would have no impact.

g) No Impact. The project would not interfere with emergency response plans or evacuation
plans .. The project would not impede or require diversion of rescue vehicles or evacuation
traffic in the event of a life-threatening emergency. Therefore, the project would have no
impact.

h) No Impact. The project site is bordered by industrial, commercial and residential uses.
Development of the project would remove vegetation, which would reduce the risk of
wildland fires. Therefore, the project would have no impact.

References 

City of Colfax, 2020 General Plan Safety Element, September 1998. 

Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC), DTSC's Envirostor Database,
http://www. envi rostor .dtsc .ca1

gov/publ ic/map ful I .asp?global id•&x-= 
I I 9&v=37 &zl= I 8&ms=640.480&m�m&findaddress=True&citv=col fax&zip..-&county 
;&federal superfund=true&state response=true&voluntary cleanup=true&school clean 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Sludy / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

49 of 74



up=true&ca site=true&tiered perm ito:::true&evaluation=true&mi Ii tarv evaluation=true& 
school investigation-=true&operating=tru§&post closure=true&non_operating=tn.1�. 
accessed January 12, 2018. 

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), Geo/racker, 

http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/map/, accessed January 12, 2018. 

Hydrology and Water Quality 

lssuH (and Supporflng Information Sourceii): 

9. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY -

Would the project:

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste
discharge requirements?

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such
that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a
lowering of the local groundwater table level (e g ..• the
production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would
drop to a level which would not support existing land
uses or planned uses for which permits have been
granted).?

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of a
site or area through the alteration of the course of a
stream or river. or by other means. in a manner that
would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or 
off-site?

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of a site 
or area through the alteration of the course of a stream 
or river, or by other means, substantially Increase the 
rate or amount of surface runoff In a manner that would
result in flooding on- or off.site? 

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed 
the capacity of existing or planned stormwater
drainage systems or provide substantial additional
sources of polluted runoff?

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?

g) Place housing within a 1 DO-year Hood hazard area as
mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood
Insurance Rate Map or other nood hazard delineation
map?

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures
that would impede or redirect flood flows?

I) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of
loss, injury or death involving flooding, including
flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?

j) Expose people or structures lo a significant risk of
loss, Injury or death Involving inundation by seiche,
tsunami, or mudflow?

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

33 

Less Than 
Significant 

Potent/ally with 
Significant Mitigation 

lmpar:t /ncorpanlllon 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

Less Than 
Slgnlfleant 

Impact 

181 

181 

181 

□ 

□ 

□ 

181 

Nolmpar:t 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

181 

181 

181 

□ 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

50 of 74



Introduction 

The Drainage Study prepared by Giuliani and Kull, Inc. for the project is Appendix F of this 
Initial Study (Giuliani and Kull, Inc., 2017). 

The Clean Water Act (CWA) has nationally regulated the discharge of pollutants to waters of the 
U.S. from any point source since 1972. In 1987, amendments to the CWA added section 402(p), 
which established a framework for regulating non-point source stormwater discharges under the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). Projects that disturb one or more 
acres are required to obtain coverage under the General Permit for Discharges of Storm water 
Associated with Construction Activity, Construction General Permit (CGP) Order 2009-0009-
DWQ. 

General Permit applicants are required to submit (to the appropriate regional board) Permit 
Registration Documents, which include a Notice oflntent, an annual fee, and a Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). Additional requirements include compliance with post 
construction standards focusing on Low Impact Development (LID), preparation of Rain Event 
Action Plans, and specific certification requirements for specific project personnel. A SWPPP 
must include implementing Best Management Practices (BMPs) to reduce construction effects on 
receiving water quality by implementing erosion control measures and reducing or eliminating 
non-stormwater discharges. 

Discussion 

a,t) Less-than-Significant Impact. Contaminated runoff from the project site could 
potentially cause negative water quality impacts during project construction and after 
project development. During construction, the increased area of disturbed soils would 
result in increased erosion and potentially introduce sediment into storrnwater during rain 
events. After construction is completed, the increased runoff from areas of new 
impervious surfaces could increase the potential for erosion and the amount of sediment 
in stormwater runoff. 

Coverage under the General Construction Stormwater Permit would be obtained prior to 
construction activities. As part of the requirements of the General Permit, a SWPPP 
would be prepared for the project. The SWPPP would be designed to reduce or eliminate 
pollutant discharges to waters. The SWPPP practices would apply to both the original 
construction and the site improvements. It would specify the implementation of site
specific BMPs. Monitoring of the BMPs would be performed pursuant to the 
requirements of the General Permit. Implementation of BMPs would help the project 
comply with storrnwater discharge water quality criteria by capturing pollutants before 
they enter the waterways. 

Monitoring of BMPs would be performed during construction under the General 
Construction Storrnwater Permit. Monitoring consists of performing routine and storm-

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negatlve Declaration 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

51 of 74



based site inspections and making specific recommendations to the project manager, such 

as installing additional BMPs and performing maintenance on existing BMPs. 

A grading permit would be required prior to project construction and the project would be 

subject to erosion and sediment control measures in Chapter 15.30 - Grading, Erosion 

and Sediment Control of the City of Colfax Municipal Code. An Erosion Control Plan 

would also be prepared and included in the project's final plans as well as in the SWPPP. 

Coverage under the General Construction Stormwater Pennit, preparation of a SWPPP 

and the Erosion Control Plan would help ensure no water quality or waste discharge 

requirements are violated and reduce the potential for substantially degrading water 

quality. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

b) Less-than-Significant Impact. The City of Colfax is not heavily reliant on groundwater.

The Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) would supply water for the project. Water

from the Yuba-Bear and American River watersheds and snow pack runoff supplement

the PCWA. The additional water demand would not cause groundwater levels in the

City's aquifers to decline. The project would not substantially deplete groundwater

supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge. Therefore, the project would 

have a less-than-significant impact.

c, d, e) Less-than-Significant Impact. The current drainage pattern of the site is by overland 

flow that migrates in a southeasterly direction collecting in a natural rough drainage ditch 

to site outfall. From the site outfall ditch, it transitions into a paved swale that discharges 

into an existing 48" high-density polyethylene stonn.drain at the overall basin outfall into 

an unnamed drainage creek/channel at the intersection of Mink Creek Drive and South 

Auburn Street. From that point, runoff travels underneath 1-80 via culvert, ultimately 

joining the South Fork American River. 

The project would follow the existing drainage pattern of the project site and vicinity, and 

would not alter the course of any stream or river. The overall drainage pattern for the 

project would be sheet flow collecting into vegetated swales that would discharge into a 

piped storm drain system. The storm drain system would discharge into a riprap-lined 

channel that would connect to an existing 48" storm drain outfall. Due to adequate 

downstream hydraulic capacity and negligible changes in overall runoff rates at outfall, 

the project would not require on-site detention or off-site downstream improvements 

(Giuliani and Kull, Inc, 2017). 

The project would have to obtain a grading permit prior to project construction and the 

project would be subject to erosion and sediment control measures in Chapter 15.30-

Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control of the City of Colfax Municipal Code. The 

Applicant would be required to prepare an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan and prior 

to issuance of the grading pennit; the City Engineer would review the Drainage Report as 

part of the grading permit application. Thus, impacts related to drainage, erosion/siltation, 

Corporation Yard & BoaVRV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration 

35 RCH Group 
August 201B 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

52 of 74



flooding and runoff would not be expected. Therefore, the project would have a less-than
signi ficant impact. 

g, h) No Impact. According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA 's) 
National Flood Insurance Program, the project is not located within a I 00-year flood 
hazard area. Therefore, the project would have no impact. 

i) No Impact. The City of Colfax is not tocated near a damn or levee. Therefore, the project
would haye no impact.

j) Less-than-Significant Impact. The City of Colfax is not in close proximity to the ocean
or a landlocked sea; therefore, the City is not at risk ofinundation from a seiche or
tsunami. The project site is relatively flat, and there would not be a substantial risk of
landslides or mudtlows. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impacl.

References 

City of Colfax, Municipal Code, Chapter 15.30 - Grading. Erosion and Sedime111 Control. 

FEMA. Flood Insurance Rate Map. Placer County, California and Incorporated Area (Map 
Number 0606/C0125 F), June 8, 1998. 

Giuliani and Kull, Inc. Preliminary Storm Drainage Report for Colfax Partners Commercial 
Development. July 2017. 

United States EPA. National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System General Permit for 
Discharges from Construction Activities, February 6, 2012. 

Land Use and Land Use Planning 

Less Than 
Slgnlrtr:ant 

Pot•nllally wllh La.rs Than 
Slr,nifir:ant Mlllgatlon Slgnlflr:ant 

Issues (and Supporting lnronnatlon Sources): lmpar:t lnr:orporallon lmpar:I Nolmpar:t 

10. LAND USE AND LAND USE PLANNING -
Would the project:

a) Physically divide an established community?

b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy. or 
regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the 
project (including. but not limited lo the general plan. 
specific plan. local coastal program, or zoning 
ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or
mitigating an environmental effect?

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan
or natural community conservation plan?

Discussion 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ □ 181

□ □ 181

□ □ 

a-c) No Impact. The project would not physically divide an established community. The 
project site is designated Industrial in the Colfax General Plan and is zoned Industrial. 

Corporation Yard & Boat/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negalive Declaration 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

53 of 74



The project would not change the land use designation or zoning of the project site. The 

City of Colfax constructed public facilities within the Colfax Industrial Park to promote 

development. The project would comply with the City of Colfax General Plan and the 

City of Colfax Zoning Ordinance. The City of Colfax does not have an adopted Habitat 

Conservation Plan or Natural Community Conservation plan. Therefore, the project 

would have no impact. 

References 

City of Colfax. 2020 General Plan Land Use Element, September 1998. 

City of Colfax. Municipal Code City of Colfax California, Title 17 Zoning. 

Mineral Resources 

ls.sues (and Supporting lnfonn■lion Soun:es): 

11. MINERAL RESOURCES -Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral
resource that would be of value lo the region and the
residents of the stale?

b) Result in the loss of avallabllity of a locally Important
mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local
general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

Discussion 

Polflntl■lly 
Significant 

Impact 

□ 

□ 

L■ssThan 
Significant 

with 

Mltlgatlo,i 
Incorporation 

□ 

□ 

Les-1 Than 
Slgnfflcant 

Impact No Impact 

□ 1:81

□ 1:81

a-b) No Impact. The California Department of Conservation Division of Mines and 

Geology's Mine and Prospect Location Map of Placer County, California ( 1995) does 

not identify any documented mines or prospects near the project site. The project site 

does not contain a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local 

general plan, specific plan or other land use plan. Therefore, the project would have no 

impact. 

References 

Department of Conservation, Division of Mines and Geology (DMG), Mine and Prospect Location 
Map of Placer County, California, 1995. 

Corporation Yard & Boat/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study f Mitigated Negative Declaration 

37 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

54 of 74



Noise 

Less Than 
Sign/ff cant 

Potentially with L11.1s Than 
Significant Mitigation Significant 

Issues (and Supponing lnfonnallon Sotm:es}: Impact lnco,porallon Impact No Impact 

12. NOISE - Would the project:

a) Result in exposure of persons to, or generation of, □ □ 181 □ 
nolse levels In excess of standards established In lhe
local general plan or notse ordinance, or applicable
standards of other agencies?

b) Result In exposure of persons to or generation of. □ □ 181 □ 
excessive groundbome vibration or groundbome
noise levels?

c) Result in a substantial permanent increase fn ambient □ □ 181 □ 
noise levels in the project vlcll'lity above levels existing
without the project?

d) Result In a substantial temporary or pefiod:c Increase □ □ l:8l □ 
in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above
tevels existing wilhoul the project?

e) For a project localed within an airport land use plan □ □ □ l:8l 
area, or, where such a plan has not been adopted, in
an area within two miles of a public airport or public
use airport, would the project expose peopte residing
or working In the area lo excessive noise levels?

f) For a project located in the vicinity of a private airstrip. □ □ □ 
would the project expose people res[dlng or working in
the project area lo excessive noise levels?

Introduction 

This noise analysis includes a Noise Appendix (Appendix 8). The Noise Appendix includes 

background noise information, 24-hour noise plots, and a map of the noise measurement 

locations. 

Noise Stamlartls 

State Guidelines 

The State Land Use Compatibility standards for Community Noise (Table 4 of the Noise 

Appendix) indicate that for Industrial Land Uses, a Community Noise Exposure up to 75 dB (Ldn 

or CNEL) is Nonnally Acceptable, and a Community Noise Exposure up to 80 dB (Ldn or 

CNEL) is Conditionally Acceptable. 

City of Colfax General Plan 

The City of Colfax has adopted the State Land Use Compatibility standards for Community Noise 

for new development. 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial SIU<ly / Mitigated Negative Declaratlon 

38 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

55 of 74



City of Colfax Noise Ordinance 

Chapter 8.28 of the City of Colfax municipal code (noise ordinance) is applicable to the project: 

8.28.010 Noise Standards.

It is unlawful for any person to make or continue or cause to be made or continued, any loud, 

unnecessary or unusual noise or any noise which either annoys, disturbs, injures or endangers the 

comfort, repose, health, safety or peace of others within the city when not in the normal or usual 

conduct of commercial or industrial business. 

Construction or Repair of Buildings 

a. The performance of any construction, alteration or repair activities which require the

issuance of any building, grading, or other permit may occur only during the

following hours:

i. Monday through Friday: six a.m. to six p.m.;

ii. Saturdays: eight a.m. to five p.m.;

iii. Sundays and observed holidays: eight a.m. to five p.m.

b. Any noise from the above activities, including from any equipment used therewith,

shall not produce noise levels in excess of the following:

i. Saturdays: eighty (80) dBA when measured at the property line or at a

distance of twenty-five (25) feet, whichever is greater.

11. Sundays and observed holidays: seventy (70) dBA when measured at the

property line or at a distance of twenty-five (25) feet, whichever is greater.

c. The building official may grant a permit for building activities during other periods

for emergency work or extreme hardship. "Emergency work" means work made

necessary to restore property to a safe condition following a public calamity or work

required to protect persons or property from an imminent exposure to danger. Any

permit so granted shall be of specified limited duration and may be subject to any

conditions necessary to limit or minimize the effect of any noise permitted thereby.

Discussion 

a), d) Less-than-Significant Impact. 

Existi11g Noise 

Residences border the project site to the south/southeast, a corporation yard for an 

engineering firm to the west, a commercial development to the east and Whitcomb 

A venue to the north. A railroad track runs north-south 350 feet to the west of the project 

site. 

Corporation Yard & BoaVRV Storage Project 
lnlllal Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

39 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

56 of 74



I 

To quantify existing ambient noise levels in the immediate project vicinity, RCH Group 

conducted long-term (72-hour) measurements at two locations (Sites 1 and 2), and short

term (10-minute) measurements at five locations (Sites 1-5). 

These noise measurements were made using Metrosonics db308 sound level meters, 

calibrated before and after the measurements, and are summarized in Table 4 below. In 

general, the project site is a quiet location. The dominant sources of existing noise are 

passing trains and traffic on 1-80. 

Table : ustm2 OISC 4 E .  ' N '  M easurcments

tocatlon 1Ilme Peric81 

. - �T 

Site I. South comer of site, Monday 
near proposed location of February 19, 2018 
Corporation Yard buildiBg. 

9:46-9:56 a.m. 

Site 1. South comer of site, Tuesday February 20, 
near proposed location of 12:00 a.m. lhrough 
Corporation Yard building. Thursday February 22, 

11 :59 p.m., 2018 

72-hour measurement

Site I. South corner of site, Friday 
near proposed location of February 23. 2018 
Corporation Yard building. 

9:30-9:40 a.m. 

Site 2. Northwest edge of Monday 
site, north of existing road February 19, 2018 

l0:37-10:47 a.m. 

Site 2. Northwest edge of Tuesday February 20, 
site, north of existing road 12:00 a.m. through 

Thursday February 22, 
11:59 p.m., 2018 

72-hour measurement

Corporation Yard & BoallRV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

11 
N Oise Levels 

i" (dB) 

5-minute Leg's:
42,42

Hourly Leq's 
ranged from: 

42-59

CNELs: 55, 56, 
56 

5-minute Leg's:
50,52 

5-minute Leq's:
45,42 

Hourly Leq's 
ranged from: 

45-62

CNELs: 58, 59, 
59 

�. ·--

Noise Sources 

Vehicle on Winder Road is 45 
B. Distant traffic is up to 43
dB. Background noise is
<41.5 dB. Quieter noises
include birds, cat meowing,
dog barking, and wind
rustling leaves.

Unattended noise 
measurements do not 
specifically identify noise 
sources. 

Train is 66 dB. Freeway 
traffic is 47-53 dB. Car 
passing through site is 51 dB. 
Quieter noises include birds, 
drainpipe, voices, insects, and 
wind. 

Garbage truck on Whitcomb 
Avenue is 61 dB. Distant 
traffic is up to 45 dB. 
Background noise is <41.5 
dB. Quieter noises include 
birds and wind rustling 
leaves. 

Unattended noise 
measurements do not 
specifically identify noise 
sources. 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

57 of 74



Site 2. Northwest edge of Friday 5-minute Leq's:

site, north of existing road February 23, 2018 
53, 51 

9:55-10:05 a.m. 

Sile 3. Enlrance to the site, Monday 5-minute Leq's:

at the end of Whitcomb February 19, 2018 
43,42 

Avenue 
12:51-1:01 p.m. 

Site 3. Entrance to the site, Friday 5-minule Leq's:

at the end of Whitcomb February 23, 2018 
44,44 

Avenue 
11:17-11:27 a.m. 

Site 4. Southeast comer of Monday 5-minule Leq's:

site February 19, 2018 
43,43 

1:15-1:25 p.m. 

Site 4. Southeast comer of Friday 5-minule Leq's:

sile February 23, 2018 
42,42 

11:35-11:45 a.m. 

Site 5. Northeasl edge of Monday 5-minute Leq's:

site, wilhin the culvert February 19, 2018 
45, 42 

I :32-1 :42 p.m. 

Site 5. Northeast edge of Friday 5-minute Leq's:

site, within the culvert February 23, 2018 
43,43 

11 :49-11 :59 a.m. 

Source: RCH Group, 2018 

Note: Sec Noise Appendix for a mnp of noise measurement site locations. 

Corporalion Yard & Boat/RV Storage Project 
Initial Sludy / Mitigated Negative Declaralion 

-41 

Distant traffic is 49-59 dB. 
Car on Whitcomb A venue is 
52 dB. Break in traffic is 46 
dB. Quieter noises include 
birds, drips from melting 
snow, voices, a dog barking, a 
car starting, and a back-up 
beep. 

Distant traffic is up to 48 dB. 
Car pulling in to Sierra 
Horticulture is 46 dB. Car 
pulling out of Sierra 
Horticulture is 44 dB. 
Background noise is <41.5 
dB. Quieter noises include 
birds. 

Distant traffic is 42-48 dB. 
Car exiting Sierra 
Horticulture is 46 dB. 
Background noise is <41.5 
dB. Quieter noises include 
wind, birds, and insects. 

Wind is 55 dB. Airplane is 50 
dB. A yell is 44 dB. 
Background noise is <41.5 
dB. Quieter noises include 
birds, voices, wind chimes, 
and distant traffic. 

Baby crying is 44-47 dB. Car 
on Whitcomb Avenue is 43 
dB. Background noise is 
<41.5 dB. Quieter noises 
include voices, distant traffic, 
birds, wind chimes, a dog 
barking, and a train whistle. 

Passing train is up to 50 dB. 
Dislant traffic is up to 44 dB. 
Background noise is <41.5 
dB. Quieter noises include 
birds, voices, and a distant 
train whistle. 

Crow is 49 dB. Train is 47-49 
dB. Distant traffic is 42-46 
dB. Train whistle is 42 dB. 
Background noise is <41.6 
dB. 

RCH Group 
Augusl 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

58 of 74



Impacts of Existi11g Noise Levels on F11t11re Te11ants 

From the 72-hour measurements, the average noise level at the proposed location of the 

Corporation Yard Building (Site I) was 55-56 dB CNEL. Noise levels would not exceed 

the 75 dB Ldn standard for Industrial uses. Therefore, the project would have a less-than

significant impact. 

Temporary Constr11ctio11 Noise 

The primary noise impact of lhe project would be the impact of noise from construction 

on nearby residences. Nearby residences would be sensitive receptors for the construction 

noise. Project construction activities would cause a temporary increase of ambient noise 

levels in the project vicinity. After construction, noise in the project vicinity would not 

differ from existing conditions. 

Construction activities would include removal of vegetation and trees, grading, utility 

work, building construction and paving. These activities would require the use of 

numerous pieces of noise-generating equipment. 

Construction worker traffic and construction-related haul trips would generate noise and 

incrementally raise ambient noise levels along local haul routes, dependin,g on the 

number of haul trips made and types of vehicles used. Construction activities and 

associated traffic would occur primarily during the daytime. 

Construction activities associated with the project would be temporary, would move 

throughout the project site, and would comply with the City of Colfax municipal code. 

Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

b) Less-than-Significant Impact. Construction would occur no closer than 25 feet from the

nearest residential structures. Construction would not require the use of pile drivers. As

shown in Table 4 of the Noise Appendix (Appendix B), the predicted vibration levels

from construction equipment other than pile drivers at a distance of 25 feet would not

exceed the 0.5 in/sec PPV threshold for residential and commercial structures. Therefore,

the project would have a less-than-significant impact.

c) Less-than-Significant Impact. After construction, impacts from the project would

include any operational noise that would affect surrounding land uses. Operational noise

from the project could include traffic to and from the project site, truck loading, and

parking lot noise. These noise sources are relatively quiet and would not likely result in a

perceptible change in noise levels at nearby sensitive receptors. Noise levels from project

operations would be considered compatible with the surrounding land uses and all City of

Colfax noise standards. Any permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the projecc

vicinity would not be substantially greater than existing levels without the project.

Therefore. I.he project would have a less-than-significant impact.

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

42 RCH Group 
August 201B 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

59 of 74



e) No Impact. The project site is not located within an airport land use plan or within two
miles of a public or public use airport. The project would not expose people working or
visiting in the project area to excessive airport noise levels. Therefore, the project would
have no impact.

f) No Impact. There are no private airstrips located near the project site and, therefore, the
project would not expose future employees and visitors to excessive aircraft noise levels.
The project would not increase onsite exposure to aircraft noise. Therefore, the project
would have no impact.

References 

Caltrans. Technical Noise Supplement. 1998. 

Caltrans. Transportation Related Earthborne Vibrations, prepared by the Division of 
Environmental Analysis, Office of Noise, Air Quality, and Hazardous Waste 
Management. 2002. 

Caltrans. Transportation- and Construclion-Induced Vibration Guidance Manual, Prepared by 
Jones & Stokes. 2004. 

City of Colfax. General Plan Noise Element. 

City of Colfax. Municipal Code, Chapter 8.28 Noise Standards. 

Federal Transit Administration. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment (FTA-V A-90-
1003-06). 2006. 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Legal Compilation. 1973. 

Population and Housing 

Less Than 
Significant 

Potent/ally wllh l.ess Than 
Slgnlflc1mt Mitigation Slgnfflcant 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): Impact Incorporation Impact No Impact 

13. POPULATION AND HOUSING -Would the project:

a) Induce substantial population growth In an area, either □ □ □ � 
directly (for example, by proposing new homes and
businesses) or Indirectly (for example, through
extension of roads or other Infrastructure)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing □ □ □ 181 
units. necessitating the construction of replacement
housing elsewhere?

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating □ □ □ 181 
the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

Discussion 

a-c) No Impact. The project site is zoned industrial and the project would not construct new 
residences or displace existing housing or people. The project would not increase 

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Dedaration 

43 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

60 of 74



population because workers at the offices of the proposed Corporation Yard already 

live/work in Colfax and the neighboring communities of Colfax.Therefore, the project 

would have no impact. 

Public Services 

Potent/ally 
Significant 

lssuH (and Supporting Information Sources}: Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

with 
MltlgatJon 

Incorporation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact No Impact 

14. PUBLIC SERVICES - Would the project: 

a) Resut in substantial adverse physical impacts associated 
with the provision of, or the need for. new or physically
allered governmental facilities, lhe construction of
which could cause significant environmental impacts,
in order to maintain acceptable service ratios. response
times, or other performance objectives for any of the
following public services:

i) Fire prolection? D 
ii) Police protection? D 
iii) Schools? D 
iv) Parks? D 
11) Other public facilities? O 

Discussion 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

181 

181 

□ 

□ 

□ 

a.i) Less-than-Significant Impact. The Colfax Fire Department (CFD) and the California 

Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (Cal-Fire) have entered into a mutual aid 

agreement to provide fire protection to Colfax and the project site. The Colfax Fire 

Station and Cal-Fire JO Colfax Station are both roughly one-half mile from the project 

sile. 

□ 

□ 

181 

181 

181 

The project would not create the need for new fire facilities, but would be required to pay 

applicable impact fees for fire protection. The project would have to comply with 

provisions for fire hydrants within the City of Colfax Municipal Code, and the Fire Chief 

and City Engineer would review any required fire hydrant type and locations. Therefore, 

the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

a.ii) Less-than-Significant Impact. The City of Colfax contracts its law enforcement needs 

through the Placer County Sheriffs Office at 10 Culver Street. The Colfax Substation is 

manned by a Sergeant, four City dedicated deputies, two resident deputies and senior 

volunteers. The main Placer County Sherifrs Office at 2929 Richardson Drive in 

Auburn. The nearest CHP station is in the town of Gold Run and their units are available 

to Colfax. The closest station to the project site is the Placer County Sherriffs Office 

approximately one-half mile from the project site. The project would not create the need 

Corporalion Yard & Boat/RV Storage Project 
tnilial Study I Mitigated Negative Oedaralion 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

61 of 74



for new police protection facilities, but would be required to pay applicable impact fees 

for police protection. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

a.iii) No Impact. Colfax Elementary School District provides educational services for the City 

of Colfax. Colfax Elementary is at 24825 Ben Taylor Road. Colfax High School is part of 

the Placer Union School District. Colfax High School is at 24995 Ben Taylor Road. Core 

Placer Charter School is approximately 800 feet southeast of the project site. The project 

would not increase population because workers at the offices of the proposed Corporation 

Yard already live/work in Colfax and the neighboring communities of Colfax, thus it 

would not create the need for new school facilities. Therefore, the project would have a 

less-than-significant impact. 

a.iv) No Impact. The City of Colfax currently has four parks totaling 3.26 acres. The project 

would not include residential uses or increase population, thus it would not require the 

construction of new recreational facilities. Therefore, the project would have a less-than

significant impact. 

a.v) No Impact. The project would have no impact on the provision of any other public 

facilities. The project would not require the construction of new governmental facilities 

or require physically altering existing facilities to maintain the City's public services. 

Therefore, the project would have no impact. 

Recreation 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sou�•sJ: 

15. RECREATION-Would the project: 

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional
parks or other recreational facililies such that
substantial physical deterioration of the facilities would
occur or be accelerated?

b) Include recreational facilities or require the
construction or expansion of recreational facilities that
might have an adverse physical effect on the
environment?

Discussion 

Potent/ally 
Significant 

Impact 

□ 

□ 

Less Than 
Sign/ff cant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

□ 

□ 

Less Than 
Slgnfflcant 

Impact 

□ 

□ 

No Impact 

a-b) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project would not increase the use of existing 

recreational facilities nor would it include recreational facilities or require the 

construction or expansion of recreational facilities. Therefore, the project would have no 

impact. 

Corporation Yard & BoaVRV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

62 of 74



Transportation and Traffic 

Less Than 
Significant 

Potent/ally with Less Than 
Significant Mitigation Significant 

Issues (and Supporting Information Soun:es): Impact Incorporation Impact No Impact 

16. TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC-

Would the project:

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy □ □ □ 
establlshing measures of effectiveness for the
perfonnance of the circulation system. taking into
account a2 modes of transpoftation including mass
transit and non.motorized travel and relevant
components of the circulation system, induding but not
limited to intersections. streets. highways and freeways,
pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit?

b) Conflict ...,;th an applicable congestlon management □ □ □ 
program, including, but not limited to, level of service
standards and lravel demand measures. or other
standards established by lhe county congestion 
management agency for designated roads or highways? 

c) Result in a change In air traffic patterns, including □ □ □ 181 
either an Increase in traffic levels or a change In 
location. that results in substantial safety risks?

d) Substantially Increase hazards due to a design feature □ □ □ 181 
(e.g .• sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or
Incompatible uses (e g., farm equipment)?

e) Result In Inadequate emergency access? □ □ □ 181 

I) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs □ □ □ 181 
regarding public transit. bicycle. or pedestrian facilities,
or otherwise decrease the perfonnance or safety of 
such facilities?

Discussion 

a-b) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project site is at the end of the Whitcomb Avenue 

cul-de-sac in the Colfax Industrial Park, which was developed and approved for this type 

of project The project site would be accessed via South Auburn Street to Whitcomb 

Avenue. 

Project operations would generate approximately 76 total trips per day during the week, 

with less trips on weekends (66 trips per day from the corporation yard and IO per day 

from the Boat/RV storage). This would translate to a total of approximately 10 a.m. peak 

hour trips and IO p.m. peak hour trips per day (nine peak hour trips from the corporation 

yard and one peak hour trip from the Boat/RV slorage).3 The Colfax Hotel IS/MND was

estimated to generate 577 daily trips, 32 a.m. peak hour trips, and 41 a.m. peak hour trips 

to South Auburn Street, and was found to not exceed the City's minimum Level of 

Service {LOS) C standard.4 Thus, the small number daily trips and peak hour trips during

project operations would not cause LOS at any intersection in the project vicinity to 

exceed the City's minimum LOS C standard. 

3 loslitutc ofTnmsportalion Engineers. Trip Ge11emticm 9'h £,iilion, 2012. 
4 Cily ofColfa,"• Colfax /-/01d Project !11itial St11dy1 Mitigated Negati,•e Declaration, May 2018. 

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
Initial Study / 9Ailigated Negative Dedaration 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

63 of 74



The project would not conflict with any plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures 
of effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system. The project would not 
conflict with a congestion management program as the City of Colfax has not adopted 
such plan. The project would not cause LOS at any intersection in the project vicinity to 
exceed the City's minimum LOS C standard. The project would be subject to the City's 
Traffic mitigation fee. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

c) No Impact. The project site is 11 miles from the Auburn Municipal Airport. The project
site is small and the project would not change air traffic patterns. Therefore, the project
would have no impact.

d) No Impact. The project would not involve any new hazardous design features nor
introduce any new uses that may be incompatible with transportation. The project access
is at the end of a cul-de-sac intended for access to the project site. Therefore, the project
would have no impact.

e) No Impact. The project would not affect emergency response routes. Therefore, the
project would have no impact.

f) No Impact. The project would not decrease the performance or safety of public transit,
bicycle, or pedestrian facilities. Therefore, the project would have no impact.

References 

City of Colfax, Colfax Hotel Project Initial Study! Mitigated Negative Declaration, May 2018. 

Institute of Transportation Engineers, Trip Generation 91
" Edition, 2012. 

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 

-41 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

64 of 74



Tribal Cultural Resources 

Issue& (and Supporting Jnforff!atlon SourcesJ: 

17. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES -
Would the project cause a substantial adverse
change In the significance of a tribal cultural resource,
defined In Public Resources Code section 21074 as 
elther a site, feature. place, cultural landscape lhat is 
geographically defined in terms of the size and scope 
of the landscape, sacred place. or object with cultural 
value to a Callfomla Native American tribe, and that ts. 

a) Listed or eligible for listing In the California Register of
Historical Resources. or In a local register of historical
resources as defined In Public Resources Code section
5020.1 (k), or

b) A resource detennlned by the lead agency. in its 
discralion and supported by substantial evidence. to be
significant pursuant to aiteria set forth In subdivision (c) 
of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying
the criteria set forth jn subdivision (c) of Public 
Resources Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall 
consider the significance of the resource to a California 
Native American Tnbe. 

Discussion 

Potentially 
S/gn/f1cant 

Impact 

□ 

□ 

Les., Than 
Slgnfflcant 

with 
Mitigation 

lncorporat1011 

□ 

Leu Than 
Sfgn/f1cant 

Impact 

□ 

No Impact 

□ 

□ 

a) Less-than-Significant Impact. As discussed in the Cultural Resources section

discussion, there are no archaeological or built environment resources at the project site

and no cultural resources were previously recorded within the project area (NIC, 2018).

Thus, the project does not have the potential to cause a significant impact on any resource

that currently qualifies as a historical resource, or that has been recommended eligible for

listing in the NRHP or CRHR. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant

impact.

b) Less-than-Significant Impact with Mitigation. As discussed in the Cultural Resources

section discussion, the potential for discovery of buried archaeological or paleontological

resources is considered low (NIC, 2018). No tribal cultural resources (TCRs) are known

to exist within the project area (NIC, 2018). No tribes requested AB52 consultation.

Natural Investigations contacted the NAHC requesting a search of their Sacred Lands 

File for traditional cultural resources within or near the project site. The NAHC replied 

that sacred sites were identified in the project vicinity and to directly contact the Colfax

Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe for more information regarding potential TCRs or 

sacred sites. Natural Investigations contacted the Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe 

requesting information regarding sacred lands, TC Rs or other heritage sites that could be 

afTected by the project. The Tribe's Cultural Preservation representative, Pamela Cubbler, 

provided maps of the project area, the NAHC response letter and the results of the NCIC 

record search, specificaUy the record for a previously documented archaeological site 

Corporation Yard & BoaVRV Storage Project 
tnitial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

48 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

65 of 74



mapped within a quarter mile of the project site. Natural Investigations and Ms. Cubbler 

determined it was prudent to have a Tribal representative present during the pedestrian 

survey of the project site. At conclusion of the pedestrian survey of the project site, on 

behalfofthe Tribe, Ms. Cubbler, who participated in the negative field survey, agreed the 

potential for buried cultural resources is low and stated that there was no reason for 

Tribal monitoring during project construction (NIC, 2018). 

Should any TCRs be discovered during ground disturbing activities for the project the 

implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-1 and CUL-2 would reduce impacts to a 

less-than-significant level. 

References 

Natural Investigations Company. Cultural and Paleonto/ogical Resources Inventory/or the 

Colfax Partners Corporation Yard and RV/Boat Storage Project, January 3, 2018. 

Utilities and Service Systems 

Issues (and Supporting Information Sources): 

17. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS-
Would the project: 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the
applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or 
wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities. the construction of which could
cause significant environmental effects?

c) Require or result in the construction of new 
stormwater drainage facilities. or expansion of existing
facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant environmental effects?

d) Have sufficient waler supplies available to serve the 
project from existing entitlements and resources. or
are new or expanded entitlements needed?

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment
provider that would serve the project that ii has
adequate capacity to serve the project's projected 
demand In addition lo the provider's existing 
commitments?

I) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted
capacity to accommodate the project's solid waste
disposal needs? 

g) Comply with federal, stale. and local statutes and 
regulations related to solid waste? 

Corporation Yard & BoaVRV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Leu Than 
Slgnltfeant 

Potentlally with 

Sls,nlf1eant Mitigation 
Imp.et lneorporatlon 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ 

Less Than 
Slgnlfleant 

lmpaet 

181 

181 

181 

181 

181 

181 

Nolmpaet 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

66 of 74



Discussion 

a. b, e) Less-than-Significant Impact. The City owns and operates three sewer infrastructure

systems that service the City and some out-of-city-limits residents. The system includes 

the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP), a sewer collection system and sewer lift 

stations. The systems provide primary and secondary treatment of sanitary wastewater as 
well as treatment and conditioning of the solids removed at the treatment plant. The 

Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Valley Region, permits the WWTP under 
the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) pennit, No. CA0079529, 

Order R5-2013-0045. Under the NPDES pennit waste discharge requirements (WDRs), the 
City of Colfax is allowed to operate the WWTP up to an average daily dry weather 

discharge flow of 0.275 million gallons per day. 

The project would not require or result in the construction or expansion of a new water or 

wastewater treatment facility. The project would connect to the City's sewer system. The 

City of Colfax extended sanitary sewer lines to the Colfax Industrial park to promote 

development. The sewer collection system would be designed to the satisfaction of the City 

of Colfax and the Placer County Environmental Health Department. T11e project would be 

required to pay the City's applicable sewer impact fee. The type of wastewater to be 

produced by the project would be typical of wastewater already collected and treated at the 

WWTP. The WWTP is capable of handling and treating wastewater from the project to the 

treatment requirements of the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

Construction of the on-site sewer improvements would be subject to erosion and 
sediment control measures in Chapter 15.30 - Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control of 

the City of Colfax Municipal Code. Therefore, the project would have less-than-significant 

impact. 

The project would extend the existing PCWA water line. The City of Colfax extended the 

water line to the Colfax Industrial park to promote development. Construction of the on

site water pipeline extension would be subject to erosion and sediment control measures 

in Chapter 15.30- Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control of the City of Colfax 

Municipal Code. Therefore, the project would have less-than-significant impact. 

c) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project would not require on-site detention or off•

site downstream storm drainage improvements (Giuliani and Kull, Inc, 20 I 7). Therefore,

the project would have a less-than-significant impact.

d) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project would be served by the PCW A. The PCW A

makes commitments for service only upon execution ofa facilities agreements and

payment of all fees required by the PCWA. The project would enter into a facilities

agreement and pay all applicable fees. The project would not result in new or expanded

water entitlements. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact.

f, g) Less-than-Significant Impact. Recology collects solid waste in the City of Colfax and 

disposes it for sorting at Recology Auburn Placer Transfer Station. Any solid waste not 

Corporation Yard & Boal/RV Storage Project 
tnitlal Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

so RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

67 of 74



recycled or composted would be disposed of at the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill. 

Solid waste collection is a "demand responsive" service and current service levels can 

be expanded and funded through user fees without difficulty. The project would 

comply with all federal, state and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste. 

The project would be required to pay garbage collection fees and landfill equity buy-in 

fees. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

References 

City of Colfax. Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan, 2010. 

Giuliani and Kull, Inc. Prelimi11a1y Storm Drainage Report for Colfax Partners Commercial 
Development. July 2017. 

Mandatory Findings of Significance 

lssuH (and Supportlno lnfonnarlon Sources): 

18. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Would the project:

a) Have the potential to degrade the quality of the
environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish
or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population
to drop below self.sustaining levels, threaten to
eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the
number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered
plant or animal, or eliminate important examples of the
major periods of California history or prehistory?

b) Have impacts that are individually limited, but
cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively
considerable" means that the Incremental effects or a
project are considerable when viewed In connection
with the effects of past projects. the effects of other
current projects, and the effects of probable future
projects)?

c) Have environmental effects that would cause
substantial adverse effects on human beings, either
directly or Indirectly?

Discussion 

Potentially 
SI on/ff cant 

Impact 

□ 

□ 

□ 

Less Than 
Slonlncant 

with 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

□ 

□ 

Less Than 
Slgnlflcanr 

Impact 

□ 

No Impact 

□ 

□ 

□ 

a) Less-than-Significant with Mitigation. The project site is currently undeveloped and

the project would involve disturbances to the site such as grading, excavation, tree

removal and soil disruption. With implementation of Mitigation Measures B10-1,

CUL-1 and CUL-2, the project would not substantially degrade the quality of the

environment, reduce habitat, restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or

eliminate a plant or animal community. The project would not affect any historic

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study I Mitigated Negative Declaration 

51 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

68 of 74



structures. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact with 

mitigation incorporated. 

b) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project would not have a cumulatively considerable

impact on any of the environmental factors discussed above. Therefore, the project would

have a less-than-significant impact.

c) Less-than-Significant Impact. The project would not result in impacts to human beings

that would result in substantial adverse effects on human beings, directly or indirectly.

Therefore. the project would have a less-than-significant impact.

Corporation Yard & BoaURV Storage Project 
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Oeclaralion 

52 RCH Group 
August 2018 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

69 of 74



End of Initial Study 

Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

70 of 74



Attachment 4
ITEM  5C

71 of 74



" II CZ)
 

a:
 �

 
�

 �
 

OO
�

o
 

�':;j
�

..J
('J

 

n..
 

0
 

>-
�

 
('J

 
a:

 
C)l

 

� �
! 

-
Q.

 

..J
 �

 < 
�

�
 

n..
o

 
u

 

•
u

.c,
 

•
 

�
 ..OS

 
•

 
�

 

,
\i

1G
 •'.

I�
 

lt
«i

l �•
J
 

l.
O

L�d
,H

 
IC!n

) 
t

OIK
I

 
Y

)
 

,.
�

 
'Y

.•
•�

 ,.,.
,tS

 ...
 00'.

 

.•
•
• 

·11•
11

 
y

·1a
111•

1:>
 §j

 

....
 _

 
<('

 
-

-

-
�
-

• ........
 .......

....

........
 ; _ ! ! I

·I

'i'
1N

t1
o

�
n

v
:,

 
'>.

.t
N

n
o

:,
 

�
3

:>
't

i
d

 

C
IO

•
O

C
Z

•
O

O
I 

'N
d

Y
 

S
ll

3
N

.L
II

Y
d

 
X

Y
,n

o
::,

 

··-··-··--- ----- --------

J.
3

3
H

S
 
1::1

3
1\

0
�

 

N
l/

1
d

 
A

l::I
V

N
lr-4

11
3

1::l
d

 

..u
 

: I' ] 
I 

�l. 0
�

� .. , •• ,.�.J
11�1 1 •• 1! 

I 
11 

1 ! I 
f I 

r I I 1· 

I 
I 

I I

Attachment 5a
ITEM  5C

72 of 74



.
�
 ..

"
··-

·
.,
 

··
-
··'.

'W
CN

ttQ
.;r

"l
v

, ;i.
 'A

,l
,.,-.0

:: 1
 

tt
!

:J;
V

1'
d

 

£
10

•0
C

�
-

0
0

I 
N

d
V

 

S
ll

3
N

1
1l

V
d

 
X

V
,1

1
0

:>
 

N
V

1
d

 

E>
N

IO
V

l:l
e>

 
A

l:I
V

N
l�

l1
3

l:l
d

 

N
V

1
d

 
A

l:f
V

N
1�

11
3

l:l
d

 

Attachment 5b

ITEM  5C
73 of 74



Photo intended as a sample of overall 

look of building. Dimensions and colors 

will vary. 

Attachment 5c

ITEM  5C
74 of 74



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, Interim City Manager  
PREPARED BY: Dane Schilling, City Engineer  

DATE: October 31, 2018 
SUBJECT: Construction Management and Inspection Services for S. Auburn St. and I-80 

Roundabout Project (Federal Aid Project CML-5187(010)) 
 

 N/A   X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED 
AMOUNT: $299,085 less 
$29,447 (reimbursable) 

FROM FUND:  385 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 72-2018 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a consultant services agreement with Psomas for construction management and 
inspection services on the South Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project in an amount not to exceed 
$299,085, contingent upon Caltrans approval of the procurement process. 

 

BACKROUND AND DISCUSSION:  

City of Colfax’s adopted budget for Fiscal Years 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 includes $2,453,000.00 for the 
design and construction of the S. Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project (“Project”). 

On November 8, 2017, the City of Colfax adopted Resolution 51-2017 authorizing the City Manager to enter 
into a Consultant Services Agreement with Omni-Means for preliminary design, final design, right-of-way 
services, utility coordination services, Caltrans coordination services, and bid support services for the 
Project. These efforts are nearly complete and in the next few weeks the City will begin the process of 
submitting a request for authorization to construct (RFA CON) to Caltrans for review and approval. Once 
that approval is granted (estimated January 2019) the City will be able to solicit bids for construction of the 
Project. 

In June of 2018 staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to construction management consultants to 
provide construction management and inspection services for the Project.  The City received proposals 
from three construction management firms.  An evaluation committee consisting of City staff, PCTPA Staff, 
and City Engineering consultants reviewed the proposals submitted and determined that Psomas was the 
most qualified consultant to provide Construction Management and Inspection Services on the project. 

Due to the federal funds for the Project, the procurement process was conducted in a manner which 
satisfies required federal procedures as administered by Caltrans. The City must receive review and 
approval from Caltrans to confirm the proper procedures were followed prior to entering into the 
construction management services contract. Consultants were rated on: relevant experience and technical 
competence of the team (30 points); recent experience of the project team with similar projects (20 
points); clear understanding of the project scope and requirements and an approach to providing the 

ITEM  8A
1 of 25



2 

 

services in a way that ensures a quality project and protects the City’s interests (20 points); demonstrated 
ability to manage projects within scope, schedule, and budget (20 points); and responsiveness and overall 
quality of the technical proposal (10 points). 

The scope of services provided by Psomas for the project includes but is not limited to: 

 Preconstruction Services 
o Constructability Review 
o Preconstruction Meeting with the Contractor 
o Preconstruction Documentation of the Existing Site Conditions 

 Construction Phase Services 
o Daily Site Inspection 
o All Required Meetings 
o Schedule and Cost Management 
o Submittal Management 
o Permit Compliance 
o Material Testing 
o Labor Compliance Monitoring 

 Post Construction Phase Services 
o Final Punch List 
o Final Invoicing 
o Record Drawing 
o Complete Project Files 

 

The project has an extremely aggressive schedule for this type of project. If all approvals are obtained in a 
timely manner, the project is scheduled to go out to bid as early as January 2019 with construction 
beginning in April 2019 and ending as early as September 2019.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
The proposed agreement with Psomas is in an amount no to exceed $299,085. The current budget includes 
$2,453,000.00 for the Project. It should be noted that $29,447 of the construction management costs are 
for relocating PCWA facilities and will be reimbursed by PCWA upon completion of the project. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 72-2018 
2. Contract 
3. Psomas Proposal 
4. Revised Fee Proposal 

 
 

ITEM  8A
2 of 25



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 72-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONSULTANT SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH PSOMAS FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND 

INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE SOUTH AUBURN STREET AND INTERSTATE 80 
ROUNDABOUT PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $299,085, CONTINGENT 

UPON CALTRANS APPROVAL OF THE PROCUREMENT PROCESS 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget includes the S. Auburn 
Street/I-80 Roundabout project (“Project”); and  

 

WHEREAS, in June 2017, City staff issued a request for proposals from construction 
management and inspection consultants and received three proposals; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Staff, in accordance with federal funding requirements, assembled a 
panel to review engineering proposals and determined that Psomas, was the most qualified 
engineering consultant to perform the work; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the scope of services provided by Psomas for the Project includes pre-
construction review, construction phase and post-construction services in an amount not to 
exceed $299,085; and 

 

WHEREAS, Caltrans Office of Local Assistance is required to review and approve the 
procurement process; and 

 

WHEREAS, City of Colfax will submit a package to Caltrans for compliance review and 
approval of the procurement process. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Colfax 
authorizes the City Manager to enter into a consultant services agreement with Psomas for 
construction management and inspection of the South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 
Roundabout Project in an amount not to exceed $299,085, contingent upon Caltrans approval 
of the procurement process.  

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of November 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:        

        ______________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  8A
3 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout   Page 1 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 15th day of November ,2018 by and 
between the City_ of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of California ("City") and  
Psomas (“Consultant").  

RECITALS 

A. The City desires to retain Consultant to provide the Services set forth in detail in
Exhibit A hereto (the "Services") subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

B. Consultant is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perform
the Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set 
forth in this Agreement, the City and Consultant agree as follows: 

Section 1. Services 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall furnish 
and perform all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (the "Services") to the satisfaction of the City.  Consultant shall not 
perform any work exceeding the scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior 
written authorization from the City.  

Section 2. Time of Completion. 

Consultant's schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which 
is incorporated herein by this reference.  Consultant shall commence performance of the 
Services promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed.  Performance of 
the Services shall progress and conclude in accordance with the schedule set forth in 
Exhibit A.  During the performance of the Services, Consultant shall provide the City with 
written progress reports at least once each month and at such additional intervals as City 
may from time to time request.  

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

4 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 2 

 

Section 3. Compensation. 
 

A. Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or 
its exhibits, Consultant shall invoice City once each month for the Services 
performed during the preceding month.  Such invoices shall itemize all charges in 
such detail as may reasonably be required by City in the usual course of City 
business but shall include at least: 

i. the date of performance of each of the Services,  
ii. identification of the person who performed the Services, 

iii. a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, 
iv. the hourly rate at which the Services on each date are charged, 
v. an itemization of all costs incurred and 

vi. the total charges for the Services for the month invoiced.  
As long as the Consultant performs the Services to the satisfaction of the City, the 
City shall pay the Consultant an all-inclusive compensation that shall not exceed the 
amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change 
order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services requiring 
additional compensation are performed. City shall pay Consultant no later than 
thirty (30) days after approval of the monthly invoice by City's staff. 

 
B. The Consultant's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all 

indirect and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred 
by the Consultant and used in carrying out or completing the Services.  Payments 
shall be in accordance with the payment schedule established in Exhibit A or 
elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits. 

 

C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation substantiating 
charges billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall have the right 
to perform an audit of the Consultant's relevant records pertaining to the charges. 

 

D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which they 
are invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.  

 

Section 4. Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 
 
City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Consultant to perform the 
Services described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Consultant shall therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to 
perform all Services under this Agreement.  All Services performed by Consultant under 
this Agreement shall be in a skillful, workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of 
competent professionals in Consultant's field of expertise. 
 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

5 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 3 

 

Section 5. Indemnification. 
 

Consultant shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to 
defend, the City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, 
demands, damages, costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant and/or its agents in the 
performance of the Services. This indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for 
death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, arising from the sole 
negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or its agents, 
servants employees or independent contractors other than Consultant who are directly 
responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, 
employees or volunteers  
 

Section 6. Insurance.  
 

Without limiting Consultant's indemnification obligations provided for above, Consultant 
shall take out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times 
during the life of this Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers 
possessing a Best rating of not less than A.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor, 
professional or otherwise, to commence work on any subcontract until all insurance 
required of the Consultant has also been obtained by the subcontractor.  
 

A. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance and 
Employer's Liability Insurance to cover its employees. In the alternative, Consultant 
may rely on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as long as the 
program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code.  Consultant shall also require all subcontractors, if such are authorized by the 
City, to similarly provide Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the 
Labor Code of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's employees.  All 
Workers' Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the provision that the 
insurance shall not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until thirty (30) days prior 
written notice has been provided to City by the insurer.  The Workers' 
Compensation insurance shall also contain a provision whereby the insurance 
company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the City and its elected or 
appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees for losses paid under the terms 
of such policy which arise from the Services performed by the insured for the City. 

 

B. General Liability Coverage. General liability insurance, including personal injury and 
property damage insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its 
subcontractors, if such are authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection 
with the Services.  The insurance shall be written on a comprehensive general 
liability form and include a broad form comprehensive general liability 
endorsement.  In the alternative, the City will accept, in satisfaction of these 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

6 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 4 

 

requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the 
comprehensive general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general 
liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 
million combined single limit personal injury and property damage for each 
occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  General liability 
coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 
written authorization from the City.  

 

C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury 
and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for 
each occurrence.  

 

D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 
shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  

 

1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be 
named as insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and 
defenses of claims arising from activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 
 

2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured 
who is seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, 
except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 

3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance 
maintained by the City or its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall 
not contribute with it. 
 

4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has 
been provided to the City. 
 

5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not 
affect coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, 
employees, or agents.  

 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

7 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 5 

 

E. Professional Liability Coverage. If required by the City, Consultant shall also take out 
and maintain professional liability, errors and omissions insurance in an amount not 
less than $1 million.  The professional liability insurance policy shall be endorsed 
with a provision stating that it shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced 
in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days written notice has been 
provided to the City.  

 

F. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements. Prior to commencing the Services under 
this Agreement, Consultant shall submit to the City documentation evidencing the 
required insurance signed by the insurance agent and the companies named. This 
documentation shall be on forms which are acceptable to the City and shall include 
all required endorsements and verify that coverage is actually in effect.  This 
Agreement shall not be effective until the required insurance forms and 
endorsements are submitted to and approved by the City.  Failure to provide these 
forms within the time period specified by City may result in the award of this 
Agreement to another Consultant should the City, in its sole discretion, decide to do 
so. Current certification of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times 
during the term of this Agreement.  

 

G. Deductible and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by City. 

 

H. Termination of Insurance. If the City receives notification that Consultant's 
insurance will be suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced in coverage or in limits, 
and if the Consultant does not provide for either the reinstatement of that insurance 
or for the furnishing of alternate insurance containing all of the terms and 
provisions specified above prior to the termination of that insurance, City may 
either terminate this Agreement for that breach, or City may secure the required 
insurance to satisfy the conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof 
from compensation which would otherwise be due and payable to the Consultant 
for Services rendered under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

Section 7. Subcontracts.  
 

Consultant may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written 
authorization of City.  If City consents to a subcontract, Consultant shall be fully responsible 
to the City and third parties for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to which the 
Services or any portion thereof are subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create 
any contractual relationship between City and any subcontractor, nor shall it create any 
obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the payment of any monies due to any 
such subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 
 
 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

8 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 6 

 

Section 8. Assignment.  
 

Consultant shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the City's 
prior written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this 
Agreement without the City's prior written consent shall be void.  
 

Section 9. Entire Agreement. 
 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Consultant as to those 
matters contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or 
effect with respect to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified 
or altered except in writing signed by both parties.  
 

Section 10. Jurisdiction. 
 

This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of 
California.  Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
Superior Court of the State of California with venue in Placer County, California.  
 

Section 11. Suspension of Services. 
 

Upon written request by Consultant, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the 
Services if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Consultant make 
normal progress of the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible.  Upon written City 
approval to suspend performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services 
shall be extended by the number of days performance of the Services is suspended.  
 

Section 12. Termination of Services. 
 

City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and 
this Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of notice of 
termination, Consultant shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  
Consultant shall be entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up 
to the date of receipt of the written notice of termination.  Consultant shall not be entitled 
to payment for any Services performed after the receipt of the notice of termination unless 
such payment is authorized in advance in writing by the City. 
 

Should Consultant fail to perform any of the obligations required of Consultant within the 
time and in the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should 
Consultant violate any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate 
this Agreement by providing Consultant with seven (7) days written notice of such 
termination.  The Consultant shall be compensated for all Services performed prior to the 
date of receipt of the notice of termination.  However, the City may deduct from the 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

9 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 7 

 

compensation which may be owed to Consultant the amount of damage sustained or 
estimated by City resulting from Consultant's breach of this Agreement. 
 
Consultant's obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive 
termination, and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of 
Sections 5 and 6. 
 
Section 13. Independent Contractor. 
 
Consultant shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee 
of City.  Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of 
the means and methods of performing the Services.  Consultant shall receive no premium 
or enhanced pay for Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Consultant 
receive holiday pay, sick leave, administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually 
expended in the performance of the Services.  It is intended by the parties that Consultant 
shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive no compensation from the City, except as 
expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit completed W -9 and Report 
of Independent Contractor forms upon execution of this Agreement and prior to the 
payment of any compensation hereunder.  
 

Section 14. Ownership of Documents. 
 

Within thirty (30) days after the Consultant substantially completes performance of the 
Services, or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall deliver to the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by 
Consultant's in the performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
all such files, records, materials and documents are the property of the City and not the 
property of the Consultant.  All finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents 
and other writings prepared by and for Consultant, its officers, employees and agents in the 
course of performing the Services shall become the sole property of the City upon payment 
to Consultant for the Services, and the City shall have the exclusive right to use such 
materials in its sole discretion without further compensation to Consultant or to any other 
party.  Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, provide such reports, plans, studies, 
documents and writings to City or any party the City may designate, upon written request.  
Consultant may keep file copies of all documents prepared for City.  Use of any such 
documents by the City for projects that are not the subject of this Agreement or for 
purposes beyond the scope of the Services shall be at the City's sole risk without legal 
liability or expense to Consultant.  
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

10 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 8 

 

Section 15. Changes and/or Extra Work. 
 

Only the City Council may authorize extra and/or changed Services, modification of the 
time of completion of the Services, or additional compensation for the tasks to be 
performed by Consultant.  Consultant expressly recognizes that other City personnel are 
without authorization to order extra and/or changed Services or to obligate the City to the 
payment of additional compensation.  The failure of Consultant to secure the prior written 
authorization for such extra and/or changed Services shall constitute a waiver of any and 
all right to adjustment in the contract price due to such unauthorized Services, and 
Consultant thereafter shall not be entitled to any compensation whatsoever for the 
performance of such extra or changed Services.  In the event Consultant and City agree that 
extra and/or changed Services are required, or that additional compensation shall be 
awarded to Consultant for performance of the Services under this Agreement, a 
supplemental agreement providing for such compensation shall be prepared and shall be 
executed by the Consultant and the necessary City officials before the extra and/or changed 
Services are provided. 
 
Section 16. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 
 

Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the Services, including without limitation laws 
requiring licensing and prohibiting discrimination in employment because of race, creed, 
color, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, national origin or other 
prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible or liable for Consultant's failure to comply 
with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations.  
 
Section 17. Retention of Records. 
 

Consultant and any subconsultants authorized by the terms of this Agreement shall keep 
and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records, employees' time 
sheets, and correspondence pertaining to the Services, and Consultant shall make such 
documents available for review and/or audit by City and City's representatives at all 
reasonable times during performance of the Services and for at least four (4) years after 
completion of the Services and/or termination of this Agreement.  
 
Section 18. Alternative Dispute Resolution 
 
A. Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, the primary 

contacts of the parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve any 
dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement subject to the following 
provisions.  Any party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the other party 
pursuant to a written notice.  Within 15 days after provision of that written notice 
by the party desiring to meet and confer, the primary contacts for each party shall 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

11 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 9 

 

meet in person and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  Each primary contact, 
or the person acting in their absence with full authority to resolve the dispute, shall 
attend the meeting and shall be prepared to devote an entire day thereto.  If any 
dispute remains unresolved at the end of the meeting, any party to this Agreement 
shall have the right to invoke the mediation process provided for in the 
subparagraph B below.  

 

B. Subject to the provisions of subparagraph A, any dispute that remains unresolved 
after the meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-binding neutral 
mediation, before a mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento Office of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS").  If 
within five days after the meet and confer the parties are unable to agree upon the 
selection of a neutral mediator, then the first available retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento office of JAMS shall serve as the neutral mediator.  The parties agree to 
commit to at least one full day to the mediation process.  Additionally, to expedite 
the resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by mediation, the parties agree to 
each bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five neutral arbitrators, 
including their resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing within 30 days 
after the mediation has been confirmed.  

 
C. If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall 

mediate the selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their 
dispute.  If the parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to 
submit selection of an arbitrator to the mediator, whose decision shall be binding on 
the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall select a neutral arbitrator from the then 
active list of retired judges or justices at the Sacramento Office of the JAMS.  The 
arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the provisions of the California 
Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. In 
such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 
shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. 

 

D. This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  If 
there is no Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City shall 
be used instead of a Sacramento office. 
 

Section 19. Severability. 
 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held 
invalid by an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual 
written consent of the parties.  
 
 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

12 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 10 

 

Section 20. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  
 

This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive 
expression of the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof.  All prior written and oral communications, including 
correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are superseded in total by this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or extended from time to time only by 
written agreement of the parties hereto. 
 
Section 21. Time of the Essence. 
 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services.  The Consultant will perform its 
Services with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices 
and shall devote such time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their 
timely completion. 
Section 22. Written Notification. 
 

Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, 
approval or communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other 
party shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid and addressed as follows. Either party may change its address by notifying the 
other party in writing of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed communicated 
within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed within the State of California as 
provided in this Section.  
 
If to City:  City of Colfax  
   33 S. Main Street  
   Colfax, CA  95713  
 

If to Consultant:  Psomas  
   1075 Creeksie Ridge Dr #200  
   Roseville, CA 95678 
 

Section 23. Execution. 
 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one 
original counterpart is signed by both parties hereto. In proving this Agreement, it shall not 
be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

13 of 25



181115 Psomas Construction Mgmt Roundabout       Page 11 

 

Section 24. Successors.  
 
This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties hereto 
except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 
 
Section 25. Attorney's Fees.  
 
If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce any of its terms or 
to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its 
reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any such 
fees costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day first 
above written:  
 
CITY  CONSULTANT  

 
Signature: 

 
Signature: 

 

 
Printed Name: Wes Heathcock Printed Name: 

 

 
Title: City Manager Title: 

 

 
Date: 

 
Date: 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 City Attorney 

 
 

Attachment 2
ITEM  8A

14 of 25



City of Coif ax 

South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project 

Consultant Name 

DIRECT LABOR 

Classification 

PM and Construction Manager 
Assistant Construction Manager 
Construction Inspector 
Construction Inspector (OT) 
Administrative Assistant 

OTHER COSTS 

Vehicles (Included in Overhead) 
Field Equipment and Supplies 
Office Supplies 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

SUBCONSULTANT COST 

WRECO 
Argonaut 
Subconsultant Mark-up - 10% 

TOTAL COST 

PSOMAS 

COST PROPOSAL 

PSOMAS 

Name Hours 

Frank Martin, PE, QSP, El\ 304 @ 

Tim Grossmann, ENV SP 552 @ 

Tim Grossmann, ENV SP 744 @ 

Tim Grossmann, ENV SP 48 @ 

Kim Yuson 184 @ 

1,832 

Subtotal Direct Labor Costs 

Initial 
Hourly 
Rate 

$ 215.00 

$ 162.00 

$ 153.00 

$ 202.00 

$ 100.00 

Total 

$ 65,360 

$ 89,424 

$ 113,832 

$ 9,696 

$ 18,400 

$ 296,712 

$ 296,712 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

250 
500 
500 

$ 1,250 

$ 
$ 
$ 

25,000 
17,134 

4,213 

$ 46,347 

$ 344,309 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

15 of 25



1 

2 

3 

4 

6 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

2 

3 

4 

5 

PSOMAS 

City of Colfax 

South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project 

Review Project Documents 

Meeting with City's Project Manager and Design Engineer 

Pre-Construction Conference 

Document Existing Conditions 

Establish Contract with City 

es 

Project Correspondence 

Monthly Invoicing/Budget Tracking 

Weekly Project Meetings 

Schedule Management 

Payment Recommendations 

Change Order Management 

Requests for Information 

Submittal Mana ement 

Permit Compliance 

Construction Observation 

Traffic Control 

Health and Safet Awareness 

Material Sampling and Testing 

Labor Compliance Monitoring and Reporting 

. 

Punch Lists 

Final Inspection 

Contract Acceptance 

Project Closeout 

Final Invoicing and City Contract Closeout 

Required Work Effort 

Task and Manpower Breakdown 

C: 
-�

w0 
::::, 

a. 
ti � ai .!:°'a, C: Olt: 
·- O CO co 
e��� a.ai�"E0) coco ... 

C: LL 
co -

� 

20 

4 

8 

8 

18 

16 

32 

24 

16 

24 

16 

32 

8 

4 

8 

4 

32 

32 

8 

C: a:-
en 0 

0 
> z 

2 w 
t; ai c:� C: C') C: 0 co co o c: E- co 1/) 
C: � 1/) 
co 0 
� t5 1/) 
1/) E <( E 

24 

4 

12 

80 

64 

32 

80 

40 

32 

80 

16 

8 

24 

16 

24 

16 

E 
u-a, C: 
a. C: 
1/) co 
c: E 
- 1/) 
C: 1/) 
0 0 ·- ...
0 C, 
2 E t; i= C: -0 
0 

8 

80 

24 

504 

64 

16 

24 

8 

I 

'E 
co ci:i_ t; .5:? w 'iii

_ 
o,-

C'l[O C: w 1/) C: .2 C �� <( 0 a. 0 -
C: 

1/) a. c., -
a, -

0 ::::, a. w g, 1--
-0 .:. > 3: '5 = .!!! 0 � E en co ::::, ... w t; 52 C: 1/) � cc 

'i:: - 0 C: co 3: C') 0 
.E 

�-

�o 
"0 
<( 

AR AR 

16 

32 

I AR 

I I AR 

96 

32 I AR I AR 

8 

AR = As Requested 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

16 of 25



Tim Grossmann, ENV SP Psomas 

Tim Grossmann, ENV SP Psomas 

Kim Yuson Psomas 

PSOMAS 

City of Colfax 

South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project 

Project Manager and 

Construction Manager (RE) 

Assistant Construction 

Manager 

Construction Inspector 

Administrative Assistant 

Manpower Utilization 

60 60 60 

100 100 100 

40 552 

112 744 

48 

184 

1,832 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

17 of 25



A) 

B) 

C) 

D) 

E) 

F) 

G) 

City of Colfax 

South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project 

Direct Expenses 

UNIT 

UNIT QTY COST SUBTOTAL 

VEHICLES (Includes insurance, gas and O&M) i 

Psomas 

PM/Resident Engineer Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Construction Inspector Month Included in Hourly Rate 

FIELD EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES2 

Field Survey Equipment3 Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Video Camera & Supplies2 LS Included in Hourly Rate 

Turbidity Meter and pH Kit3 Months Included in Hourly Rate 

Tools & Miscellaneous3 LS $250 

OFFICE 

Office Space with Security Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Janitorial Service Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Utilities Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Telephone Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Office Equipment (Desk, Chairs, Tables, etc) Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Copy/Fax Machine (Including Paper) Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Office First Aid Supplies Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Water Services & Refrigerator Month Included in Hourly Rate 

Wireless Internet Set-up & Removal LS NIA 

Internet DSL Access Month NIA 

Initial Office Supplies LS 1 $250 $250 

Office Supplies Month 5 $50 $250 

Postage/Courier/Reproduction5 Month If Requested by City 6 

Photos & Prints5 Month If Requested by City6 

COMPUTERS 

Laptop Computers (with Software)z Month Each Included in Hourly Rate 

Misc. Hardware/Software (Speciality Applications)416 LS If Requested by City 

IT Staff (Computer Network Set-up/Take-down) LS $3,000 

I
$3,000 

TRAVEL6 

Plant/Source Inspection (Airfare,Hotel,Car,Perdiem) Each $1,000 

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES LS 

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES TOTALS: 

NOTES: 

1) Vehicle costs are included in hourly rates for all staff.

2) Standard Equipment (e.g. cell phones, hand levels, digital cameras, etc.) are included in the hourly rates.

3) Represents specialized tools and/or equipment that may be requested by the City.

4) Represents specialized computer hardware and software that maybe requested by the City.

5) Items designated are normally provided by the Contractor as specified within the Contract Special Provisions.

6) Purchases of office supplies, mjscellaneous computer hardware or software and any travel costs shall be invoiced to

City by direct receipt. No mark-ups shall be applied to these receipts.

PSOMAS 

TOTAL 

$250 

$250 

$250 

$500 

$1,250 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

18 of 25



City of Colfax 
South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project 

EXEMPT & NON-EXEMPT EMPLOYEES - STRAIGHT TIME 

Fringe Benefit% 45.9% + Overhead% 124.87 General Administration% (Included in OH) ICR 170.77% Fee%= 10.00% 

PREY AILING WAGE EMPLOYEES (INSPECTION) - STRAIGHT TIME 

Fringe Benefit% 45.90% + Overhead% 124.87 General Administration % (Included in OH) ICR 170.77% Fee%= 10.00% 

PREY AILING WAGE EMPLOYEES (INSPECTION) - OVERTIME 

Fringe Benefit% 37.60% + Overhead% 124.87% + General Administration% (Included in OH) ICR 162.47% Fee%= 10.00% 

BILLING INFORMATION 

N arne/ Classification (Average) Hourly Billing Rates 

Straight OT ( l.5x) DT (2x) 

Frank Martin, PM I Construction Manager $ 229.22 $ 229.22 $ 229.22 

Tim Grossmann, Assistant CM $ 163.82 

Tim Grossmann, Construction Inspector $ 152.08 

Tim Grossmann, Construction Inspector(OT) $ 201.97 

Kirn Yuson, Administrative Assistant $ 99.57 

NOTES: 

Effective date of 

hourly rate 

From To 

06/01/17 12/31/17 

06/01/17 12/31/17 

06/01/17 12/31/17 

06/01/17 12/31/17 

06/01/17 12/31/17 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Actual 

hourl y rate 

76.96 

55.00 

51.06 

51.06 

33.43 

Total 

1) Construction (field) inspection staff will conform to prevailing wage requirements as posted by State of California - Depa1tment of Industrial Relations.

# of 

Hours 

304 $ 

552 $ 

744 $ 

48 $ 

184 $ 

$ 

2) Overhead audited by independent certified public accountancy firm, Stoughton Davidson. Cognizant agency review & approval was completed by Caltrans w/o exception.

3) Exempt staff classifications applies to Project Manager and Resident Engineer. Overtime for Exempt Employees is charged at the Regular Hourly Rate.

4) For Non-Exempt staff, standard OT (l.Sx) is charged at approximately 133% of the straight time hourly rate since health & welfare is covered in the first 40 hours.

5) For Non-Exempt staff preminum OT (2.0x) is charged at approximately 166% of the straight time hourly rate. (No double-time rates included in this proposal)

6) All billing rates include vehicles, gasoline, maintenance, personal equipment, laptop computers, cameras, etc. (See ODC Breakdown).

PSOMAS 

69,683.81 

90,426.35 

113,148.02 

9,694.33 

18,320.93 

301,273.44 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

19 of 25



Exhibit 10-H 

Cost Proposal 

EXHIBIT 10-H COST PROPOSAL 

ACTUAL COST-PLUS-FIXED FEE OR LUMP SUM (FIRM FIXED PRICE) CONTRACTS 

(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES) 
Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed 
Consultant Argonaut Ecological, Inc. 
DIRECT LABOR 

Classificationffitle 

Sr. Scientist 
Technician 1 
Technician 2 

LABOR COSTS 

a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs
b) Anticipated Salary Increases

FRINGE BENEFITS 

d) Fringe Benefits (Rat( 5.00% 

Name 

Kathy Kinsland 
Kaitlyn Minney 

Paige Martin 

-----

INDIRECT COSTS 

f) Overhead
h) General and Administrative

FEE (Profit) 

q) (Rate: 10.00% 

OTHER DIRECT COSTS (ODC) 

Description 

(Rate: 8.00% 
-----

(Rate: __ 5 _.0_0 _o/c_o _ 

1) Travel/Mileage Costs (supported by consultant
actual costs)

m) Equipment Rental and Supplies (itemize)
n) Permit Fees (itemize), Plan sheets (each), Test

Holes (each), etc.
o) Subconsultant Costs (attach detailed cost proposal

in same format as prime consultant estimate for
each subconsultant)

Contract No. Date 9-Jan-17 
-----

hours Actual Hourly Rate Total 

90 $130.00 $11,700.00 
10 $75.00 $750.00 
10 $75.00 $750.00 

$13,200.00 
$0.00 

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS [(a)+ (b)] ____ $_ 1_3,_20_ 0_.0_0

e) Total Fringe Benefits

[(c) x (d)] $660.00 
-------

g) Overhead [(c) x (f)] $1,056.00 
-------

i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)] ____ $_ 6_6 _0 _.0 _0

j) Total Indirect Costs [(e) + (g) + (i)] $2,376.00 
---------

k) TOTAL FIXED PROFIT [(c) + (i)] x (q)] _____ $_1,_55_ 7_.6_0

Unit(s) Unit Cost Total 

0 $0.00 $0.00 
0 $0.00 $0.00 

0 $0.00 $0.00 

0 $0.00 $0.00 

p) Total Other Direct Costs [(l) + (m) + (n) + (o)] _______ $ _0. _00_

$17,133.60 TOTAL COST [(c) + (i) + (k) + (p)] 
---------

June 2018 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

20 of 25



r;;[!; WTUU!,O

June 26, 2018 

Frank C. Martin Ill, PE, QSP, ENV SP 

PSOMAS 

1075 Creekside Ridge Drive #200 

Roseville, CA 95678 

8331 Sierra College Boulevard, Suite 208 
Roseville, CA 95661 

Phone: 916.757 .6 150 
www.wreco.com 

Subject: Proposal for Construction Management, Inspection, and Testing Services for South Auburn 

Street and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project 

Dear Mr. Martin, 

Please find enclosed WRECO's Form 10-H. Please be advised the number of hours of service cannot be 

estimated at this time and Other Direct Costs (ODC) are subject to change as project plans and 

specifications are unavailable. 

Please feel free to contact me at (925) 941-0017 x201 or Raymond Downes at (916) 757-6150 x152 if 

you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

WRECO 

Han-Bin Liang, Ph.D., P.E. 

President 

I Civil Engineering I Environmental Compliance I Geotechnical Engineering I Water Resources I 

GREEN BUSINESS 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

21 of 25



Local Assistance Procedures Manual 

EXHIBIT 10-H3 COST PROPOSAL Page 1 of 2 

COST PER UNIT OF WORK CONTRACTS 

(GEOTECHNICAL AND MATERIAL TESTING) 

Exhibit 10-H3 

Cost Proposal 

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed □ Prime Consultant 181 Subconsultant □ 2
n° 

Tier Subconsultant 

Consultant WRECO 

Project No. Contract No. 
------------- --------------

Unit/Item of Work: 

(Example: Log of Test Boring for Soils Report, or ADL Testing for Hazardous Waste Material Study) 

Include as many Items as necessary. 

DIRECT LABOR Hours 

Senior Geotechnical Engineer* TBD 

Laboratory/Field Services Manager* TBD 

Field Technician** TBD 

EQUIPMENT 1 (with Operator) 

EQUIPMENT 2 (with Operator) 

Consultant's Other Direct Costs (ODC) - Itemize: 

Description of Item 

Travel/Mileage Costs 

Laboratory Testing 

Quantity 

1500 

Billing 

Hourly 

Rate($) 

$184.31 

$92.19 

$97.42 

Unit Unit Cost 

Mile $ 0.545 

LS $ -

::,uoconsuItant 1: Pavement coring equipment; 1 wining, inc. lestImatea J trip @J 4 nours per site 

vic;it) 

TOTAL COST PER UNIT OF WORK 

NOTES: 

Date 6/26/2018 

Total($) 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$ 30,117.50 

Total 

$ 817.50 

$ 28,800.00 

$ 500.00 

$50,024.80 

1. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk(*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be

marked with two asterisks(**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost

proposals. The cost proposal format shall not be amended.

2. Hourly billing rates should include prevailing wage rates and be consistent with publicly advertised rates charged to all clients

(Commercial, Private or Public).

3. Mobilization/De-mobilization is based on site location and number and frequency of tests/items.

4. ODC items shall be based on actual costs and supported by historical data and other documentation.

5. ODC items that would be considered "tools of the trade" are not reimbursable.

6. Billing Hourly Rates must be actual, allowable, and reasonable.

January 2018 
LPP 17-01 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

22 of 25



Local Assistance Procedures Manual 

Certification of Direct Costs: 

EXHIBIT 10-H3 COST PROPOSAL Page 2 of 2 

Exhibit 10-H3 

Cost Proposal 

I, the undersigned, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that all direct costs identified on the cost proposal(s) in this contract are 

actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in accordance with the contract terms and the following requirements: 

1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

2. Terms and conditions of the contract

3. Title 23 United States Code Section 112 - Letting of Contracts

4. 48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 31 - Contract Cost Principles and Procedures 

5. 23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 - Procurement. Management. and Administration of Engineering and Design Related Service 

6. 48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 9904 - Cost Accounting Standards Board (when applicable) 

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must be retained in the project files and 

be in compliance with applicable federal and state requirements. Costs that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements are 

not eligible for reimbursement. 

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifying: 

Name: Han-Bin Liang 

Signature: �c,.....R� 
Email: hanbin lianq@wreco.com 

Title* President 

Date of Certification 6/26/2018 

Phone Number: 916-757-6150 
-------------------

Address: 8331 Sierra College Blvd, Suite 208, Roseville, CA 95661 

* An individual executive or financial officer of the consultant's or subconsultant's organization at a level no lower 

than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has authority to represent the financial 

information utilized to establish the cost proposal for the contract. 

List services the consultant is providing under the proposed contract: 

Materials Testing and Construction Inspection 

LPP 17-01 
January 2018 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

23 of 25



SCHEDULE OF LABORATORY FEES 

Effective January 1, 2018 

Construction Management 

Concrete/Soil Sampling Equipment 

Nuclear Density Gauge 

Field Vehicle 

Sample Pickup 

Laboratory Testing AASHTO ASTM 

Moisture Content T 265 D 2216 

Unit Weight/Moisture Content D2937 

Sieve Analysis of Soils/ Aggregate T27 D6913 

Particle Size Analysis by Hydrometer (includes sieve) T88 D422 

Percentage of Soils Finer than No. 200 Sieve Tll D1140 

8331 Sierra College Boulevard, Suite 208 

Roseville, CA 95661 

Phone: 916.757.6150 

www.wreco.com 

$25/day 

$100/day 

$0.545/mile 

$180/trip 

Caltrans 

CT226 $ 40 

$ 70 

CT202 $ 185 

CT203 $ 260 

CT202 $ 120 

Atterberg Limits (Plasticity Index) T89/90 D4318 CT204 $ 250 

Specific Gravity of Soils Tl00 D854 CT209 $ 125 

Sand Equivalent Tl76 D2419 CT217 $ 150 

Maximum Density (Standard/Modified Proctor, Caltrans) T99/180 D698/1557 CT216 $ 300 

Modified Proctor- Method C (6 inch mold) Tl80 D1557 $ 325 

Cleanness of coarse aggregate CT227 $ 200 

Durability Index T210 D3744 CT229 $ 220 

Crushed Particles/Fractured Faces D5821 CT205 $ 175 

LA Rattler Abrasion Test C131 CT211 $ 205 

Flat/Elongated Particles in Coarse Aggregate D4791 $ 225 

Fine Aggregate Angularity T304 Cl252 CT234 $ 190 

Corrosivity of Soil (chloride, sulfate, pH, min. resistivity) $ 140 

Resistance (R) Value- Soil/ Aggregate Base D2844 CT301 $ 365 

Concrete Compressive Strength Testing C39 $ 50 

Reinforcing Steel Testing (bend & tensile, #11 or smaller) $ 120 

Bulk Specific Gravity of Compacted Asphalt Core D1188 CT308A $ 80 

Lab Tested Max. Density: HVEEM, 3 briquettes D1561 CT304 $ 220 

HVEEM Stabilometer Test: 3 briquettes Dl560 CT366 $ 220 

Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity of Asphalt D2041 CT309 $ 165 

Marshall Mix Design (excluding aggregate testing) $3,000 

Hydraulic Conductivity D5084 $ 475 

• Unless expressly provided for within the contract, rates in all contracts are subject to increase as of

01/01/2019.

• If the testing services are not listed on the table above, please inquire for specific method rates .

I Geotechnical Engineering I Material Testing I 

c:.m ..... 

Attachment 3
ITEM  8A

24 of 25



Consultant Name PSOMAS

DIRECT LABOR
Initial
Hourly

Classification Name Hours Rate Total

PM and Construction Manager Frank Martin, PE, QSP, EN 320             @ 215.00$       68,800$  
Construction Inspector Luke Wallace 944             @ 162.00$       152,928$               
Construction Inspector (OT) Tim Grossmann, ENV SP  80 @ 202.00$       16,160$  
Administrative Assistant Kim Yuson 136             @ 100.00$       13,600$  

1,480          

Subtotal Direct Labor Costs 251,488$               
251,488$               

OTHER COSTS
Vehicles (Included in Overhead) -$  
Field Equipment and Supplies 250$  
Office Supplies 500$  
Miscellaneous Expenses 500$

1,250$  

SUBCONSULTANT COST
WRECO 25,000$  
Argonaut 17,134$  
Subconsultant Mark-up - 10% 4,213$  

46,347$  

TOTAL COST 299,085$               

City of Colfax
South Auburn Street and Interstate 80 Roundabout Project

COST PROPOSAL

Attachment 4
ITEM  8A

25 of 25



1 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 14, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Wes Heathcock, City Maneger 

DATE October 30, 2018 

SUBJECT: City Engineering Consulting Services 

N/A X FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $180,000 
FROM FUNDS: 100-425, 
120, 250, 560, 561 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 73-2018 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a Contract Agreement with Bureau Veritas North America, Inc for City 
Engineering Services for a term of 3-years with an option for a 2-year extension. 

DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY: 
The City is currently operating City engineering services with insufficient resources due to a lack of 
personnel with appropriate expertise within the existing contracted engineering firm.  City staff has been 
forced to take a huge role in the engineering functions for the City, thus reducing staff’s resources to 
accomplish their primary duties.  In order to enhance services to the community, City staff released a 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) on September 27, 2018 to acquire a comprehensive engineering consulting 
firm to fulfill the City engineering requirements. 

The RFQ requested specialized services related to City engineering functions for the community. The on-call 
contracted engineering services include the following functions: 

 Management and development of Capital Improvement Program.

 Technical evaluation of projects and programs.

 Project management for evaluation, programming, design and construction of capital projects.

 Oversight of consultant requests for proposals and/or construction services including the
advertising and bid processes for projects; evaluation of proposals and recommendation for
project award; negotiation and administration of contracts for construction projects.

 Participation in initiating all capital improvement projects and programs, including defining project
scope, determining project budget, and locating financial resources.

 Participation in the review and conditioning of planning applications in relation to the City’s
General Plan, infrastructure master plans and overall capital needs of the City.

 Preparation of plans, specifications and estimates for City public works projects.

 Representation of the City within the community and with outside agencies.

 Assurance of City compliance with all Federal, State, County and local laws and regulations.

 Management of projects that are Federally, State, or County funded following required policies
including Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual.

ITEM  8B
1 of 45



2 

 

 Monitoring and making recommendations in relation to changes in laws, regulations and 
technology that may affect City operations; implementation of policy and procedural changes as 
required. 

 Preparation, review, and presentation of staff reports and City engineering documents and reports 
on various projects and programs.  Attend City Council meetings as necessary. 

 Review and comment on planning programs and land development controls. 

 Provision of emergency response in time of unusual weather and other disaster such as flooding, 
earthquake, etc. 

 Provision of utility interface as necessary with PG&E, cable, and other utility companies 

 Performance of right-of-way engineering, mapping, and surveying as required. 

 Construction management, inspection, and related support services of projects as required. 
 
The City engineering service will be an adjunct to the City staff on an as needed base to provide the 
aforementioned services. 
 
The City Engineer RFQ submittal deadline was October 25, 2018. The City received 2 Statement of 
Qualifications (SOQ) from interested consulting firms. Staff utilized evaluation criteria to rank the SOQ’s 
with the intention of interviewing the top consulting firms. The initial ranking committee recommended 
interviewing both firms; Bureau Veritas North America, Inc and Ponticello Enterprises Consulting Engineers, 
Inc on November 5, 2018. 
 
The interview panel consisted of the City Manager, Community Services Director, a Placer County 
Transportation Agency representative, and the Town of Loomis City Engineer. The panel utilized an 
interview/presentation style forum to rank the consulting firms. Bureau Veritas submitted a change to their 
SOQ to include Scott Chandler as their primary contact for the City.  Mr. Chandler’s resume is attached.  
Based on the interview process results, staff recommends entering into a 3-year contract with Bureau 
Veritas North America, Inc with an option for a 2-year extension.  
  
FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The contract award is based on services provided through on-call City engineering services with Bureau 
Veritas North America, Inc.  The monthly maximum payment shall not exceed $10,000 – General 
Engineering Services, set forth in Exhibit A.  The total monthly payment may exceed this amount but must 
be covered by other funding sources – Other Engineering Services and Project-Specific Tasks, set forth in 
Exhibit A.  The potential cost for the City over a 3-year contract term is $180,000 from various funds, which 
include funds 100-425, 120, 250, 560, and 561.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1) Resolution 72-2018 
2) Contract 
3) RFQ Document 
4) Bureau Veritas SOQ 
5) Proposed engineer’s resume 

 

ITEM  8B
2 of 45



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 72-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT 
AGREEMENT WITH BUREAU VERITAS NORTH AMERICA, INC FOR CITY 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR A TERM OF 3-YEARS WITH AN OPTION FOR A 
2-YEAR EXTENSION 

WHEREAS, the City is currently operating City engineering services with insufficient 
resources due to a lack of personnel with appropriate expertise within the existing 
contracted engineering firm; and,  
 

WHEREAS, City staff solicited statements of qualification from engineering 
consultants on September 27, 2018 for City engineering services; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City received 2 statements of qualification on October 25, 2018 and 
determined through a multi-level evaluation process Bureau Veritas North America, Inc 
was the best suited organization to meet the City Engineering; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the scope of the services provided by Bureau Veritas North America, Inc 
includes developing and delivering various programs and projects associated with private 
development projects, capital improvement projects  and regulatory reporting for 
wastewater, streets, drainage, traffic engineering, closed landfill, parks, and public facilities 
for an estimated amount of $180,000 over at 3-year term. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax 
authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Contract Agreement in the form attached with 
Bureau Veritas North America, Inc for City Engineering services for a term of 3-year with 
an option for a 2-year extension.  
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of November, 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

 ___________________________________ 
       Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  8B
3 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 1 
 

CITY OF COLFAX 
 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

WITH BUREAU VERITAS NORTH AMERICA, INC. TO PROVIDE CITY 

ENGINEERING SERVICES  

 
This Agreement is made by and between the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation ("City") and 

Bureau Veritas North America, Inc, a California corporation ("Consultant" or “City Engineer”), 

who agree as follows:  

 

1. Services.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall 

provide said services described in Exhibit A.  Consultant shall provide said services at the 

time, place and in the manner specified in Exhibit A. 

 

2. Contract Period.  Contract work will begin November 15, 2018  

 

3. Payment.  Exhibit B is the negotiated Rate Schedule for services and expenses.  The 

Consultant shall be paid monthly for the actual fees, costs and expenses for all time and 

materials required and expended, in accordance with the terms in Exhibit B, for services 

rendered pursuant to this Agreement at the times and in the manner set forth.  

 

Maximum Monthly Payment shall not exceed $10,000 for Task A – General Engineering 

Services, set forth in Exhibit A. Consultant shall provide an itemized description of 

services based on the City’s allocation of accounts.  This monthly amount shall not be 

exceeded without the prior consent of the City.  Consultant agrees that it can reliably 

provide General Engineering Services, based on previous experience, within this budgeted 

amount.  Both parties agree that the total monthly payment may exceed this amount but 

must be covered by other funding sources for Task B – Other Engineering Services and 

Project-Specific Tasks, set forth in Exhibit A.  

 

4. Facilities, Equipment and Other Materials.  Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, 

furnish all facilities, equipment and other materials that may be required for furnishing 

services pursuant to this Agreement. City shall not furnish to Consultant office space for 

on-site use. 

 

5. General Provisions.  The general provisions set forth in Exhibit C are part of this 

Agreement. In the event of any inconsistency between said general provisions and any 

other terms or conditions of this Agreement, the other term or condition shall control 

insofar as it is inconsistent with the general provision. 

  

6. Exhibits.  All exhibits referred to herein area attached hereto and are by this reference 

incorporated herein.  

 

 

ITEM  8B
4 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 2 
 

 

7. Time for Performance.  Consultant shall devote such resources pursuant to this 

Agreement as may be reasonably necessary for satisfactory performance of Consultant's 

obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  

 

8. Conflict of Interest.  Consultant states that no City officer or employee, nor any business 

entity in which they have an interest: a) has an interest in the contract awarded; b) has been 

employed or retained to solicit or aid in the procuring of the resulting contract; c) will be 

employed in the performance of such contract without immediate disclosure of such fact to 

the City.  

 

Executed as of the day first above stated. 

 

  

BUREAU VERITAS NORTH AMERICA, INC.  CITY OF COLFAX A 

California Corporation      Municipal Corporation 

 

 

 

______________________________   ____________________________ 

Craig Baptista, Director of Operations   Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:        APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk      Alfred Cabral, City Attorney  

  

ITEM  8B
5 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 3 
 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE  

 

The City of Colfax is requesting the services of an engineering firm to provide on-call city 

engineering services under contract.  The consultant shall assign one individual as the City 

Engineer and primary contact, although additional consultant resources may be utilized to manage 

the services requested throughout the life of the contract.  Direction of such services will come 

from the City Manager or designee.  

 

The City is in need of a licensed civil engineer to act as the City Engineer in responsible charge of 

providing engineering oversight of new development, infrastructure, funding and project 

implementation.  Scott Daniels will be designated as the City Engineer and Engineer of Record, 

and will approve all engineering plans, maps and reports, supervise and be responsible for 

managing federal-aid projects in accordance with Caltrans Local Programs, and advise the City on 

ordinances, regulations and financing options pertaining to engineering matters.  Bureau Veritas 

North America, Inc., ( “City Engineer” or “Consultant”) will assist the City in developing working 

relationships with outside agencies and private utilities affecting the City. While reporting to the 

City Manager or designee, Consultant will present information and recommendations to the City 

Council, as necessary, and respond to citizen complaints relating to engineering matters.   

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES  

 

A. General Engineering Services  

 

1. City Engineer will respond to engineering related questions and problems relating to City 

facilities that arise during the day-to-day operation of the City.  City Engineer will 

coordinate directly with operations staff, building officials, and/or sanitary engineering 

consultants.  

 

2. City Engineer will respond to engineering related questions and problems relating to 

potential development that arise during the day-to-day operation of the City.  

 

3. City Engineer will assist operations staff with condition-assessment and problem solving 

of existing City infrastructure and provide recommendations as requested.  

 

4. City Engineer will assist the City, in conjunction with the local Transportation Authority 

and Caltrans, in researching, recommending and managing internal and external funding 

for transportation projects.   

 

5. City Engineer will coordinate with other Departments, and outside agencies, to refine the 

ITEM  8B
6 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 4 
 

annual list of capital projects, to make sure the project is needed in that year and the budget 

is available. City Engineer will submit the annual capital improvement and maintenance 

budget to the City Manager or designee for Council approval.  

 

6. City Engineer will work with City staff to identify what will be needed for establishing or 

updating the City's engineering and development regulations, fees and ordinances.  

 

7. City Engineer will attend staff meetings and council meetings as requested by the City 

Manager or designee.  

 

B. Other Engineering Services and Project-Specific Tasks  

 

1. City Engineer will assist the City Manager or designee and Planning Director in reviewing 

engineering aspects of planning applications, including reviewing tentative, parcel and/or 

final maps, infrastructure reports and Master Plans, all in accordance with the Subdivision 

Map Act of California, the General Plan and local Master Plans and ordinances. City 

Engineer will assist in establishing and enforcing conditions of approval, subdivision 

agreements and development agreements for Council approval.  

 

2. City Engineer will develop a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for public infrastructure.  

City Engineer will assist the City in establishing a multi-year CIP and annual budget.  City 

Engineer will assist in development of street, storm water and other public infrastructure 

projects, cost estimates, funding and staging and will work in conjunction as necessary 

with the City's sanitary engineers on wastewater treatment and collection system project 

coordination into the overall CIP.  In addition, Master Plans, engineering reports and 

discussions with other agencies will be used to determine what additional projects are 

necessary to meet the needs of the community.  City Engineer will compile the project 

lists into a multi-year CIP for review and Council approval.  City Engineer will develop a 

Project Budget Sheet for each capital project.  

 

3. City Engineer will review and assist in updating the City's Mitigation Impact Fee Program  

and Major Projects Financing Plan to ensure development fees are adequately collected, 

tracked and expended.  

 

4. City Engineer will assist or supplement the City's Planning Director when environmental 

assessment/documentation services are necessary for projects.  City Engineer will work 

with the City's consultant(s) to determine the type of environmental document required and 

identify the resources for completing the work.  

 

5. Upon request by the City, City Engineer will provide engineering design services for those 

projects for which City Engineer has the qualifying engineer experience and staff 

resources.   

 

6. City Engineer will assist the City in managing new projects developed as part of the annual 

capital improvement and maintenance program.  City Engineer will establish the 

implementation schedule and determine what resources are necessary to provide 

ITEM  8B
7 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 5 
 

environmental, architectural/engineering, or construction management services, and if 

outside assistance is necessary, assist the City in a qualifications based selection (QBS) 

process.  The designated City Engineer project manager will administer projects through 

completion.  City Engineer will coordinate with other departments during development 

and execution of their specific projects to ensure their needs are met.  City Engineer will 

provide peer review and plan checking as necessary.  City Engineer will handle budgets 

and prepare requests for additional funds if justified. City Engineer will take a summary of 

the project, including final expenditures, to the City Council for final acceptance and 

recordation of the notice of completion.  

 

7. City Engineer will review and approve all improvement plans for development of 

residential, commercial or industrial projects.  City Engineer will assist the City in 

obtaining compliance with engineering standards and conditions of approval.  City 

Engineer will work with City staff, as needed, to update the subdivision ordinance and fee 

schedule as necessary, and assist in development, review and updating of master planning 

documents.  City Engineer will assist the City in establishing and collecting plan check 

and inspection fees and construction security bonds as necessary.  

 

8. Upon request by the City, City Engineer will update the City's Design and Construction 

Standards.  City Engineer will utilize other agency standards plus City staff discussions to 

determine essential revisions to the standard plans.  Recently completed updates to 

standard plans from other Northern California public agencies may be used in the City of 

Colfax along with any City-specific revisions, resulting in timely, cost-effective updates.  

 

9. The City may periodically need the services of a licensed land surveyor and survey crew.  

City Engineer will contact local surveying firms to determine their availability to provide 

on-call surveying support.  In addition, City Engineer will work with a qualified 

land-surveying firm on large design and construction projects.  

 

10. Upon request by the City, City Engineer will provide resident engineering and/or 

inspection services for those projects for which City Engineer has the qualifying 

engineering experience and staff resources.  These services are subject to mutual 

agreement between the City and City Engineer and the availability of City Engineer staff 

resources. The City reserves the right to contract separately for these services.  

  

ITEM  8B
8 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 6 
 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

EXHIBIT B 

 

TIME AND MANNER OF PAYMENT 
 

1. The General Engineering Services will be paid based on actual time and materials required, 

at the consultant's rates, up to the agreed maximum monthly amount as set forth in this 

Agreement.  

 

2. City Engineer shall only undertake the Other Engineering Services and Project-Specific 

Tasks itemized in Section B above after a budget has been developed and approved by the 

City Council, City Manager or designee.  City Engineer shall not incur costs in excess of 

the budgeted amounts without prior written authorization of the City Council, City 

Manager or designee.  

 

3. The City Manager or designee is not authorized to permit expenditures in excess of 

$10,000. Any expenditure in excess of $10,000 will require pre-approval by the City 

Council.  Any costs incurred without proper approval shall not be a legal obligation of the 

City.  Any work authorized by the City Manager or designee within the $10,000 limit 

shall be reported to the City Council on the next available Council agenda.  In the event of 

an emergency situation, this limit does not apply and the City Manager or designee is 

authorized to take necessary action to address the emergency.  

 

4. Reimbursable projects shall be charged at regular rates but the charges shall be subject to 

review by the City Manager or designee and a prior budget may be required.  

 

5. Invoices will be scheduled for payment on receipt by the City in its normal warrant 

payment schedule and will in no event be paid later than 30 days from receipt, unless 

disputed. However, on any project for which as-built drawings are required to be prepared 

by any contractor, subcontractor or consultant, final payment to Consultant shall be made 

upon the City’s receipt of as-built drawings reasonably acceptable to the City. 

 

6. Consultant shall provide fully itemized billing by period showing services performed, the 

individuals performing the services, and the total charge billed for that entry. A detailed 

description of the work performed for that period, and the amount of time spent, will be 

made available to the City Manager or designee upon request.  The billing shall also 

include the remaining budget if applicable.  

 

7. The engineering services to be provided are based on a 12-month period, at the staff levels 

and hourly rates identified in the Rate Schedule.  City Engineer reserves the right to 

negotiate adjustments to hourly rates for follow-on years to compensate for labor cost 

increases, employee benefits and other increased due to inflationary trends.  

 

(1) Both parties agree that weekly meetings and staffing at City offices may not be 

ITEM  8B
9 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 7 
 

necessary to provide City engineering services.  When weekly planned meetings or 

staffing are required, City Engineer agrees to provide travel time and mileage for the 

City Engineer, from Consultant's office at no cost to the City, based on a maximum two 

trip per week.  

 

Travel time from consultant's office to the City's offices for project-specific meetings 

or activities will be paid based on the hourly rate of the individual.  

 

(2) Mileage. Vehicle mileage is invoiced based on the Internal Revenue Service’s current 

rate, for all trips.  Vehicle mileage is charged for travel from the consultant's office for 

project-specific meetings or activities.  

 

(3) Use of reimbursable supplies and printing will be minimized by making use of City 

resources whenever efficiency dictates.  
 

  

ITEM  8B
10 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 8 
 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1. Independent Contractor.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall 

be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of City.  City shall have the 

right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of Consultant's services rendered 

pursuant to this Agreement; however, City shall not have the right to control the means by 

which consultant accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  

 

2. Licenses, Permits, etc.  Consultant represents to City that it has all licenses, permits, 

qualifications and approval of whatsoever nature that are legally required for Consultant to 

practice its profession.  Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant shall, at 

its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during the term of this 

Agreement any licenses permits and approval which are legally required for Consultant to 

practice its profession at the time the services are performed.  

 

3. Time.  Consultant shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 

Agreement as may be reasonably necessary for satisfactory performance of Consultant's 

obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  Neither party shall be considered in default of 

this Agreement to the extent performance is prevented or delayed by a cause, present or 

future, which is beyond the reasonable control of the party.  

 

4. Indemnification.  Consultant shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without 

limitation the cost and duty to defend, the City and its officers, agents and employees from 

and against any and all claims, demands, damages, costs or liability that arise out of, or 

pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant and/or 

its agents in the performance of the Services. This indemnity does not apply to liability for 

damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, arising from 

the sole negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or its agents, 

servants employees or independent contractors other than Consultant who are directly 

responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, 

employees or volunteers.  

 

It is understood that the duty of CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes 

the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.  

 

5. Insurance.  

 

(1) General Liability. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in full 

force and affect a general liability insurance policy in an amount not less than 

$1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  

 

(2) Automobile Liability. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in 

ITEM  8B
11 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 9 
 

full force and affect a policy of automobile liability insurance in an amount not less 

than $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and property 

damage. 

 

 The City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be named as 

additional insured on the Consultant's general liability and automobile liability 

insurance policies.  

 

 Consultant's general liability and automobile liability insurance coverage shall be 

primary insurance with respect to the City, its officers, officials, employees and 

volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, 

officials, employees and volunteers shall be in excess of Consultant's insurance and 

shall not contribute with it.  

 

(3) Professional Liability.  During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain 

in full force and effect professional liability insurance for protection against claims 

alleging negligent acts, errors or omissions which may arise from Consultant's 

operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by Consultant or by its 

employees, subcontractors or sub-consultants.  The amount of this insurance shall not 

be less than $1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 aggregate on a claims-made annual 

aggregate basis.  

 

(4) Cancellation.  Each insurance policy or certificate of insurance required in this 

paragraph shall not be canceled except after thirty (30) days written notice has been 

received by the City.  Current certification of such insurance shall be kept on file with 

the City Clerk at all times during the term of this Agreement.  

 

6. Worker's Compensation.  During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall fully 

comply with the terms of the law of California concerning Worker's Compensation.  Said 

compliance shall include, but not be limited to, maintaining in full force and effect one or 

more policies of insurance insuring against any liability Consultant may have for Worker's 

Compensation.  The Worker's Compensation Policy shall contain a waiver by the insurer 

of all rights of subrogation against the City, its officers, agents and employees.  

 

7. Consultant Not Agent.  Except as City may specify in writing, Consultant shall have no 

authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an 

agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement 

to bind City to any obligation whatsoever.  

 

8. Assignment Prohibited.  No party to this Agreement may assign any right or obligation 

pursuant to this Agreement.  Any attempted or purported assignment of any right or 

obligation pursuant to this Agreement shall be void and of no effect.  

 

9. Personnel.  Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform services 

pursuant to this Agreement.  In the event that City, in its sole discretion, at any time during 

the term of this Agreement, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by 

ITEM  8B
12 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 10 
 

Consultant to perform services pursuant to this Agreement, Consultant shall remove any 

such person immediately upon receiving notice from City of the desire of City for the 

removal of such person or persons.  

 

10. Standard of Performance.  Consultant shall perform all services required pursuant to this 

Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a competent 

practitioner of the profession in which consultant is engaged in the geographical area in 

which Consultant practices its profession.  All work products of whatsoever nature which 

Consultant delivers to City pursuant to this Agreement shall be prepared in a professional 

manner and conform to the standards or quality normally observed by a person practicing 

in Consultant's profession.  

 

11. City Representatives.  The City Manager or designee is the representative of the City and 

will administer this Agreement for the City.  

 

12. Termination.  This Agreement may be canceled upon thirty (30) days written notification 

by either party without cause.  Consultant shall be entitled to receive full payment for all 

services performed and all costs incurred to the date of termination of the contract.  

Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation for work performed after the date of 

termination of the contract.  All completed and uncompleted products up to the date of 

termination of the contract shall become the property of the City.  

 

13. Non-Discrimination.  Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the Services, including without 

limitation laws requiring licensing and prohibiting discrimination in employment because of 

race, creed, color, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, national origin or 

other prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible or liable for Consultant’s failure to 

comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations  

 

14. Ownership of Information.  It is mutually agreed that all materials prepared by the 

Consultant under this Contract shall become the property of the City, and the Consultant 

shall have no property right therein whatsoever.  Immediately upon termination, the City 

shall be entitled to, and the Consultant shall deliver to the City, all data, drawings, 

specifications, reports, estimates, summaries and other such materials  as may have been 

prepared or accumulated to date by the Consultant in performing this Contract which is not 

Consultant's privileged information, as defined by law, or Consultant's personnel 

information  

 

This agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for Consultant to copy, use, 

modify, reuse, or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property 

embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or 

works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited 

to, physical drawings or data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer portable 

storage device, which are prepared or caused to be prepared by Consultant pursuant to this 

Agreement.  Consultant shall not be limited in any way in its use of such documents and 

data at any time, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this 

ITEM  8B
13 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 11 
 

Agreement shall be at Consultant's sole risk and that Consultant shall indemnify, defend, 

and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 

from any claims arising out of Consultant's use of such documents and data for any project 

or purpose not covered by this Agreement.  

 

15. Attorney's Fees.  If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce 

any of its terms or for damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 

recover reasonable attorney's fees, including those incurred on appeal, if any.  

 

16. Entirety of Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of City and 

Consultant with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other agreement, statement or 

promise made by any party, or to any employee, officer or agent of any party, which is not 

contained in this Agreement shall be binding or valid.  No supplement, modification or 

amendment of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed by all parties in writing.  

 

17. Counterparts.  The partners may execute this Agreement in two or more counterparts, 

which shall, in the aggregate, be signed by all the parties; each counterpart shall be deemed 

an original instrument as against any party who has signed it.  

 

18. Governing Law.  This Agreement is executed and intended to be performed in the State of 

California, and the laws of that State shall govern its interpretation and effect.  

 

19. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective 

successors and assigns of the parties, except to the extent of any contrary provision in this 

Agreement.  

 

20. Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 

Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or 

invalidated.  

  

ITEM  8B
14 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 12 
 

MEDIATION/ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES 
 

Any controversy between the parties involving the construction, application or performance of any 

of the terms, provisions or conditions of this agreement shall, on the written request of either party 

served on the other, be submitted to mediation before a mediator acceptable to all parties.  The 

mediation shall occur within 45 days of the initial request, unless extended by agreement of the 

parties.  Should any party commence arbitration or court action based on a dispute or claim to 

which this Section applies, without first attempting to resolve the matter through mediation, then 

that party shall not be entitled to recover attorney fees, even if they would otherwise be available to 

that party in any such action or arbitration.  

 

If the mediation is unsuccessful, either party may, within five (5) days thereafter, serve a written 

request on the other demanding that the matter be submitted to binding arbitration.  

 

Exceptions to Mediation/Arbitration.  Neither mediation, nor arbitration is required under the 

following limited circumstances:  the matter is justifiable in small claims court, than the dispute 

shall be resolved through that court.  

 

If the controversy to be arbitrated also involves third parties who are not willing to submit the 

matter to arbitration, and multiple proceedings would result from enforcement of this arbitration 

clause, then the dispute shall be resolved through the courts without referral to arbitration.  

 

If it is alleged that irreparable harm would occur prior to the completion of the arbitration, a party 

may immediately apply for injunctive relief to prevent the irreparable harm, but the matter shall be 

stayed and submitted to mediation/arbitration after the Court has acted on the issue of injunctive 

relief.   

 

Except as provided herein, Arbitration shall comply with and be governed by the provisions of the 

California Arbitration Act, Section 1280 et.seq. of the California Code of Civil Procedure.  

 

Upon receipt of a notice of intent to arbitrate, the parties shall mutually agree on an arbitrator 

within 15 days.  If they are unable to agree on a single arbitrator, each party shall appoint another 

individual as a selection arbitrator and the two selection arbitrators shall select a third impartial 

arbitrator to decide the matter within 30 days of notice of arbitration.  If for any reason this 

process fails to result in the selection of an impartial arbitrator in a timely manner, either party may 

petition the Court for appointment of an arbitrator pursuant to CCP 1281.6.  

 

The decision of the Arbitrator, after close of the hearing, shall be final and conclusive upon the 

parties.  

 

The parties agree to do all acts necessary to expedite the arbitration proceedings such that the 

matter can be arbitrated within 90 days of service of the notice of intent to arbitrate.  

 

Upon a showing of good cause and the approval of the arbitrator, either party may obtain discovery 

necessary for the proof of their case.  Provided that the arbitrator shall supervise the discovery 

process to insure that it is carried out in an expeditious manner and that it is not permitted to be 

ITEM  8B
15 of 45



 

181115 Engineering Services Agreement Page 13 
 

unduly burdensome or delay the hearing.  

 

Up to the time of award, the cost of arbitration shall be split by the parties.  In the event a party 

fails to pay its share in a timely fashion, the Arbitrator shall treat the omission as a default and enter 

judgment in favor of the other party.  The Arbitrator may award the prevailing party 

reimbursement for any fees and expenses incurred, including arbitration costs paid, or allocate the 

attorney’s fees and expenses between the parties in such proportions as the Arbitrator decides is 

just and reasonable.  

 

The Arbitrator shall make his or her decision in writing.  In making his or her decision, the 

arbitrator shall follow California Law and shall have authority to impose any appropriate remedy 

permitted under California Law.  Either party may seek clarification or reconsideration of the 

award within 10 days of issuance.  

 

NOTICE: BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOU ARE AGREEING TO HAVE ANY 

DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS INCLUDED IN THE ARBITRATION OF 

DISPUTES' PROVISION DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION AS PROVIDED BY 

CALIFORNIA LAW AND YOU ARE GIVING UP ANY RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO 

HAVE THE DISPUTE LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY TRIAL.  

 

BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS 

TO DISCOVERY AND APPEAL, UNLESS THOSE RIGHTS ARE SPECIFICALLY 

INCLUDED IN THE 'ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES' PROVISION.  IF YOU REFUSE TO 

SUBMIT TO ARBITRATION AFTER AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOU MAY BE 

COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF THE CALIFORNIA CODE 

OF CIVIL PROCEDURE.  YOUR AGREEMENT TO THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION IS 

VOLUNTARY.  

 

WE HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING AND AGREE TO SUBMIT 

DISPUTES ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS INCLUDED IN THE 'ARBITRA TION OF 

DISPUTES' PROVISION TO NEUTRAL ARBITRATION.  

 

Initial:  Consultant ____  City ____ 

 

 

 

ITEM  8B
16 of 45



 

 
 

 

CITY OF COLFAX 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Qualifications 

CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES 

DUE: October 25, 2018, 3:00 PM 

ITEM  8B
17 of 45



 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

DUE TO CITY:  
October 25, 2018, 3:00 PM 

 

CITY OF COLFAX 
 
 

The City of Colfax is seeking written statement of qualifications from consultants to 
perform a variety of Professional Engineering and Construction management/ 
Inspection Services, other engineering services and to serve as the City Engineer for 
the following general assistance program areas: 

 

 Capital Improvement Program management and development. 

 Technical evaluation of projects and programs. 
 Project management responsibility for evaluation, programming, design and 

construction of capital projects. 

 Provide oversight of consultant requests for proposals and/or construction 
services including the advertising and bid processes for projects; evaluation of 
proposals and recommendation for project award; negotiation and 
administration of contracts for construction projects. 

 Participates in initiating all capital improvement projects and programs, 
including defining project scope, determining project budget, and locating 
financial resources. 

 Participate in the review and conditioning of planning applications in relation to 
the City’s General Plan, infrastructure master plans and overall capital needs of 
the City. 

 Preparation of plans, specifications and estimates for city public works projects. 

 Represents the City within the community and with outside agencies. 

 City compliance with all Federal, State, County and local laws and regulations. 
 Manage projects that are Federally, State, or County funded following 

required policies including Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual. 

 Monitors and makes recommendations in relation to changes in laws, 
regulations and technology that may affect City operations; implements policy 
and procedural changes as required. 

 Prepares reviews and presents staff reports and City engineering documents 
and reports on various projects and programs and attend City Council 
meetings as necessary. 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 

ITEM  8B
18 of 45



 

 Review and comment on planning programs and land development controls. 

 Provide emergency response in time of unusual weather and other disaster such 
as flooding, earthquake, et 

 Provide utility interface as necessary with PG&E, cable, and other utility 
companies 

 Perform right-of-way engineering, mapping, and surveying as required. 

 Construction management, inspection, and related support services as required. 
 

BACKGROUND 

 
The City of Colfax desires to hire a consulting firm to serve as the City Engineer.  The 
City Engineer will become adjunct to staff, working with the City Manager or designee 
and various departments to develop and deliver various programs and projects 
associated with private development projects, capital improvement projects for 
wastewater, streets, drainage, traffic engineering, parks, and public facilities. The City 
is looking for consultants that: 

 Coordinate the City’s Engineering Function 

 Understand City facilities and operations 
 Efficiently develop and deliver programs and projects 
 Work with staff, City Council and private developers in the development 

and implementation of projects 
 Have a depth of staff available with advance notice 

Projects and programs are funded by a combination of grants (regional, state and 
federal), development fees, gas taxes, assessments and utility rates. Consultants must 
be experienced with Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual and the 
administration of the full variety of State, Federal and local funding sources. 

 
Interested consultants are being asked with this request to submit a specific 
statement of qualifications for the programs listed above. The tentative selection 
process schedule is as follows: 

 

City Issues RFQs September 27, 2018 

Qualification Submittals Due to City October, 25, 2018 

Interviews Week of October 29, 2018 

City Council Approval  November 14, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 

ITEM  8B
19 of 45



 

City of Colfax- City Engineering Services RFQ 
 
 

CONTENTS OF STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS (SOQ) SUBMITTAL 

 
1. Cover Letter (No more than one page): Indicate the availability of key staff 

and the level of commitment the consultant is willing to make to City 
programs and projects (signed by project team member authorized to make 
commitments on behalf of proposer). 

2. Proposed Team (No more than one page per staff member): For individual 
areas of expertise, identify proposed key staff available for specific areas. 
For larger, multiple discipline projects, identify proposed key staff, describe 
how the proposed team would work together and work closely with City 
staff.  Include organization chart.  Provide overview of each key staff member 
and current office location for each key staff member. Include background of 
the firm/team, number of professionals (by discipline) and support staff, 
major focus of practice, range of services and references.  Provide resumes for 
each engineer. 

4. An estimate of the percentage of work to be performed locally. 
Indicate other offices/locations that might provide services. 

5. Approach to Providing Services to the City (No more than one page): 
Describe the Firm/Team’s approach for engagement with the City of Colfax. 

 

6. Resumes of proposed staff are to be located in an appendix (there are no page 
limits to this resume appendix). 

 

7. A list of references including names, positions and telephone numbers for the 
individuals identified in the qualifications. 

 

8. This City has not established a DBE Goal for this contract. However, proposers 
are encouraged to obtain DBE participation for this contract. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMITTING SOQ 

 
Three bound copies and one pdf copy on CD or USB drive labeled “City Engineering Services 
SOQ” delivered to the following address no later than 3:00 PM, October 25, 2018: 

 
Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
City of Colfax 
P.O. Box 702, 33 S. Main Street  
Colfax, CA, 95713 

 

Page 3 of 4 

ITEM  8B
20 of 45



 

City of Colfax- City Engineering Services RFQ 
 
 

 

SELECTION PROCESS AND CRITERIA 
The City will review proposals and select the most qualified firms for an interview. Criteria 
for selection will include but not be limited to the following: 

 

 Qualifications and relevant experience of firm (including depth of staff) 

 Qualifications and relevant experience of key staff with public agencies 

 Understanding of the City of Colfax 

 Demonstrated ability to respond quickly 

 Approach to providing services 

 Cost effectiveness 
 

Responsiveness of Submittals.  All submittals must be in writing and fully responsive to this 
RFQ. Non-responsive submittals or submittals found to be irregular or not in conformance 
with the requirements and instructions contained herein may be rejected. Other conditions 
which may lead to the selection committee’s decision not to evaluate a submittal include 
obvious lack of experience, expertise, or adequate resources to perform the required work, 
and/or failure to perform or meet financial obligations on previous contracts.  The City 
reserves the right to reject any and all submittals for any reason whatsoever. 

 

Waivers.  The City may waive informalities or irregularities in submittals received where such 
is merely a matter of form and not substance, and the correction or waiver of which is not 
prejudicial to other submittals. 

 

Interviews.  The City may schedule interviews with the most qualified proposers to assist in 
selecting the best consultant or consultants for general assistance program areas listed 
above. Proposers will be notified by telephone or mail if they have been selected to 
participate in the interview process. 

 

Negotiation. Following selection of the most qualified consultants for the negotiated 
contracts for service will then be submitted to the City Council for approval. 

 

This agreement will extend for three years with an optional additional two years.  The City 
will reserve the right to terminate the agreements at any time for any reason. 

 

Please address any questions to Wes Heathcock, City Manager, at wes.heathcock@colfax-
ca.gov with a subject heading of “City Engineering Services RFQ”.  All questions related to 
this RFQ process must be submitted via email prior to October 17, 2018. 

 

 

Thank you for your interest. 

 

Page 4 of 4 

ITEM  8B
21 of 45

mailto:wes.heathcock@colfax-ca.gov
mailto:wes.heathcock@colfax-ca.gov


 

 City of Colfax City Engineering 
 PROJECT/PROGRAM STATUS BUDGET 

1 City of Colfax City Engineering-Baseline 
Functions 

On-Going $21,000/yr 

2 S. Auburn St/I-80 Roundabout Design $3.5M 

3 Rising Sun Road Pavement Resurfacing 
Project 

Construction $219,500  

4 Culver Street Pavement Rehab Design/Construction $205,000  

5 WWTP Pond 3 Storm Damage Repair Prelim Engineering $480,000  

6 WWTP Pond 3 Outlet Improvements Prelim Engineering $18,000  

7 Sewer Collection System CIP Projects On-Going $249,000  

8 ADA Improvements  Annual/On-Going $20,000/yr 

9 Annual Pavement Capital Maintenance 
Projects  

On-Going $200,000  

10 Recycle Center Improvements  Prelim Design $46,000  

11 Encroachment & Grading Permits On-Going - 

12 Sierra Oaks Estates Subdivision  Construction - 

13 Village Oaks Subdivision  Design - 

14 Maidu Village Travel Center Subdivision  DA / Entitlement - 

15 Best Western Hotel Design - 

16 Waste Water Grant Projects Design/Construction $6.5M 

17 Culver Street Pavement Rehab Phase II Design/Construction $280,000  

 

ITEM  8B
22 of 45



CITY OF COLFAX
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

City of Colfax
Attn: Wes Heathcock, City Manager

P.O. BOX 702, 33 S. Main Street
Colfax, CA 95713

Bureau Veritas North America, Inc.
Craig Baptista
180 Promenade Circle, Suite 150
Sacramento, CA 95834
(916) 725-4200
www.us.bureauveritas.com

ITEM  8B
23 of 45



CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

2 October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.  Cover Letter   3

2.  Proposed Team   4 

3.  Percentage of Work by Office Location & DBE Goal  6

4.  Approach to Providing Services to the City  7

5.  References  8

6.  Appendix  A

 

ITEM  8B
24 of 45



CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

3 October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Cover Letter

October 25th, 2018

City of Colfax
Attn: Wes Heathcock, City Manager
P.O. BOX 702, 33 S. Main Street
Colfax, CA 95713

Re:  Response to RFP for City Engineering Services for the City of Colfax

Dear Mr. Heathcock,

On behalf of Bureau Veritas North America, Inc. (BVNA), we are pleased to present our qualifications for City 
Engineering Services for the City of Colfax. We are excited to present our qualifications for this opportunity.

Our proposal highlights BVNA’s decades’ worth of experience providing similar engineering services to 
agencies throughout California and the United States. We have the broadband for strong resources, skills 
and expertise needed to provide excellent engineering, public works plan review, and public works inspection 
services for the City of Colfax. We are keenly aware of the desire for timely reviews, top-notch customer 
services, strong work ethics, and cost-effective solutions. Our commitment to provide accurate and 
appropriate solutions to our clients and our ability to meet the needs of the communities quickly and 
efficiently as possible. 

We are entirely committed to dedicating the time of proven, available, and expert personnel for the scope of 
services in accordance with the City’s programs and projects.

We offer optimal solutions to deliver quality services:
 ▪ Office location within 60 minutes of City Hall
 ▪ Unparalleled plan review and inspection expertise
 ▪ Established relationships to ensure timely reviews, transparency and responsiveness
 ▪ Depth of resources and close proximity to maximize flexibility and deliver quality services
 ▪ Licensed and certified professionals
 ▪ Electronic review and web-based document control best practices to consistently meet turnaround 

schedules and streamline communication

For the proposal evaluation, our firm representative and point of contact is Craig Baptista. He is authorized 
to make commitments on behalf of BVNA. Craig’s contact information is listed below. BVNA looks forward to a 
successful, professional relationship with the City of Colfax by augmenting the department’s staff, promoting 
transparency in our work, improving efficiencies and exceeding your expectations.

Sincerely,

Craig Baptista, Director of Operations
180 Promenade Circle, Suite 150
Sacramento, CA 95834
916.291.9151/craig.baptista@us.bureauveritas.com

ITEM  8B
25 of 45



CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

4 October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Proposed Team

KEY STAFF/ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
BVNA has assembled a team of experts who are equipped to handle the workload for city engineering services 
for the City of Colfax. Each individual brings a wealth of knowledge unmatched by any other company. Each 
project team member has been specifically chosen for their experience in performing the required scope 
of work detailed in the request, as well as their extensive list of certifications and licenses. Our proposed 
team familiarizes themselves with the requirements of a public agency before executing services. BVNA has 
extensive public sector experience and working with many members of various Cities, which assures that the 
public’s interests are fully protected. We believe that technical competence, while expected, is not enough. 
Experience and careful, thorough consideration of issues and impacts is needed in addition to the purely 
technical considerations. We have devoted a great deal of time and effort over the years to refining our approach 
and developing documentation to assist our clients and train our staff in understanding plan review procedures.

The Northern California region currently has 30+ professional staff members - 4 managers, 8 plan reviewers, 
8 plans examiners, 6 fire protection staff members, and 6 inspectors - and 5 support admin/permit technicians.

PROPOSED TEAM

Project Management Team

Craig Baptista
Director of Operations

Gene Paolini, C.B.O.
Client Liaison

Key Staff

John Maguire, P.E., C.F.M.
Cvil Plan Review Engineer

Monte Bowers, P.E.
Senior Civil Engineer

John Che, P.E., Q.S.D./Q.S.P.
Senior Civil Engineer

Jee Choy, P.E.
Senior Civil Engineer

Craig Hamner, P.E.
Senior Civil Engineer

Wendy Haggard, P.E.
Civil Engineer

Steven Beswick, P.E.
Civil Engineer

Bijan Shakiba
Engineering Technician

Steve McCarthy
Engineering Technician

William Bixby, P.E.
Senior Civil Engineer

Additional Support Staff

ITEM  8B
26 of 45



City of Colfax 
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

5 October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Proposed Team

The following pages provide an overview of the key staff members listed in the previous page, including 
current office location. Our focus of practices and services are detailed in the “Approach to Providing Services 
to the City” section. Our reference are located in the “References” section. Detailed resumes of our key staff 
are located in the “Appendix” section. Resumes for our additional support staff are available upon request.

Name Education Licenses / Certifications Office 
Location

Craig Baptista
Director of Operations

M.B.A.
B.S. Business 
Management

Six Sigma Green Belt Certified
OSHA 30
United States Navy: Honorable
Discharge

Sacramento

Gene Paolini, C.B.O.
Business Development 
Manager, Client Liasion

ICC Certified: Building Inspector, 
Building Inspector CBC, Building Plans 
Examiner, Building Plans Examiner CBC, 
Certified Building Official

Sacramento

John Maguire, P.E., C.F.M.
Civil Plan Review Engineer

B.S., Civil Engineering Registered Professional Engineer: CA, 
#38445
Traffic: CA, #1492
Certified Floodplain Manager

Sacramento

Craig Hamner, P.E.
Senior Civil Engineer

B.S., Civil Engineering Registered Professional Engineer: CA, 
#28745

Sacramento

Jee Choy, P.E.
Senior Civil Engineer

M.S., Civil Engineering 
B.S., Civil Engineering

Registered Professional Engineer: CA, 
#46287

Sacramento

Wendy Haggard, P.E. 
Civil Engineer

M.S., Civil Engineering 
B.S., Civil Engineering

Registered Professional Engineer: CA, 
#66422

Sacramento

William Bixby, P.E.
Senior Civil Engineer

M.S., Civil Engineering 
B.S., Geotechnical 
Engineering

Registered Professional Engineer: CA, 
#48819

Sacramento

Monte Bowers, P.E.
Senior Civil Engineer

B.S., Civil Engineering Registered Professional Engineer: CA, 
#26493

Sacramento

John Che, P.E., Q.S.D./Q.S.P.
Senior Civil Engineer

B.S., Civil Engineering Registered Professional Engineer: CA, 
#51393

Sacramento

Steven Beswick, P.E. 
Civil Engineer

B.S., Civil Engineering
Resident Engineers 
Academy

Registered Professional Engineer: CA, 
#41786
Caltrans Resident Engineer

Sacramento

Steve McCarthy
Engineering Technician

AutoCAD, Kelar Corporation Instructional 
Certification
Civil Engineering Application Eagle Point, 
AutoCAD Land Desk, Civil 3D, Autoturn

Sacramento

Bijan Shakiba
Engineering Technician

B.S., Civil Engineering 
A.A., Communication
Construction and Project 
Management Certificate

Sacramento

ITEM  8B
27 of 45



City of Colfax 
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

6 October 25, 2018

 

Percentage of Work by Office Location & 
DBE Goal

Below is a breakdown of percentage of work to be performed locally and out of other offices.

PERCENTAGE OF WORK BY OFFICE LOCATION

Office Location Percentage of Work
Sacramento 100%

DBE GOAL
BVNA will not be obtaining DBE participation.

ITEM  8B
28 of 45



City of Colfax 
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

7 October 25, 2018

APPROACH TO PROVIDING SERVICES TO THE CITY

MAJOR FOCUS OF PRACTICE/FIRM QUALIFICATIONS
Founded in 1828, Bureau Veritas is a global leader in quality 
assurance, health, safety and environmental (QHSE) solutions. 
Recognized and accredited by the largest national and 
international organizations, and with over 70,000 employees, 
Bureau Veritas has unparalleled resources to manage projects 
requiring a broad range of expertise, across vast geographies. 
With more than 1,330 offices and laboratories in 140 countries, 
Bureau Veritas draws on the synergies between its local teams 
and dedicated technical centers throughout the world. For 
over 35 years, BVNA personnel have performed and managed 
engineering services for thousands of projects. Project types 
include developments, infrastructure, grading, drainage, stormwater, etc. With such a large and licensed 
staff, we are able to manage numerous and complex projects simultaneously. BVNA will bring a cooperative 
and creative problem solving approach to engineering. We fully understand our role as a team member 
committed to achieving successful projects for the City and its customers. 

RANGE OF SERVICES
BVNA as a whole supports our clients with a wide range of services. Some that may be relevant to the City 
of Colfax include:

 ▪ Capital Improvement Program management and development
 ▪ Technical evaluation and responsibility of projects for programming, design and construction
 ▪ Provide oversight of consultant requests for proposals and/or services, including advertising and bid     

 processes, recommendation for project award, negotation and administration
 ▪ Participates in initiating all capital improvement programs, including defining the scope, budget and  

 financial resource locations
 ▪ Participates in the review and conditioning of planning application in relation to the City’s General  

 Plan, infrastructure master plans and overall capital needs of the City.
 ▪ Preparation of plans, specifications, and estimates for public works projects
 ▪ Representation of the City within the community and to outside agencies
 ▪ Maintains City compliance with Federal, State and County laws and regulations
 ▪ Manages projects that are Federally, State, and County funded following required policies including  

 Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual.
 ▪ Monitors any changes in laws, regulations, and technology that may affect City operations.
 ▪ Implements policy and procedural changes as required
 ▪ Prepares review and presents staff reports and City engineering documents and reports on various  

 projects
 ▪ Attend City Council meetings as necessary.
 ▪ Review planning programs and land development controls
 ▪ Provide emergency guidance in response to unusual weather or other disasters
 ▪ Provide utility interface as necessary with PG&E, cable, and other utility companies
 ▪ Perform right-of-way engineering, mapping and surveying as needed
 ▪ Construction management, inspection and related support services as needed.

City of Colfax 

Approach to Providing Services to the 
City

ITEM  8B
29 of 45



City of Colfax 
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

8 October 25, 2018

City of Roseville
BVNA was selected to provide in-house plan review for public 
works and engineering projects, as well as civil reviews. We 
currently provide the City with support from licensed professional 
engineers to review new development and infrastructure projects. 
Since 2011, we have performed building and engineering plan 
review for over 850 projects. In addition to our public works staff, 
BVNA provides outside plan review services for building projects 
such as master plans, commercial, and industrial projects. 

Client: City of Roseville

Services: 
Building and Engineering Plan 
Review and Inspection Services

Timeframe: 2011 - Present

Reference: 
Jim Mangino, Building Official
311 Vernon Street
Roseville, CA 95678
(916) 774-5332
buildingdivision@roseville.ca.us

Roseville Westfield Galleria Roseville Westfield Galleria

City of Colfax 

References

REFERENCES

ITEM  8B
30 of 45



City of Colfax 
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

9 October 25, 2018

Resilient City Permit Center
BVNA provides planning services for the Resilient City Permit 
Center, an additional permit center dedicated to the rebuilding 
efforts after the Sonoma County fires. The BVNA team is handling 
not only plan checks and inspection but higher than usual permit 
application volumes.This disaster recovery-centered office is staffed 
by our in-house team of plans examiners and permit technicians. 
The office offers permit intake and procesing, record support, plan 
check, and inspection services for the anticipated upcoming 3,000 
residential permits and 25 commercial permits. The Resilient City 
Permit Center provides the full range of planning and building 
assistance to residents, contractors, and developers. Our team will 
support the center for approximately 2 years while 3,000 residential 
homes and more than 20 commercial structures are rebuilt. Efforts 
will be focused within the downtown area. Not only are homes less 
vulnerable to fires in downtown but efforts will provide a facelift to 
the neighborhood.

Between November 2017 and August 2018, our Resilient City Permit 
Center staff have received more than 1,000 permit applications for 
fire damaged properties. As of August 2018, more than 500 homes 
are under construction and another 200 permits have been issued 
for construction to begin. In addition to our in-house, full-time staff at 
the Resilient City Permit Center, BVNA has provided up to 12 extra 
engineers and plans examiners for several days at a time when 
there is a particularly high spike in applications.

Client: City of Santa Rosa

Services: 
Post-Fire Recovery Plan 
Review, Permitting and 
Inspection Services

Timeframe: 2017 - Present

Reference: 
David Guhin, Planning and 
Economic Development 
Director
100 Santa Rosa Avenue, 
Room 3
Santa Rosa, CA 95404
(707) 543-4299
dguhin@srcity.org

City of Colfax 

References

ITEM  8B
31 of 45



City of Colfax 
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

10 October 25, 2018

City of Menlo Park
BVNA reviews for conformance to City standards, Building Codes 
and NPDES enhanced clean water provisions is completed for 
all civil work for building permit including grading and drainage, 
hydraulics and hydrology, infrastructure, utilities and parking. Our 
plan check staff has reviewed a variety of projects including:

Facebook East Campus
The East Campus is 56.9 acres and is currently developed with 
9 buildings which contain approximately 1,035,840 square feet. 
Facebook has implemented a vehicular trip cap which allows 
approximately 6,600 employees to occupy the East Campus. 
BVNA Provided civil building permit review for compliance with 
California Building Code, the City’s Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance, C.3 requirements for post construction treatment of 
water, and NPDES Cleanwater requirements. 

Facebook West Campus
The West Campus is approximately 22 acres with a 500,000 
square foot office building featuring underground parking and a 
green roof. The first building (MPK20) was completed in 2014. 
The second building (MPK21) is approximately 500,000 square 
feet and nearly $1 billion USD. BVNA’s review started in 2016 on 
MPK21 and is anticipated to be complete in 2018. 

Client: City of Menlo Park

Services: Development Plan 
Review Services

Timeframe: 2006 - Present

Reference: 
Ron La France, Chief Building 
Official
701 Laurel Street
Menlo Park, CA 94025
650-330-6723

Aerial of Facebook Campus

City of Colfax 

References

ITEM  8B
32 of 45



City of Colfax 
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

11 October 25, 2018

City of Lake Elsinore
BVNA has provided as-needed public works plan review, water 
quality report review, and extension of staff services for over 25 
years. Technical reviews have ensured that plans and maps are 
compliant with City ordinances, standards, conditions of approval, 
and the Subdivision Map Act, stormwater quality regulations, and 
local, state, and federal regulations. Currently, we are providing 
public works plan review for the final phases of Canyon Hills Specific 
Plan and associated infill projects. 

Additional plan review assignments have included the review of 
improvement plans to include the interim and final storm drain facilities 
for three major community facilities districts. The largest of these 
developments, Ramsgate Community Development, included seven 
separate developments with improvements, grading plans, and final 
maps to accommodate close to 2,000 lots. Plan review consisted of 
street and storm drain improvements, detention basin, and routing 
calculations, stormwater quality BMP facilities, rough grading and 
final maps for individual tract maps throughout the project. 

Client: City of Lake Elsinore

Services: Map Check, 
Improvement, and Grading 
Plan Check

Timeframe: 1992 - Present

Reference: 
Dina Purvis, Senior 
Engineering Technician
130 South Main Street, Lake 
Elsinore, CA 92530
(951) 674-3124 x248
dpurvis@lake-elsinore.org

Alberhill DevelopmentRamsgate Community Development

City of Colfax 

References

ITEM  8B
33 of 45



City of Colfax 
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

12 October 25, 2018

design

City of Murrieta
BVNA has provided development review/processing and map 
review to the City since its incorporation in 1991. We have also 
provided architectural/building/fire plan review services, as well as 
staff augmentation for the Building Department. Originally, when 
the City first incorporated, BVNA initiated policies and procedures 
for the transition of development cases were instrumental in writing 
the City’s granting code & manual. Reviewed projects have run 
the full scale in size and type from improvement and grading plans 
and maps for large, low-density estate type subdivisions, to single 
commercial lots and single-family residences as well as drainage 
plans per RCFC&WCD’s standards. In addition, we have also been 
responsible for providing on-site extension of engineering staff to 
work with designers, developers, property owners, contractors, and 
permitting agencies to develop and condition projects.

For the 521-acre Vineyard development which featured 1,200 
homes within a sensitive environmental habitat, we prepared 
grading bonds and agreement; reviewed improvement plans and a 
dual water quality system to ensure compliance with the 401 Permit 
requirements; and coordinated water quality issues through the San 
Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

Client: City of Murrieta

Services: As-Needed Map 
Review and Plan Review 
Services

Timeframe: 1991 - Present

Reference: 
Bob Moehling, PE, City 
Engineer
1 Town Square
Murrieta, CA 92562
(951) 461-6036 
bmoehling@murrieta.org

The Vineyard Aerial Viewpoint The Vineyard Rendering

City of Colfax 

References

ITEM  8B
34 of 45



City of Colfax 
CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

13 October 25, 2018

Orange County Public Works
BVNA has been providing building and civil engineering plan 
review and inspection and services since 2012 Orange County 
Public Works. BVNA is the Prime Consultant. Projects include:

Rancho Mission Viejo (The Ranch) Development Plan 
Check 
Bureau Veritas is currently providing plan check and map 
check review of various projects and backbone infrastructure 
associated with Planning Area 1 of the Ranch Plan. The 
23,000-acre development is composed of 6,000 buildable 
acres. Bureau Veritas staff review tentative maps, site 
development plans, rough grading and precise grading 
plans, Runoff Management Plans, hydrology and hydraulic 
studies, Water Quality Management Plans, revetment plans, 
storm drain plans, and street improvement plans, checking 
for conformance to the County of Orange standards and 
regulations, easements and right-of-way requirements and for 
conformance to the conditions of approval. 

Client: County of Orange

Services: Building and Civil 
Engineering, Plan Review and 
Inspection Services

Timeframe: 2012 - Present

Reference: 
Hadi Tabatabaee, Building Official
333 W. Santa Ana Boulevard
Santa Ana, CA 92701
T. 714.667.8843
hadi.tabatabaee@ocpw.ocgov.com

Rancho Mission Viejo 

City of Colfax 

References

ITEM  8B
35 of 45



CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

A October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Appendix

Craig Baptista, Director of Operations
Prior to joining Bureau Veritas, Craig served as Director of Operations 
and is a business professional experienced in leading multiple branch 
offices in various states. Craig has over 16 years of experience in 
the construction industry. He is results-oriented and has exceptional 
experience building and managing successful programs and relationships. 
He is a skilled communicator capable of articulating complex ideas in 
a concise and persuasive manner. Craig has proven experience as a 
facilitator of solutions for client problems and is a strategic thinker with 
the ability to translate vision into tactics. He is self-motivated, passionate 
and resourceful. Craig has expertise identifying client needs and is 
able to execute problems quickly by utilizing his professional business 
management skills. He is equally effective working independently or 
collaborating with others.

Craig has managed various projects as Director of Operations and 
successfully reduced operating expenses by 18% through implementation 
of a preventative maintenance program and establishment of a baseline 
repair cost matrix. He provided leadership, mentoring, direction and 
training for a 35 member Operations team that included Branch Managers, 
Project Managers, and other staff. He developed annual business plans, 
market strategies, operations and sales goals which resulted in year over 
year growth. Craig has worked on various significant projects, including, 
but not limited to:

 ▪ Apple Campus II in Cupertino, CA 
 ▪ Cal Trans - Bay Bridge Project in Oakland, CA 
 ▪ Tesla Gigafactory in Sparks, NV
 ▪ Souza Construction - Lemoore Naval Air Station Project in Fresno, 

CA 
 ▪ Advance Range Solution - Fort Hunter Liggett in Jolon, CA 
 ▪ Hensel Phelps - Mule Creek Prison in Ione, CA 

Director of Operations  
Bureau Veritas North America, Inc.                          
2015 - Present
Serves as Director of Operations for the West Coast code compliance 
division. Manages over 50 employees throughout California, Arizona, 
Nevada, and Washington. Oversees plan review and inspection activities 
to ensure BVNA has ample resources to meet turnaround times and 
provide quick response to inspection requests. Works directly with plan 
review team to gain efficiencies in turnaround times. Effectively reduced 
the number of reviews by promoting direct contact with designers and 
municipalities to remedy code deficiencies during the first and second 
reviews, allowing our team to approve projects during the second submittal 
phase.

Education
M.B.A.

B.S., Business Management 

Registrations/Certifications
Six Sigma Green Belt Certified

OSHA 30

United States Navy: Honorable 
Discharge

Tenure at BVNA
2+

Total Years of Experience
16+

ITEM  8B
36 of 45



CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

B October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Appendix

Gene Paolini, C.B.O., Client Liasion
Registrations/Certifications

ICC Certified:
Certified Building Official

Building Inspector 
Mechanical Inspector

Professional Affiliations
California Building Officials 2007 - 

2008 President (CALBO)
Sacramento Valley Association of 
Building Officials 2000 President 

(SVABO)
California Training Institute (CTI)

Total Years of Experience
31+

Tenure at BVNA
1+

Gene is an experienced building inspector and building official with over 31 
years of experience. He has extensive experience in providing technical 
support to a variety of construction projects including commercial and 
residential structures. Gene has provided technical support in rebuilding a 
500,000 square feet shopping mall after a major fire accident in 2010 by 
setting up a remote building department and helped the mall reopen within 
a week after the accident. 
Gene has been a CTI (California Training Institute) Director for the past 
10 years and served as chairperson for 4 years. He is also an instructor 
for CALBO and developed part of the BOLA curriculum including building 
department administration and budgeting and finance for building officials. 
He has also developed an introductory class, Building Department 101, for 
SVABO and CALBO.

Some of his significant achievements include:
 ▪ Obtained IAS Accreditation for the City of Roseville and making 

the Building Inspection Division the first California municipality to 
become nationally accredited.

 ▪ Conducted presentations to 22 International Code Council (ICC) 
chapters in California for CALBO.

 ▪ Participated in the code hearings at the Building Standards 
Commission for adoption of International Building Code in 
California.

 ▪ Implemented CALBO educational program of 425 classes 
throughout the state to ensure members would have a thorough 
understanding of the new International Code.

 ▪ Served as CALBO President from 2007 to 2008 and a Legislative 
Committee Member from 2006 to 2010.

 ▪ Served as SVABO President in 2000 and planned the ICBO annual 
business meeting as a committee chairperson. 

Select Project Experience
Special Projects Manager/Director of Operations/Operations Manager/
Senior Plans Examiner                   
Bureau Veritas North America, Inc.
2010 - Present
Served as the Director of Operations for Bureau Veritas North America 
Inc.’s West Coast code compliance division and currently oversees special 
projects. Oversees plan review and inspections for projects in California, 
Arizona, Washington, and Nevada. Directly involved with projects that 
require a higher level of understanding of code requirements and intent, 
as well as projects with unique challenges and complex components. 
Knowledge and experience includes thinking outside the box to fi nd 
solutions to code challenges while avoiding any negative impact to project 
schedules and/or budgets. Provided plan review of commercial, industrial, 
residential, and agricultural structures for compliance with International 
and California non-structural code requirements. 

ITEM  8B
37 of 45



CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

C October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Appendix

Education
B.S.,  Civil Engineering

Registrations/Certifications
Registered Professional Engineer:

Civil: CA, #38445
Traffic: CA, #1492

Certified Floodplain Manager 
(ASFPM)

Tenure at BVNA
Less than 1

Total Years of Experience
36+

John Maguire, P.E., C.F.M., Civil Plan Review Engineer
John has more than 36 years of professional engineering experience. He 
has technical expertise in commercial and residential land development, 
municipal capital improvement projects, municipal review and staff 
services. Prior to working with BVNA, John was the Engineering 
Services Manager of the Flood Management Division of the Public Works 
Department in San Joaquin County, the Assistant Director of the Utilities 
and Community Development Departments in City of Folsom, and has 
worked as a Civil or City Engineer for multiple municipalities throughout 
Northern California.

Select Project Experience

City Engineer                      
Bureau Veritas North America, Inc.
September 2017 - Present
Provides civil and traffic review services for both public works and building 
permits for jurisdictions throughout California. Services included review for 
conformance to the California building code, NPDES permit / Clean Water 
Act requirements, and local requirements and standards.

Engineering Services Manager                      
San Joaquin County
January 2011 - August 2017
Responsible for managing the Flood Management Division of the Public 
Works Department. Duties included overseeing plan checking and 
permitting for compliance with the County’s Floodplain Management 
ordinance; administering the County’s Community Rating System 
program; ensuring the County’s compliance with new state regulations 
associated with floodplain development; coordinating/participating in the 
planning, design and construction of flood protection improvements for 
unincorporated areas of the County as well as incorporated areas within 
the County; working with state and federal elected officials and their staffs 
on developing new legislation associated with floodplain management 
and coordinating such efforts with lobbyists, representatives from other 
local agencies and non-government organizations; serving on various 
boards and committees of flood management-related organizations;  
and providing technical support to the County’s levee maintenance 
personnel. Also, made presentations to the Board of Supervisors, County 
commissions and committees and community groups. Supervised 
engineering and clerical staff.

Assistant Director                      
Utilities and Community Development Departments, City of Folsom
August 1996 - October 2010
Responsible for managing the engineering, inspection and clerical 
staffs for the Utilities and Community Development Departments. Duties 
included supervising engineering and construction inspection functions for 

ITEM  8B
38 of 45



CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

D October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Appendix

Craig has over 30 years of experience as a civil engineer working for jurisdictions 
as well as private consultants. He has extensive knowledge and experience 
providing civil engineering services for projects of all sizes and complexities. 
His confidence and knowledge enables him to work well with customers and 
clients to ensure safety and compliance with all applicable codes.

Select Project Experience

Plan Review Engineer
Bureau Veritas North America, Inc.
2013 - Present
Performs in house public works plan review services for the City of Roseville. 

Vice President
Roseville Design Group
2010 - 2013
Performed duties as a licensed civil engineer for the company to include but 
not limited to design of small bridge structures, roofing structures, hydrology, 
hydraulics, site design and plan reviews for the City of Roseville. Prepared and 
filed parcel/subdivision maps and Records of Survey along with Lot Mergers.

Senior Civil Engineer
Private Sector
2004 - 2008
Performed engineering design focused on water supply and storm water 
hydrology and public infrastructure. Provided staff augmentation services for 
local jurisdictions.

Associate Civil Engineer/City Surveyor
City of Folsom
1990 - 2004
Involved in the discretionary portion for numerous development projects. During 
the design phase, reviewed and approved plans for residential and commercial 
projects. Reviewed and approved final maps, parcel maps and other survey 
documents. Prepared subdivision agreements and staff reports to the City 
Council. Had extensive experience in the permitting process associated with 
federal state and municipal projects. Acted as project manager on numerous 
capital improvement projects.

Education
B.S., Civil Engineering

Registrations/Certifications
Registered Professional Engineer:

CA, #28745

Professional Affiliations
American Public Works Association 

(APWA)

The United States Army Engineer 
Regiment

Total Years of Experience
30+

Craig Hamner, P.E., Civil Plan Review Engineer

ITEM  8B
39 of 45



CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

E October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Appendix

Jee has over 31 years of experience providing civil engineering services for 
jurisdictions and private consultants in California. He is skilled and knowledgeable 
in requirements for capital improvement projects, utility projects, roadways, 
grading, etc. Jee brings a depth of knowledge of not only engineering review, 
but also construction inspection and construction management projects.

Select Project Experience

Civil Plan Review Engineer
Bureau Veritas North America, Inc.
2013 - Present
Provides civil engineering review, construction inspection, and construction 
management services for jurisdictions. Projects include:

Camp Pendleton
Conducted civil inspection services for Phase VIII Stuart Mesa project.

City of Soledad
Conduct construction inspection of the new housing development Miravale II 
Unit II.

City of Roseville
Westbrook Phase I Civil Engineering Review 
Pleasant Grove Improvements Civil Engineering Review

Fort Lewis/McChord Housing Plan Type 5 Civil Engineering Review

Senior Civil Engineer
City of Rocklin
2005 - 2011
Duties included construction inspection of residential subdivisions, industrial 
commercial developments and capital improvement projects. Managed and 
directed workload of two construction inspectors. Responsible for acceptance 
of nearly all roadway and drainage improvements in the City, ascertaining 
compliance with City standards, clarifying construction documents, resolving 
conflicts with utilities, negotiating with contractors and monitoring field 
instructions and change orders on capital improvement projects. Other 
responsibilities included reviewing, organizing and managing construction 
inspection reports, test reports and record drawings. Completed plan review 
and approval of site, roadway and drainage improvement plans, drainage 
calculations, flood plain hydrologic and hydraulic modeling, and construction 
cost estimates for residential subdivisions, commercial, institutional, medical, 
and industrial facilities. Prepared reports and engineering documents. 

Education
M.S., Civil Engineering
B.S., Civil Engineering

Registrations/Certifications
Registered Professional Engineer:

CA, #46287

Total Years of Experience
31+

Jee Choy, P.E., Civil Plan Review Engineer

ITEM  8B
40 of 45



CITY ENGINEERING SERVICES

F October 25, 2018

City of Colfax 

Appendix

Wendy has over 10 years of experience in the engineering field. She is 
knowledgeable in the areas of infrastructure development, sewer design, and 
roadway design. 

Select Project Experience

Plan Review Engineer
Bureau Veritas North America, Inc.
2014 - Present
Provides plan review services for projects such as residential, commercial, 
industrial, infrastructure, development, grading, etc. Specific projects include:

Cities of Lincoln, Roseville, and Sacramento
Provides as-needed structural plan review services for various clients in 
California. Projects include residential and commercial new and existing 
structures.

Town of Loomis
Provides civil plan review services on an as-needed basis for the Town. 
Reviews are typically performed at the Town of Loomis when Town staff is out 
of the office.

LendLease Military Housing - Nationwide
Provided civil plan review services for multiple projects and military bases 
throughout the United States.

Civil Engineer
Private Sector
2001 - 2010
Provided staff augmentation for the City of Manteca. Duties included acting 
as project manager for the South Union / Atherton projects. Worked with a 
design firm and the City to complete the design of a roadway extension and 
widening project. Coordinated the bidding process, construction, supervised 
the inspectors, and processed all of the day-to-day activities. Assisted with the 
right-of-way process and led coordinated with PG&E, Verizon, and Caltrans.

Fire Station Development
Worked with an architectural firm and the City’s fire department to design two fire 
stations; one a remodel of an existing office building involving seismic upgrades 
and the other is a brand new building. Coordinated with the departments within 
the City, the architect firm, as well as their sub consultants, and an electrical 
third party.

Education
M.S., Civil Engineering

B.S., Civil and Environmental 
Engineering

Registrations/Certifications
Registered Professional Engineer:

CA, #66422

Total Years of Experience
10+

Wendy Haggard, P.E., Plan Review Engineer

ITEM  8B
41 of 45



Bureau Veritas North America, Inc

ITEM  8B
42 of 45



 

                                                                                                                  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
November 6th, 2018 
 
 
Ms. Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk      
City of Colfax, CA 
33 S Main Street, PO BOX 702 
Colfax, CA 95713 
530-346-2313 
city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov 
 
Re:  City of Colfax – City Engineering Services 
 
Dear Ms. Cassidy, 
 
Bureau Veritas North America, Inc. (BVNA) is pleased to submit our fee proposal to provide city 
engineering services for the City of Colfax. 
 
Our review will be conducted in accordance with the scope specified. The fee schedule in effect at 
the beginning of the contract shall be held as the rates for any extra service work for the duration of 
the project, unless the contract completion date is extended due to changes initiated and a new rate 
structure is included in the contract extension.  
 
FEES 
Description        BVNA Fee 
City Engineer       $160/hour 
 
Additional Services 
Senior Engineer      $140/hour 
Project Manager      $140/hour 
Construction Inspector/Engineering Technician  $125/hour* 
 
*Rate is standard non-prevailing wage. 
    
Overtime: All Employees classified as “non-exempt” by the U.S. Department of Labor will be 
compensated at 1-1/2 times salary for overtime hours as per State and Federal wage and hour laws. 
No overtime will be charged without prior consent. 
 
Reimbursables: Reimbursement for employee-owned vehicles used in connection with the work will 
be at the current IRS rate. 
 
We can provide additional information regarding our qualifications and previous experience should 
you request. BVNA looks forward to working with you on this project.   
 
Sincerely, 

 

Craig Baptista, Director of Operations 
916.514.4516/craig.baptista@us.bureauveritas.com 

ITEM  8B
43 of 45



Scott Phillip Gandler, P.E.
Education

B.S., Science/Mechanical 
Engineering

Registrations/Certifications
Registered Professional Engineer:

CA, #56561

Total Years of Experience
30+

Scott has over 30 years of experience providing civil engineering services 
in California. He is skilled and knowledgeable in requirements for Capital 
Improvement, Utility, Roadway, Turnabout and Grading Projects. Prior to 
working at Bureau Veritas, Scott was with the City of Roseville for over 
20 years working as a Senior Civil Engineer. His experience includes 
transportation planning, budget preparation, traffic study preparation 
and review, develop and achieve department goals and objectives.  
He also represented the city in regional transportation planning, 
including commission and council presentations. He worked closely 
with consultants, federal, state and local agencies on complex multi-
agency funding issues and challenges to achieve safety standards and 
improvements while considering the needs of local agencies and federal 
requirements. He was a member of the following four projects - Project 
Design Team for Interstate 80/State Route 65 Interchange improvements; 
State Route 65 Widening Project; Technical Advisory Committee for Placer 
Parkway, a planned new freeway in South Placer County, CA; and a 
member of the Project Design Team for Interstate 80 Auxiliary Lanes/5th 
lane widening project.  

Select Project Experience

Senior Civil Engineer - Development Services - Engineering                   
City of Roseville
2006 - 2018
For Transportation Planning, Scott’s responsibilities included budget 
preparation, traffic study review, develop department goals, and represent 
the City in regional transportation planning, committee, commission and 
council presentations. 

Some of his most significant projects include being a member of the 
Project Design Teams for I-80/State Route 65-Interchange improvements, 
State Route 65 widening project, and I-80 Auxiliary Lanes/5th Lane 
widening project as well as a member of the Technical Advisory Committee 
for Placer Parkway, a new planned freeway for Placer County. For those 
projects, Scott worked with federal, state, and local agencies, reviewed 
traffic modeling, approved invoices for progress payments, and produced 
plans and estimates, among other duties.

Senior Civil Engineer - Public Works/Engineering                  
City of Roseville
2002 - 2006
Supervised 24 employees, half of the Engineering Division, including 
development, construction inspection and transportation planning 
sections. Scott was also responsible for budget preparation, development 
processing, City Council reports and presentations, transportation and 
planning commission presentations and regional transportation and 
development issues.

ITEM  8B
44 of 45



Scott Phillip Gandler, P.E.

2

Associate Civil Engineer - Transportation Planning                 
City of Roseville
1995 - 2002
Scott was responsible for the transportation planning section, including preparing review budgets, monthly staff 
reports, implement goals, perform complex traffic modeling, participation of environmental assessments, and 
serve as the chair of the City’s safety committee. Scott also assisted in the development section for conditioning 
development projects, meeting developers and city planners, and resolving design issues.

Acting Associate Engineer - Transportation Planning                 
City of Roseville
1994 - 1995
Responsible for the Traffic Engineering Section, supervising 5 people, preparing grant applications, contract 
administration, reviewing staff reports, assigning workload, and working with the other departments on various 
projects.

Assistant Engineer - Traffic Engineering               
City of Roseville
1991 - 1994
Scott managed various capital improvements and engineering projects, traffic signal design and construction 
management. Also prepared plans and specifications.

Engineering Assistant - Traffic Engineering               
City of Roseville
1990 - 1991
Prepared various traffic studies, accident studies, and speed studies. Scott also investigated and evaluated 
requests from the public and various related duties.

Engineering Technician - Traffic Engineering               
City of Roseville
1988 - 1990
Provided technical support to engineering personnel, research and data collection, drafting and AutoCAD work 
and other related duties.

ITEM  8B
45 of 45


	00A 181114 Agenda
	04A 181010 Minutes
	04B  Cash Summary September 2018
	181114 SR Staff Report Cash Summary Sep 2018
	Cash Summary Data September 2018

	04C Quarterly investment ending September
	Quarterly Investment Report QE 09.30.18
	quarterly investment data

	04D Rising Sun Caltrans agreement
	181114 SR Rising Sun Program Supplement Agreement Nov 14 2018
	Resolution 62-2018 Rising Sun Finance Agreement
	03-5187F15 CalTrans DOT Master Agreement 12Mar2018
	5187(011) PSA

	04E LTF and STA Funds
	Staff Report Nov 2018
	Resolution 63-2018 Transit funds
	LTF STA Data

	04F ADA NOC
	181114 SR South Main ADA Project NOC
	Resolution 64-2018 2018 ADA Improvements Project NOC
	181114 2018 ADA Improvements NOC

	04G Pond 1 NOC
	181114 SR Pond 1 Levee Project NOC
	Resolution 65-2018 Pond 1 Levee NOC
	181114 Pond 1 NOC

	04H Shade Covers for Bleachers
	2018 Staff Report Shade Structures
	Resolution 65-2018 Ball Park Shade Structure
	Example image
	Ball Park Bleach Shade Structures - Quotes

	04I Fire Grant Acceptance
	SR Fire Equipment Grant Acceptance
	Resolution 66-2018 Fire Grant Acceptance
	Award Letter 7FG18019
	Agreement 7FG18019

	04J Roundabout ROW and Dedication
	Staff Report - Acceptance Maidu Village ROW
	Resolution 67-2018
	Attachment 2 - RW Dedication Exhibit
	Attachment 3 & 4 - Right of Way Dedication Plat and Legal
	Attachment 5 - Maidu Village Colfax Deposit Agreement Roundabout
	Attachment 6 - Certificate of Acceptance Maidu ROW

	05A Maidu Village Public Hearing
	01 181114 SR Maidu Village
	02 Resolution 68 Maidu Village VTPM DR
	03 Attach 2 - COA -11-14-18
	04 Attach 3 - IS Neg Dec
	05 Attach 4 - 181022dh_Enacting Ordinance Cover
	06 181022ch_Enacting Ordinance
	07 Attach 6a- Site Plan
	08 Attach 6b Tentative Map
	09 Attach 6c - Preliminary Grading Drainage Utility Plan
	10 Attach 6d - Detail Sheet
	11 Attach 6e - Landscape Plan
	12 Attach 6f ARCO Plans
	13 Resolution 69-2018 ARCO DR

	05B Mitigation Impact Fee Public Hearing
	Staff Report - 2018 Mitigation Impact Fee
	Resolution 70-2018 Mitigation Fees
	Annual AB1600 Report 2018

	05C PH for Whitcomb
	181114 SR Whitcomb Ave
	Resolution 71-2018 Whitcomb Ave Site Plan
	Attach 2 Location Map
	Attach 3 - COA 11-14-18
	Attach 4 - Initial Study Neg Dec
	Attach 5a Preliminary Site Plan
	Attach 5b Preliminary Grading Plan
	Attach 5c Mod Building

	08A Psomas CM Roundabout
	Staff Report - Award of Contract Psomas
	Resolution 72-2018 Psomas CM Roundabout
	Attachment 2 - Contract
	Attachment 3 - Psomas Proposal
	Attachment 4 - Revised Cost Proposal

	08B Civil Engineer BV
	City Engineer Staff Report 11.14.2018
	Resolution 72-2018 City Engineer BV
	City Engineering Services Agreement (Final) 11.14.2018
	RFQ for City Engineer Final-2018
	City of Colfax_BVNA_Submittal_City Engineering Services SOQ
	Bureau Veritas - City of Colfax - City Engineering Services
	Gandler, Scott Phillip




